
 
 
 

AMENDED 
CITY OF NEW BERN 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 
FEBRUARY 09, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COURTROOM 
300 POLLOCK STREET 

 
Notice Regarding Public Hearings:  Public hearings will be conducted, but action 
will be delayed by the Board until its next meeting pursuant if at least one member 
of the Board participates electronically.  In that case, the public comment period 
will remain open for 24 hours following the hearings.  During that time, comments 
may be submitted to the City Clerk by emailing blancob@newbernnc.gov or hand 
delivery to her office at 300 Pollock Street, New Bern.  This is in compliance with 
the remote meetings law activated by a declared state of emergency. 

 
 

1. Meeting opened by Mayor Dana E. Outlaw.  Prayer Coordinated by Alderman Aster.  
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. Roll Call. 

 
3. Request and Petition of Citizens. 
 

Consent Agenda  
 
4. Consider Adopting a Resolution to Close Specific Streets for the Black History 

Month Parade.  
 

5. Consider Adopting a Resolution to Call for a Public Hearing for the Creation of a 
Residential Property Periodic Inspection Program per Section 2.1.2 of the 
Redevelopment Plan.  
 

6. Approve Minutes. 
 

********************  
 
7. Presentation of Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Audit for Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, 2020.   
 

8. Presentation by CPL on Stanley White Recreation Center.  
 

9. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Amendment to Sections 15-
472, 15-474 and 15-486 of the City of New Bern Land Use Ordinance.  

 
10. Conduct a Public Hearing on Amending the 2020 Annual Action Plan for the 

Community Development Block Grant Program. 
  

mailto:blancob@newbernnc.gov


 
 

 
11. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider: 

a) Adopting a Statement of Consistency or Inconsistency for 3205, 3207 and 3209 
Country Club Road; and 

b) Adopting an Ordinance to Rezone 3205, 3207, and 3209 Country Club Road.   
 
12. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider: 

a) Adopting a Statement of Consistency or Inconsistency for Tax Parcel ID #8-211-
005; and 

b) Adopting an Ordinance to Rezone Tax Parcel ID #8-211-005. 
 

13. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Annex 431 
Riverside Drive.  
 

14. Appointment(s).    
 
15. Attorney’s Report. 
 
16. City Manager’s Report.  

 
17. New Business. 
 
18. Closed Session.   
 
19. Adjourn. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES REQUIRING SPECIAL ASSISTANCE SHOULD CALL 
639-7501 NO LATER THAN 3 P.M. THE DATE OF THE MEETING 



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Agenda Item Title:
Consider Adopting a Resolution to close streets for Vision Forward' s annual Black History
Parade.

Date of Meeting: February 9, 2021 Ward # if applicable: 1 & 2

Department: Parks & Recreation Person Submitting Item:
Foster Hughes, CPRE

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing:

Explanation of Item• Victor Taylor with Vision Forward has made a request to close

the 400-600 blocks of Fort Totten Drive, 1300- 1600 blocks of

Trent Boulevard, 400 block of First Street, 700- 1200 blocks of

Broad Street, 400-600 blocks of George Street, and the 700

block of Cedar Street to vehicle traffic for Vision Forward' s

annual Black History Parade from 10: 00 a. m. until 2: 00 p. m. on
February 20, 2021 with a rain date of February 27, 2021. The
request for street closure is pending the NC Governor's
Executive Order and NCDHHS guidelines at the time of the
event.

Actions Needed by Adopt the Resolution

Board:

Backup Attached:     Resolution— Memo— Application - Map

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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Memo To:      Mayor and Board of Aldermen

From:    Foster Hughes, CPRE

Director of Parks & Recrea ion

Re: Request to close certain streets to vehicle traffic for Vision Forward Black History
Parade.

Backqround Information:

Victor Taylor with Vision Forward has made a request to close the 400-600

blocks of Fort Totten Drive, 1300- 1600 blocks of Trent Boulevard, 400 block of

First Street, 700- 1200 blocks of Broad Street, 400- 600 blocks of George Street,

and the 700 block of Cedar Street to vehicle traffic for Vision Forward' s annual

Black History Parade from 10:00 a. m. until 2: 00 p. m. on February 20, 2021 with a
rain date of February 27, 2021. The request for street closure is pending the NC
Governor's Executive Order and NCDHHS guidelines at the time of the event.

Recommendation:

The Parks and Recreation Director recommends approval and request the Board

adopt a Resolution approving the request.

1307 Country Club Rd
Ne- Bern, NC 28562

Office 252 639-2901

Fax 252 636-4138



RESOLUTION

THAT WHEREAS,  Vision Forward is planning their annual Black History
Parade and has requested that specific streets be closed to vehicular traffic from 10: 00
a. m. until 2: 00 p. m. on Saturday, February 20, 2021, with a rain date of February 27,
2021. Those streets are the 400- 600 blocks of Fort Totten Drive, 1300- 1600 blocks of
Trent Boulevard, 400 block of First Street, 700- 1200 blocks of Broad Street, 400- 600
blocks of George Street; and the 700 block of Cedar Street; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Parks and Recreation of the City of New Bern
recommends the streets be closed as requested,  pending the NC Governor' s
Executive Order and the NC Department of Health and Human Services' guidelines at
the time of the event.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN
OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN:

That the 400- 600 blocks of Fort Totten Drive,  1300- 1600 blocks of Trent

Boulevard, 400 block of First Street, 700- 1200 blocks of Broad Street, 400- 600 blocks
of George Street, and the 700 block of Cedar Street shall be closed to vehicular traffic

from 10: 00 a. m. until 2: 00 p. m. on February 20, 2021 with a rain date of February 27,
2021 for Vision Forward' s annual Black History Parade, pending the NC Governor's
Executive Order and the NC Department of Health and Human Services' guidelines at
the time of the event.

ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK
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V       CITY OF NEW BERN

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ASSEMBLY, PARADE & SPECIAL EVENTS IN CITY PARKS

This application is hereby made for a permit to hold a Public Assembly and/ or Parade as described in the City of New eern

Code of Ordinances( Sec. 66-85; 66-86; and 66-87)—Public Assemblies and Porades.

This application along with attachments must be presented at least 60 davs prior to the event date.
Festival— A concert, fair, festival, exhibit, athletic event, promotion, community event, block party, or similar event.

Parade— A march, ceremony, pageant, procession or other similar activities consisting of persons, animals, vehicles or things, or

any combination thereof, that disrupts the normal flow of traffic upon any public street.
Public Assembly— A festival or demonstration which is reasonably anticipated to obstruct the normal flow of traffic upon any

public street and that is collected together in one place; or a festival in any city- controlled park.

Name of Event/ Activity: B1ack HiscoryParade

Organization Name:  vision Forward

Responsible Contact:  victor. Tayior

Address:  Z817 Walter Driver

City:   N w 3 a State:  N       Zip code: 285s2

Ph011e:  252- 617- 2537 Alternate Phone:  NiA

EIT1211:  vjtaylor12@yahoo.com

TypeofEvent:   Demonstration       Festival BParade

Date of Event:  2/ 20/ 2021 Proposed Rain Date: 2 2 202

Event Set up time:  10 AM Event Tear pown Completed Time:  2 PM

Event Start Time:  12 PM Event End Time:  Z PM

Are you selling any goods or services?  Yes* 8 No

Are you charging an admission fee or collecting donations?     BYes* No

What is the specific location and/ or route of the proposed event? ( Attach odditionol information if needed)
See Map 4, ' T  ( r,- fi-r IL 12l .

Note: A detailed map of the proposed route as well as a specific list of streets is required. The specific location of the Public Assembly must
include the aerial overview with location marked. Festivals/ Events requi e detailed aerial map with complete layout.

What is the purpose of this event? Please be detailed in your description-( Attach additional information if needed)

Estimated attendance: 200 Attendance not to exceed: 250

Note: / fmore than 1, 000 in attendance is expecied 1) Proof of Crowd Manaqer Troininq Certification is required. Training is ovailable at
the following link: httq:// www.newbernnc. ov/ departments/ fire deqartment/ crowd mana er trainin. php 1) Public Safety Plan is
required. Information must be submitied with application. For additional info, please contact the Fire Marshall at 252- 639- 2931.

Tents #       Sizes Provide additional info as needed( Note: Tents 700 sq. ft. or bigger must be inspected by Fire Marshall.

How will you handle trash generated from the event?

We are requesting# trash cans.

BWe will provide our own bags& dispose of any trash generated ourselves.

We request that City Staff dispose of all trash generated. We understand additional fees will be charged for this service,

including the cost of labor, and materials( bags, etc.) used.

Public Assembly— Parade— Special Events in the Park Application update: 1- s-2ozo
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Are you requesting any City of New Bern Street Closures?       BYes*  No

Any street closures require approval of the Board ot Aldermen. Street closures must be received at least 60 days in advance for
consideration. Street closures require barricades. A fee of 55. 00 per barricade must be paid 48 business hours prior to the event.

What Street( s) are you requesting to close? Be specific:  FT. Toner,, Trent RD/ BLDV, 1st Street, Broad Street

Queen Street, Cedar Street, George

Are you requesting any State Road or Bridge closures? Yes*   0 No

If yes, a 90 day notice and application is required by the NCDOT for in order to consider state roads or bridges. For additional information,
please call NCDOT Office at 252- 439- 2816. The State Road/ Bridge Closure permit must be attached to this application.

If this event includes the use of floats, vehicles, placards, loud speakers, or mechanical devices of any type, please provide a

detailed explanation of their use, purpose and number.

Will Inflatables or other Play features be part of this event?    Yes 8 No( Additional insurance may be required)
Will Food Vendors or Commercial/ Non- Profit vendors be part of this event?   Yes B No

If you answered YES, Additional Fees apply. A detailed list of all vendors is required.J

The following items are required and must be attached at the time of Application:

B A detailed map— induding the location, route with beginning and ending point and street names included.
Written Statement of how and when business' s/ residents affected are( were) informed of road closure.

The following items are required within two( 2) business davs of the event or event shall be cancelled:
Certificate of Insurance from organizer& vendors— Listing the City of New Bern, PO Box 1129, New Bern, NC as" Additional

Insured".

List of all food/ commercial/ non- profit vendors.

Payment in full of applicable fees and charges.

1 attest that 1 am authorized on behalf of this group/ organization to request the permit for the activities prescribed herein. I understand that
this application must be submitted with full details and attachments. 1 understand that additional fees and charges may be incurred. Those

charges include set-up tear down time for staff, rental of barricades, Public Safery, Trash collection, damages, etc. 1 further understand that
failure to provide the requested information within the specified timelines shall result in application being denied. I agree to indemnify and hold

harmless the City of New Bern, its departments, agents, employees, officials and volunteers for any injury, illness or damage to person or
property during this activity.

The followinR items must be submitted with Application:  
TOt81 Al1tlClpdted ChaYgeS

Completed& Signed Application
Barricades:       #

n Detailed maps of parade route and/ or festival( Event) layout

Notification statement to residents/ businesses( if road closure is requested)    

Proof of Crowd Manager training& Public Safety Plan( if attendance is 1, 000 or more)
Trash Collection:

n       '      Z   -  Z- I S

Authorized ig ature Date
City Staff:

All documents have been provided and this application is recommended for approval

Vendor Fees     #
Administrative Support Supervisor Date

This application has been approved. —    
Park/ Facility Rental:

Director of Parks& Recreation Date Total Due:    $

Have HOA' s been notified?   Yes      No Spoke with:

Approved by Department Date: Staff Initials:      Clty Sponso ed Event

Submitted for Board Approval Date: Staff Initials: 
Yes     No

All Paperwork collected Date: Staff Initials:

All fees collected$ Date: Staff Initials:

Public Assembly— Parade— Special Events in the Park Application update: i-8- 2020
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET j

CITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Consider Adopting a Resolution to Call for a Public Hearing for the Creation of a Residential
Property Periodic Inspection Program per Section 2. 1. 2 of the Redevelopment Plan.

Date of Meeting:  02/ 09/ 2021 Ward # if applicable: Wards: 1, 2 & 5

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development

Services

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing: 2/ 23/ 2021

Explanation of Item• Policy 2. 1. 2 of the Redevelopment Plan requires the creation of
a Residential Property Periodic Inspection Program.

Actions Needed by Adopt a Resolution

Board:

Backup Attached:     Memo, Resolution

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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NEW BE:RN

NORTH CAROLINA

300 Pollock Street, P. O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 636- 4000

MEMORANDUM

TO:      Mayor Dana Outlaw, City of New Bern Board of Aldermen

FROM: Jeff Ruggieri, Director Development Services

DATE:  January 29, 2021

SUBJECT:   Consider Adopting a Resolution to Call for a Public Hearing for the
Creation of a Residential Property Periodic Inspection Program per

Section 2. 1. 2 of the Redevelopment Plan.

Policy 2. 1. 2 of the Redevelopment Plan requires the creation of a Residential Property
Periodic Inspection Program.  The Redevelopment Commission has discussed this

program at length during several meetings,  with a unanimous decision to create a

Residential Inspection Program Enforcement  ( RIPE).    This program is designed to

proactively identify and remediate housing that does not meet the City of New Bern' s
Minimum Housing Code and related ordinances.

The enforcement of the RIPE will be done by the City of New Bern Minimum Housing
Officer who will conduct inspections on residential properties that are in the designated

redevelopment area.   Inspections will be conducted by priority sub areas and when
violations of the minimum housing code or related codes are visible from the outside of
the property.

If a property fails a minimum housing inspection the Minimum housing officer will
schedule a meeting with the property owner to discuss the deficiencies and establish a
reasonable time frame to bring the property up to minimum standards.

Please contact Jeff Ruggieri at 639- 7587 should you have questions or need additional

information.



RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern desires to call for a
public hearing to receive public comments on the proposed Residential Property Periodic
Inspection Program drafted by the New Bern Redevelopment Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF
THE CITY OF NEW BERN:

That a public hearing will be conducted by the Board of Aldermen of the City of
New Bern at 6: 00 PM on Tuesday, February 23, 2021 in the City Hall Courtroom, or as
soon thereafter as the matter may be reached, in order that all interested parties may be
given an opportunity to be heard on the proposed Residential Property Periodic
Inspection Program drafted by the New Bern Redevelopment Commission.

ADOPTED THIS THE 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK



City of New Bern— Residential Inspection Program Enforcement( RIPE) Frequently Asked Questions

What is RIPE? RIPE stands for Residential Inspection Program Enforcement. It is designed to proactively

identify and remediate housing that does not meet the City of New Bern' s Minimum Housing Code and
related ordinances.

Designated area- On May 15, 2018, the City of New Bern Board of Alderman created the Redevelopment

Commission of the City of New Bern to implement a Redevelopment Plan for the Greater Duffyfield/ Long
Wharf areas of the City( Redevelopment Area).

How does RIPE work?- City of New Bern Minimum Housing Officer will conduct inspections on residential

properties that are in the designated redevelopment area.  Inspections will be conducted by priority sub
areas and when violations of the minimum housing code or related codes are visible from the outside of

the property. However, probable cause is not required to conduct an inspection.

When will my property be inspected?- If your property is scheduled for inspection the owner and tenant
will be notified 15 days prior to the inspections date.  However, any homeowner or tenant may request

an inspection at any time.

Can I request an inspection?- Tenants and homeowners can request an inspection at any time.

Is my rental property going to be inspected under the RIPE Program? - All rental properties in the

Redevelopment Area are subject to RIPE inspections.

Is there a cost for an inspection?- There is no charge for the inspection.

Will I know if I fail the minimum Inspection? - The minimum housing officer will provide the tenant and

property owner a copy of the Inspection checklist that will detail all failures and areas for concern.

What happens if the property fails inspection? — If a property fails a minimum housing inspection the

Minimum housing officer will schedule a meeting with the property owner to discuss the deficiencies and

establish a reasonable time frame to bring the property up to minimum standards.

What if I cannot afford the cost to fix the house? All owner occupants who qualify as low to moderate

income individuals will be placed into the City of New Bern CDBG Urgent Repair Program for required
repairs at no cost to the homeowner.  Non- Owner-occupied housing ( landlords) will not qualify for the
CDBG Urgent Repair Program.

What if I have questions? f you have questions about the program, please contact Jeff Ruggieri at

252. 639. 7587



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET i:  i':':

CITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Audit for the Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, 2020.

Date of Meeting: 1/ 26/ 2021 Ward # if applicable:

Department: Finance Person Submitting Item:
Mary Hogan

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing:

Explanation of Item: A representative from Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams and

Company, P. A. will discuss the CAFR and the Audit Results for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

Actions Needed by None— Informational Purpose Only
Board:

Backup Attached:     An electronic version of the Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report and the presentation from the Auditor.

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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CITY OF NEW BERN

Presentation of Audit Results

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2020

Alan W. Thompson, CPA

1626 5 Madison Street

PO Box 398

Whiteville, NC 28472

910. 642. 2109 phone

910. 642. 5958 fax

www. tpsacpas. com

CERTIFIE PIJBLIC ACCOLINTANTS
CONSLJLTANTS AND TAX A VISORS



CITY OF NEW BERN

Presentation Agenda

PAG E s

I.  GENERAL COMMENTS

II.  REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

SAS 114 1- 3

III.  AUDIT RESULTS 4- 11

IV.  QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS

V.  CLOSE



Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A.

P. O. I3ox 39

1626 S Madison Street

hiteville, NC 28472

I cicph> nc ( 910) 642- 2109

l ax ( 910) 642- 5958

lan 1. Thonlpson. CPA

R. Bryon Scott, CPA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOIJNTANT5

lll eg01y J. tlllams rt1

CONBULTANTB ANO TAX AUVIBORS

January 8, 2021

To the City of New Bern
New Bern, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New Bern for the year ended
June 30,  2020.    Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,  Government Auditing Standards,  and
Uniform Guidance ( if applicable), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit.   We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 19,  2020.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Siqnificant Audit Findinqs

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by City of New Bern are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the
year.   We noted no transactions entered into by the City of New Bern for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on managemenYs knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions

about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected.  There were no significant estimate(s) or assumptions noted during the
audit.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statement users. There are no such disclosures identified.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

1cmbcrs
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

Management has corrected all such misstatements.  Some of the misstatements detected as a result of

audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to
each opinion uniYs financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter dated January 8, 2021.

Management Consu/tations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a " second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the governmental uniYs financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Auditing Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of New Bern' s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Efforts need to be made to ensure revenues are collected for projects with negative fund

balances, otherwise transfers need to be budgeted and recorded to clear them up.
The City needs to clean up the Cash accounts.  There are multiple funds with NCCMT positive

balances but pooled cash negative balances, which are resulting in unreasonable interest earning
allocations.   The project funds need to be cleaned up so that interest is being allocated
appropriately to the general fund as opposed to the project funds that have had no activity for
some time.

Accounts receivable balances need to be reviewed. Some have carried forward for years.  If they
are not collectible, they need to be adjusted accordingly.

2



Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.   We compared and

reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Commissioners and management of the City of
New Bern and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

J4'°""`Peo.. , 4. e--, e,dtL. Gda.,. ' Ca., P•A.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams& Co, P.A.

3



CITY OF NEW BERN

FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR 5 YEARS

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Total Fund Balance- 6eneral Fund 21, 681, 255 22, 829, 395 19, 571, 904 20, 920, 711 ,     20,453, 397

Unavailable Fund Balance( Reserve for State Statute, Prepaid) 13,086,936 19, 111, 754 5, 335, 023 6, 035, 324 5, 476, 967
Restricted and Assigned Fund Balance 12, 488,839 21, 187, 228 5, 574, 926 6, 978, 767 7, 370,614
General Fund Expenditures( including transfers out) 34, 610, 992 29, 679, 621 36, 043, 235 33, 591, 132 35, 800, 686
Fund Balance Available as% of General Fund Expenditures 24. 83%  12. 53%  39. 50%  4431% 41. 83%
Unassigned Fund Balance( Previously Unreserved and
Undesignated Fund Balance)      7, 331, 940 1, 539, 023 13, 864, 240 13, 816, 378 12, 976, 430

Unassigned Fund Balance as% of General Fund Expenditures 21. 18%   5. 19%  38. 47%  41. 13% 36. 25%
Unassigned Fund Balance as% of General Fund Expenditures

excluding FEMA Florence Fund Balance 32. 15%  46. 29%   0. 00%   0. 00%  0. 00%

Revenues over( under) expenditures before contributions and
transfers

General Fund 2, 777, 816) 57, 759)      ( 3, 235, 259)      ( 2, 341, 169)      ( 5, 252, 151)
Electric Fund 2, 606, 493 3, 000, 966 7, 622, 536 4, 079, 878 5, 653, 243
Water Fund 2, 135, 080 2, 220, 635 1, 910, 085 1, 772, 949 2, 317, 725
Sewer Fund 1, 293, 257 1, 077, 029 1, 351, 541 1, 930, 683 2, 603, 409

Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation- Electric Fund

Total Fixed Assets 84, 766, 232 82, 610, 860 80, 134,478 76, 589, 236 72, 801, 219
Accumulated Depreciation 48, 952, 094 46, 508,429 44, 239, 876 42, 149, 931 40, 111, 353
Cash 19, 246, 256 21, 404, 728 22, 002, 070 20, 092, 796 22, 699, 584

Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation- Water Fund
Total Fixed Assets 70,029, 309 69, 005, 222 67, 926, 267 65, 237,452 63, 740, 748
Accumulated Depreciation 21, 691, 246 20, 035, 709 18, 538, 965 16, 975, 427 15, 438, 035
Cash 11, 360,690 10, 723, 980 10, 199, 145 12, 213, 259 12, 359, 325

Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation- Sewer Fund

Total Fixed Assets 102, 137, 678 100, 505, 060 97, 644, 647 95, 540, 465 94, 577, 216
Accumulated Depreciation 37, 596, 634 35, 294, 940 33, 401, 544 31, 447, 376 29, 674, 714
Cash 6, 996, 879 6, 515, 829 6, 953, 471 7, 984, 092 7, 471, 280

Cash vs. Fund Balance

Cash- General 10, 751, 962 6, 876, 690 17, 315, 194 19, 468, 608 18, 941, 255
Cash- Electric Fund 19, 246, 256 21, 404, 728 22, 002, 070 20, 092, 796 22, 699, 584
Cash- Water Fund 11, 360, 690 10, 723, 980 10, 199, 145 12, 213, 259 12, 359, 325
Cash- Sewer Fund 6, 996, 879 6, 515, 829 6, 953, 471 7, 984, 092 7, 471, 280
Cash- FEMA Hurricane Florence

Cash- Other Governmental 1, 823, 556 3, 049, 259       4, 192, 732       1, 066, 177 582, 644

Fund Balance- General 21, 681, 255 22, 829, 395 19, 571, 904 20, 920, 711 20, 453, 397
Net Position- Electric Fund 50, 208, 485 50, 597, 196 49, 564, 830 43, 329, 264 41, 901, 413
Net Position- Water Fund 40, 493, 693 38, 099, 223 35, 456, 141 32, 887, 706 31, 114, 757
Net Position- Sewer Fund 65, 480, 940 63, 444,023 60, 541, 989 58, 664, 921 55, 836, 893
Fund Balance- fEMA Hurricane Florence 3, 796, 739)     ( 12, 200, 606)       

Fund Balance- Other Governmental Funds 510, 692 1, 040, 575 3, 662, 596 898, 457        ( 318, 528)

Property Tax Rates 0. 48 0. 46 0. 46 0. 46 0. 41

Collection Percentages 99. 07%  99. 34%  99. 39%  99. 32% 99. 27/ 0
Collection Percentages( exduding Motor Vehicle)        98. 99%  99. 28%  99. 33%  99. 26% 99. 21%

Total Property Valuation 2, 934, 241,459 2, 895, 026, 457 2, 847, 142, 818 3, 004, 360, 060 3, 044, 885, 229

Total Levy Amount 15,467,427 14, 582, 070 14, 275, 238 13, 834, 876 13, 600, 271

Debt( exduding OPEB, compensated absences, LGERS)     
Governmental Activities 8, 494, 257 10, 249, 000 8, 627, 381 8, 038, 626 7, 926, 663
Business-Type Activities 34, 091, 306 40, 874, 790      46, 515, 202 53, 217, 102 60, 165, 869
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Breakdown of General Fund Revenues

Ad Valorem Taxes 15, 752, 998 14, 928, 512 14, 600, 912 14, 178, 823 13, 843, 554

Other Taxes, License& Permits 675, 417 558, 380 661, 904 461, 845 614, 305

Intergovemment Revenue 12, 617, 576 12, 443, 181 11, 810, 293 11, 726, 371 11, 100,054

Sales and Services 949, 770 670, 742 377, 582 3, 651, 771 4, 046, 716

InvestmentEarnings 184, 772 593, 409 472, 720 , 186,090 91, 291

Miscellaneous 448, 758 413, 715 313, 421 274, 298 ll5,875

Total 30,629, 291 29, 607, 939 28, 236, 832 30, 479, 198 29, 871, 795

Breakdown of General Fund Expenditures

General Govemment 1, 546, 075 1, 010, 449 2, 224, 047 1, 617, 153 1, 740, 252

Public Safety 18, 526, 749 17, 158, 185 16, 460, 158 16, 085, 886 15, 597, 146

Public Works 5, 727, 305 4, 811, 427 9, 464,211 6, 567, 295 6, 161, 541

Environmental Protection 2, 047, 287 2, 035, 216

Cultural& Recreational 3, 592, 917 3, 014, 102 2, 997, 455 2, 750, 311 2, 847, 316

Economic& Physical Development 1, 765, 000 1, 527, 204 1, 565, 906 2, 020, 726 1, 465, 773

Debt Service 2, 249, 061 2, 144, 331 2, 153, 314 1, 731, 709 5, 277, 702

Total 33, 407, 107 29, 665, 698 34, 865, 091 32, 820, 367 35, 124, 946
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City of New Bern
Analysis of Fund Balance
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City of New Bern
Analysis of Unassigned Fund Balance as a% of General Fund Expenditures
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City of New Bern
Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation

Funded Depreciation)
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City of New Bern
Property Tax Rates

Note - 2020 Group Weighted Average Not Available at Date of Presentation)
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City of New Bern
Property Valuation and Levy Amount

Total Property Value Total Levy Amount
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City of New Bern
Break Down of General Fund Expenditures

FYE June 30, 2020
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January 8, 2021

To the Honorable Mayor, Board of Aldeimen, and Citizens of the CITY OF NEW BER1V:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the CITY OF NEW I3ERN, North Carolina( the

City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. The basic financial statements
contained herein have been audited by the independent certified public accounting firm of
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P. A., a firm of licensed certified public accountants, and

their uiunoditied opinion is included in the financial section.    Management assumes full

responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the inforrnation contained in this report, based
on a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has established for this purpose. Because

the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated beneflts, the objective is to provide

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data enclosed is accurate in all

material respects and is reported in a maiuler designed to present fairly the financial position and
changes in financial position and, where applicable, the cash flows of the various funds of the City.
All disclosttres necessaiy to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City' s financial
activities have been included.

This report includes all the funds of the City. The City provides a full range of services including j
police and fire protection; sanitation sei•vices; construction and inaintenance of streets and other f

infrastructure; coinmunity development services including planning and zoning; and parks and
recreational services.  In addition to general governmental activities, the City owns and operates
electric, water, sewer and solid waste utilities; therefore, these activities are included in the

reporting entity.  The New Bern Housing Authority, the New Bern- Craven County Public Library,   
Swiss Bear powntown Development Cotporation, and Friends of the Fireman' s Museum do not

meet the established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly are excluded
from this report.      

Generally Accepted Aecounting Principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, oveiview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of i

Management' s Discussion and Analysis ( MD& A).   This letter of transmittal is designed to

complement the MD& A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City of New Bern' s
MD& A can be found immediately following the independent auditor' s report.     

a
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The City is required to undergo a " Single Audit" in conformity with Title 2 U.S Code ofFederal j
Regulations ( CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act,       

Information reiated to this single audit, including the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards, findings and recommendations, and the auditor' s reports on the internal control over

financial reparting and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and contract and grant
agreements, is included in a separate reporting package.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

New Bern, settled in 1710 at the confluence of the Trent and Neuse Rivers, is located 110 miles

east ofRaleigh, the State Capitol, and 35 miles west of the Atlantic Ocean. New Bern is the largest

municipality in Craven County and serves as the County seat. Rich in history, it is the site ofNorth
Carolina' s Colonial Capital and its first State Capitol.  New Bern is also the Birthplace of Pepsi

Cola, a drink first created by Caleb Bradham, a local pharmacist, in 1898. Downtown New Bern
offers museums, shops, galleries, restaurants, historic sites, watertront hotels, bed and breakfast
accommodations, marinas, a convention center, parks, historic homes and churches.  Tryon Palace

Historic Sites& Gardens, the first permanent seat of colonial government in North Carolina, offers

visitors an opportunity to experience over 300 years of Ainerican history and acres of period-
inspired gardens. The City is centrally located to several growing communities including the cities
of Jacksonville, Morehead City, Greenville, and Kinston, all around 40 miles and less than an
hour' s drive away.  The City is easily accessible by US 70, US 17, and NC 43. As of June 2017,
the community had an unemployment rate of 6. 6 percent compared to a statewide rate of 7. 6
percent. The 2019 census population for the city was reported as 30,010.

The City is a council-manager form of government with a Board of Aldermen and Mayor.   The

Board is composed of six members who are elected by ward, and a mayor who is elected at- large.
Each serves for four-year coincident terms.   The City Manager, Director of Finance, and City
Attorney, are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.  The
City Manager serves as the chief executive officer of the organization and is responsible for
cairying out Board of Aldermen policy through the administration of the various departments and
their staff.

The City thrives on tourism, as it has over 150 sites included in the National Register of Historic
Places.  Stretching 248 miles, the Neuse River, located in New Bern, is the longest river in North
Carolina and the widest iiver in America( b miles ac•oss).  The City is centrally located to i 57,004
acres of the Croatan National Forest, which is nationally recognized for its trails and recreation
opportunities.

Government ( federal, state and local) is the largest single employer in the County. CarolinaEast
Health System, now a 5- star rated establishment, is the City' s largest single employer and in
January 2020 held a ribbon cutting ceremony to mark the opening of the, 80,000- square foot th•ee-
story SECU Comprehensive Cancer Center.
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New Bern is home to two large manufacturing facilities:  Moen, Inc. and BSH Appliances, Corp.
Moen, the number one faucet brand in North America and employees more than 800 people. BSH
Appliances,  a German-based manufacturer,  is the world' s third largest home appliance

manufacturer specializing in cooking, washing/drying, refrigeration/ freezing, and other consumer
products. New Betn is host to the largest of the three U.S- based factories. This facility stores and
ships home appliances for three BSH brands in North America and employees more than 1, 200
people.

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR

Fiscal year 2019- 2020 ( FY20) included the planning and implementarion phases of several
initiatives as well as the continuation or completion of projects begun during previous fiscal years.

Martin Marietta Park

In September 2017, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. donated approximately 55 acres ofproperty to
the City.  In the spring of 2018, the City invited the public to comment on proposed amenities
residents would like to see inside the park.  Those surveys and comments were collected and

analyzed by independent consultant McGill & Associates, who assisted the City in creating a
master plan for the park which was approved in by the Board of Aldermen to include walking,
running and cycling paths and trails, an outdoor perfoimance area, open space for recreation and
environmental stewardship, water activities and adventure activities.  The City received a grant
from the NC Parks & Recreation Trust Fund in the amount of$475, 000 to begin Phase I which

includes installing a children' s playground, boat launch, fishing pier, picnic shelter, park benches,
multi-purpose trails, nature trail, and nature observation deck.

Volt Center

Phase I of the VOLT Center, which is city-owned facilities at 205 First Street was renovated and
is used as a multi-purpose facility. Groundbreaking took place in August 2017 and the facility was
operational in 2020 with a focus on fostering and incubating new businesses, especially in
agriculture, food sales, crafts, art, and small- scale manufacturing.  Craven Community College is
utilizing the main building for training and various classes. Total outdoor vendor space is 12,200
square feet. across 25- 30 covered bays. Total indoor space of between 5, 000- 8, 000 square feet,
additional 6, 000- 7, 000 square feet of flexible storage and workshop space, and approximately
10,000 square feet of flexible open space is available for large gatherings or a concert stage and
possible restaurant incubator.

Phase II of the VOLT Center will be a renovation of existing City facilities to accommodate LE
Simulation Training Centei• that will enable Craven Com nunity College ta expand it' s workforce
development and training initiatives to include an an ay of law enforcement h•aining.  The LE

Simulation Training Center will also serve as a central location for high-level Law Enforcement
Simulation training across the region.
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ERP

The City has completed the Phase II of the ERP implementation and went live with Human Capital
Manageinent in March 2020.  Phase III, Utility Bill (Customer Infoimation System) will begin in
underway with an estinnated iinplementation go- live in the fall of 2021.

West New Bern Water Svstem Improvements Proiect

This project will involve installing new water mains, constructing a new elevated storage tank and
increasing the capacity of the water system distribution pumps to improve the domestic and fire
flow supply to the western portions of New Bern. These changes to the water distribution system
will improve system pressures and firefighting capabilities.   The project is in the permitting and
easement acquisition phases. The project should be ready to move into the construction phase in
the second half of FY21. The esti nated construction cost is $ 3 million.

Townshiu No. 7 Sewer Svstem Imurovements Proiect—Phase III

This project will involve modifications to the sanitary sewer in the Township No. 7 area to include,
an upgrade to the existi xg pumps and cotitrol compo tents at the eqaralizcrtio basi 2 along witlz the
constructiort of a new transmission farce maira acf•oss the Tre rt River. The reed for these imp• ovements
had been identif:ed sirlce 2006 as the arltimate solution to fixi»g the o>>er•-allocation issues and providing
the capacityfor New Bern to conti aare to grotiv irr the areas south of the Trent River•. The project 1s in the

permitting and easement acquisition phases and should be ready to move into the construction
phase in the second half of FY21. The estimated const uction cost is $ 3 million.

Trent Road Substation Transformer Battk A Replacement

As identifed in our 5- year Capital Project Plan, the 50 MVA transfoirner bank at the Trent Road

Substation will reyuire replacement. This transformer bank was built in 1960, and through recent

testing, there have been indications that the units at e reaching the end of their useful life. During
periods of peak demand, the electric system requires the capacity provided by this transFormer
bank and cannot provide service to its customers if the unit were to fail.  A new substation

transformer installation to replace this unit is estimated to cost$ 1, 000, 000.

OTHER INFORMATION

Bud et preparation process

Preparation of the City' s fiscal year budget is a process that involves the citizens of New Bern, the
New Bern Board of Aldermen, individual city depat tments, and the City Manager' s Budget
Committee.
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I'he City Manager holds a budget retreat in February, During this meeting, the Board is presented
with a preview of the economic forecast for the coming fiscal year, and the Board' s goals and
objectives for the upcoming fiscal year are confirmed. This meeting is critical to the development
of the proposed budget as it offers a forum for the Board to relay valuable insight and provide
feedback to the management team.

The next major phase in the preparation of the budget occurs after the retreat with the distribution
of the new budget preparation package and instructions to department heads to be used in
submitting their requested budgets.

Budget meetings are scheduled in March for Department Heads to present budget requests to the
Budget Committee for consideration. The City Manager is given a briefing on any new programs,
new position requests, as well as major increases in budget requests.  In April, the City Manager

makes any final revisions to the proposed budget, along with the proposed utility and tax rate for
the new fiscal year.

In late April, the City Manager' s recommended budget is presented to the Board, the press, and
the public,  The recominended budget is made available for public inspection in the office of the
City Clerk, the public library, and on the City' s website ( which can be viewed by visiting
http://www.newbernnc.gov/departments/administration/ finance).

In May, the Boa•d holds a series ofbudget workshops, at wluch time the Department Heads present
their proposed budgets to the Board for intense study and discussion. The Board requests additional
infonnation and may direct changes to the recoininended budget at this time as well.

North Carolina General Statutes require one public hearing be held for public comment on the
proposed budget. ln a concentrated attempt to provide an opportunity to the citizens of New Bern,
a public hearing is scheduled by the Board for public input on the budget. This hearing is usually
conducted in late May or early June. The Board formally adopts the budget at a regular Board of
Aldermen meeting on or before June 30`'

Acknowledgements

This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated services of the City of New Bern Finance
Departinent. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions
made in the preparation of this report and in their continued professional excellence in accounting
for the fiscal actions of the City.

Independent Audit

The City is required by the North Carolina General Statues to have an annual independent audit of
its financial statements.  In addition, Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Reg clations ( CFR} Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require annual independent audits of the
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City' s compliance with the applicable law and regulations related to certain statements. Combined
and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report.

The independent auditor' s reports on compliance matters are included in the financial section of

this report.

In closing, we would like to express our appreciation to the Mayor, Board of Aldermen,
Department Heads, and all City staff foi• theii• leadership, interest, and support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

1
1

Mary    . Ho n Mark . Stephe s, PE

Director of inance City anager
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CERTIFIEO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
CONSULTANT9 AND TAX AOV190RH

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Aldern en
City of New Bern, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New
Bern, North Carolina ( the " City"), as of and for the year tlien ended June 30, 2020, and the related

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management' s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsiblc for thc preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes thc design, implementation, and mai ltenance of internal control rclevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilit

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these tinancial statements based on our audit.  We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditi ig standards generally acceptcd in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governnzent Auditing
Sta rdards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatemcnt.

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the tinancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whetl er due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assess nents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity' s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to desi t audit proccdures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates nade by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the tinancial statements.

Members
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based upon our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business- type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fimd information of the City of New Bern,
North Carolina as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,

where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year
then ended in accordance witl accounting pri lciples generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Reyirired Supplementary I zformaziofa

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management' s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11, the Local Government Employees'

Retirement System' s Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and
Contributions on pages 55 through 56 , and the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation

Allowance schedules of the Changes in Total Pension Liabitity and Total Pension Liability as a
Percentage of Covered Payroll on pages 57 through 58, and the Changes in Total OPEB Liabililty and
Related Ratios page 59, be presented to suppleinent the basic financial statements. Sucl information,

although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of nancial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have

applied certain limited procedures to tlle required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonnation for
consistency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other I zformation

Our audit was conducted for tlic purposc of fornling opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the City of New Bern's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and

State Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federa! Regirlatiof s ( CFR) Part Z00,  Unifonn
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the

State Single Audit Implementation Act, are pi-esented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a

required part of the basic financial statements.
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The combining and individual fund statements,  budgetary schedules,  other schedules,  and the

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information llas been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to tlie undcrlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial stateinents or to the basic tinancial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordancc with auditing standards gcnerally accepted in the United States of America
by us. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report

of other auditors, the combining and individual fund financial statemcnts, budgetary schedules,
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, and other schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standnrds

In accordance with Government A diting Standarcls, we have also issued our report dated January 8,
2021, on our considcration of the City of New Bern's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,  regulations, contracts,  and grants

agreements, and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmefit Aucliti ig Standnrds in considering
City of New Bern' s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

1ro'^ ppo`'' ,. ea-. tt.rws> '., P. A.

Whiteville, NC

January 8, 2021
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Vfanagement' s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of New Bem, we offer readers of the City of New Bem' s( the" City") financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of hew Bern for the tiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to read the information
presented here in conjunetion with additional information that we have furnish d in the City' s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Vew Bern exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by$ 194, 024,470( net position).

Total govemments total net position increased by$ 11, 124, 458, primarily due to receiving FEMA funding to cover prior year expenditures. In
addition, restatements were made that increased beginning net position in the govemmental activities by$ 2, 43Q379 and decreased beginning

net position in the business- type activities by S2, 430, 879 as a result of consolidating he stomiwater fund( previously an enterprise fund) with
the General Fund and adiustments to the F,RP proiect fund.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of New Bem's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of$ 18, 395, 208,
an increase of$ 5, 660, 693 in wmparison with the prior year. Approximately $ 13. 4 million ( 72. 90 percent) is unavailable ( nonspendable,

restricted by statc statute, restricted for Streets); Approximately 12. 65 percent is unassigned or available for spending at the governmenYs

At the end of the curren[ Yiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $ 7, 331, 940 or 21. 95 pereent of total General Fund

expenditures for the fiscal year; compared to 51, 136, 141, or 3. R3 perccnt the prior fiscal year.

The City of New Bem's total debt excluding compensated absences, net pension liability, total pension liability, and total OPEB liability)
decreased by$ 8, 538,227( 16. 70 percent) during the cunent fiscal year.

The City is in compliance with all bond covenants.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of New Bern' s basic financial statements. The City's basic financial
statements consist of three components; 1) govemment-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 31 notes to the financial

statements( see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of govemment-wide statements and
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic tinancial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the

reader' s understanding of the financial condition of the City of New Bern. As an overview, the following chart outlines the required components of
the annual financial report.
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1

ManagemenYs Basic

Discussion and
Financial

Analysis
Statements

Government-wide Fund Notes to the

Financial Financial Financial

Statements Statements Statements

Summary Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements( Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Govemment- wide Financial Statements. They provide both short
and long- term information about the City' s financial staws.

The next statements ( F,xhibits 3 through 9) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the
City' s govemment. These statements provide more detail than the government- wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial

Statements: 1) the govemmental funds statements; 2) the budeetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic tinancial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in

those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show dctails about the City' s individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the North Carolina General Stahrtes also can be found in this part of the statements.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide Yinancial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City' s finances, similar in format ro a
tinancial statement of a private- sector business. The government- wide statements provide shoR and long- terni inforniation about the City' s financial
status as a whole.

The two govemment- wide statements report the City' s net position and how it has changed. Net position is the difference between the City' s total
assets and total liabilities and defen ed intlows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City' s tinancial condition.

Govemment- wide statements arc divided into two categories:  I) govemmcntal acti itics and 2) business- typc activities. Govemmental activitics

include most of the City's basic services such as public safery, streets, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property, sales and other

taxes, operating transfer, and state and federal grant funds finance most of these acti ities." Che City charges fees to customers to cover the costs of
services provided. These include the water, sewer, and electric and stormwater services offered by the City of New Bem.

The govemment-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 ( Statement of Net Position and 2( Statement of Activities) of this repoR.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements( see Figure I provide a more detailed luok at Uie City' s most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have becn scgrcgatcd for spccific activities or objectivcs. The City of New Bern, like all
other governmental entities in Vorth Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance( or non- compliance) with finance- related legal
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City' s budget ordinance. All of the funds of City of New Bem can be divided into two categories:
govemmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds— Govemmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide

financial statements. Most of the City' s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be
converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year- end that will be available for spending in the next yeac Govemmental funds
are repoRed using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a short- term spending focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short- term view that helps him or her detennine if there are more or less financial

resources available to finance the City' s programs. The relationship between government activities( reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and govemmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

An annual budget is adopted for the City of New Bern General Fund, as required by the Ueneral Statutes. The budget is legally adopted document
that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and

how to pa} for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these cunent pnor activities. The budgetary
statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City coinpiled with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the legal budget document. This

statement shows four columns:  1) the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the tinal budget as amended by the Boards; 3) the actual
resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in die General Fund: and 4) the difference or varianc between the final budget and thc

actual resources and charges. A reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement to
account for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis.

Proprietary Funds— The City has two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as

business- type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity and
for its electric and stormwater operations. These funds aze the same as those fimctions shown in the business- type activities in the Statement of Net

Position and the Statement of Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accmnulate and allocate costs internally among the
functions of the City. The City uses an intemal service fund to account for one activity- its self-insured health benefit plan. Because this operation

provides benefits to all City employees, the internal service fund has been included within the go emmental activities in the govemment-wide
fnancial statemeots.
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Notcs to thc Financial Statements— Thc notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
govemment- u ide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are induded in this report after Exhibit 9 of this report.

Other In( ormation— In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required supplementary
infonnation concerning the City oC New Bern' s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension bencfits to its employees.  Required
supplementary inforn ation can be found beginning on Gxhibit A- 1 of this report.

Interdependence with Other Entities: The City dcpends on financial resources flowing from, or associated with, both the Federal Government and
the State of North Carolina. Because of this dependency, the City is suhject to changes in specific flows of intergovemmental revenues based on
modifications to Federal and State laws and Fcdcral and State appropriations. It is also subject to changes in investment earnings and asset alues

associated with U. S. Treasury Securitics because of actions by fbrcign govemments and other holders of publicly hcld U. S. Treasury Securities.

Citv of New Bcrn' s: Vet Position

Figure 2

Governmental Business- Type

Activitles Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2010 2019

Current assets 23, 136, 984 5 17, 587, 549  $   52, 154. 613 S 51. 100, 847 S 75. 291, 597 5 68, 688, 396

Capital assets 66, 777, 971 62, 389, 067 149, 446, 329 153. 901. 212 216. 224, 300 216,290, 279

Defeaed outflows of resources 7, 320, 2R4 5, 666, 906 1. 643, 345 1, 826, 849 9. 463, 629       ?. 493. 755

Total assets and deferred outflows ot

resources 97, 735, 239      5. 643. 522 203. 244. 287 206. 828. 908 300, 979, 526 292, 472, 430

Current and other liabilities 4, 924,456 5, 132, 165 13, 805, 499 13, 427, 12R 18J29, 955 18, 559.293

Non-currcnt liabilities 53, 212, 294 49, 002, 617 30, 927, 798 37. 156, 088 R4, 140, 092 86, 158, 705

Deferred inflows of resources 340, 040 514, 934 30,291 56, 343 360, 331 571, 277

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of

resources 58,476J90 54.(i49, 716 44, 753. 588 50, 639, 559     ] 03, 230, 378 105. 2R9, 275

Net position:

Invested in capital assets, net of related

debt 58, 631, 163 52, 140, 067 115, 355, 022 ll5.441, 237 173, 986, 185 167, 581, 304

Restricted 13. 146. 423 21. 920. R78 1. 148, 415 13, 146, 423 23. 069. 293

Unrestricted 136, 243, R15)     ( 47, 350,282)     43, 135, 677 39, 599, 697 6, 891, R62       ( 7. 750, SR5)

Total net position 35, 533, 771  $   26, 710, G63  $  15R. 490,( 99  $  156, l R9, 349  $  194, 024, 470 S 1 R2. 900, 012

As noted earlier, net position may scr c o er time as one useful indicator of a governmenPs financial condition. The City' s assets and deferred
oulflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by 194. 024,470 as of June 30, 2020. The City's net position
increased by$ I1, 124, 458 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The largest portion of net position $ 173, 986, 185 89.67%) reflects the City' s

investment in capital assets ( e. g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, infrastructure, and distribution systems): less any related debt still
outstanding that was issued ro acquire those items. The City of New Bem uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. An additional poRion of the City's net position S 13. 146. 423( 6J8%) represents resources that are

subject to extemal restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of$ 6, 891, 862( 3. 55%) is unrestricted.

Several particular aspects of the City's 6nancial operations positively influenced the total governmental net position:

Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a tax collection percentage of 99. 07% in tlie City-Wide tax districts.

Continued low cost of debt due to the City' s credit rating.

There is still a significant amount of expenses that the City has incurred as a result of Hurcicane Damage that has not yet been reimbursed from
FEMA.
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City of New Berds Changes in Net Position
Figure 3

Governmental Business- n pc

Activities Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues

Program revenues:

Chargesforservices 1, 761, 137  $    1, 266, 591     75. 62, 195     76. 876, 520  $   77, 323, 332  $   78, 143, 111

Operating grants and
contributions 11, 524, 680 1, 677, 370 11, 524,680 1, 677, 370

Capital grants and

contributions 1, 430.049 687, 000 1. 009, 050 2. 247, 452 2, 439, 099 2, 934,452

General revenues:

Property taxes 15, 787, 943 14, 921, 580 15J87, 943 14, 921, 580

Other taxes and licenses 11, 676, 899 11, 488, 514 11, 676, 899 11, 488, 514

Unrestricted imestment

eamings 271, 460 618, 976 508, 868 598, 351 780, 338 1, 217, 327

Miscellaneous 1, 953, 925 1, 015, 503 392,046 162, 777 2, 345, 971 1, 178, 280

GaiNLoss on disposal of

fixed assets 24, 307)  7, 142)  15, 034 60, 108 9, 273) 52, 966

Total revenues 44, 381, 786 31, 668, 392 77, 487, 193 79, 945, 208 121, R68, 979 111, 613, 600

Expenses

Gencral govemment 2, 491, 368 2, 041, 271 2, 491, 368 2, 041, 271

Public safety 21, 521, 131 2Q998, 605 21, 521, 131 20, 998, 605

Public Works 9, 425, 062 14, 746, 304 9, 425, 062 14, 746, 304

Cultural and recreation 4. 596. 696 3, 519, 992 4, 596, 696 3, 519, 992

Economic Development 2, 392, 588 2, 607, 397 2, 392, 588 2, 607, 397

Interest on long- term debt and fees 171, 712 15, 138 171, 712 215, 138

Electric 48, 372, 089 49, 221, 183 48, 372, 089 49, 221, 183

Water 8, 112, 404 7J52, 532 R, 112, 404 7, 752, 532

Sewer 10, 438, 399 10. 429, 678 10. 438, 399      ] 0, 429, 678

Stormwater 639, 676 639, 676

Solid Waste 3, 223, 072 2966,921 3. 223, 072 2, 966, 921

Totalexpenses 40, 598, 557 44, 128, 707 70, 145, 964 71, 009, 990 110, 744, 521 115, 138, 697

Change in net position before

transfers 3. 783, 229     ( 12, 460, 315)       7, 341, 229 8, 935, 218 11, 124, 458       ( 3. 525, 097)

Transfers 2, 609,000 1. 968. 600       ( 2, 6Q9, 000)      ( 1, 968, 600)       

Net Position

Beginning of year- July 1 26J 10, 664 37, 491. 188 156, I 89, 349 148, 933. 922 182, 900,013 186, 425, 110

Restatement 2. d30. 879 288, 809)      ( 2, 430. 879) 288, 809

Beginningofyear, asrestated 29. 1-} 1, 543 37. 202. 379 153, 75R. 470 149, 222, 731 182, 900,013 1R6, 425, 110

End of year- June 30 35, 533, 772  $   26, 710, 664    158, 490, 699  $  156, I89,349  $  194, 024,471  $  182, 900, 013
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Governmental activities. Govemmental acti itics increased the City' s net position by 56, 392, 229. Key elements of this increase are as follows:
Substantial amount of Hurricane Florence expenses incurred in prior years was reimbursed by FEMA

Business- type activities: Business- type activities inereased the City's net position by$ 4J32,229. Key elements of this increase are as follows:
Decrcase in overall expendih res

Financial Analysis of thc City' s Funds

As notcd carlicr, the City of New Bern uses fund accounting to ensure and demon, tratc compliance w ith finance- related Iegal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of New Bern' s govemmental funds is to provide information on near- term inflows, outflows, and
balance, of usable resources; such inforniation is useful in assessing the City of New Bem' s financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund
balance can be a usefid measure of a government' s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fimd of die City of New Bern. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General
Fund was $ 7, 331, 940, while total fund balance rcached $ 21, 681, 255. The City of New Bem has detennined that the City should maintain an
available fund balance bctween 25% and 35% of General Fund Expenditures in case of imforeseen needs o opportimities and to meet cash tlow
needs of the City. The City currently has an available fund balance of 24.76% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
64.91% of that same amount.

At June 30, 2020, the go emmental funds of the City of New Bem reported a combined fund balance of$ 18, 395, 208, a 44.45% increase over last
year.

General Fund Budgetarp Ilighlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments Call
into one of three categories:  l) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact
information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3)
increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. Total amendments were made during the year to increase the General Fund
budget by S2, 981, 639.

Proprietary Funds. The City of New Bem' s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the govemment-wide statements but
in more detail. Unrestricted net position at the end of the year amounted to 21. 395. 591 in the Electric Fund, $ 12, 168, 579 in the Water Fund,

7, 904, 950 in the Sewer Fund, and$ 571, 753 in the Solid Waste Fund.

Three of the four proprietary funds, Water, Se cr, and Solid Waste experienced growth in net position of$ 2, 397, 470,$ 2, 039, 917, and$ 231, 510,
respectively. The primary reason for the incrcases in net position for these funds are requirements for revenues to exceed operational expenses
sufficient enough to meet debt service requiremenis. ' I' he Electric Fund experienced a decline in net position of$ 37, 507.

Capital: lsset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City oCNew Bem' s capital assets for its go cmmental and business- type activities as of June 30,^_ 020 totals$ 216,224, 300( net
of accumulated depreciation). These assets includc buildings, land, improvements, equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, plants and distributions
systems, and constn ction in progress.

Major capital asset vansactions dusing the year include:
Purchase of multiple police vehicles
Continuation of ERP Project

Starting work on new Workforce Development Center

9



City of\ ew Bern' s Capital Assets
Figurc 4

Governmental Business- type

Activities Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land 15, 564, 221  $   18, 694, 396  $   14, 453, 977  $   14,453, 977  $   30,018, 198  $   33, 148, 373

Construction in progress 5, 542, 006 4,821, 193 13, 559, 533 11, 280, 784 19, 101, 539 16, 101, 977

Building and systems 19. 534, 577 16, 653, 275 202, 112. 784 200.011, 601 221, 647, 361 216,664, A76

Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 17. 488. 46R 16. 996, 179 15. 973. 649 15, 4G, 977 33. 462. 117 32. 543. 156

Infrastructure 39,792. 488 36.589, 100 4, 829,691 4, 765.408 44,622, 179 41, 354, 508

Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 11, 018, 902 10, 090, 611 6, 919, 155 6, 23, 268 17, 938,057 16, 613, 879

Total 108, 940, 662 103, 844, 754 257, R48, 7R9 2S_',5g2,015 366, 789,451 356,426, 769

Accunmlateddepreciation d2. 162, 691)     ( 33, 23R, 043)    ( 108,- 02,- 1 i0)   ( 101, 9:,- 345)   ( 150, 565, 151)   ( 140, 136, 4R8)

Capital assets, net 66, 777, 971  $   6, 606, 71 1  $  149, 446. 329  $  1 0. 683, 570  $  216. 224, 300  $ 216, 290,281

Long- term Debt. As of June 30, 2020, thc Ciry of New Bern had rotal debt outstanding of$ 42, 585, 63 as noted in thc following table.

City of New Bern' s Capital Assets
Installment Purchases, Revenue Bonds, and General ObligaHon Bonds

Figure 5

Go' ernmental Business- type

Activities ActiviNes Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Direct Placement Installment

Purchascs 8, 494,257   $  10. 571, 477  $    2, 64, 381   $   3. 423, 227   $  11. 05, 638 S 13, 994, 704

Direct Borrowing Notes Payable 2. 774, 358 23. 694, 53 2Q774, 358 23, 694, 553

Revenue bonds 10, 752, 567 13, 434, 533 10, 752, 567 13, 434, 533

OPEB and Net Pension Liability 45. 338, 119 39, 563, 472 2, 765, 619 2, 298, 527 48, 103, 738 41, 861, 999

CompensatedAbsences 1, 674,41R 1J00, 519 659,412 633, 969 2, 333, A30 2, 334,4RR

Total 55. 506,794     51. 835. 4G8 S 37. 516. 337  $   43. 484, 809     93. 023. 131  $   95. 320,277

The City of New Bem's total debt decreased by S'_. 297. 146 during the past fiscal ycar, primarily due ro principal payments on all outstanding debt.

The state of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of

taxable property located within that govemment's boundaries. The legal debt margin Cor the City of New Bern is approximately$ 226, 245, 060.

Additional information regarding the City of Vew Bern' s long- term debt can be t ound in the notes of this audited financial report.

Economic Factors and Next Year' s Budaets and Rates

The following key economic indicators impact the Ciry:

Continued development and residential growth throughout the City

The June 2020 unemployment rate for Craven County was 6. 6% compared to 7. 6% for the State and 11. 2% for the nation. This compares to

June 2019 rates of 4. 6% for Craven County, 4. 1% for the State and 3. 6% for the nation.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021

Governmental Activities: Ko Fund Balance in the General Fund was appropriated in the 2021 budget. Management budgeted for some initiatives

to continue efforts to make the City more resilient for future storms and continuc development within the Choice Ncighborhood Initiative area.

10



The North Carolina General Assembly has approved an expansion of the statewide sales tax to select services and additional items not previously
taxed as well as modifications ro the distribution of sales tax with a lesser emphasis on point of sale and more emphasis per capita. These
modifications took effect March 201G and will continue to have a positive impact on the Ciry' s budget.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund aze expected ro increase by 3"/ o to$ 37, 275. 808.

Other budget highlights in brief include:

Salar}- adjustment will be based on a tiered merit system, with a 1. 50% COLA for all staff.

Business- Type Activities: The fiscal year 2021 budget maintains the ratc decreases effective July 1, 2015 in the electric, water, and sewer, and no
rate change for storniwater services. The budget also reflects additional clectric rate rcductions of 12% and 1. 25% effective September 1, 2015 and

April l, 2016 respectively made possible by the sale of the electric generating assets of the North Carolina Eastem Municipal Power Association, of
which the City is a membcr and purchases its wholesale power; additionafly, due to expected improved conditions on wholesale power costs, an
additional rate reduction of 1. 5% was effective July 1, 2017. No additional rate decreases will be implemented due to an increase in wholesale
prices.

Adopted budgets for the Electric, Water, Sewer, Srormwater and Solid Waste Funds are$ 54. 92 million, $ 10. 63 million,$ 12. 45 million, and$ 333
million respectively.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City' s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions conceming any of the
information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, City of New Bern, P. O. Box
1129, New Bem, NC 28563- 1129. One can also call ( 252) 639- 2711, visit our website www.newbernnc. gov or send an email to
finadmC newbemnc. gov for more infonnation.
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Exhibit 1

City of Vew Bern, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Priman Gosernment

Governmental Business- t pe

Activities Acti ities Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 14, 405, 557  $       35, 781, 419  $       50, l 85,976

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible< 3, 605, 914 10, 240, 883 13, 846,797

Taxes receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible      197, 148 197, l48

Notes Receivable 107, 000 107, 000

Duc from othcr govcrnmcnts 2, 760, RRK 2, 760, RR8

Intemal Balances 1, 094, 804)   1, 094, 804

lnventories 149, R55 2, 514, 375 664,230

Prepaid[ tems 1. 71 R. 6'_ 1 1. 718, 62]

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalcnts 1, 286, 805 2, 523, 132 3, 809,937

Total current assets 23. 136. 984 52. 154, 613 75. 291, 597

Non-Curtent assets:

Capital Assets:

vondepreciable 21, 106.227 28A13, 510 49. 119,737

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 45, 671, 74d 121, 432, 819 167, 104, 563

Total capital asscts 66, 777, 971 149, 44G, 329 216, 24, 300

Total non-current asser G6, 777, 971 149, 4 16, 329 21G, 324, 300

Totalassets 89, 914, 955 O1, GOQ94_' 291, SIS, R91

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOtiRCES

Pension related deferrals 4, 938, 093 1, 643, 345 6, 581, 43R

OPEB related deferrals 2, 882, 191 2, 882, l91

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7, 820,284 I, 543, 345 9, 463, 529

LIABILIT[ ES

Current liabilitics:

Accountspayable 2, 113, 036 4, 112, 939 6, 225, 975

Accrued Iiabilities 38, 814 580, 888 G19, 702

Customerdeposits 2. 523. 132 2, 523, 132

Claims and judgements payable 478J06 478, 106

Installment notes payable, due within one yeai 1, 792, U5 711, 901 2, 504, 076

Notes payable, due within one yea    2. 950322 2, 950, 322

Bonds payable, due within one yea   2. 728. 493 2, 728,493

Compensated absences, due within one yeaz 502, 325 197, 824 700, 149

Total current liabili[ ies 4, 924,456 13, 805, 499 18J29,955

Long- term liabilities:
Net pension liability( LGERS) 6, 983, 773 2, 765, 619 9. 749, 392

Total OPEB liability 35, 387, 577 35, 387, 577

Total pension obligation( LEOSSA)   2, 966, 769 2, 966, 769

Installment notes payable, due in more than one yca     G, 702, OR2 1, A52, 4R1 8, 554, 563

Notcs payablc, duc in morc than onc ycai 17, 824, 036 17, 824, 036

Bonds payable, due in more than one yeai 8A24,074 R, 024, 074

Compensated absenccs, duc in morc[ han one yca       I, 172, 093 461, 588 1, 633, 681

Total long- term liabilities 53, 212. 29a 30, 927, 798 84, 140, 092

Totalliabilities 58, 136, 750 d, 733, 297 102, 870, 047

DEFERRED I\ FLOWS OF RESOI;RCES

Pension deferrals 340,U40 20, 291 360, 331

OPEB related deferrals 3J24,G78 3, 724, 67R

Total Dcfcrzed lntlows of Rcsuurcc.     4A64, 71 R 20, 291 4, 085, 009

VET POSITIOV

Net investmem in capital assets SR, 631, 163 I 15355,022 173, 986, 185

Restrictcd for:

Stabilization by State Statute I 1, 226,460 l 1, 226, 460

SVeets 323, 023 323, 023

Debt Service

Public Safety 477, 735 477,735

Economic Development l, 1 19, 205 L l 19, 20

Unrestricted 3G,° 43, 815) 43, 135, 677 6, R91, 862

Total net position 5 35, 533, 771  $      ISR, 490, 699  $      194, 024,470

The notes to the financial statement are an intcgral part of this statement.  12



City of New Bcrn, North Carolina fixhibit 2
Statement of Activities

For thc 1' car Ended. lune 3Q 2020

NM( Expense) Revenuc and Changes in Net

Program Nevenues Position

Primary Government
Operating

Charges for Grants and Capital Crants Governmenta Rusiness- type
Functions/ Programs Expenses Services Cuntributions and Contributions 1 Activities Activities Total

Primary go ernment:
Governme tal nctivities:

General govemmeni 2, 491, 368  $       376,563  $       864, 60A  $       1, 250, 197) $    1, 250, 197)
Public salety 21, 521, 131 461, 020 1, 343, 908

Public Works 9, 425, 062 51, 223 8, 142, 475

9, 716, 203)     19, 716, 203)

1, 231, 364)      1, 231, 364)
Cultural and Rccreational 4, 596, 696 143, 108 609,405 3, 844, 183)       3, 844, 183)
Economic and physical developmcm 2, 392, SR8 729, 223 564, 23d 1, 430,049 330, 968 330, 968
Interest on long- term deb      171, 712 171, 712)       171, 712)

Total govemmental activities 40, 598, 557 1, 761, 137 11, 524, 680 1, 430,049      ( 25, 882, 691)       25, 882, 691)

Business- type activities:

Elcctric 4R, 372, 089 SO, K36, Ri3 2, 464,744       , 464,744
Watcr 8, 112, 404 10A55, 832 262, 390 2, 205, 818 2, 205, 818
Sewer 10,438, 399 11, 244,254 746,660 1, 552, 515 1, 552, 515
Solid Waste 3, 223, 072 3, 425. 276 202, 204 202, 204

Total business- type activities 70, 145964 75, 562, 19  1, 009, 050 6, 425, 281 6, 425. 2g1

Total primary government I 10, 744, 521   $    77,323, 332  $     11, 524, 680 S 2, 439, 099      ( 25, 882, 691)     6,425, 281     ( 19, 457,410)

General revcnues:

Taxes:

Ad valorem taxes I5, 787, 943 15, 787, 943

Sales and use taxes 7, 842, 360 7, R42, 360

Utilitics franchise tax 225, 426 225, 426
Paymcnts in licu of taxcs 1, 161, 614 1, 161, 614

Other taxes 2, 447,499 2, 447,499
Investment earnings 271, 460 508, 868 780,328

Miscellaneous 1, 953, 925 392, 046 2, 345, 971
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 24,307) 15, 034 9, 273)

Transfers 2, 609,000     ( 2, 609, 000)       

Total general revenues and transfers 32,274,920     ( 1, 693, 052)     30, 581, 868

Change in net position 6,392, 229 4, 732, 229 11, 124,458

Net position, beginning 26,710,663 156, 1 H9, 349 182,900,012
Restatement( see Note 15) 2, 430,879     ( 2, 430, R79)       
Net position beginning, as restated 29. 141, 542 153, 758,470 182, 900, 012

Net position, ending 35, 533, 771   $ 158, 490,699  $ 194, 024,470

I' he notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  3
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Exhibit 3

continued)

Cih of Nc Bcrn,\ orth Carolina

Balance Shcet

Go ernmental Funds

June 30, 2020

Ma' or Funds Non- ma' or

FE1 1A Hurricane Total Go ernmental

General Florence Go crnmental Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 9, R 12, 606  $ 1. 476. 107  $ 11. 28R, 713
Taxes receivable, net 197, 148 197, 148
Accounts Receivables, net 3, 076, 518 10, 184 511, 853 3, 598, 555
Notes Receivable 107A00 107, 000

Duc li-om other governments 825, 858 1, 575, 201 359. 829 2. 760, 888

Due from other funds 6, 857,203 6, 857, 203

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 939, 356 347, 449 1, 286, 805

nventory 149, 855 149. 855

Prepaid items 1, 710, 621 1, 710, 621
Total assets 5 23, 676. 165 S 1. 585, 385  $  2, 695, 238 5 27,956, 788

LIABII, ITIES

Accotmts payable and accrued] iabilities S 1, 381, 737  $ 282, 430  $   427, 037  $  2, 091, 204

Due to other governments 10, 730 10, 730

Due ro other funds 5, 099, 694 1, 757, 509 6, 857, 203
Totalliabilities 1, 392,467 5, 382,( 24 2, 184, 546 8, 959, 137

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCF,S

Property taxes receivablc 197, 148 197, 148

Liens and other receivables 298,295 298,295
Miscellaneous 07, 000 107, 000

Total deferred inflows of resources 602,443 602, 443

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:

Invcntories 149, 855 149, 855

Prepaid iten s 1, 710,621 1. 710,621

Restricted:

Stabilization by State Statute 11. 226,460 11, 226,460

Streets- Powell Bill 323, 023 323, 023

Public safety 477. 735 477, 735

Economic and physical de elopments 939, 356 179, 849 1. 119, 205
Assigned:

Subsequent year's expenditures

Capital Projects 1, 061, 562 1, 0G1, 562
Unassigncd 7, 331, 940 3, 796,739)    1, 208, 454)     2. 326, 747

Total fund balances 21. 681, 255 3, 796,739)      510, 692 18. 395, 208

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances 23, 676, 165  $ 1, 585, 385 S 2, 695, 238

The notes to the financial statcments are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3

continued)

City of NeK Bern, North Carolina
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of\ et Position

June 30, 2020

Amounts reported far governmental acti ities in the statement of net position( Exhibit 1) are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not tinancial resources and therefore are not

reported in the funds. 66,777, 971

Some receivables are not available to pay for current- period expenditures and, therefore, are
reported as unavailable revenue in the funds.     602, 443

Benefit payments and pension administration costs for LEOSSA 235,419

OPEB benefit payments and administrative costs made in the current fiscal year are not included

in the Statement of Activities 646,482

Deferred outflows of resources are not reporied in the funds

Pension 4, 149, 793

LEOSSA 552, 881

OPEB 2, 235, 709

Deferred inflows of resources are not recorded on the fund statements

Pension 51, 241)

LEOSSA 288, 799)

OPFB 3, 724,678)

Internal service Yunds are used by the City to charge costs to other tunds. The assets and liabilities
are included in the govemmental activities.     1, 548, 191

Some liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest, are not due and payable in the
curreni period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Installment Purchase Agreements 8, 494,257)

Compensated Absences 1, 674,418)

Net pension liability( LGERS)     6, 983, 773)

Total pension liability( LEOSSA)  2, 966,769)

Total OPEB liabiliry 35. 3R7, 577)

Accrued interest payable 38, 814)

Net position of governmental activities 35, 533, 771

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4

City of new Bcrn, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Go ernmental Funds

For thc Year Ended June 30, 2U20

Ma' or Funds Non- ma' or

EEM:1 Hurricane Go ernmental Total Governmental

GeneralFund FlorenceFund Funds Funds

RE' E\ UES

Ad= alorem taxes 15, 752, 998 S S I, 752, 998
Unrestricted intergovemmental 11, 754, 498 1], 754,498

Restrictcd intergove nmental 863, 07R 9, 070,012 3, 021, 639 12, 954,739
Licenses, permits and fees 675, 417 675, 417

Sales and services 949, 770 949, 770
Investme t earnings 1 R4, 772 44, 554 229, 326

Miscellaneous 448, 758 1, 318, 796 186, 371 1, 953, 925
Total revenues 30, 629, 291 10, 3x8, 80x 3. 252.564 44, 270, 663

EXPEVDITURES

Cunent:

General government 1, 546,075 484, 327 45. 607 2, 076, 009
Public safety 18, 526, 749 3, 739 588, 385 19, 118, 873
Public Works 5, 727, 105 996, 227 3, 946, 863 1Q670, 395
Cultural and recreation 3, 592, 917 486, 914 134, 693 4, 214, 524
Economic and Physical Development 1, 765, 000 13, 734 l, l 16, 109 2, 894, 843

Debt service:

Principal 2. 077. 220 2. 077. 220
Interest and other charges 171, 841 171, 841

Total expenditures 33, 407, 107 1, 984, 941 5, 831, 657 41. 223, 705

Excess( deficiency) of revenues o° er
cxpcnditures 2, 777, H16)   8, 403, 867 2, 579, 093)    3, 046, 958

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES( USES)

Procecds from sale ot capita] asscts 4,735 4J35

Transfcrslto) other funds 1, 203, 885)   1, 203, 885)

Transfers trom other funds 2, 644,000 1, 168, 885 3, 812, 885

Total other financing sources( uses)      1, 444, 850 1, 168 885 2 613 735

Net Change in fund balance 1, 332, 966)   3, 403, 867 1, 410, 208)    5, 660, 693

Fund balances, beginning 22, 829, 395 12, 200,606)    1, 040, 574 11, 669, 362

Restatement( see Nore 15) 1 R4, R26 RR0, 326 1 A65. 152

Fund balances, cnding 21, 681, 255  $       ( 3, 796,739) $   510, 692  $ 18, 395, 208

The notes to the linancial statements are an integral part of this statement. l 6



Exhibit 5

City of hew Bern, Aorth Carolina
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revcnues, F,xpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 3U, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental acti ities in the statement of activities re

different because:

Net changes in fund balances- total governmental funds S 5, 660, 693

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized 5, 192, 643

Depreciatio expense for governmental assets 3, 992,341)

Loss on disposal of capital assets 29, 042) 1, 171, 260

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on the

Statement of Activities 1, 514, 636

OPEB benefit payments and administrative costs made in the currcnt fiscal year

are not included on the Statement of Activities 646.482

Benefit payments and pension administration costs for LEOSSA are deferred

outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position 235, 419

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial

resources are not reported as revenues in the£ unds.

Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues 34,945

Change in unavailable revenue for liens and other receivables 81, 273)

Change in miscellaneous notes receivable 12, 000)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long- term debt
consumes the currcnt financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long- term debt and related items.

Principal payments on debt 2, 077, 220 2, 077, 220

Difference in interest expense between fund statements( modified accrual) and

government- wide statements( full accrual)       29

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the Ciry' s
insurance plan to individual funds. The net expense of the intemal service fund is

reported within governmental activities 389,069

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmenta( funds.

Compensated absences 26, 101

Pension expense 3, 238, 625)

OPEB expense 2, 031, 827)

Total changes in net position of governmental activities S 6, 392,229

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paR of this statement.     17



Exhibit 6

City of neH Bern, Vorth Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-

Annual Budget and Actuat

General Fund

For the Year Endcd June 30, 2020

Budget
Variance with Final

Budget- Positive

Original Final Acriial Amounts Negati e)

Revenues:

Ad valorcm taxes S 15, 275. 950 S 15, 275. 950     $       15. 752, 998 S 477,048

Unrestricted intergovernmental 11, 248, 990 ll,288, 990 11, 754, 498 465, 508

Restricted intergovernmental 865, 000 865, 000 863, 078 1, 922)

Licenses. pernlits and fees 485, 500 485. 500 675, 417 189. 917

Sales and services 680, 337 680, 337 949, 770 269,433

Investment eamings 428,010 428.010 84, 772 243, 238)

Miscellaneous 192, 800 372, 561 448, 758 76, 197

Total revenues 29, 176, 587 29, 396, 34R 30,629, 291 1, 232, 943

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 1, 351, 360 1, 949, 71]       1, 546, 075 403, 636

Public safety 19, 913, 535 20,247,368 18, 526, 749 1, 720, 619

Public Works 5, 726, 753 6, 133, 881 5, 727, 305 406, 576
Cultural and recreation 3, 457,400 3, 792, 069 3. 592, 917 199, 152

Economic and physical development 1, 758, 029 1. 925, 458 1, 765, 000 160, 458
Debt service:

Principal retirement 1. 839.406 1. 9R9, 421 2. 077, 220 87, 799)

Interest and other charges 231, 398 264,008 171, 841 92, 167
Total expenditures 34,277, 881 36, 301, 916 33, 407, 107 2, 894, 809

Revenues over( under) expendihires 5, 101, 294)    6, 905, 568)     2, 777, 816) 4, 127, 752

Other financing sources( uses):

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 4, 735 4, 735

Installment purchase obligations issued 2, 752, 640 2. 752. 640 2, 752,640)

Contingency 71, 354)       26, 354)       26, 354

Transfers( to) other funds 223, 992)    1, 226. 596)     1, 203, 885)   22, 711

Transfcr from othcr funds 2, 644, 000 2, 644, 000 2, 644,000

Total other financing sources( uses)      5. 101,_' 94 4, 143, 690 1, 444,850 2, 698, 840)

Revenues and other sources over( under)

expenditures and other uses 2, 761, 878)     1, 332, 966) 1, 428,912

Appropriated fund balance 2, 761, 878 2, 761, 878)

Net change in fiind balances S 1, 332,966)     1, 332,966)

Fimd balances, beginning 22, 829,395

Restatement( see Note 15)   184, 826

F md balances, ending S 21, 681, 255

The notcs to the financial statements are an integral part oCthis statement.    18



Exhibit 7

City of Ncw Bcrn, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Proprictary Funds

June 3Q 2020

tajor Funds Non- Major Funds Intcrnal

Electric Fund V1' ater Pund Sewer Fund Solid V1' aste Stormwater Total Ser• ice Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cashandinvestments 16, 723, 124     $    11, 360, 690     $   6, 996, 879            700, 72G     $      35, 781, 419    $     3, 116,844

Accounts receivable, net of allowances 7, 238, 371 1, 266, 788 1, 376, 882 358, 842 10, 240, 883 7, 359

Prepaid items R, 000

Inventories 2, 229. 722 115, 795 168, A58 2, 514, 375

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2, 523, l32 2, 523, 132

Total current assets 28, 714, 349 12, 743, 273 A, 542, 619 I, 059, 56A 51, 059, 809 3, 132, 203

Non-current assets:

Capital assets:

Land and other non-depreciable assets 9, G32, 87U 4, 699,278 13, G81, 362 28, 013. 510

Othercapitalassets, netofdepreciation 26, IR1, 26tt 43, 63R, 7R5 50, 8 9, 6R2 753, OR4 121, 432, 819

Capital assets( nct)  35, 814, 138 48, 338, 063 64, 541. 044 753, 084 149, 446,329

Total noncurrcnt assets 35, 814, 138 48, 338, 063 64, 541, 044 753, 084 149, 446,329

Total assets 64, 528,4R7 61, 081, 336 73, 083, 663 1, Al2, 652 125, 609, 823 3, 132, 203

DEFF.RRED OUTFI. OV1'S OF RF,SOURCES

Dcicrrcd out[ lows rclated to pcnsions 733. 740 393, 359 409, 562 5G. 684 1, 643, 345

Total Ucfcrred vutflows of Resources 783, 740 393, 359 409. 562 56. 684 1, 643, 345

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 3, 543, 78R 44, 057 I I2, 15]     412, 943 4, I12,939 11, 102

Accrued liabilitics 327. 506 42, 366 84,604 9, 333 463, R09

Accrued interest payable 24,431 69, 509 22, 645 494 117,079

Customerdeposits 2, 523, 132 2, 523, 132

Claimspayablc 47R, 106

Installment notcs payable, current 487, 640 65, 875 109,285 49, 1 Ol 711, 901

Notes payable, current 1, bR0, 331 1, 269, 991 2, 950,322

I3onds payablc, currcnt 1, 1 G 1, 488 704,944 862, 061 2. 728, 493

Compensated absences payable, current 106,498 43, 582 40,054 7, 690 197, 324

Total current liabilities 8, 174, 483 2, 650,664 2, 500, 791 479,561 13, 805, 499 4A9, 208

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.     9



Exhibit 7

City of Vew Bcrn, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
lune 30, 2020

Major Funds Non- Major Funds Internal

Elcctric Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Solid Vb' aste Stormwater Tot•al Scr icc Fund

Noncurrent liabilitics:

Other non- current liabilities:

Installment notes payable 1, 377,403 161, 073 251, 046 62, 959 1, 852,481

Notes payable 15, 122, 981 2, 701, 055 17, 824,036

Bonds payablc 3, 974, 713 277, 745 1, 771, 616 8. 024, 074

Compensated absences payablc 248,494 101, 691 93, 459 17, 944 4fi1. 5R8

Net pension liability I. 31 R, 972 661. 991 689, 261 95, 395 2, 765. 619

Total non- current liabilities 6. 919, 582 18, 325. 481 5. 506,437 176, 298 30,927, 79H

Totalliabilities 15, 094,065 20,976, 145 A, 007,228 655, 859 44, 733, 297 489, 208

DEFERRED IVFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pcnsion deferrals 9, 677 4, 857 5, 057 700 20, 291

Total Dcferred In( lows of Resourccs 9, 677 4, 857 5. 0 7 700 20, 291

NET POSITION

Net Investment in capital assets 28, 812, 894 28, 325, 114 57, 575, 990 641, 024 115, 355, 022

Other restrictions

Unrestricted 21, 395, 591 12, 168, 579 7.) Od, 950 571, 75    42,040, 873 2, Gd2, 995
Total nct position 5 50, 208,43     $   30, 193, 693 S 65. 450, 9-10 S 1, 212, 777           157, 395, 895         2, 6-} 2, 995

Adjustment to retlect the consilidation of internal service fimd activities o enterprise funds 1, 094, R04

Net position ofbusiness- type activities 158, 490, 699

The notcs to the financial statements are an intcgral part of this statcment.    ZQ



Exhibit 8

Citv of New Bcrn, North Carolina

S[ atcmcnt of Revenues, F,xpenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Funds Nunmajor Funds

Solid V1' aste Stormwater Internal

Electric Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Scrvicc Fund

OPERATING REVENUES

Chargcs forservices SO, R36, 333    $ 10, 055, 832    $ 11, 244, 254    $ 3, 425, 276    $  75, 562, 195    $

Other operating revenues 63, 083 560, 706 607, 516 1, 231, 305 I S 1, 624

Employee and retiree contributions 623, 891

F,mployer and other contributions 6, 391, 41 1

Total operating revenues 50, 399, 916 10, 616, 538 11, 851, 770 3, 425, 276 76, 793, 500 7, 166,926

OPF,RATING EXPENSES

Administrative and gencral 1, 795, 573 2, 311, 023 2, 554,041 152, 633 9, 813, 270

Operationsandmaintenance 4, 353, 927 4, 167, 700 5, 607, 156 2, 973, 125 17, 101, 908

Production 36, 811, 350 36, 811, 350

Depreciation 2, 459, 925 1, 655, 537 2, 301, 694      ] 03, 119 6, 52Q275

Claims and payments to third party
adminisVators 6, 719J 52

To[aloperatingexpcnses 48, 420, 775 8, 134, 260 10, 462, 891 3, 228, 377 70,246, 803 6, 719, 152

Operating income( loss)  2, 479, 141 2, 482, 278 1, 388, 879 196, 399 6, 546,697 447, 774

NONOPERATING RF,VENUES( EXPENSES)

nvestment eamings 2R6, 34R 123, 591 95, 301 3, 628 508,868 42, 134

Gain/( loss) on disposal of capital assets 1, 56R 13, 466 15, 034

Interestandothercharges 16Q564)       ( 4R4, 255)       ( 19Q923)       ( 3, 517      839,259)     

I'otal nonoperating revenues( expenses)       127, 352 347, 19R) 95, 622)  I 1 I 315, 357)       42, 134

ncome( loss) before con[ ributions and

transfers 2, 606,493 2, 135, 080 I, 293, 257 196, 510 6, 231, 340 489, 908

Capital contnbutions 262, 390 746, 660 1, 009, 050

TransCer in( ouQ 2, 644,000)      35, 000 2. 609, 000)     

Total income poss) after contributions and

transfers 37, 507)      2, 397,470 2, 039, 917 231, 510 4, 631, 390 489, 908

Change in net position 37, 507)      2, 397,470 2, 039, 917 231, 510 4, 631, 390 489, 90R

Total net position, previously reported SQ597, 196 38, 099,223 63, 444,023 981, 267 2, 073, 675 2, 153, OR7

Res[ atement( see Note IS)    351, 204) 3, 000) 3, 000)    2, 073, 675)       

Beginning ne[ position, restated SQ245, 992 38, 096,223 63, 441, 023 9R 1, 267 2, 153, 087

Total net position, ending 50, 20R,485     40.493, 693 S 65, 4R0,940   $ 1, 212, 777    $  4. 631. 390   $ 2, 642, 995

Adjustment to reflect the consilidation of intemal servicc fund activities to enterprise funds 100, 839

Change in Net position of Business-Type Activities 4, 732, 229

The notes to[ he financial statements are an integral part of this statement.     
Z



Exhibit 9

continuedl

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprictary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Major Funds Non- Major Funds

InternalService
Electric Fimd Water Fund Scwcr Fund Solid Waste Stormwatcr Fund Total Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTNITIES
Payments from customers and users 50,507, 786    $     9, 992, 058    $    1 1, 207, 557    $  3, 424, 469    $ 75, 131, 870     $     7, 016, 883
Payments to suppliers 4Q047, 709) 3, R18, 281) 5, 442, 692
Pa ments to em lo ees

2, 368, 943) 51, 677. 625)   783, 982)
Y p y 5, 625, 103) 2, 540, 313) 703, 886) 496, 959) 11, 366,261) 6, 002, 332)

Otherrevenues 63, 083 560, 706 607, 516 1, 231, 305 151, 624
Net cash provided( used) by operating activities 4,898, 057 4, 194,] 70 3, 668, 495 558, 567 I 3, 319,289 382, I93

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in due to/ from other funds

Transfers( to) from other funds 2, 644,000)  35, 000 2, 609, 000)   

Net cash provided( used) by noncapital financing
activities 2, 6d4,000)  35, 000 2, 609, 000)   

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitionandconstructionofcapitalassets 2, 471, 632) 1, 024,087) 1, 632, 61R) 154, 697) 5, 283, 034)   
Capital contributions 262, 390 746, 660 1, 009, 050
Proceeds from debt

Principal paid on bonds and installment purchases 1, 712, 556) 2, 437, 976) 2, 196, 007) ll4,468) 6, 461, 007)   
Gain Qoss) on disposal of assets 1, 568 13, 466 15, 034
Interest paid on bonds and installment purchases 165, 053)  491, 844)  197, 781)  3, 660) 858, 338)   

Net cash provided ( used) by capita] and relatcd
frnancingactivities 4,347, 673) 3, 678, 051) 3, 279, 746) 272, 825) 11, 578, 295)   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVI'PIES
nterest and dividends 286, 348 123, 591 95, 301 3, 628 508, R6R 42, 134

Net cash provided( used) by investing activities 286, 348 123, 591 95, 301 3, 628 508, A68 42, 134

Net increase( decrease) in cash and investments       ( 1, 807, 2G8)   639, 710 dR4, 050 324, 370 359, 138)    424, 327

I3alances, beginning 21, 404, 728 10, 23, 980 6,515, 829 376,356 39,020, 893 2, 692, 517

Balances, ending 19, 597,460    $    l 1, 363, 690    $     6, 999, 879    $    700, 726    $ 38,661, 755     $     3, L 16, 844

continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.    22



Exhibit 9

continued)

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year F,nded June 30, 2020

Major Non- Major

Stormwater Internal Service

Electric Fund Watcr Fund 5ewer Fund Solid Wastc Fund 7' otal Eund

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities

Operating income 2, 479, 141    $     2, 482, 278    $     1, 388, 879    $     196, 399    $    S 6, 546, 697     $      447,774

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation 2, 459, 925 1, 655, 537 2, 301, 694 103, 119 6, 520, 275

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase) decrease in accounts reccivable 303, 636)    63, 774)    36,697)    A09) 404, 916)      1, 581

Increase) decrease in due from other governments

Increase) decrease in inventory 188, 26R)  115, 795)  168, 858) 472, 921)   

Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

Increase) in deferred outflows of resources-

pensions 64,424 32, 334 33, 667 4, 660 135, 085

ncrease( dccrease) in net pension liability 251, 819 126, 3R7 131, 594 1 R, 213 528, 013

Increase( decrease) in deferred inflows of

resourccs- pcnsion 16, 482)     8, 272)     8, 613)  1, 192) 34, 559)   

ncrease( decrease) in accounts payable and 66,391 35,461 27,983) 232, 820 306, 689 66, 805)

Increase( decrease) in accrued payrolland payroll

liabilitics 86,027 42, 366 42,203 8, 857 179,453 357)

lnerease( dccrcase) in customer deposits 25,412)  25,412)   

Increase( decrcase) in accrued vacation pay 24, 12R 7, 64R 12, 609 3, 500 40, 885

Total adjusmients 2, 418, 9] 6 I, 711, 892 2, 279, 616 362, IG8 6, 772, 592 65, 581)

Net cash provided by operating activities S 4,898, 057 S 4, 194, 170    $     3, 668, 495    $    558, 567        13, 319, 289     $      382, 193

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.    23



City of ne Bern, North Carolina
Notes to thc Financial Statements

For the Fiscal 1' ear Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU TING POL[ CIES

The financial statements of the City of New Bern, North Carolina( the" City") l ave been preparcd in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of An erica ( GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental

Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) is the accepted standard- setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. Thc City' s significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entitv

Founded in 1710 and chartered under the laws of the State of North Carolina, the City of New Bem, North Carolina is governed
by an elected mayor and a six-member board of aldernien. The govemment provides such services as police and fire protection ,

cultural and recreational activities, public works, water, sewer, and electric services. 11 e City is managed by a City Manager
who is hired directly by the Board. Thc City does not report a y component units.

B. Basis of Presentation

The government-H ide financial statements ( i. e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information

on all of the non- fiduciary activities of the pritnary government. Governmental activities, which normally are suppoRed by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business- type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. The statement of net position includes non- current assets and non- current liabilities. In addition. the

government-wide statement of activities reflects depreciation expense on the City' s capital assets.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segments are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include: I) charges to those who purchase, use or directly beneft from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
funetion or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
generalrevenues.

Separate financial statements are provide for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual overnment fiinds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountine

The government- wide tinancial staten ents are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and tl e accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded

when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes arc recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.
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Govcrnmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the cunent period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers most revenues to bc available if they are collected within 90 days of the end

of the current fiscal period, except for property taxes which uses a 60 day period. At June 30, 2020, taxes receivable for property
other than motor vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be available resources except as noted above to
finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of September l, 2013, State law altered thc procedures for the assessment

and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property
taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the tiscal ycar in which they are received.
Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a

receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. Expcnditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
other long- term liabilities, such as compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes and related items, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intcrgovernmental grants, and investment income
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accnial and so have been recognized as revenues

of the cunent fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by
tl e City.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting nnd Finnncinl Repor ing for Non- excliange Ti•ansactions, the

corresponding assets ( receivables) in non- exchange transactions are recognized in the period in which the underlying exchange
occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when all eligibility requirements have been met, or when resources are
received, depending on the revenue source.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, individual major funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial

statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City' s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The FEMA Hurricane Florence Fund is used to account for all FEMA reimbursable revenues resulting from recovery efforts
following Hurricane Florence in September 2018.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The F,lectric Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of the City' s electric system and services.

The Water Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of the City's water system and services.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of the City' s sewer system and services.

Additionally, the City reports the following f md types:

The Speeial Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues, such as various grants and contributions, which are

legally restricted or committed to expenditures for particular purposes.

The Capital Projects Funds accounts for financial resourccs to be used for the acquisition and construction of major capital

projects.

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the City's solid waste collection services.

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the City's partially sclf-insured health beneCits plan and workers compensation program
which charges the other funds of the City for the insurance claims.
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In accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations, the governmental applies all GASB pronouncements.

As a general rule, the eYfect of interfund activity has been eliminated trom thc government- wide financial statements. However,
any inter- fund services provided and used are not eliminated as this process woiild distort the dircct costs and program revenues
reported in the various functions.

Amounts mported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges

provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general rc enues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses trom rron- operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fimd' s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City' s enterprise funds are include the cost of these goods and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revcnues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non- operating revenues and expenses.

D. BudQets

The City' s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statues. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for
all funds, with the exception of capital projects funds and grant- related special revenue funds, for which project length budgets
are adopted. In accordance with state law, the budgets adopted for the enter rise funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis

of accounting, and a reconciliation is provided along vith the budget scliedule to reconcile from the modificd accrual basis to

the accrual basis. The enterprise capital project funds are consolidated with their respective operating fund for reporting
purposes. The govemmental fimds' budgets are adopted on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Budgets are adopted to show use of fund balance as another tinancing source for both governmental
and proprietary fimds, as well as the proprietary tiulds are budgeted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Annual
operating budgets are adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance and amended as required for the

General fund, special revenue funds, and the enterprise funds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the original budget
was amended through supplemcntal appropriations. These changes are rellected in the budgetary comparison schedules. All
annual budget appropriations lapse at the cnd of each year.

The outstanding enc mibrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments rclated to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperformed at year- end. As of June 30, 2020 the General Fund is reporting S466, 881 of open encumbrances.

E. Deposits

Cash includes aniounts in demand deposits as well as sl ort-term investments with a maturity date witliin three months of tlie
date acquired by the City. The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. Cash
applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable. The balance in the pooled cash accounts is available to meet current
operating requirements. Any dcposit in excess of the federal depository insured amounts must be collateralized by an equivalent
amount of state or U. S. obligations. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of less than 90 days are considered to be cash equivalents.

State law [ G.S. 159- 30( c)] authorizes the City and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
hilly guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States, obligations of the State of North Carolina, bonds and
notes of any North Carolina local go ernment or public authority, obligations of certain non- guaranteed federal agencies, ceRain
high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
NCCMT). The City' s investments are reported at fair value. Non-participating interest earning invesmient contracts are

accounted for at cost. The NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEGregistered ( 2a- 7) money market mutual fund, is measured at
fair value. As of JUne 30. 2020, Tl e Tenn portfolio l as a duration of. 15 years. Because the NCCMT Government and Term

Portfolios have a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days, thcy are presented as an investment with a maturity of less than
6 months.
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F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to faciliatate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income and
considers all ccash and investments to be cash and cash equivalents.

G. ResMcted cash and cash equivalents

The City has restricted cash and cash equivalents related to unspent proceeds from long- tcrm debt issued by the Drainage
Improvement Fund.  These proceeds are held to be disbursed as costs are incurred on the financed construction projects.

Customer deposits held by the City are restricted to the service for which the deposits are collected. Additionally, tl e cash of the
Municipal Service District ( MSD) are restricted for improvements within the special district.  Powell Bill funds are also

classified as restricted cash because they can be expended only for the purposes outlined in G. S. 136- 41. 1 through 136- 41. 4.

Governnmental Activities

General Fund

Municipal Service Districct 616, 333

Restricted for Streets 323, 023

Total General Fund 939,356

Capital Project Funds

Drainage Improvement- Unspent Loan Proceeds    $ 347, 449

Total Capital Project Funds 347, 449

Total Governmental Activities 1, 286,805

Business- Type Activities

Electric Fund- Customer Deposits 523, 132

Total Electric Fund 2, 523. I32

Total Business-Type Activities 2, 523, 132

H. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriated, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to
be uncollectible. In accordance with state law [ G. S. 105- 347 and G. S. 159- 13( a)], the City levies ad valorem taxes on property
other than motor vehicles on July Ist, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on Septcmber 1 st( lien date); however,

interest does not accrue until the following January 6th. These taxes are based on tl e assessed alues as of January 1.

An estimate amount has been recorded far utiliry services provided but not billed as of the end of the fiscal year, and is included
in accounts receivable, net of uncollected amounts.

I. Allowances for poubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This

amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

J. Interfund Receivables and Pavables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year as well
as all other outstanding balances between funds are reported as " due to/ from oQier funds." Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business- type activities are reponed in the government wide financial statements as

interna] balances."
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K. Inventories

All inventories arc valued at average cost using the first-in/ tirst-out ( FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental fiinds are
recorded as expendihires when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventories of the enterprise fimds are recorded as

expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

L. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2020, are recorded as prepaid items in both

govemment- wide and fimd financial statemcnts. The City made a deposit on a fire tnick that is classified as prepaid expenses.

M. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipinent. infrastructure assets( e. g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items),
and intangible assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business- type activities column in the government- wide

financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets witl an initial estimated useful life in excess of two years
and individual cost capitalization thresholds as follows: land of more than , 1, infrastructure of more than 100, 000; building
and land improvements of greater than 525, 000; and equipment of more than S5, 000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constnicted. Donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at
their estimated fair value at thc date of donation. Donated capital assets received after Jui c 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition

value. Tl e cost of nom al maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset li es are
not capitalizcd.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight- line method over the following useful lives to cost of the assets:

Buildings 25- 60 ycars

Improvements 20- 50 years

Infrastructure 30- 50 years

Plants and distribution systems 30- 50 years

Vehicles and service equipment 3-] 0 years

Furniture and equipment 5- 10 years

N. Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of

resources. This separate financial statement element, Dererrec! Ou1/ lows o( Resources, represents a consumption of net position

that applies to fuhire period( s) and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The City has two items
that meet this criterion, pension deferrals and OPEB deferrals. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position ill

sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate linancial statement element, DeJerred

nflotitis o/ Resource.r, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as

revenue until then. Tl e City has several items that meet tlie criterion for this category- prepaid taxes, property taxes receivable,
pension deferrals, and OPEB deferrals.

O. Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of tlie City provides for d1e accwnulation of up to thirty ( 30) days earned vacation leave with such leave
being fully vested when earned.  For the City's government- wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for
compensated absences and the salary- related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The City has assumed a first- in, first-
out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year

has been designated as a current liability in the government- wide tinancial statements. A liability for these amoimts is rcported
in the go ernmental funds only if tliey have matured, for example, as a resuh of employee resignations and retirements.

The City' s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accwnulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any
unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement
benetit purposes. Since the City does not have an obligation for the accumulated sick lcave until it is actually taken, no accrual
for sick leave has been made.
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P. Long-Term Obliatgions

In the government- wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long- term debt and other long- term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts arc accrued and amortized over the tenn of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable discoimt or premiiun. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the year of issuance.

In the governmental fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the
current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances

are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Q. Net Position/ Fund Balances

Net Position

Net Position in government- wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net investment in capital assets,
restricted, and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that arc externally imposed either by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balance-

In the governmental fund tinancial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the

hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The govemmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they are either: ( a) not in
spendable form ( i. e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash), or ( b) legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

brventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end balance of

ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.

Prepaids - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents expenses which have

already been paid, which are not spendable resources.

Restricted - This elassification includes amounts that are restrieted to specific purposes externally in posed by creditors or

imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - North Carolina G. S. 159- 8 prohibits units of government from

budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several statutes enacted by the North Carolina
State Legislature in the 1930' s that were designed to improve and maintain the fiscal health of local govemment

units. Restricted by State statute ( RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds.
The calculation in G. S. 159- 8( a) provides a formula for detcrmining what portion of fund balance is available for
appropriation. The amount of fund balance not availablc for appropriation is what is known as " resh-icted by State
statute". Appropriated funcl bnlnnce in nny Tind shu!! not exceed the swn o/ cash and investrnents minus the s m of
Iinbilitres, encwnbra zces, and de er• ed revenues nrising( om cash receipts, as those/ igirres stand at the close of the
Tscal year next precedirig the fiudget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon which a restriction is

imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation." RSS is reduced by inventories and

prepaids as they are classitied as nonspendable. Outstanding F,ncumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included
as a component of Restricted Net position and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet.
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Restricted for Streets- Powell Bill portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for street construction
and maintenance expenditures. The amount represents the balance of the total unexpected Powell Bill funds.

Restricted for Public Safety - portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source of public safety related activities
such as federal forreiture and controlled substance funds.

Restricted for Economic and Physical Development- portion of fund balance restricted by lender for use in economic
and physical development activities.

Commrned - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by the City' s Board of Aldermen. Appro al of a resolution after a formal vote of the City's Board is required to
establish a commitment of hmd balance. Similarly, the City' s Board may only modify or rescind the commitment by formal vote
and adoption of a subsequent resolution.

Assigned - Fund balances arc reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City' s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City' s Board of Aldennen, through officially adopted budget ordinanees,
has expressly delegated limited authority to the City Manager and Finance Of6cer to assign funds.

Subsequent year's expenditures - portion of fimd balance that is appropriated in the next year' s budget that is not

already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves thc appropriation; however, the budget
ordianance authorizes the manager to modify thc appropriations by resource or appropriation within departments.

Assigned far capital projects- portion of fund balance that is assigned for specific projects within the City.

Unassigrred - the portion of fund balance that has not been resticted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

The City of New Bern has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources. The
Finance Officer will use resources in d e following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State fimds, local non- City funds,
city funds. For purposes of fund balance classification expendtiures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed

in- order by committed Cund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has the
authority to deviate from this policy if it is in tl e best interest of the City.

R. Defined Benefit Cost- Sharing Plans

For the purposes of ineasuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions and pension expense, inf'onnation about tl c tiduciary net position of the Local Governmental Employees'
Retirement System( LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS' liduciary net position have been detennined on tl e same
basis as they are reponed by LGERS. For this purpose, benefit payments ( including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reponed at fair value.

S. Management Estimates

Thc preparation of financial statements in conforn ity« ith general accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assimiptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates. Significant area where estimates are made are allowance for doubtful accounts and depreciation lives.
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NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Significant Violations of Finance- Related Le al and Contractual Provisions

1. Noncompliance with Bond Covenants

None.

B. Deficit Fund Balance. The following funds are reporting deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2020:

Fund Deficit Corrective Action

FEMA Hurricane Florence 3, 796,739)   Recognition of unavailable intergovemmental revenues

FEMA Hurricane Dorian L, 208,454)   Recognition of unavailable intergovernmental revenues

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTVIEIVTS

All deposits of tl e City are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all

deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the City' s agents in
the unit's name. Under the Pooling Method, which is a coliateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities

held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity
for the City these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agent in the City' s name. The amount of the pledged collateral
is based on an approved averaging method far non- interest bearing deposits and the actual cunent balance for interest-bearing
deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirni this information with the City or the escrow agent. Because of the
inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-
collateralization. This risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. Howecer, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces
strict standards of financial stability for eacll depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. Tl e City
has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of

minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The City complies
with the provisions of G. S. 159- 31 when designating official depositories and verify that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2020, the City' s deposits had a carrying amount of$ 2, 747, 786 and a bank balance of$ 5, 110, 331. Of the bank
balance, $ 500, 000 was covered under federal depository insurance and the remainder was covered by collateral held under the
Pooling Method. The City' s petty cash fund totaled$ 7, 350.

At June 30, 2020, the City's investment balances were as follows:

Valuation

Measurement Book Value at

Investment by Type Nlethod 06/ 30/ 2020 Maturity Rating

NC Capital Management Trust- Government

Portfolio Fair Value Level 1    $ 24,949, 840 N/A AAAm

NC Capital Management Trust Term PoRfolio Fair Value Level 1 26,299,287 15 years Unrated

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: debt securities
are valued using directly observable, quoted prices( unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 debt securities are
valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities' benchmark quoted
prices.
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Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a fornial investment policy tliat specifically limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the

possession of an outside party. State stahites ( G. S. 159- 31) require all deposits and investments ( other than federal or state
government insriuments) to be collateralized by depository insLirance, obligations of the U. S. government, or bonds of public
authorities, counties, or municipalities. As of June 30, 2020, the City' s deposits are insured ar collateralized as required by state
law.

ConcenU a ion of Cr edit Risk.  The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any one issuer.

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES—ALLOVVANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The receivables shown in Exhibit 1 at June 30. 2020, were as follows:

Due from other

Accounts Taxes Governments Total

Governmental Activities:

General 3, 076,675   $       392, 291   $       825, 858 S 4, 294, 824

FEMA Hurricane Florence 10, 184 1, 575, 201 1, 585, 385

Other Governmental 51], 853 359, 829 871, 682

Internal Service Fimd 7, 359 7, 359

Total receivables 3, 606.071 392,291 2, 760,888 6, 759.250

Allowance for doubtful accounts 157) 195. 143)  195, 300)

Net receivables 3, 605, 914  $ 197,( 48  $     2, 760,888         6, 563, 950

Business- type Activities

Electric 7, 420,288   $       S 7, 420,288

Water 1. 342, 208 1, 342. 208

Se ver 1, 525, 909 1, 525, 909

Solid Waste 368,950 368, 950

Total receivables 10, 657,355 10,657, 355

Allowance for doubtful accounts 416,472)  416,472)

Net receivables 10, 240,883   $       10,240, 883

Due from other governments consisted of the following:

State& Federal Grants       $      1, 935, 030

Privilege Licenses

Sales tax 782, 334

Motor Vehicle- Due

from the County 43, 524

2, 760, 888

Note Receivable

In January 2019, the City refinanced outstanding debt with Green Park Terrace, LLC. Under the new agreement Green Park
Terrace will pay the City$ 1, 000 a month, beginning July 1, 2019 and continuing throtiigh June 1, 2029. Interest will only accnie
if a payment is past due, at 12% per annum. The first payment was received before June 30, 2019.
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 18, 694,396  $  99, 213   $ 26, 000)  $    ( 3, 203, 388)  $     15, 564, 221

Construction in Progress 4, 821, 193 3, 895, 159 3, 174, 346)  5, 542, 006

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 23, 515, 589 3, 994, 372 3, 200, 346) 3, 203, 388) 21, 106, 227

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and

improvements 16, 653. 275 2, 881, 302 19, 534, 577

Equipment 10, 904, 046 414,661 35, 621)  11, 283, 086

Furniture and fixtures 6, 092, 133 121, 659 8, 410)  6, 205, 382

Transformers 70, 275 70, 275

Infrastructure 36, 518, 825 3, 203, 388 39, 722, 213

Vehicles 10. 090, 611 954, 995 26, 704)  11, 018, 902

Total capital assets 80, 329, 165 4,372,617 70, 735) 3, 203, 388 87, 834, 435

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and

improvements 7, 091, 641)   512,685)  13, 087) 7, 617, 413)

Equipment 6, 750,891)   837,311)    32, 579 7, 555, 623)

Furniture and fixtures 5, 580, 278)   163, 596)     8, 410 5, 735, 464)

Transfonners 40,759)      2, 811)  43, 570)

Infrastructure 11, 437, 678) 1, 626,723)  13, 087 13, 051, 314)

Vehicles 7, 336, 796)   849,215)    26, 704 8, 159, 307)

Total accumulated 38,238, 043)  $      ( 3, 992, 341)  $ 67, 693   $       42, 162, 691)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 42,091, 122 45, 671, 744

Governmental activity
capital assets, net 65, 606, 711 S 66, 777, 971

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General govemment 392, 137

Public safety 1, 467, 183

Public works 1, 495, 368

Economic and Physical Developmenl 125, 381

Cultural and recreational 512,272

3. 992, 341
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Beignning Endin

Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances

Business- type activities:

Electric Fund

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 1. 211, 987  $ 1, 211, 987

Construction in Progress 7, 139, 080 1, 332,556 50, 753 8, 420. 883

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 8, 351, 067 1, 332,556 50, 753 9, 632, 870

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 5, 520, 202 5, 520, 202

Equipment 8, 870, 271 98, 842 8, 969, 113

Furniture and fixtures 263, 357 33,466 296, 823

Transformers 4, 650,903 64,283 4, 715, 186

Distribution systems 51, 246, 416 889,419 52, 135, 835

Vehicles 3, 408, 644 103, 819 16, 260)  3, 496, 203

Total capital assets

being depreciated 73, 959, 793 1, 189,829 16, 260)  75, 133, 362

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 1, 164, 944)   185, 640)  1, 350,584)

Eqiiipment 5, 821, 632)   391, 991)  6, 213, 623)

Fumiture and fixtures 191, 330)     50,239)  241, 569)

Transfonners 3, 597, 281)     85, 309)  3, 682, 590)

Distribution systems 33, 280, 989) 1, 524,594)  34, 805, 583)

Vehicles 2, 452, 253)   222, 152)    16, 260 2, 658, 145)
Total accumulated 46, 508,429)  $      ( 2, 459,925)  $ 16, 260  $       48, 952, 094)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 27,451, 364 26, 181, 268

Electric fund capital assets,

net 35, 802,431 35, 814, 138
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Beienning EndinQ

Water Fund Balances Increases Decreases Transfers Balances

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 852, 479  $ S 852, 479

Construction in progress 3, 398, 056 509, 463 60,720)  3, 846, 799

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 4. 2 0, 35 509,463 60,720)  4, 699, 278

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 35, 655. 357 35, 655, 357

Equipment 2, 066,472 224, 293 2, 290,765

Furniturc and tixnires 7, 731 7, 731

Distribution systems 26, 025, 258 263, 468 26, 288, 726

Vehicles 999, 869 87, SR3 1, 087, 452

Total capital assets

being depreciated 64, 754.687 575, 344 65, 330,031

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 7, 108, 248)   891, 224)  7, 999,472)

Equipment 1, 636,842)     83, 760)  1, 720,602)

Furniture and fixtures 7, 731)    7, 731)

Distributionsystems 10, 470, 173)   588. 306)  11, 058, 479)

Vehicies 812,715)     92, 247)  904.962)

Total accumulated

depreciation 20,035, 709)  $      ( 1. 655. 537)  $       S 21, 691, 246)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 44,718, 978 43, 638, 785

Water Fund capital assets,

net 48, 969,513 48, 338, 063
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Bc inning EndinQ
Sewer Fund Balances Increases Decrcases Transfers Balances

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 12, 389, 511   $ S 12, 389, 511

Constniction in progress 743, 648 548, 203 1, 291, 851

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 13, 133. 159 548, 203 13, 681, 362

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildit gs 40, 107, 721 11, 735 40, 119, 456
Equipment 3, 942, 236 70,071 4,012, 307

Furniturc and fixtures 89, 039 89, 039

Distribution systc ns 41, 456,647 936, 561 42,393, 208

Vehicles 1, 776, 258 66, 048 1, 842, 306

Total capital assets

being depreciatcd R7, 371. 901 1, OA4, 415 88, 456,316

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 19, 884,414) 1. 027, 232)  20. 911, 646)

Equipment 2, 632, 241)   199, 079)  831, 320)

FurniRire and fixhires 62. 225)      8, 250)  70,475)

Distributionsystems 11, 343, 894)   857, 757)  12, 201, 651)

Vehicles 1, 372. 166)   209, 376)  1, 581, 542)

Total accumulated

depreciation 35, 294,940)  $      ( 2. 301, 694)  $       S 37, 596, 634)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 52, 076, 961 50, 859,682

Sewer Fund capital assets,

net 65, 210, 120 S 64, 541, 044
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Beginnine Endin

Solid Waste Fund Balances ncreases Decreases Transfers Balances

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress   $       S

Total capital assets not

being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Lines 114, 505 114, 505

Equipmcnt 307, 8 1 307, 871

Vehicles 338, 497 154, 697 493, 194

Total capital assets

being depreciated 760,873 154, 697 915, 570

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Lines 2, 552)      4, 136)  6,688)

Equipment 30, 787)     55, 357)  86, 144)

Vehicles 26, 028)     43, 626)  69, 654)

Totai accumulated

depreciation 59. 367)  $ 103, 119)  S 162, 486)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 701. 506 753, 084

Solid Waste Fund capital

assets, net 701, 506 S 753, 084

Business- type activities      $   150, 683, 570 S 149, 446, 329

VOTE 6: LIABILITIES

1. Pension Plan ObliQations

A. Local Governmental Emplovees' Retirement System

Plan Description.  The City of New Bem is a paRicipati ig employer in tlie statewide Local Governn ental Employees'

Retirement Systen( LGERS), a cost- sllaring multiple- employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local. law enforcement officers ( LEOs) of participating
local governcnental entities. Article 3 of G. S. Chaptcr 128 assigns the authority to establish and a nend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LUERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13
members - nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senatc, one appointed by the State House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex- otticio members. The Local Governmental

Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ( CAFR) for the State of North

Carolina. The State' s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGF.RS. That report
may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling( 919) 981- 5454, or at www.osc. nc. gov.

Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are deterniined as 1. 85°/ a of the

member's average final compensation times the member' s years of creditable service. A member's average final compensation is

calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive years of compensation.  Plan members are cligible to retire

with full retirement benefits at age 65 with tive years of creditable ser ice, at age 60 with 25 years of cmditable service, or at

any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are cligible to retire vith partial retirement bcnetits at age 50 with 20
years of creditable service or at age 60 aith five years of creditable service ( age 55 for firefighters).  Survivor benefits are

available to eligible beneficiaries of inembers who die while in active sen•ice or within 180 days of their last day of service and
who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age ( 15 years of creditable service for tirefighters and

rescue squad members who are killcd in thc line of duty) or have completed tive years of service and have reached age 60.
Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor' s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's
contributions.  The plan does not provide for automatic post- retirement benefit increases.  Increases are contingent upon

actuarial gains of the plan.
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LGERS plan members who are LEOs are cligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five years of creditable

service as an otficer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  LEO plan members are eligible to retire with partial
retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 ycars of creditable service as an ofticer.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible

beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service of within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have
either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have

reached age 50, or ha e completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have rcached age 55, of have completed 15

years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. F,ligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's
Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member' s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Stature 128- 30 and may be amended only by the North
Carolina General Assembly.  City of New Bern einployees are required to conuibute 6% of their compensatioa Employer

contributions are actuarially detennined and set annually by the LUERS Board of Trustees. The City of New Bern contractually
required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020, was 9. 70% of compensation for law enforcement officers and

9. 02°% for general employees and firefighters, achiarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to tinance the costs of benctits earned by employces during the year. Contributions to thc pension
plan from the City of Ne Bern were S2, 1 14, 442 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Refunds of Contributions - City employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS, may file an
application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4%
interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a
refund payment canccls the individual' s right to employer contributions or any other bencht pro ided by LGERS.

Pension Liabi/itres, Pension Expense, nird Deferred OutJlows of Resources und DeJerre l li:/lon:c of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of S9J-}9, 392 for its proportiunate sltare of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to caleulate thc net pension liability was
detennincd by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018.  The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The City' s proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long- term share of fiiture payroll covered by the pension plan,
relati e to the pr jected fiiture payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGGRS employers, actuarially
detern ined. At June 30, 2020 ( measurement date), the City's proportion was 0.3570% vhich was a decrease of 0. 0245% from

its proporiion measured as of June 30, 2019.

Far the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of$ 4, 330, 167.  At June 30, 2020, the City reported
deferred outtlows of resources and deferred intlows of resources rclated to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 1, 669, 3a3 S

Changes of assumptions 1, 588, 989

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 237, 801

Changes in proportion and differences between employer

contributions and proportionatc share of contributions 182, 563 71. 532

Empioyer contributions subseqiient to the mcasurement date 2, 1 14, 442

Total 5, 793, 138 S 71, 532
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2, 114,442 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Ciry contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30. 2021. Other amounts
reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June

021 1. 732. 826

2022 69, 271

2023 991, 509

2024 313, 558

2025

Thereafter

3, 607, 164

Actum•ia! Assumptrons.  The total pension liabiLity in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was deterniined using the
following actuarial asswnptions, applied to all periods in the measuremenr.

Inflation 3. 0 percent

Salary increases 3. 50 to 8. 10 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 7. 00 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group ( i. e. general, law enforcement officer) and
health status ( i. e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that

cover significant portions of the U. S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period Jamiary 1, 2010 through December 3l, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the
measurement.

The projected long- term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current and historical
capital markets data, sell- side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical perforniance of inveshnent strategies.

Fixed income expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenor and over multiple year horizons.

Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return
projections.  Other asset categories and strategies' return projections reflect the foregoing and l istorical data analysis. These
projections are combined to produce the long- term expected rate of return by weighting the expected futurc real rates of return
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inllation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic
real rates for each major asset class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of

Fixed Incomc 29. 0°   3° i

Global Iiquity 42. 0%   5. 3°/ a

Real Estate 8. 0%    4. 3%

Alternatives 8. 0%    8. 9%

Credit 7. 0%    6A%

Protection 6A°ia 4. 0%

Total I 00. 0° o

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed ith the consulting actuary for the 2018 asset, liability, and
invesrinent policy study for the North Carolina retirement Systems, including L( iERS. The long- tern nominal rates of return
underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The rcal rates of return are calculated f om nominal rates by
multiplicatively subtracting a long- tern inflation assun ption of 3. 00%,. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.
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Discount rate. The discount rate used to mcasure the total pension liability was 7. 00%. The projection of cash flows used to

detemiine the discount rate assumed tl at coutributions from plan members wiil be made at the current contribution rate and that

contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plan' s fiduciary net position vas projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current
plan members. Therefore, the long- tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City' s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
City' s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 7. 00 percent, as well as what the City's
proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability ti olild be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lowcr( 6.00 perccnt) or one percentage point liigher( 8. 00 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6. 00%)    7. 00%)   8. 00%)

City' s proportionate share of the net
pension liability( assct)       22, 298, 641   $      9, 749, 392 S      ( 681. 577)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed inforn ation about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Comprel ensive Annual Financial Report( CAFR) for d e State of North Carolina.

B. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description.

The Ciry of New Bern ad ninisters a public employee mtirement system ( tl e " Separation Allo vance"), a single-employer

defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the C.ity' s qualified sworn faw enforcement officers.  Tlie
Separation Allowance is equal to . 85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable
to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allo vances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 1 ZD of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns thc authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to tlie North Carolina General Assembly.

All full time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance.  At December 31, 2018, the
Separation Allowance' s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving beneYits 13

Active plan members S 1

Total 94

A separate report as not issued for the plan.

2. Summary of Signiticant Aceounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension expenditures
are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accotmting. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance vith the terms of the plan.

The Separation Allowance lias no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which are outlined in GASB Statements

73.
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3.  Actuarial Assumptions

The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2018 valuation. The total pension liability in the December
31, 2018 actuarial valuation was detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2. 5 percent

Salary increases 3. 50 to 7. 35 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Discount rate 3. 26 percent

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is the Standard& Poor' s Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate

Index.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an experience study completed
by the Actuary for the Local Government Employees' Retirement System for the five year period ending December 31. 2014.

Mortality Rate

Deaths After Retirement ( Healthy):  RP- 2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to 2015 using MP-2015, projected
for ard generationally from 2015 using MP- 2015. Rates arc adjusted by 104% for males and ] 00% for females.

Deaths Before Retirement: RP- 2014 Employee base rates projected to 2015 using MP-2015, projected forward generationally
from 2015 using MP-2015.

Deaths After Ketirement( Beneficiary): RP- 2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to 2015 using MP- 2015, projected
forward generationally tcom 2015 using MP- 2015. Rates are adjusted by 123% for males and females.

Deaths After Retirement ( Disabled):  RP- 2014 Disabled Retiree base rates projected to 2015 using MP-2015, projected
forward generationally from 2015 using MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by ] 03'% for males and 99°/o for females.

4. Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit

payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. The City' s obligation to
contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.  There were no

contributions made by employees. The City's expense for benefit payments to current retirees for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020 was$ 218,413.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expe ise, and De' erred Outflows of Resotures and Defe• red litJlows of Resourees Re/ated to
Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a total pension liability of 52, 966. 769. The total pension liability was measured as of
December 31, 2019 based on a December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of December 31, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended
June 30, 2020, the City rccognized pension expense of$ 136. K00.

Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 419, 304  $       215, 005

Changes of assumptions 133, 577 73. 794

County benefit payments and plan administrative expense made
subsequent to the measurement date 235, 419

Total 788, 300 S 288, 799
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S235, 419 paid as benetits came due subsequent to the measurement date have been reported as deferred outflows of resources.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2021 46,258

2022 48, 710

2023 43, 189

2024 67. 099

2025 58, 826

Thereafter

Serisitii in or the Crry' s totnl pensio t licrbi[ rry to ch nges i» the rfiscoauit rn e. The follo ving presents the City' s total pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 3. 64 percent, as well as what the City's total pension liabiliry would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1- percentage- point lower( 2. 26 percent) and 1- percentage- point higher( 4. 26 percent) than
the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2. 26%)    3. 26%)   4. 26%)

Total pension liabi( ity 3, 196, 601   $     2, 966.' 769 S 2, 756,406

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liabilih

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

2020

Beginning balancc 2, 383, 204

Service Cost 125, 573

Interest on the total pension liability 82, 774

Changes of benefit tenns

Differences 5 l I, 459

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 82, 172

Benefit payments 218, 413)

Otherchanges

Net Changc SR3, 565

Ending balance of the total pension liability 2, 966, 769

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status( i. e. disabled and lieaLthy). Tlie current mortality rates
are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U. S. population. The healthy mortality
rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.
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Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Following is information relatd to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension plans:

LGERS LEOSSA Total

Pension Expense 4, 330. 167 S 136, 800 S 4,466.967

Pension Liability 9, 749, 392 2, 966,769 12, 716. 161

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 03570% n/ a

Deferred Outtlows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 1, 669, 343 419, 304 2,088,647

Changes of assumptions 1. 588, 989 133, 577 1, 722, 566

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 237, 801 237, 801

plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between 182, 563 182, 563

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Benefit payments and administrative costs paid 2, 1 14, 442 235, 419 2, 349, 861

subsequent to the measurement date

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 215, 005 215, 005

Changes of assumptions 73. 794 73, 794

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between 71, 532 71, 532

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

C. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Ofticers

Plan Description.  The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan ( Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law
enforcement officers employed by the City. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the NoRh Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report( CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State' s CAFR includes

the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401( k) plan that includes the Supplemental

Retirement Income Plan for Law F.nforcement Ofticers.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, ] 410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699- 1410, or by calling( 9l9) 98]- 5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent of
each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately.  Also, the law enforcement officers may make
voluntary contributions to the plan.  Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $ 400,293, which consisted of

255, 628 from the Ciry and 5144,665 from the law enforcement officers.

D. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Employees not Engaged in Law Enforcement

Plan Description. The Ciry contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan ( Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to City
employees not engaged in law enforcement. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  The Supplemental Retirement lncome Plan is included in the

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report( CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State' s CAFR includes the pension trust

fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401( k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income

Plan for Law Enforcement Ofticers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699- 1410, or by calling( 919) 981- 5454.

Funding Policy. The City' s cmployees may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2020 were 1, 373, 922, whieh consisted of$ 901, 097 from the City and 5472, 825 from the employees.

43



E. Other Postemployment Benefits

I[ calthcarc Benefits

Plan Description.  According to a City resolution, the City provides post- retirement healthcare benefits through a single-
cmployer defined bcne6t IIcalthcare Bene6ts Plan ( the ° IICB Plan"). The City pays 100 percent of the cost for " m imuin

retirees" of tlie City, while ' bther retirees" are eligible to enroll in the City' s insurance plan, but must pay full cost. Maximum
retirees are defined as meeting one of tl e following criteria: ( 1) etnployee with thiny( 30) or more years of service with at least
fifteen ( 15) of those years with thc City; ( 2) employce with twenty- seven( 27) or more years of service and three ( 3) years of
prior military service with at lcast fifteen ( 15) of those years with the City; or( 3) members of the governing board with a total
number of sixteen( 16) years in office. To qualify as an " other retiree." employees must meet one of the two following: ( 1) have
twenty- five ( 25) to twenty- nine ( 29) years of service with at least ten ( 10) with the City; or( 2) twenty ( 20) or more years of
qualified service with at least ten ( 10) years with the City. Coverage for all retirees who are eligible for Medicare will be
transferred to a Medicare Supplemental plan after qualifying for Medicare. The City contributed$ 701, 503 in benefits. The City's
Board of Aldermen established and may amend the benefit provisions. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets tl e
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 and a separate report was not issued for tlie plan.

Membership of the Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2019, tl e date of the last actuarial valuation:

General

Emplo• ees:

Retirees and dependents recei ing R 1

benefits

Active plan members 396

Total 477

Total OPEB Liabilih

The City's total OPEB liability of, 35, 387, 577 was measured as of June 30, 2019 and was deternlined by an actuarial aluation
as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was detemiined
using d e following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, appliccl to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise
specified:

Inflation 2. 50 percent

Real wage growth 1. 00 percent

Wage inflation 3. 50 percent

Salary increase, including wage inflation
General employees 3. 50- 7. 75 percent, including inflation
Firefighters 3. 50- 7. 75 percent, including inflation
Law Enforcement Officers 3. 50- 735 percent, including inflation

Discount rate 3. 50%

Healthcare cost trend rate

Pre- Medicare 7. 25% for 2018 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4. 75% by 2028
Medicare 5. 3R% for 2018 decreasing to an iiltimate rate of 4. 75% by 2022
Dental 4.00%
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liabilit,y

Total OPF,B Liabilitv

Balance at July 1, 2019 31, 590, 758

Changes for the ycar

Service cost 1, 068, 074

Interest 1, 215, 366

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience 85, 385)

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 2,300,267

Benefit payments 701, 503)

et changes 3, 796, 819

Balance at June 30, 2020 35, 3R7, 577

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3. 89% to 3. 50%.

The current mortality rates were based on the RP- 2014 mor[ality tables, with adjushnents for experience and generational

mortality improvements using Scale MP-2015. The acniarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the
results of an acri arial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014, adopted by the LGERS
Board.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the rotal OPEB liability of the
City, as well as what the City' s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1- percentage-point
lower and 1- percentage-point higher.

Discount Rate

1% Decrease 3. 50%)  1%[ ncrease

Total OPEB liability 42, 444, 123   $    35. 3K7, 5' 7   $    29, 903. 024

Sensitivity of the total OPF,B liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total OPGB
liability of the City. as w ell as what the City' s total OPEB liability ould be if it• cre calculated using healthcare cost trend rates
that are 1- percentage-point lower or 1- percentage- poiiit higher than the current ilealthcarc cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability 2R, 972. 886   $    35, 3R7, 577  $    43, 890, 070

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $2, 031. 827. At June 30, 2020, the City reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Dcfened Deferred Inflows

Outflows of of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 201, 062 S 75, 525

Changes of assumptions 2, 034,647 3, 649, 153

Benefit payments and administrative costs

made s bsequent ro the measurement date 646,482

Total 2, 882, 191 S 3, 724,678
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646, 482 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from benefit payments made and
administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the total pension

liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amotmts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2021 341. 515)

2022 341, 515)

2023 341, 515)

2024 341, 515)

2025 34l, 515)

Thereafter 218, 606

F. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Defened Deferred

Outflows of Intlows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience

LGGRS 1, G69, 343   $       

LE;OSSA 419, 304 215, 005

OPGB 201, 062 75, 525

Changes of assumptions

LGERS 1, 588. 989

LEOSSA 133, 577 73. 794

OPEB 2. 034,647 3, 649, 153

Difference between projected and actual investment

LGERS 237. 801

Change in proportion and difference betwecn employer

LGERS 1 R2, 563 7l. 532

Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year

LGERS 2, 114, 442

Benetit payments/administration costs paid subsequent to 235. 419

the measurement date( LF,OSSA)

Benefit payments/ administration costs paid subsequent to 646,482

the measurement date( OPEB)

Taxes receivable, net( General)     197, 148

Liens and other receivables( General)       302, 513

Intergovernmental( Governmental Funds)   77. 055

Miscellaneous( General)    1 19, 000

Total 9, 463, 629 S 4J80,725

NOTE 7: R1SK I VAGEI IENT

The Ciry is exposed to various risks of loss relatcd to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;

injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To mitigate the tinancial impact of any losses, the City has established a program to
manage its tinancial risks through a self-funded arrangement in combination with purchase insurance.
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The City's Internal Service Fund was established to account for an employee self-insurance l ealth benefit program. The pucpose
of the fund is to pay medical claims of City employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of annual
medical insurance to the municipality. Funding is provided by employee contributions and charges to the various funds of the

City based upon estimated claim and empioyee participation. Expected claims are determined annually by the reinsurance
carrier. The City carries aggregate stop loss insurance coverage of 125% of annual expected paid claims and individual stop loss
coverage of$ 100, 000 per covered individual and an aggregating specitic deductible of 250,000 through the plan administrator

utilizing a reinsurance carrier. The City has recognized a provision for claims incurred but not reported, in the accompanying
financial statements. This provision is estimated based upon actuarial claims history utilizing a two month lag on outstanding
claims.

The City is self-insured for workers' compensation claims up to$ 600,000 for all employees. The City has reinsurance through a
conunercial company for single occurrence ciaims up to$ 1, 000,000. The City also purchased an Occupational Accident Buffer
Layer Insurance Policy which covers all empioyees at $ 400,000 ( attachment point) with a coverage limit of $200, 000. The

City' s Internal Service Fund is also used to account for this program.

The City is self-insured for workers' compensation claims up to$ 600, 000 for all employees. The City has reinsurance through a
commercial company for single occurrence claims up to 51. 000,000. The City also purchased an Occupational Accident Buffer
Layer Insurance Policy which covers all employees at $ 400,000 ( attachment point) with a coverage limit of $200, 000. The
City' s Internal Service Fund is also used to account for this program.

The City carries $ 1, 000, 000 of flood insurance, subject to a $ 50,000 deductible, included in its commercial property coverage.
The City does not have any property that has been mapped and designated an" A" area( an area close to a river, lake, or stream)
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

In accordance with G. S. 159- 29, the City' s employees that have access to 100 or more at any given time of the City' s fimds are
performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officcr is individually bonded for $ 100, 000.  The

remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for 5250,000.

For the Employee Benefit Insurance Internal Service Fund, a total of $5, 589, 338 in claims and changes in estimates were

incurred for benefits during the year ended June 30, 2020. Changes in the fund' s claims liability amounts in the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE CLAIMS PAYABLE

Current Year

Beginning of Year Claims and Change End of Year

Fiscal Year Claims Liability in Estimates Claims Paid Claims Liabilitv

2020 484,606  $       4, 612,216   $     4, 678,716 S 418, 106

2019 777,262 5, 324,032 5, 616,688 484, 606

WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAIMS PAYABLE

Current Year

Beginning of Year Claims and Change End of Year

Fiscal Year Claims Liability in Estimates Claims Paid Ciaims Liability

2020 60, 000  $ 662, 180  $       662, 180  $ 60, 000

2019 90, 000 265, 306 295, 306 60, 000
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NOTE 8: LONG-TERA1 OBLIGATIOtiS

a. Installment Purchases

As authorized by State law( G. S. 160A- 20 and 153A- 158. 1), the City financed various property and equipment acquisitions by
installment purchases. In the event of default the entire outstanding prinicpal and interest balance is immediately payable and the
bank may proceed witl additional options as legally allowed. Installment purchase contracts at June 30, 2020 were comprised
of the following individual agreements:

Balance as of

Governmental Activities:      June 30, 2020

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by BB& T for 5, 896, 923 in May
2008 with varying quarterly payment for aquatic center and s« imming pool
consmiction,  downtown streetscape projects,  and Elizabeth Avenue fire station

improvements. The properties are pledged as collateral wl ile the debt is outstanding.
The note bears an interest rate of 3. 31% and matures in 2023. In April 2012 the City
modified the note to reduce the interest rate to 2. 92% on the remaining principal of

4,422, 692.    S 1, 179, 384

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by BB& T for$ 3, 409, 618 in June
2012 with varying semi- annual payments for the purchase and installation of radio
network. The equipment is pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding. The note
bears an interest rate of 2. 04% and matures in 2022.    397,020

The City entered into a direct placement note through BB& T for $ 465, 315 in May
2013 with semi- annual payments of 15, 510 for South Front Street streetscape

improvements. The property is pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding. The
note bears an interest rate of?. 54% and matures in 2028.       248, 168

They City entered into a direct placement note issued by SunTrust Bank for $756, 633
in July 2014 with semi- annual payments of$ 25, 221 for the purchase of a fire truck.
The truck is pledged as collateral while tl e debt is outstanding. The note bears an
interest rate of 2. 86% and matures in 2029.     479, 201

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by First Citizens Bank for
1, ll7,000 in December 2015 with varying annual payments for tl e purchase various

vehicles and equipment. Tl e vehicles and equipment are pledged as collateral while

the debt is outstanding. Tt1e note bears an interest rate of 1. 58% and matures in 2021.  106,468

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by BB& T for, 800, 000 in October
2016 with semi- annual payments of 533, 333 ( fixed principal) for the improvements to

the City's streets. The rights to easements are pledged as collateral while the debt is

outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of 2. 00% and matures in 2029.     522, 503

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by First Citizens Bank& Trust for

708, 000 in June 2017 witl semiannual payments of$ 86, 000 ( fixed principal) for tlie

purchase various vehicles and equipment. Tl e vehicles and eGuipment are pledged as

collateral while the debt is outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of 1. 90% and

matures in 2022. 268, 000

The City entered into a direct placemeut note issued by PNC Bank for $2, 320, 000 in
June 2018 with semi- annual payments of $ 166,000 ( fixed principal) for city-wide
drainage improvements. The improvements are pledged as collateral while the debt is

outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of 3. 34% and mahires in 2028.   1, 856, 000
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The City entered into a direct placement note issued by BB& T for S2. 219, 407 in June
2019 with varying semiannual payments for roadway improvements and workforce
development center improvements. The property and all moneys on deposit in ihe
project fund are pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding.  The note bears an

interest rate of 2. 78% and matures in 2029.     1, 997, 466

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by Bank of America for
1, 800, 060 was issued in April 2019 with varying semi- annual payments for the

purchase of various vehicles and equipment. The vehicles and equipment are pledged

as collateral while the debt is outstanding. Tl e note bears an interest rate of 2. 6096%
and matures in 2024.   1, 440, 048

Total governmental activities S 8, 494, 258

Business- Type Activities:

A direct placement note was issued by BB& T for S1J01, 977 in May 2008 with
varying scmiannual payments for the downtown utility improvements. The property is
pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of
33l% and matures in 2023. In April 2012 the City modificd the loan to reduce the
interest rate to 2. 92% on the outstanding balance of$ 1, 331, 764.      387, g

A direct placement note was issued by BB& T for S1, 238, 760 in June 2012 with

varying semiannual payments for the purchase and installation of the radio network.
The equipment is pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding. The note bears an
interest rate of 2.04`% and matures in 2022.      357, 791

A direct placement note was issued by First Citizens Bank for 5488,000 in December
2015 with varying semi- annual payments for the purchase of vehicles and equipment.

The vehicles and equipment are pledged as collateral while the debt is outstanding. The
note bears an interest rate of 1. 58°/o and mariires in 2021. 37, 217

A direct placement note was issued by BB& T for $ 1, 863, 767 in January 2016 with

semi- annual payments of 593, 189 for the refinancing of the Kale Road property note.
The property is pledged as collateral while tlie debt is outstanding. The note bears an
interest rate of 2.25% and matures in 2026.    1, 118, 260

The City entered into a direct placement note issued by First Citizens Bank& Trust for

152, 000 in June 2017 with semiannual payments of S86, 000 ( fixed principal) for the

purchase various vehicles and equipment. The vehicies and equipment are pledged as

collateral while the debt is outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of 1. 90% and

matures in 2022.   76, 000

A direct placement note was issued by Bank of America for $ 734, 167 in April 2019
with varying semi- annual payments for thc purchase of various vehicles and
equipment. Tl e vehicles and equipment are pledged as collateral while the debt is

outstanding. The note bears an interest rate of 2. 6096% and matures in 2024.   587, 334

Total business- type activities 2, 564, 380

In the event of default the entire outstanding principal and interest is immediately payable, and thc bank may proceed with
additional options as legally allowed.
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Future minimum payments as of June 30, 2020 for the installment purchase contracts are as follows:

For the Governmental Activities Business- Type Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021 1, 792, 174  $ 221, 37G 711, 900 S 56,380

2022 1. 689,735 175, 600 6R 1. 152 39, 989

2023 1, 355, 210 132, 258 465. 364 24, 850

2024 962,083 98, 206 333, 210 14, 406

2025 602, 071 73, 677 186, 3' 77 7, 339

2026- 2030 2, 092, 985 122, 928 186,; 77 3, 145

2031- 2035

Total 8, 494,258   $ 824, 045 S 2, 564. 380 S 146, 109

b. Notes Pa

The City has various note payable agreements with tlie State outstanding for water and sewer distribution expansion and
improvement projects. In the event of a default the entire outstandiug principal and interest are iminediately payable, additiona]
action may be taken as legally allowed. The outstanding balances for the notes as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Balance as of

Business- Type activities:       June 30, 2020

A direct borrowing note issued by North Carolina Department of Environment and
Natural Resources for 520, 1 10, 036 was issued in February 2003 with variable
semi- annual payments for a wastewater treatment plant expansion. The note bears an

interest rate of 2. 57% and matures in 2023.    3, 700, 756

A direct borrowing note issued by NoRh Carolina Department oi Environment and
Natural Resources for$ 1, 351, 452 was issued in March 2003 with variable senii- annual

payments for wastewater treahnent plant expansion. The note bears an interest rate of
2. 66% and matures in 2024.     270,290

A direct borrowing note issued by North Carolina Departmcnt of Environment and

Natural Resources for$ 33. 606, 624 w as issued in July 2010 with variable semi- annual
payments of 1, 680,331 for watcr treatment plant expansion. The note bears an interest

rate of 2. 27% and matures in 2030.   
16, 803, 312

Total outstanding notes payable:   S 20, 774, 358

The debt service to maturity on thc notes payable is as follows:

Year Ending June 30,      Principal Interest Total

2021 2, 950, 322  $ 482, 894 S 3, 433, 216

2022 2, 981. 224 412, 135 3, 393, 359

2023 3, 012, 921 340, 582 3, 353, 503

2024 1, 747, 904 268. 21a 2, 016, 118

2025 1, 680, 331 228, 357 I, 908, 688

2026- 2030 8, 401. 656 57p, g93 8, 972, 549

Total:  20, 774, 358  $      2, 303. 075 S 23, 077, 433
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c. Revenue Bonds

In June 2013, the City issued 17, 180, OOU of Utility Revenue Bonds for water, sewer,
and electric system impmvements and expansion and refunding of installment notes
payable. Semi- annual payments of 930, 882 are duc on December 1 and June L The

bonds bear an interest rate of 1. 56%. The bonds mature in 2023. The City has pledged

future water, sewer, and electric revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay
these bonds.    S 5, 435, 931

In December 2014,  the Ciry issued 53. 830,000 of Utility Revenue Bonds for
acquisition and construction of a warehouse, AMI, and other improvements at Kale

Road. Semi- annual payments of 213, 847 are due on December 1 and June l. The

bonds bear an interest rate of 2. 15%. The bonds mature in 2025. The City has pledged

future water, sewer, and electric revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay
these bonds.     1, 825, 123

In May 2016, the City issued $ 5, 600,000 of Utility Revenue Bonds for water and
electric AMI expansion. Semiannual payments of 5310, 082 due on December 1 and

June l. The bonds bear an interest rate of 1. 97%. The bonds mah re in 2026. The City
has pledged future water and electric revenues, net of specified operating expenses to
repay these bonds.     3, 491, 512

Total revenue bonds S     ] 0, 752, 566

Year Ending Principal Interest Total

2021 5 2, 728,492  $ 181, 129 S 2, 909,621

2022 2. 775, 840 133. 782 2. 909,622

2023 2, 824,025 85, 597 2, 909,622

2024 1, 004,037 43, 821 1, 047, 858

2025 1, 420, 172 33, 999 1, 454, 171

Total:      10, 752, 566  $ 478, 328 S 11, 230, 894

The City is in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals and cl arges in Section 704 and Section 71 l of the Bond

Order, authorizing the issuancc of the Electric, Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, Series 2014, and Series 2016,
secured solely by the pledge of net revenue of the City' s combined enterprise funds ( Electric, Water and Sewer). Pursuant to
Section 704( a) of the Bond and related agreements, the City has made certain covenants that provide for rates to be set at levels
to provide annually to maintain a debt ervice coverage ratio of 120°/o ( 1. 20) for parity indebtedness and 100% ( 1. 0) for parity
and subordinated indebtedness. In addition, pursuant to Section 711 of the Bond agreement, the principal amount of installment

debt ( liens) cannot exceed 15% of net investment in capital assets. The debt service coverage requirements for the year ended

June 30, 2020, are as follows:

The debt service coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Operating revenues 50, 899, 916

Operating expenses 48,420, 775)

Add back:

lirvestment earnings 286, 348

Depreciation 2,459. 925

Income available for debt service S 5, 225, 414

Debt service principal and interest

paid( Revenue bond only) S 2.909, 621

Debt service coverage ratio 1 SO" o

The City's debt serviee coverage ratio is greater than 120% of the debt service requirement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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d. ChanQes in Lon- Tenn Liabilities

A summary of changes in long- term obligations follows:

Balance Balance Current Portion of

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020 Balance

Go ernmental activities:

Direct placement

installment purchases 10, 571. 477   $ 2, 077,220 S 8, 494,257 S 1, 792. 175
Compensatedabsences 1, 700, 519 26, 101 1, 674,418 502, 325
Net pension liability 5, 589. 510 1394,263 6, 983, 773
Total pension liability 2, 383, 204 583, 565 2, 966,769
Total OPEB Liability 31, 590, 758 3. 796, R19 35, 387. 577

Total Governmental

acti ities 51, 835, 46R   $       5. 774, 647  $     ?, 103, 321 S 55 506. 794 S 2 294 500

Business- h pe activities:

Direct borrowing notes
payable S 23, 694, 553   $ 2, 920, 195 S 20, 774, 358   $      2, 950,322

Direct placement

installment purchases 3, 423. 227 858. 846 2, 564, 381 711, 900

Revenuebonds 13, 434,533 2, 6R1, 966 10,752, 567 2, 72R,492

Net pension liability 2. 298. 527 467,092 2, 765, 619

Compensated absences 633, 969 25. 443 659,412 197, 824

Total Business- type

activities 43, 484, 809  $ 492,535   $     6,461, 007 S 37, 516 337 S 6 588 53R

For governmental activities, compensated absences are liqliidated by the General Fund. The LUERS net pension liability, law
enforcement officers' SSA total pension liability, and total nPF.B liabilities arc liquidated by the General Fund.

At June 30, 2020, the City of New Bcrn had a legal debt margin of$ 226,245, 060.

NOTE 9: INTERFUND BALAI ICES AnD ACTIVITY

The comparison of interfund balances as of June 30. 2020 is as follows:

Due To/From Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payablc Fund Amount

General Fun l Grants Special Revenuc S 101. 453

General Fund FEMA Hurricane lrenc 14, 525

General Fund FEMA Hurricanc Florence 5, 099, 694

General Fund FEMA Hurricanc Dorian 1, 457, I 37

General Fund MPO Plan 30, 098

General Fund Entitlemcnt Cities CDBG Program 6, 653

General Fund Union Station Train Depot 90,755
General Fund Martin Marietta Park Project 56, 838

6, 857,203

These funds owe the General Fund far temporary cash shortages in the pooled casli account being covered by the General Fund.

52



Transfers to/Transfer From

Transfers toifrom other funds at June 30, 2020, consists of the following:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fun l Electric Fund 2, 644, 000

S 2, 644, 000

MPO Plan Grant Fund General Fund S 18, 100

Grants Special Revenue General Fund 19•027

Public Private Partnership General Fund 4, 258

2017 Roadway Improvement Project General Fund 920, 000

Martin Marietta Park Project General Fund 32, 500

Drain Improvement Project General Fund 175, 000

Solid Waste General Fund 35, 000

1, 203, 885

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statutc or bud et requires to collect them to the fund that statute or
budget requires to expend them. Transfers are also cno ed from unrestricted enterprise operations to offset operational costs in
the General Fund.

NOTE 10: Net Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type

Capital Assets 66, 777, 971   $   149, 446,329

less: long- term debt 8, 494, 257)      ( 34, 091, 307)

add: unexpended debt proceeds 347,449

Net Invesunent in Capital Assets      $      8, G31, 1G3   $   115, 355, 022

VOTE 11: Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of Ueneral fund balance that is
available for appropriation:

Total Fund Balance- General Fund 21, 681, 25

Less restricted far:

Inventories 149, 855

Prepaids 1. 710. 621

Stabilization by State statutc 1 1, 226,460

Streets 323>023

Economic and Pliysical Development 39. 356

Subse uent ear' s ex enditures

Remaining Fund Balance
7. 331. 940

The City has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources.  The Finance
Director will use resources in the follo ving hierarchy; bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, lock non- City funds, and City
funds. For purpose of fund balance, classification expendittires am to be spent from restricted fund balance tirst, followed in
order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and lastly, tmassigned fund balance. The Finance Director has the
authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the City.

The City has not officially adopted a fund balance policy.

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperformed at year-end.

Encumbrances General Fund NonMa' or Funds

sx t s
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NOTE 12: JOIVT VEI TURES, JOIVTLY COVERNED ORGANIZATIOVS, A\ D RELATED ORGANI'LATIOVS

1. Jointiv Governed Organization

Eastern Carolina (' ouncil — The City, in conjunction with nine counties and twenty-cight other municipalities, established the
Gastern Carolina Council ( the" Council"). The participating governments established the Council to coordinate various funding
received from federal and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the Council' s governing board.
The City paid membership and administrative fees of$ 10, 570 ro the Council during the tiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (" NCEMPA") — NCEMPA is a joint agency formed by 32 municipalities,
including the City, and organized and cxisting pursuant to Chapter 159B of the General Statutes of North Carolina. The
NCEMPA Board elects its own officers and is responsible for the selection of management to run the daily operations of
NCEMPA. NCEMPA Is responsible for budgeting and recciving its tinancing. The City has made investment in this joint
venture.

2. Joint Ventures

Tl e City participates in a joint venture with Craven County to operate the New Bern/ Craven County Library. The City appoints
five members of the ten- member board. The City has an ongoing financial responsibi( ity for tl e joint venture because the
Library' s continued existence depends on the participating governments' continued funding. None of the participating
governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June
30, 2020. The City contributed$ 75. 000 to the library during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

3. Relatcd Oreanizations

New Bem Housing Authority— Tl e Board of tlie New Bern EIousing Autliority(" Hosing Authority") is appointed by the Mayor
of the City. The City is accountable for thc FIousing Authority because it appoints tl e governing board; l owever, the City is not
financially accountable for the Housing Authority.

Friends of New Bcrn Firemen' s Museum, Inc. — The Board of Directors of the Fricnds of New Bern Fircmen' s Museum
Museum") is appointed by the Board of Aldern en o1 tlie City. The City is accountable 1ar the Museum because it appoints the

governing board: however, tl c City is not financially accoimtable for the Museum.

NOTE 13: SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGnIFICAN7' CONTInGENCIES

Federal and State Assisted Pro rams

The City has receivcd proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain
costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.  Such audits could result in the
refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.  Management believes that any required refunds will be immateriaL No
provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refimd of grant moneys.

NOTE 14: SIGNIFIC.aVT F,FFF.CTS OF SUBSF,QUENT F,VENT

The City has evaluatcd evenis from tl e datc of the balance sheet through the date the report is available to be issued which is the
date of the independent auditors' report.  The City has not evaluated subsequent events after that date.  There were no
subsequent events during this period that require disclosure.

NOTE I5: RESTATEMENT

The City clected to move the Storm vater Fund into the General Fund after the City stopped charging fees for stormwater
services.  As a result, remaining balances had to be restated, resuiting in an increase in the General Fund of $184, 826, an
inerease in the Drainage Improvement Capital Project of $523, 122, and an increase in the government- wide statements of

1, 365, 727.

Additionally, the cash balance for the ERP prqject fund had to bc restated between the project fund and the associated enterprise
funds. This resiilted in the cash balance of the ERP Project Fiuid increasing$ 357,204, which is offset by a decrease of 3, 000
in the Water Fund, S3, 000 decrease in the Sewer Fund, and 5351, 204 decrease in the Electric Fund.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional infonnation required by generally accepted accounting
principles. Presentation conforms to requirements of the Local Government Commission in

North Carolina.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability( Asset)- Local Government

Employee' s Retirement System

Schedule of Contributions- Local Government Employees' Retirement System

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability- Law Enforcement Officers' Special
Separation Allowance

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll- Law Enforcement
Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios



Exhibit A- 1

City of Ncw Bern

City' s Proportionate Share of Net Pension I. iability( Asseq
Required Supplementarv Information

Last Se en Fiscal 1' ears

Local Govcrnment Employees' Retirement System

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Ciry's proportion ofthe net liability( asset) 0. 35700%      0. 33250°/      033240°%      034164%     036713%     - 037472%     036820°/

City' s propoRion of the net pension liability
asset)($) 9, 749, 392 5 7, 888, 037   $  5, 078, 151   $  7, 250, 745   $ 1, 647, 657   $( 2, 209, 896)  $ 4, 438,224

Ciry' s covercd payroll S'_ 339? 399 S21, S40, 082   $ 20, 816,691   $ 20, 102, 718 5 20, 791, 805   $ 20, 561, 521   $ 19, 998,382

City' s proponionate share of the net pension
liability( asset) as a percentagc of its covercd
pdyroll 41. 68% 36. 62° 0 24.39% 36.07% 7. 92%       - 10. 75%       ? 2. 19%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the ro[ al 90. R6% 91. 63%0 94. IR% 91. 47%       9R. 09%       102. 64%       9435%

The amounts presented for each tiscal year wcre determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.
This will be the same percentage for all panicipant employers in the LGERS plan.
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Exhibit A-2

Citv of New Bern

City of tieh Bern' s Contributions
Required Supplementary Information

Last Seveo Fiscal Years

Local Governmeot Employccs' Retirement System

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contracmallyrequiredcontnbutior $ 2. 114. 442      $ I, S64, 644 S 1, 666. 638    $ 1. 565, OIR    $ 1, 419, 969    $ 1, 4R6.944    $ 1, 461, R30

Contnbutions in rela[ ion to he

contractuallv reauired
2• 1 4, 432 R64. 644 1. 666. 638 1, 565A1R 1, 419, 969 1, 486,U44 1, 461, 830

Con[ ribution deficiency( excess  $ S S 5 5

City'scoveredpayroll 23392,399 S23392, 399 521. 540, OR2 520,816, 691 520, 102, 71R 520, 791, R05    $ 20, 561, 21

Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 9.04%  7. 97i 7. 74°ro 7. 52% 7. 06% 7. I S°/ 7. 11%
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Exhibit A-3

Citv of Ne Bcrn, North Carolina

Schedulc of Changes in Total Pension Liability
La Enforcemcnt Officers' Spccial Separation Allowancc

Last Four Fiscal Years

2020 2019 2018 2017

Beginningbalance 2, 383, 204      $   2, 767, 704     $ 2, 632, 626      2, 611, 191

Servicc Cost 125, 573 119, 819 100, 996 106, 628

lnterest on the total pension liability 82, 774 84,313 98. 458 91, 040

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual

experience in the measurement of the total

pension liability S11, 459 299, 975) 52, 017) 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 82, 172 89, 532) 151, 459 54, 134)

Benefitpayments 218,413)  199, 125)       ( 163, 818) 22, 099)

Otherchanges

Ending balance of the total pension liability       $ 2966,769 S 2, 383. 204     $ 2, 767, 704 S 2, 632, 626

Note: Schedule is intended to show• inforniation for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they
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Exhibit A-4

City of New Bern, North Carolina

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Co ered Payroll

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Last Five Fiscal Years

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Total pension liability 2966,769       $ 2, 383, 204 S2, 767J04     $ 2. 632. 626     $ 2, 611, 191

Covered Payroll 5. 131, 526 4,520, 892 4, 423. 296 4, 334, 746 4. 083, 468

Total pension liability as a
percentage of covered payroll 57. 81%   52. 72%  62. 57%  60.73%  63. 95%

Notes to the schedules:

The City ofNew Bern has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement
73 to pay related benefits.

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Exhibit A-5

City of Ne Bcrn, North Carolina

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liabilitp and Related Ratios

Requircd Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total OPEB Liability 2020 2019 2018

Service cost S 1, 068, 074 S 1, 142,446 S 1, 315, 824

Interest 1, 215, 366 1, 118, 600 991, 387

Changes in benefit tenns

Differences betwcen expected and actual experience 85, 385)    45, 256 260, 722

Changesofassumptions 2, 300. 267 1, R93219) 3, 439, 284)

Benefitpayments 701, 503)  483, 111)  802, 639)

Net change in total OPEB liability 3, 796, 819 70, 028) 1, 673, 990)

Total OPEB liability- beginning 31, 590, 758 31, 660, 786 33, 334, 776

Total OPEB liability- ending 35, 387, 577      $ 31, 590, 75R      $ 31, 660. 786

Covered payroll 19, 173, 918      $  19, 173, 918      $ 18, 184, 909

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 184. 56%   164. 76%   174. 10%

Notes to Schedule

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effect of changes in the discount rate

of each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

Fiscal year Rate

2020 3. 50%

2019 3. 89%

2018 3. 56°/a
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SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS

AND SCHEDULES

This section contains additional infornlation required by the
Local Govenmlent Conmlission in North Carolina



Exhibit B- 1

City of Ne Bcrn, North Carolina
Gencral Fund

Statement of Revenues, Eapenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Annual Budgct and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues:

Ad alorem taxes

Current ycar 14, 978, 000     $   15, 437, 289     $       459,289
Prior year 70, 950 76, 534 5. 584

Municipal service district 155, 000 195, 334 10, 334

Penalties and interest 42. 000 43, 841 1, 841

Total 15, 275, 950 15, 752, 9yg 477, 048

Unrestricted intergovernmental

Local option sales tax 7, 2 3, 000 7, 842, 360 559, 360

Video programming tax 270,000 225, 426 44,574)

Payments in lieu oftaxes 1, 168, 567 1, 161, 614 6, 953)

Tciccommunications sales tax 215, 000 177, 302 37,698)

Utilities franchisc tax 2, 050,000 2, 050,004 4

Piped nattiral gas tax 70,000 63. 210 6, 790)

Public F,ducation Television 27,000 27, 353 353

Beer and wine tax 132, 000 129, 630 2, 370)

Fire protection reimburse nent I 3, 423 12, 932 491)

ABC distribtttions 60,000 64,667 4, 667

Total tmrestricted intergovernmental 11. 288, 990 11, 754,498 465, 508

Restricted intergovernmental

Powell Bill allocation 865, 000 863. 078 1, 922)

State Disaster Assistance grant

Federal Disaster Assistance grant

Total restricted interQovernmental 86, 000 863, 078 1, 922)

License, permits and fees

Building perntits and inspection fees 415, 200 605,$$ 9 190, 689

Auto and taxi fees 44, 000 45, 415 1, 415

Bcer and wine liccnses 2, 000 243 1, 757)

Other pcnnits 24, 300 23, 870 430)

Total licenses, pennits and fees 485. 500 675, 417 189, 917

Sales and services

Public works fees 7, 900 28. 416 516

Refuse collection fees 20,000 22, 808 2, 808

Planning and inspections 90,000 123, 333 33, 333

Public safety fees 350, 677 424, 218 73, 541

Cultural and recreation fees 25. 500 138, 500 13, 000

Rent income 1, 500 177, 509 176. 009

Other sales and services 64, 760 34, 986 29, 774)

Total sales and services 680, 337 949, 770 269,433

Investment earnings 428,010 184, 772 243, 238)

continued)
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Exhibit B- 1

continuedl

City of Nc Bcrn, North Carolina

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Annual Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 2020

V ariance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Other revenues

Proceeds from insluance 149, 761 179, 908 30, 147

Cemetery 90, 000 121, 175 31, 175

Other revenues 132, 800 147, 675 14, 875

Total other revenues 372. 561 448, 758 76, 197

Total Revenues 29, 396, 348 30, 629, 291 1, 232, 943

Expenditures:

General government:

Governing body
Salaries and employee benefits 143, 281 142, 448 833

Special appropriations 644, 711 626,388 18, 323

Operating expenditures 132. 805 1 13, 310 19, 495

Total 920, 797 882, 146 38, 651

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 479,400 473, 457 5. 943

Operating expenditures 116, 892 99, 550 17, 342

Total 596. 292 573, 007 23, 285

Public Education Television( PEG)

Operating expenditures 33, 439 29,287 4, 152

Total 33, 439 29,287 4, 152

nformation technology
Salaries and employee benefits 704, 310 685, 960 18, 350

Operating expenditures 924, 253 824,552 99,701

Capital outlay 100, 000 83, 274 16, 726

Total 1, 728, 563 1, 593, 786 134, 777

Finance

Salaries and employce benefits 982, 165 900, 127 82,038

Operating expenditures 485, 013 425, 875 59, 138

Total 1, 467, 178 1, 326,002 141, 176

Legal

Operating expenditures 230, 673 226. 809 3, 864

Total 230, 673 226, 809 3, 864

continued)
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Exhibit B- 1

continued)

City of Ne Bern, North Carolina

Ccneral rund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Annual Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Human resources

Salaries and employee benefits 496, 231 434, 603 61, 628

Operating expenditures 110, 660 97, 325 13, 335

Total 606. 891 531, 928 74, 963

Reimbursement from enterprise funds 3, 634, 122) 3, 616, 890)      17, 232)

Total general government 1, 949, 711 1, 546, 075 403, 636

Public Safety:
Police

Salaries and employee benetits 9, 064,869 9, 297, 915 233, 046)

Operating expenditures 1, 915, 511 1, 766, 782 148, 729

Capital outlay 553, 595 545, 481 8, 114

Total 11. 533, 975 ll,610, 178 76.203)

Firc department

Salaries and employee benefits 5. 983, 982 5, 974,911 9, 071

Operating expenditures 673. 082 628, 249 44,833

Capital outlay 1, 916,512 159, 873 1, 756,639

Total 8, 573, 576 6, 763, 033 1, 810,543

E911 Support:

Salaries and employee benetits 139, 263 139, 861 598)

Operating expenditures 554 13, 677 13, 123)

Total 139. 817 153, 538 13. 721)

Total public safety 20,247, 368 18, 526, 749 1, 720, 619

Public works

Streets

Salaries and employee benefits 1, 040, 707 1, 002,760 37, 947

Operating expenditures 1, 762. 428 1, 712, 724 49, 704

Capital outlay 160, 349 160, 261 88

Total 2, 963, 484 2, 875, 745 87, 739

Public buildings

Salaries and employee benefits 414, 137 401, 775 12, 362

Operating expenditures 687, 035 663, 961 23, 074

Capital outlay 39,400 39,367 33

Total 1, 140, 572 1, 105, 103 35,469

continued)
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Exhibit B- 1

continued

Citv of Nc Bcrn, North Carolina

General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Annual Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 794,759 783, 561 11, 198

Operating expenditures 293. 265 252, 774 40,491

Capital outlay
Total 1, 0 8, 024 1, 036, 335 51, 689

Stormwater

Salaries and employee bencfits 362, 306 348, 797 13, 509

Operating expenditures 254, 889 233, 631 21, 258

Capital outlay 324. 606 127, 694 196, 912

Total 941, 801 710, 122 231, 679

Total Public Works 6, 133. 851 5, 727,305 406,576

Cultural and recreational:

Parks and recreation

Salaries and employee benefits 2, 134,244 2, 080,382 53, 862

Operating expenditures 1, 238. 831 1, 115, 931 122, 900

Capitai outlay 418. 994 396,604 22, 390

Total Cultural and Recreational 3, 792. 069 3, 592, 917 199, 152

Economic and ph sical devclopment

Planning
Salaries and employee be lefits 1, 395, 051 1, 347, 604 47,447

Operating expenditures 417, 989 310, 701 107, 288

Capital outlay
Total 1, 813, 040 1, 658, 305 154, 735

Municpal service district

Operating expenditures 112, 418 106, 695 5, 723

Total 1 12, 41 R 106, 695 5, 723

Total economic and physical development 1, 925. 458 1, 765, 000 160,458

Debt service:

Principal retirement 1, 989,421 2, 077,220 87, 799)

nterest and other charges 264,008 171, 841 92, 167

Total debt service 2, 253. 429 2, 249,061 4, 368

Totalexpenditures 36301, 916 33, 407, 107 2, 894, 809

Revenues over( under) expenditures 6, 905, 568) 2, 777, 816)   4, 127, 752

continued)
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Exhibit B- 1

continued)

City of New Bcrn, North Carolina
Gencral Fund

Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Annual Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Other financing sources( uses):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 4,735 4, 735

Transfers in 2, 644,000 2, 644, 000

Transfersout 1, 226, 596) 1, 203, 885)       22, 711

Contingcncy 26, 354)    26, 354

Installment purchase obligations issued 2. 752, 640 2, 752, 640)

Appropriated fiind balance 2, 761, 878 2, 761, 878)

Total other financing sources( uses)  6, 905, 568 1, 444, 850 5, 460, 718)

Kevenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses       $       1, 332, 966)    $    ( 1, 332, 966)

Fund balance, beginning 22, 829, 395

Restatement( see Note 15) 184, 826

Fund balance, ending 21, 681, 255
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Exhibit B- 2

City of new Bcrn, Vorth Carolina
FEMA Hurricanc Florence

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Projcct Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Federal Public Disaster

Assistance Grant 20, 925. 000     $    6, 802, 509     $  6, 802,509     $ ( 14, 122, 491)

State Public Disaster

Assistance Grant 6, 975, 000 2, 267, 503 2, 267, 503 4, 707,497)

Insurance Proceeds 2, 1OQ000 779,451 1, 318, 796 2, 098. 247 1, 753)

Totalrevenues 30,000, 000 779,451 10, 388. 808 11. 168, 259 18, 831, 741)

Expenditures

General govemment

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 27.486 27, 483 27,483 3

Operating expenditures 2, 080, 351 766, 689 456,457 1, 223, 146 857,205

Inforniation technology
Salaries and employee benefits 43, 054 43, 050 43, 050 4

Operatingexpenditures 2, 500 5, 643 5, 643 3, 143)

Finance

Salaries and employee benefits 37, 896 37, 890 37, 890 6

Operating expenditures 11 3, 165 3, 165 3, 154)

Iuman resources

Salaries and employee benefits 17, 487 17, 483 17, 483 4

Operating expenditures 9 4,688 4, 688 4, 679)

Insurance 50,000 15. 487 27. 870 43, 357 6, 643

Public Safety
Police

Salaries and employee benefits 863, 841 863, 836 863, 836 5

Operating expenditures 50.000 36,799 2, 630 39,429 10, 571

Fire

Salaries and employee benefits 353, 265 353, 261 353, 261 4

Operating expenditures 105, 000 102, 815 1, 109 03, 924 1, 076

Public works

Streets

Salariesandemployeebenefits 171, 149 171, 144 171, 144 5

Operatingexpenditures 320,000 276, 847 12, 690 289,537 30,463

Public buildings

Salaries and employee benefits 38, 783 38, 778 38, 778 5

Operatingexpenditures 1, 164, 491 140, 261 267, 821 408,082 756,409

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 66, 111 66, 105 5, 647 71, 752 5, 641)

Operating expenditures 125, 000 107, 468 4, 718 112, 186 12, 814

Water Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 221, 621 221, 610 221, 610 11

Operating expenditures 91, 077 76, 797 76, 797 14, 280

Solid Waste

Salaries and employee benefits 152, 766 152, 763 152, 763 3

continued)
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Exhibit B- 2

continued)

City of New Bern, Vorth Carolina
FEMA Hurricane Florence

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgct and Actual

For the Year F.nded June 30, 2020

Vanance

Pr ject Total Project Positive

Autl orization Prior Years Current Year to Date Negative)

Operating expenditures 4, 405, 000 3. 441. 521 170, 334 3. 61 1, 855 793, 145
Sewer Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 216, 178 216. 171 216, 171 7

Operating expenditures 1, 713, 310 1, 302,624 115, 160) 1, 187, 464 525, 846

Stormwater Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 4, o68, 719 68J19 648, 787 717, 506 3, 351, 213

Operating expenditures 46, 659 48,40]      355)   48, 046 1, 387)

Electric Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 846, 161 846, 141 846, 141 20

Operating expenditures 3, 477, 491 3, 096, 746 1, 745 3. 098, 491 379,000

Cuhural and Recreation

Salaries and employee bene6ts 140, 207 140, 199 2, 785 142, 984 2, 777)

Operating expenditures 8, 969J38 214, 839 484, 129 698, 968 8, 270, 770

F,conomic and physical development

Salaries and employee benefits 45. 664 45, 659 45, 659 5

Operating expenditures 88, 975 28,975 13, 734 42, 709 46, 266
Total expenditures 30, 000, 000 12, 980,057 1, 984,941 14, 964,998 15, 035, 002

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
overexpenditures 12, 200, 606) 8, 403, 867 3, 796, 739) 3, 796, 739)

Net change in fund balance 12, 200, 606) 8, 403, 867     $ ( 3, 796, 739)    $  ( 3, 796.739)

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 12, 200,606)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S ( 3J96,739)
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Exhibit Gl

City of New Bern,\ orth Carolina

Non- Major Funds

Combining Balancc Shcet
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Re• enue Capital Project

Funds Funds Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 463, 445     $      1, 012, 662     $      1, 476. 107

Accounts receivable, net 413, 539 98, 314 511, 853

Due from other governments 359, 829 359, 829

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 347,449 347, 449

Total assets S 1, 236. 813            1, 458, 425 S 2, 695, 238

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 87. 012 S 340,025 S 427, 037

Due to Other Funds 1, 700,671 56, 838 1, 757, 509

Totalliabilities 1, 787,683 396,863 2. 184, 546

Fund balances

Restricted: 

Public safety 477, 735 477, 735

Economic and physical development 179, 849 179, 849

Assigned:

Capital projects 1, 061, 562 1, 061, 562

Unassigned 1, 208,454)      1, 208, 454)

Total fund balances 550, 870)    1, 061, 562 510, 692

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances S 1, 236. 813 S 1, 458,425 S 2, 695, 238
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Exhibit C- 2

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Funds Funds Total

Revenues

Restricted intergovennnental 3, 021, 639     $       3, 021, 639

Miscellaneous 88, R71 97, 500 186, 371

Investment earnings 3, 304 41, 250 44,554

Total reveneus 3, 113, 814 138, 750 3, 252, 564

Expenditures

General go ernment 45, 607 45, 607

Cultural and recreational 134, 693 134, 693

Public safety 588, 385 588, 385

Public works 1, 312, 925 2, 633, 938 3, 946, 863

Economical and pliysical development 1, 116, 109 1, 116, 109

Total cxpcndittires 3, 197, 719 2, 633, 938 5, 831, 657

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 83, 905)  2, 495, 188)  2, 579,093)

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 41. 385 1, 127, 500 1, 168, 885

Total other financing sources( uses) 41, 385 1, 127, 500 1, 168, 885

Net change in fund balances 42, 520)  1, 367, 688)  1, 410,208)

Fund balances( deficit), beginning of year as
previously reported 508. 350)    1, 548, 924 1, 040,574

Restatement( see Note 13)  880,326 880,326

Fund balances( deficit), beginning of year as
restated 508, 350)   2. 429, 250 1, 920,900

Fund balances( deficit), end of year 550, 70)     $      1, 061, 562     $       510,692
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Exhibit C- 3

City of Vew Bern, Vorth Carolina

Non- A9ajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

Budget and. ctual

F'or the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Emergency Police Grants Public-

Community Telephone Special Special Private

Development S stem Revenue Revenue Partnership
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3, 860        248, 742     $     56, 306 S

Accounts receivable, net 28, 237 279, 023

Due from other governments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets 3, 860     $   276. 979     $     56, 306     $   279, 023 5

LIABILITIES A D F[; ND

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities S 19, 029     $  2, 329     $  

Due to Other Funds 101, 453

Total liabilities 19, 029 03, 732

Fund balances

Restricted:

Public safety 257, 950 56, 30fi 103. 392

Economic and physical development 3, 860 71, 349

Unassigned

Total fund balances 3, 8G0 257, 950 56, 306 175, 24] 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances 3, 860     $   276, 979     $     56, 306 S 279, 023 S

continued)
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E chibit C- 3

continued)

CitV of Vew Bern, Vorth Carolina

non- Major Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balancc Sheet

Budget and Actual

For the ti' ear Ended June 30, 2020

Equitable

FEVIA Entidement Sharing U. S.
Hurricane Cities CDBG Department Veuse Ri er

Irene MPO Plan Program of Justice Gateway
ASSETS

Cash and cash equi alents S 60, 087     $     39,450

Accounts receivable, net 14, 524 I, 000

Due from other governments 14, 525 52, 902 43, 669

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets 14, 525     $     67.426 S 4 1, 669     $     60,087     $     39.450

LI.ABILITIES AND FU\ D

I, iabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 2R, 63A     $     37, 016     $  

Due to Other Funds 14. 525 30,098 6, 653

Totalliabilities 14, 525 58, 73G 43, 669

Fund balances

Restricted:

Public safety 60, OR7

Economic and physical development 8, 690 1, 000 39,450

Unassigncd

Total fund balanccs 8, 690 1. 000 60, OA7 39,450

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances 14, 5? 5     $     67. 421i 5 44, 669 S 60A87     $     39, a50

continued)
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Exhibit C- 3

continued)

City of ew Bern, orth Carolina

on- 111ajor Special Re enue Funds

Combining Balance Shcet

Budget and. actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

City Market Resilienc and FEMA

L'orkforcc Union Station Ilazard Hurricane

Development Train Depot Mitigation llorian Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents S S 55, 000     $   463, 445

Accounts receivable, net 90, 755 413, 539

Due from otlier governments 248, 733 359, 829

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets S S 90, 75     $       55, 000 S 248J33     $    1, 236. 813

LIABILITIES AhD FtiND

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities S S R7, 012

Due to Other Funds 90, 75   1, 457, 1A7 1, 700,671

Totalliabilities 90, 755 1, 457, 187 1, 787, 683

Fund balances

Restricted:

Public safety 477, 735

Economic and physical development 55, 000 179, 849

Unassigncd 1, 208, 454) 1, 208,454)

Total fund balances 55. 000 1, 20R, 4)  550. 870)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances 5 90, 755 S 55, 000 S 248, 733     $    1, 236, 813
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Exhibit C- 4

Cit,y of Vcw Bern, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Non- Alajor Special Re enue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Emcrgency Pulicc Grants Public-

Communit      Telephone Special Special Prirate

Development System Revenue Revenue Partnership
Revenues

Restricted intergovemmental S 295. 571 S 7. 147     $   461, 320 S

Miscellaneous 1. 079

Investment earnings 38 2, 234 573

Total reveneus 1, 117 297, 805 7, 720 461, 320

Expenditures

General government 2, 242

Cultural and recreational 91, 047

Public safety 231, 081 300 67, 100

Public works 208, 608

Economical and physical devclopmcnt l71

Total expenditures l71 231, 081 300 368, 997

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 946 66, 724 7, 420 92,323

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 19,027 258

Tota] other financing sources( uses)       19, 027 4, 258

Net change in fund balances 946 66J24 7, 420 1 1 1350 4, 258

Fund balances( deticit), begin ing of year 2, 914 91, 226 48, 886 63, 891 4, 258)

Fund balances( delicit), end of year 3, 860     $    257, 950     $     56, 306     $    175, 241 S

continued)
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Exhibit C- 4

continued)

Cit of Ncw Bern, l orth Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
l on- tilajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

H: quitable

FE: tA Entiticment Sharing U. S.
Hurricane Cities CDBG Department Veusc River

Irenc MPO Plan Program of Justice Gatewav

Revenues

Restricted intergovemmental 196, 533     $    257,329     $     44, 723 S 55. 000

Miscellaneous

Investment earnings 409

Total reveneus 196, 533 257,329 45, 132 55, 000

Expenditures

General govemment

Cultural and recreational

Public safety R, 895

Public works

Economical and physical development 173, 280 168, 747

Total expenditures 173, 280 168, 747 8, 895

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 23, 253 88. 582 36, 237 55, 000

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 18, 104

Total other financing sources( uses) 18, 100

Net change in fund balances 41, 353 88, 582 36,237 55, 000

Fund balances( deficit), beginning of year 32, 663) 87, 582)  23, 850 15, 550)

Fund balances( deficit), end of year 8, 690     $      1, 000     $     60, 087     $     39,450

continued)
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Exhibit C- 4

continued)

Citp of New Bern, Narth Carolina
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Von- Major Special Revenuc Funds

For the Year F,nded June 30, 2020

City Market Resiliency and FEMA

Vb'orkforce Union Station Hazard Hurricane

Development Train Depot Mitigation Dorian Total

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental S 1, 375. 049 S S 55, 000 5 273, 967 S 3, 021. 639

Miscellaneous 87, 792 gg, g71

Investment eamings 50 3, 304

Total reveneus 1, 375, 099 R7. 792 55, 000 273, 967 3, 113, 814

F.xpenditures

General government 43, 365 45, 607

Cultural and recrcational 43, 646 134, 693

Public safety 281, 009 588, 385

Public works 1, 104, 317 1, 312.925

Econouiical and physical development 719, 222 44,605 10, 084 1, 116, 109

Total expenditures 719,222 44, 605 1, 482,421 3. 197, 719

Excess( deticiency) of revenues over
expenditures 655, 877 43, 187 55, 000       ( 1, 208,454)    83, 905)

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 41, 385

Total other financing sources( uses) 41, 385

Net change in fund balances 655, 877 43, 1A7 55. 000       ( 1, 208,454)    42, 520)

Fund balances( deficit), beginning of year 655, 877) 43, I 87) 508, 350)

Fund balances( deficit), end of year S o     $   55. 000     $ ( 1, 208,454)    $      ( 550, 870)
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Exhibit C- 5

City of New Bern, North Carolina

Community Development
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Program Income 1, 079     $  1, 079

lnvestment earnings 38 38

Total revenues 1, 117 1, 117

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Operating expenditures 5, 000 171 4, 829

Total expenditures 5, 000 171 829

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 5, 000) 946 5, 946

Other financing sources( uses)
Appropriated fund balance 5, 000 5, 000)

Transfers in

Total other financing 5, 000 5, 000)

Net change in fund balance 946     $    946

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 2, 914

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 3, 860
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Exhibit C- 6

City of New Bcrn, North Carolina

Emergency Telephone System
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)
Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Wireless 911 funds 299, 786     $       295, 571      $ 4, 215)
Investment earnings 850 2, 234 1, 384

Tota] revenues 300.636 297, 805 2, 831)

Expenditures

Public safety
Operating expenditures 409,720 231, 081 178, 639

Total expenditures 409. 720 231, 081 178, 639

Excess( deficiency) of revenucs over
expenditures 09, 084)       66,724 175, 808

Other financing sources( uses)
Appropnated fund balance 109, OR4 09, 084)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources 109, 084 109, 084)

Net change in fund balance S 66,724 S 66,724

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 191, 226

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of ycar 257, 950
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Exhibit C- 7

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Police Special Re enue

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovemmental

Police grants 7, 725       7, 147     $   578)

Investment earnings 573 573

Total revenues 7, 725 7, 720 5)

Expenditures

Public safety

Operating expenditures 7, 725 300 7, 425)

Total expenditures 7, 725 300 7, 425)

Net change in fund balance 7, 420     $  7, 420

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 48, 886

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S 56, 306
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Exhibit C- 8

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Crants Special Revenuc

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmcntal

Police grants 119, 954     $ 63, 869     $ 56, 085)

Fire grants 64, 117 56, 121 7, 996)

Cultural and recreational 96,000 91, 047 4,953)

Governing Board 4, 500 4, 500

Development Scrvices 541, 472 541, 472)

Public Works 280,000 245, 783 34,217)

Total revenues 1, 106, 043 461, 320 644,723)

Expenditures

Policc

Operating expendihires 125, 713 23, 165 102, 548

Fire

Operating expendih res 64, 117 43, 935 20, 182

Cultural and recrcational

Operating expenditures 110, 000 91, 047 18, 953

Governing Board
Operating expenditures 4,500 2, 242 2, 258

Economic and physical development

Operating expenditures 541, 472 541, 472

Public Works

Operating expenditures 330, 000 208, 608 121, 392

Total expenditures 1, 175. 802 368, 997 806, 805

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 69, 759)       92, 323 162, 082

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 69, 027 19, 027 50,000)

Appropriated fund balance 732 732

Total other financing sources
uses)     69,759 19, 027 49,268)

Ne change in fund balance I 11, 350 S I 12, 814

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 63, R91

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 175, 241
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Exhibit C- 9

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Public- Private Partnership

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Operating expenditures 10, 000     $       10,000)

Total expenditures 10, 000 10,000)

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 10, 000)      10, 000

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 10,000 4, 258 5, 742)

Total other financing sources 10,000 4, 258 5, 742)

Net change in fund balance 4, 258     $  4, 258

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 4,258)

Fimd Balance( Deficit), end of year
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Exhibit C- 10

City of Vew Bern, Vorth Carolina
FEMA Hurricane Irene

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Federal Public Assistance Disaster grant S 110, 226     $ 110,226     $     I 10, 226

State Public Assistance Disaster grant 36, 742 36, 742 36J42

Miscellaneous 78, 112 78, 112 78, 112

Total revenues 7R, ll2 225, 080 225, 080 146, 968

Expenditures

Public works

Operating expenditures 267, 644 225, 080 225, 080 42, 564

Totalexpenditures 267, 644 225, 080 225, 080 42, 564

Net change in fund balance 189, 532)    $  189, 532

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year
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Exhibit C- 11

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Metropolitan Planning Crant( MPO)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual( Non-GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positi e

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

NC Department of Transportation     $     218, 978     $  196, 533     $      ( 22. 45)

Total revenues 218, 978 196, 533 22. 445)

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Salaries and employee benefits 138. 236 130,471 7. 765

Operating expendittires 105, 264 42, 809 62, 455

Total expenditures 243, 500 173, 280 70,220

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 24, 522) 23, 253 47, 775

Other financing sources( uses)
Appropriatcd fund balance

Transfers in 24, 522 18, 100 6, 422)

Total other financing sources( uses) 24, 522 18, 100 6,422)

Net change in fund balance S 41, 353     $       41, 353

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 32, 663)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S 8, 690
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EXn b t c- i2

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Entitlement Cities CDBG Program

Schedule of Revcnues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Endcd June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

NC Department of Commerce   $   1, 475, 622 S 701, 388     $  257, 329     $   958. 717     $     ( 516, 905)

Total revenues 1. 475, 622 701, 388 257,329 95g, 717 516, 905)

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Operating expenditures 1, 475, 622 788, 970 168, 747 957, 717 517, 905

Capital outlay- construction
Total expenditures 1, 475, 622 788, 970 168, 747 957, 717 517, 905

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 87, 582) 88, 582 1, 000 1, 000

Net change in fund balance 87, 582) 88, 582     $      1, 000     $ I, 000

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning oCyear 87, 582)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 1, 000
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Exhibit C- 13

Citv of New Bern, North Carolina

Equitable Sharing U. S. Department of Justice
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Ach al Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Police grants S 4,000 S 44, 723          40, 723

Investment earnings 250 409 159

Total revcnues 4,250 45, 132 40, 882

Expenditures

Public safety

Operating expenditures 31, 850 895 22. 955

Total expenditures 31, 850 8, 895 22. 955

Excess( deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 27, 600)  36,237 63. 837

Other financing sources( uses)
Appropriated fund balance 27, 600 27, 600)

Total other financing
sources( uses)   27, 600 27, 600)

Net change in fund balance 36,237     $     36,237

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 23, 850

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S 60,087
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Exhibit C- 14

City of New Bern, Vorth Carolina
Neuse Rivcr Gatewav

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

State grant 75, 000 S 55, 000     $     55, 000     $      ( 20, 000)

Total revenues 75, 000 55. 000 55, 000 20, 000)

Expenditures

Economic and physica( development

Capital outlay- construction 125, 000 G5, 550 65, 550 59, 450

Total expenditures 125. 000 65, 550 65, 550 59, 450

Excess( deficiency) of
revenucs over expcnditures 50,000) 65, 550) 55, 000 0,550)     39,450

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfcrs in 50,000 50,000 50, 000

Total other financing
sources( uses)   50,000 50, 000 50,000

Net change in fund balance 15. 550) 55, 000          39.450     $       39,450

Ftmd Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 15, 550)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 39, 450

84



Exhibit C- 15

Citv of New Bern, North Carolina

City 1' Iarket Workforce Development
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the 1' ear Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Total Project Positive

Autl orization Prior Years Current Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

State grant 1, 373, 250         75, 000     $ 1, 265, 249     $ 1, 340, 249     $      ( 33, 001)

Golden Leaf Grant 549, 000 439,200 109, 800 549, 000

Interest Income 3 50 53 53

Total revenues 1, 922, 250 S14,203 1, 375, 099 1, 889, 302 32. 948)

Expenditures

Economic and physical

development

Capital outlay- construction 2, 856, 500 2, 104, 330 719. 222 2, 823, 552 32, 948

Total expenditures 2, 856. 500 2, 104, 330 719, 222 2, 823, 552 32, 948

Excess( deficiency) of
revenuesoverexpendin res 934,250)     ( 1, 590, 127) 655, 877 934, 250)   0

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 314, 843 314,843 314,843

nstallment purchase 619,407 619,407 619, 407

Total other tinancing
sources( uses) 934, 250 934,250 934,250

Net change in fund balance S S  ( 655, 877) 655. 877 S 0     $     0

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 655, 877)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 0
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Exhibit C- 16

City of New Bcrn, North Carolina
Union Station Train Depot

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For thc Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Re enues

Contnbutions

NC Department of Transportation      $     218, 000     $    87, 792     $ ( 13Q, 208)

Total revenues 218, 000 87, 792 130, 208)

Expenditures

conomic and physical development

Operatingexpenditures 218, 000 44,605 173, 395)

Total expenditures 218. 000 44,605 173, 395)

Net change in fund balance 43. 187     $   43, 187

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 43, 187)

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year
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Exhibit C- 17

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Resilienc and Hazard Mitigation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

NC Department of Env Quality         33, 000     $   33, 000)

Foundation Grants 55, 000 5, 000 SSA00

Total revenues 88, 000 55, 000 55, 000 33, 000)

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Other Professional Services 88, 000 88, 000

Total expenditures 88, 000 88, 000

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 55, 000 55, 000 55, 000

Net change in fund balance S 55, 000          55, 000     $       55, 000

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S 55, 000
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Exhibit C- 18

City of New Bern, North Carolina
FEMA Hurricane Dorian

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the 1'ear Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Year to Date Negative)
Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Federal Public Disaster

AssistanceGrant S 1, 125, 000 S S 205, 47     S 205. 475 S     ( 919. 525)

State Public Disaster

Assistance Grant 375, 000 68,492 G8, 492 306, 508)
Total revenues 1, 500,000 273, 967 273, 967 1, 226, 033)

Expenditures

General government

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 9, 115 9, I 15 9, 1IS

Operating expenditures
Infonnation tecl nology

Salaries and employee benetits 11. 744 11, 744 I 1, 744

Operating expenditures 1. 050 1, 050 1. 050

Finance

Salaries and eu ployee benefits 13, 921 13, 921 13, 921

Operating expenditures 790 790 790

Human resources

Salaries and employee benefits 6, 745 6, 745 6, 745

Operating expenditures

Public Safety
Police

Salaries and employee benefits 173, 099 173, 099 173. 099

Operating expenditures 15, 636 15, 636 15, 636
Fire

Salaries and employee benefits 84, 738 84, 738 84. 73R

Operating expenditures 5. 934 5, 934 5. 934

E911

Salaries and employee benefits 1, 602 1, 602 1, 602

Operating expenditures

Public works

Streets

Salaries and employee benefits 22, 583 22, 584 22, 584 1)

Operating expenditures 8, 516 10, 407 10, 407 1, R91)

Public buildings

Salaries and employee benefits 11, 353 11, 351 11, 351 2

Operating expenditures 9, 945 9, 945 9,945

Administration

Salaries and employee benefits 16, 701 16, 702 16, 702 1)

Operating expenditures 4,988 4, 987 4,987 1
Water Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 55, 390 55, 391 55, 391 1)

Operating expcnditures 12, 447 12, 448 12, 448 1)

continued)
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Exhibit C- 18

fcontinued)

City of NeH Bern, l orth Carolina
FEMA Hurricane Dorian

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the 1'ear Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Year to Date Negative)

Solid Waste

Salaries and employee benefits 24, 096 24,062 24, 062 34

Operating expenditures 231, 570 251, 089 251, 089 19, 519)

Sewer Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 58, 649 58, 649 58, 649

Operating expenditures 10, 362 10, 362 10, 362

Stormwater Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 8, 304 8, 305 8, 305 1)

Operating expenditures 1, 399 1, 399 1, 399

Electric Fund

Salaries and employee benefits 205, 029 205, 031 205, 031 2)

Operating expenditures 442, 177 401, 605 401, 605 40,572

Cultural and Recreation

Salaries and employee benefits 38, 934 38, 926 38, 926 8

Operatingexpenditures 3, 097 4,720 4, 720 1, 623)

Economic and physical development

Salaries and employee benefits 10, 086 10,084 10, 084 2

Operating expenditures

Total expenditures 1, 500,000 1, 482. 421 1, 482. 421 17, 579

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 1, 208,454)       ( 1, 208, 454) 1, 208, 454)

Net change in fund balance S 1, 208,454)    $  ( 1, 208, 454)    $   ( 1, 208, 454)

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 1, 208,454)
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Exhibit D- i

City of new Bern, North Carolina
Von- Major Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balancc Sheet
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

iartin

Gencral 2017 Roadway Viarietta

Capital IT Network Improvement Park

Project Merger Project Project

ASSETS

Casl and cash equivalents 51, 614        21, 442     $     37G,244 S
Accounts receivable, net 97, 500

Due from other governments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets S 51, 614 S 21, 442 S 376,244 S 97,500

LIABILITIES AVD FUVD BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $  308, 573         5, 61 1
Due to Other Fu ds 56, 838

Totalliabilities 308, 573 62,449

Fund balances

Restricted:

Public safety
Streetscape projects

ERP Systems

Public Works

Assigned:

Capital projects 51, 614 21, 442 67,671 35, OS1

Unassigned

Totalfundbalances 51,( 14 21, 442 67, 671 35, 051

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances S 51, 614 S 21, 442          376,244     $   97, 500

continued)
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Exhibit D- 1

continued)

City of New Bcrn, North Carolina
Non- Major Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balancc Sheet
Budget and Actual

For thc Year Ended June 30, 2020

Carage Drainage City Hall
Relocation Impro ement Renovation

ERP Project Project Project Project Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 308, 306     $   16, 073 S 23H, 983 S 1, 012, 662
Accounts receivable, net 814 98, 314

Due from other govemments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 347,449 347,449

Total assets 309, 120        16, 073 S 586,432     $  1, 458,425

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitie   $    13, 556     $ 12, 285     ,  340, 025
Due to Other Funds 56, 83R

Totalliabilities 13, 556 12, 285 396, 863

Fund balances

Restricted:

Public safety
Streetscape projects

ERP Systems

Public Works

Assigned:

Capitalprojects 295, 564 16, 073 574, 147 1, 061, 562

Unassigned

Totalfundbalances 295, 564 16, 073 574, 147 1, 061, 562

Total liabilities, defened inflows of

resources, and fund balances 309, 120     $   16, 073        586,432     $  1, 458, 425
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Exhibit D- 2

City of New Bern, Vorth Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

nonmajor Capital Projects

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

General 2017 Roadway Martin

Capital IT: Vetwork Improvement Marietta

Project Mer er Project Park Project
Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental       $  S
Miscellaneous 97, 500
Investment earnings 13  

Total reveneus 31 97, 500

Expenditures

General government

Public works 2, 316, 214 106, 447
Economical and physical

development

Total expenditures 2, 316, 214 106, 447

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
over expcnditures 2,316, 083)   8, 947)

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfcrs in 920,000 32, 500

Total other financing souroes
uses)       920, 000 32, 500

Net change in fund balances 1, 396,083)  23, 553

Fund balances( deficit), beginning
of year 51. 614 21, 442 1, 463, 754 11, 498

Restatement( see Note 13) 

Fund balances( deficit), end of ycar

S 51, 614 S 21, 442 S 67, 671 S 35, 051

continued)
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Exhibit D- 2

continued)

Cih of New Bern, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Capital Projects

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Garage Drainage City Hall
Relocation Improvement Renovation

ERP Project Project Project Project Total

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental       $  S S 5

Miscellaneous 97, 500

Investment earnings 10, 875 10, 690 19, 554 41, 250

Total reveneus 10, 875 10, 690 19, 554 138, 750

Expenditures

General government

Public works 67, 748 143, 529 2, 633, 938

Economical and physical

development

Totalexpenditures 67, 748 143, 529 2, 633, 938

Excess( deficiency) of revenues
overexpenditures 56, 873) 10, 690 123, 975j 2, 495, 188)

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 175, 000 1, 127, 500

Total other financing sources
uses)       175, 000 1, 127, 500

Net change in fund balances 56, 873) 0, 690 51, 025 1, 367. 688)

Fund balances( deficit), beginning
of vear 4, 767)  5, 383 1, 548,924

Restatement( see Note 13)  357, 204 523, 122 880,326

Fund balances( deficit), end of year

S 295, 564 S 16, 073 S 574, 147     $    1, 061, 562
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Exhibit D- 3

City of New Bern, North Carolina
General Capital Projects

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authonzation Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Expenditures

General government

Capital outlay 930, 370     $   878, 754 S 878, 754     $       51, 616

Total expenditures 930,370 878, 754 878, 754 51, 616

Deticiency of revenues under expendi       ( 930,370) 878, 754) 878, 754)     51, 616

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 930, 370 930,368 930, 368 2)

Total othcr financing sour 930, 370 930,368 930. 368 2)

Net change in fund balance S 51, 614 51, 614     $       51, 614

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 51, 614

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year S 51, 614
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Exhibit D-4

City of New Bern, North Carolina
IT Network Merger

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Expenditures

Economic and physical development

Engineering services 150,000     $   127, 154       127, I 54     $       22, 846

Capital outlay 335, 500 371. 904 371, 904 36,404)

Conringency 35, 000 35, 000

Total expenditures 520, 500 499,058 499,058 21, 442

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 520,500) 499, 058) 499,058)     21, 442

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfer from other funds 520, 500 520,500 520, 500

Installment purchase

obligations issued 520, 500 520,500)

Total other financing
sources 520, 500 520, 500 520,500

Net change in fund balance 21, 442 21, 442     $       21, 442

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning ofyear 21, 442

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 21, 442
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Exhibit D- 5

City of Ncw Bern, North Carolina
2017 Roadwa lmprovements Project

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

From Inception and For the Year Endcd June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

NC Department of

Transportation 687,000 S 687, 000     $  687, 000     $      

Interest Income 8 131 139 139

Total revenues 687,000 687, 008 131 687, 139 139

Expenditures

Public works

Capital outlay 6310,000 1, 483, 254 2, 316, 214 3, 799,468 2. 510, 532

Total expenditures 6, 310,000 1, 483, 254 2, 316, 214 3, 799,468 2, 510, 532

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 5, 623, 000) 796,246)     ( 2, 316,083)      ( 3, 112, 329)  2, 510, 671

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 1, 580, 000 660. 000 920, 000 1, 5R0.000

Instalhnent purchase

obligations issued 4, 043, 000 1, 600, 000 L, 600,000 2, 443, 000)

Total other financing
sources 5, 623, 000 2, 260, 000 920, 000 3, 180,000 2, 443, 000)

Net change in fund balance S 1, 463, 754      ( 1, 396, 083)    $     67, 671      $       67, 671

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 1, 463, 754

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 67, 671
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Exhibit D- 6

City of Ne• Bern, North Carolina

Martin Meriatta Park Project

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For thc Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

NC PARTF Grant 475, 000 475, 000)

Miscellaneous 97, 500 97, 500 97, 500

Total revenues 572, 500 97. 500 97, 500 475, 000)

Expenditures

Public works

Capital outlay 655, 000 38, 502 106, 1 17 144, 949 510, 051

Total expenditures 655, 000 38, 502 106, 47 144, 949 510, 051

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 82, 500) 38, 502)  8, 947)  47, 449)     35, 051

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 82, 500 50,000 32, 500 82, 500

Net change in fund balance 11, 498 23, 553     $     35, 051      $       35, 051

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 11, 498

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 35, 051
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Exhibit D- 7

City of New Bern, North Carolina
ERP Project

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the' ear Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)
Revenues

Invesmient earnings 4. 507     $    10, 875     $     15, 382     $       15, 382
Total revenues 4, 507 10, 875 15, 382 15, 382

Expenditures

Public works

Capital outlay 1, 350,000 710,250 130,285 840, 535 509, 465

Capital outlay- transferred to
Enterprise Funds 343, 180) 62, 537) 405, 717)   405, 717

Total expenditures 1, 350,000 367, 070 67, 748 434, 818 915, 182

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 1, 350,000)       ( 362, 563) 56, 873) 419,436)   930, 564

Other financing sources( uses)
Installment purchasc obligations

issued 1, 350,000 1, 300, 000 1, 300,000 50,000)
lnstallment purchase obligations-

transferred to Enterprise Fund 585, 000)       585, 000)  585, 000)

Total other financing sources( uses)    1, 350, 000 715, 000 715, 000 635, 000)

Net change in fund balance S 352,437 56, 8731 S 295, 564 S 295, 564

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning oY ycar 4. 767)

Restatement( see Note 15)      357, 204

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 295, 564
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Exhibit D- 8

City of NeH Bern, Vorth Carolina
Garage Relocation Project

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negative)

Revenues

Investment earnings S 17, 535 S 10, 690     $     28, 225     $       28, 225

Total revenues 17, 535 10.690 28, 225 28, 225

Expenditures

Public works

Capital outlay 850,000 862, 152 862, 152 12, I 52)

Total expenditures 850,000 R62, 152 862, 152 12, 152)

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 850,000) 844,617)  10, 690 833, 927)     16, 073

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfers in 30,000 30,000 30,000

Installment purchase

obligations issued 820,000 820,000 820, 000

Total other financing
sources( uses) 850,000 850,000 850, 000

Net change in fund balance 5, 383 10, 690     $     16, 073     $       16, 073

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year 5, 383

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 16. 073
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Exhibit D-9

City of Ne i Bern, North Carolina
Drainage Improvements Project

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended Junc 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date       ( Negative)
Revenues

Investment earnings 32, 144 S 19, 554     $     51, 698 S 51, 698

Total revenues 32, 144 19, 554 51, 698 51, 698

Expenditures

Public works

Capital outlay 1, 675, 000 1, 009, 022 143, 529 1, 152, 551 522,449

Total expenditures 1, 675, 000 1, 009, 022 143, 529 1, 152. 551 522,449

Deticiency of revenues under
expenditures 1, 675, 000) 976, 878)       ( 123, 975)      ( 1, 100, 853)       574, 147

Other financing sources( uses)
Installment purchase

obligations issued I, 500, 000 1, 500, 000 1, 500,000

Transfersin 175, 000 175, 000 175, 000

Total other financing sources 1, 675, 000 1, 500,000 175, 000 1, 675, 000

Net change in fund balance 523, 122 51, 025     $   574, 147    $  574, 147

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year

Restatement( see Note 13)    523, 122

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year 574, 147
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Exhibit D- 10

City of Ne r Bcrn, North Carolina
Citr Hall Renovations

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

From Inception and For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Current Total Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Year to Date Negati e)

Revenues

Restricted intergovernmental

Interest Income S S S

Total revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Capital outlay 1, 000.000 1, 000,000

Total expenditures I. 000. 000 1, 000.000

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures 1, 000,000) 1, 000,000

Other financing sources( uses)
Installment purchase

obligations issued 1, 000. 000 1, 000,000)

Total other financing
sources 1, 000, 000 1, 000,000)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance( Deficit), beginning of year

Fund Balance( Deficit), end of year
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E chibit E- 1

City of New Bcrn, North Carolina
Electric Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actua(( Non- GAAP)

For the 1' ear Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

13ud et Actual Negative)
Revenues:

Operating revenues
Electric charges 53, 011, 231       $ 50, 836, 833        ( 2, 174, 398)

Nonoperating revenues
InvesUnentcarnings 175, 400 274,543 99, 143
Interfund reimbursements 1, 521, 884 521, 884

Miscellaneous 25, 000 63, 083 38, 083

Totalrevenues 54, 733, S15 52, 696, 343 2,037, 172)

Expenditures:

Administration 4,618, 978 4, 152, 525 466,453
Prodttction 38,282,044 36, 811, 350 1, 470,694

Distribution 4, 113. 714 3J49,917 363, 797

Reimbursed expenditures- General Fund 1, 601, 372 1, 601, 372

Capital outlay 1, 871, 739 1. 469,950 401, 789

Debt service 1, 877, 612 1, R77, 609 3

Total expenditw•es 52, 365, 459 49,662, 723 2, 702. 736)

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2, 368, 056 3, 033, 620 665, 564

Other financing sources( uses):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1, 568 1, 568

Proceeds from installment note purchase

Appropriated fund balancc 879, 563 879, 563)
Transfers in 375, 000 375, 000

Transfers out 3, 244, 000) 3, 244. 000)   

Transfers out- payments in lieu of taxes 378, 619)   3"J8, 397)       222
Total other financing sources( uses) 2, 368, 056) 3, 245, 829)  877, 773)

Net change in fimd balance 212, 209)     $   ( 212,209)

Reconciliation from budgetarv basis( moditied accrual to full
accrual:

Capital outlays I. l 89. 829

Payments of debt service- principal 1, 712, 556

Proceeds from instalhnent note issuance
Change in accrued interest 4,489

ncrease in compensated absences 24, 2g)

Bad debt expense 185, 163)

Change in net pension liability and related deferred inflows/
outflows 299, 761)

Depreciation cxpense 2.459,925)

Electric Rate Stabilization Fund 363, 195)

2019 Electrical Improvements Fund 600, 000

Total reconciling items 174, 702

Change in net position 37, 507)
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Exhibit E- 1 a

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Electric Rate Stabilization Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non- GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Interest 11, 805      $       11, 805

Total 11, 805 11, 805

Excess of revenues over expenditures 11, 805 11, 805

Other financing sources( uses):
Appropriated fund balance 375, 000 375, 000)

Transfers out 375, 000) 375, 000)    

Total financing sources( uses)      375, 000)   375, 000)

Net change in fund balances and net

position 363, 195)         ( 363, 195)
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Exhibit E- lb

City of Vew Bern, North Carolina

2019 Electrical Improvements Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual(\ on- GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Years Total to Date Negative)

Expenditures

Electricallmprovements 1, 600, 000            50, 753      $  1, 296,077      $   1, 346, R30      $    253, 170

Total 1, 600, 000 50, 753 1, 296, 077 1, 346, 830 253, 170

Othcr financing sources( uses):

Transfer in- Electric Fund 1, 600,000 000, 000 600, 000 1, 600, 000

Total financing sources( uses)   1, 600,000 1, 000, 000 600,000 1, 600,400

Net change in f'und balance 94g, 247      $   ((, 96, 077)     ,    253, 170          253, 170
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Exhibit E- 2

City of l ew Bern, Vorth Carolina
Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( non-GAAP)

For the Year End June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues:

Operating revenues
Rates and charges 9. 741, 000      $ 10, 055, 832      $   314,832

Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 50, 175 106,480 56, 305

Interfund reimbursements 327, 983 327,983

Miscellaneous 457,000 560,706 103, 706

Total revenues 10.576, 158 11. 051, 001 474, 843

Expendittires:

Administration 599,966 594,714 5, 252

System maintenance and extensions 2, 026.810 1. 700, 167 326,643

Reimbursed expenditures- General Fund 1, 687, 674 1, 687,674

Treatment 2, 473. 061 2, 309, 436 163, 625

Capital outlay 629, 888 409, 862 220, 026

Debt Service 2, 928. 823 2, 929,820 997)

Total expenditures 10. 346,222 9. 631, 673 714, 549

Excess( deficiency) ofrevenues over expend 229,936 1, 419, 328 1, 189, 392

Other financing sources( uses):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13, 466 13, 466

Proceeds from installment note issuance

Transfers out

Transfers out- payment in lieu of taxes 317. 461)  317, 394) 67

Budgeted use of fund balance 181, 906 181. 906)

Contingency 94,381)  94,381

Total other financing sources( uses)   229, 936)  303, 928)  73, 992)

Net change in fund balance 1, 115, 400      $  1, ll5,400

12econciliation from budgetary basis
modified accrual) to full accrual:

Capital outlays 409, 863

Donated capital assets 262, 390

Proceeds from installment note issuance

Payments of debt service- prinicpal 2, 437,976

Change in compensated absences 7, 648)

Change in net pension liability and related deferred inflows;
outflows 150,450)

Change in accrucd interest 7, 589

Depreciation expense 1, 655, 537)

Bad debt expense 39, 224)

Water Capital Reserve Fund 14, 191

Allocated sliare of AMI/ DSM System Enterprise Capital

Project Fund 2,920

Net income( loss)  2, 397,470
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Exhibit E- 2a

City of Ne Bern, North Carolina

Watcr Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Revcnues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non- GAAP)

For thc Year ended June 30, 2020

Variance Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Capital recovery fee
Interest 10, 025 1, 191 4, 166

Total revenues 10, 025 14, 191 4, 166

Expenditures:

Capital outlays 10, 025 10, 025

Total expenditures 10, 025 10, 025)

Excess of revenues over expenditures 14, 191 5, 859)

Other financing sources( uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources( uses)

Net change in fund balance 14, 191      $  14, 191
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Exhibit E- 2b

City of New Bern, North Carolina

West New Bern Water System Improvement Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Espenditures

Budget and Actual( Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Actual

Variance

Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Years Total       ( Negative)

Expenditures

Capital outlays 770,000     $    279,401     $     39,479     $ 318, 880    $ 451, 120

Other financing sources( uses):
Transfer in 770, 000 385, 000 385, 000      ( 385, 000)

Netchangein fund balance 105, 599     $    ( 39, 479)    $  66, 120    $   66, 120
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Exhibit E- 2c

City of new Bern, North Carolina
2017 Water Improvement Project Fund

Schedule of' Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non- GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3U, 2020

Actual
Variance

Project Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Years Total Negative)

Expenditures

Treatment 2, 187, 737 S 2, 100, 979 S 1, 078      $  2, 102, 057 5 85, 680

Other financing sources( uses):

Transfer in 2, 187, 737 2, 187, 737 2, 187, 737

Net change in fand balance y S 86, 758 S      ( 1, 078)     $      85, 680 5 45, 6R0
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Exhibit E- 3

City of 1ew Bern, Aorth Carolina
AMI/DSM SYSTEJI ENTERPRISE CAPITAL PROJECT

Schedule of Revenues and Espenditures

Budget and Actual(\ on- GA.4P)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2020

Vanance

Project Positive

Autliorization Prior Years Current Years Total to Date       ( I egative)

Revenues

Iovestment eamings 21, 000      $     29, 919 S 2, 920        32, 839     $      1 1, 839

Total 21, 000 29. 919 2, 920 32, 839 11, 539

Expenditures

Professional services- Elcetric Fund 107, 253 153, 580 153, 580 46,327)

Professional services- Water Fund 68, 498 68, 498 68,498

Capital outlay- Electric Fund 6, 390,813 6, 571, 603 6, 571, 603 180, 790)

Capitalouday- WaterFund 3, 444, 136 2, 824, 019 298,250 3, 122, 269 321, 867

Debt service- interest and fiscal charges 45, 300 45300 45, 300

Total expenditures 10, 056, 000 9, 6G3, 000 298,250 9, 961, 250 94, 750

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 10, 03, 000) 9, 633, 081) 295, 330)      ( 9, 928, 411)   82, 911)

Otherfinancing sources( uses):

Transferin 1, 250, 100 1, 250, I00 1, 250, 100

Debt issued- Electric Fund 5, 677, 000 5, 677,000 5, 677, 000

Debt issued- Sewer Fund 3, 107, 900 3, 107, 900 3, 107, 900

Totalfinancing sources( uses)     10, 035, 000 10. 035, 000 0. 035. 000

Net change in fund balance S S 401, 919 S   ( 295,330)     S 106, 589 S 106, SA9

Note: This project includes assets and debt that are reflected in the Water, Sewer and Electric Fund.
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Exhibit E- 4

City of Ve Bern, North Carolina

Se; er Fund

Schcdulc of Revenucs and Expenditures

Budgct and. Actual( Non- GAAP)

For the Year end June 30, 2020

Variance Positive

Budget Achial Negative)

Revenues:

Operating revenucs
Sewer charges 11, 3R3. 600      $ 11, 244, 254      $       ( 139,346)

Nonoperating revenues
Interest 30, 100 74, 407 44, 307

Miscellaneous 483, 532 607, 516 123, 984

Total revenues 11, 897, 232 11, 926, 177 28, 945

Expenditures:

System maintenance and extension 3, 528, 037 2, 925, 240 602, 797

Trcatment 3, 081, 475 2, 823, 389 258, 086

Shared services 2,051, 590 2, 051, 590

Capital outlay 760, 647 515. 967 244.680

Debt Service 2, 393, 791 2, 393, 788 3

Total expenditures 11, 15, 540 10, 709,974 1, 105, 566)

Excess( deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditur 81, 692 1, 216, 203 1, 134,511

Other tinancing sources( uses):
Appropriation of net position 98, 677 98, 677)

Proceeds from installment purchase insurance

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 500 500)

Transfers out- payment in lieu of taxes 462,487)  462, 323)    164

Transfers out

Transfcrs in 281, 618 281, 618

Contingency
Total other financing souroes( uses)    81. 692)  180, 705)   336)

Net change in fi nd balance 1, 035. 495      $       1, 035. 498

Reconciliation from budgetary basis
modified accrual) to full accrual:

Capital outlays 826, 696

Donatcd capital assets 746, 660

Procecds from installu ent note issuance

Payments of debt service- principal 2. 196,007

lncrease in compensated absences 12, 609)

Change in net pension liability and related deferred inflows!
outflows 156, 647)

Bad debt expense 40, 128)

Depreciation expense 2, 301, 694)

Change in accrued interest payable 6, 858

Sewer Debt Service Reserve Fund- Interest 12, 555

Sewer Debt Service Reserve Fund- Transfer Out 281, 61R)

Sewer Capital Reserve Fund R, 339

Change in net position 039, 917
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Exhibit E- 4a

City of New Bern,' orth Carolina

Sewer Capital Reserve Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non-GAAP)

For the Year ended June 30, 2020

Variancc

Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Capital recovery fee
Interest 1, 925 8, 339 6,414

Total revenues 1, 925 8, 339 6,414

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 1, 925 1, 925

Total expenditures 1, 925 1, 925)

Other financing sources( uses):
Transfers in

Total other tinancing sources( uses)   

Net change in fund balance 8. 339 S 8, 339
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Exhibit E- 4b

City of Ne Bcrn, North Carolina

Township 7 Sewcr[ mprovements Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Actual

Variance

Project Currcnt Positive

Authorization Priar Ycars Years Total Negative)

Expenditures

Treatment 500, 000     $  382, 487     $  48, 733     $ 431, 220     $     68, 780

Other financing sources( uses):
Transfer in 450,000 450.000 450, 000

Net change in fund balance S   ( 50, 000)       67, 513     $  ( 48, 733)    $   18, 780     $     68. 780
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Exhibit E- 4c

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Sewer Debt Service Reserve Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual( Non-GAAP)

For the Year ended June 30, 2020

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues

Interest 12, 555      $ 12, 555
Total revenues 12, 555 12. 555

Other financing sources( uses):
Transfers out 281, 618)  281, 618)     
Fund balance appropriated 281, 618 281, 618)

Total other financing sources( uses)    281, 618)    281, 618)

Net change in fund balance 269,063)     $     ( 269,063)
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Exhibit E- 5

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Solid' V' aste

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual( Non- GAAP)

For the Year end June 30, 2020

Variance Positive

Budget Actual Negative)

Revenues:

Operating revenues
Collection fees 3, 355, 000      $  3, 425, 276      $  70,276

Nonoperating revenues
Interest 3, 628 3, 628

Total revenues 3, 355, 000 3, 428, 904 73, 904

Expenditures:

Administration 2, 965, 135 2,954,945 10, 190

Shared services 126, 121 126, 121

Capital outlay 159, 800 154, 697 5, 103

Debt Service 118, 129 I 18, 128 1

Total expenditures 3369, 185 3353, 891 15, 294)

Excess( deficiency) of revenues over expenditur       ( 14, 185)    75, 013 89, 198

Other financing sources( uses):
Appropriated fund balance

Contingency 10, 815)   10, 815

Transfers in- general fund 35, 000 35, 000

Transfers out- payment in lieu of taxes 10, 000)     3, 500)  6, 500

Installment purchase proceeds

Total other financing sources( uses)     14, 185 31, 500 17, 315

Net change in fund balance 106, 513      $ 06, 513

Reconciliation from budgetary basis
modi ed accrual) to full accrual:

Capital outlays 154, 697

Donated capital assets

Proceeds from installment note issuance

Payments of debt service- principal 1 14,468

Change in compensated absences 3, 500

Change in net pension liability and related deferred inflows/
outflows 21, 680)

Bad debt expense 23, 012)

Depreciation expense 03, 119)

Cliange in accrued interest payable l43

Change in net position 231, 510
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OTHER SCHEDULES

This section contains additional information required

on property taxes.

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - City- Wide



Exhibit F- 1

City of Ne Bcrn, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 2020

Uncollected Uncollected

Balance Collections and Balance

Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 Additions Credits June 30, 2020

2019- 2020 15, 467,427      $   15, 324, 167     $      143, 260

2018- 2019 96, 219 42. 637 53, 582

2017- 2018 36,535 12, 019 24,516

2016-2017 25, 931 5, 270 20,661

2015- 2016 16, 911 3, 815 13, 096

2014-2015 12, 490 551 11, 939

2013- 2014 29, 169 1, 036 28, 133

2012- 2013 39, 876 1, 247 38, 629

2011- 2012 27, 227 858 26, 369

2010- 2011 22. 5( 1 449 22, 112

2009- 2010 23. 50(     23, 506

330,425 S 15, 467, 427     $   15, 415, 555     $      382, 297

Plus: Municipal Service District taxes receivable, all years, net of allowance 276

Plus: Ad Valorem Un-Tagged MV-Current 625

Plus: Penalties 8. K76

Less allowance for uncollectible accounts- General Fund 194,927)

Ad valorem taxes receivable- net S 197, 148

Reconciliation with Revcnues:

Ad valorem taxes- General Fund 15, 752, 998

Reconciling items:
Interest collected 43, 246)

Amounts written off per statute 23, 506

Releases, ad valorem 7, 170

MV Fee, Adjustments 128, 945)

Less: Municipal Service District taxes, penalty, and
interest collected in all years 195, 928)

Total collections and credits S 15, 415, 555
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Exhibit F- 2

City of New Bern, North Carolina
nal sis of Current Tax Lev

Town- Wide Levy

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total Levy

Property
excluding

City-Wide Levy Registered

Property Motor Registered

Valuation Kate Total Levy Vehicles Motor Vehicles

Original levy:
Property taxed at current
rate 2, 874, 815, 694 0.4822      $  15, 162, 443     $ 13, 862, 363     $   1, 300,080

Penalties 8, 737 8, 737

Total 2, 874, 815, 694 I5, 171, 180 13, 871, 100 1, 300,080

Discoveries

Current year taxes 64, 583, 792 0.4A22 309,069 309, 069

Penalties 14, 657 14, 657

Addbacks

Total 64, 583, 792 323, 726 323, 726

Adjustments 5, 158, 027)     0.4822 27, 479)   27, 479)  

Total Property Valuation S 2, 934,241. 459

Net levy 15, 467,427 4, 167, 347 1, 300, 080

Uncollected taxes at June 30. 2020 143. 260 143, 260

Current year's taxes collected 15, 324, 167     $ 14, 024, 087     $   1, 300, 080

Current levy collection percentage 99. 07%    98. 99%   100.00%
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of New Bern' s Comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City' s overall tinancial health.

Page

Financial Trends 117

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well- being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 129

These schedules contain infonnation to help the reader assess the City' s most significant local revenue
source, property tax.

Debt Capacity 133

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 136

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City' s tinancial activities take place.

Operating Information 140

These schedules contain service and infrastrcture data to help the reader understand how the information
in the City' s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial report for the relevant year.



City of New Bern, North Carolina

Net Position By Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Unaudited)

2p11 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Govemmental activities:

Investedin capitalassets, neto( elated debt   $     34, 018,646 5 34, 626, D41  $     36, 383,138  $     36,694, 879  $     35, 607.933 E 48. 007.347  $     50,662, 101  $     52. 136,675  $     52, 140,067  $     58,631, 163

Restncted 3, 840.612 4. 317, 526 5, 611, 591 5, 612. 057 6, 181, 074 5, 857,526 6, 961. 125 6, 853, 285 27, 920,878 13, 146, 423

Unresincted 760 319 1 952 892 4 312 131 6 345 271 1D 288 946 8 732 917 5 842 171 21 498,772)       ( 47. 350.282)       ( 36,243,815)

Total governmental activities

net aasets 38 619 577  $     41 096 459  $     46 306 860  $     48 712 2 7  $     52 077 953  $     62 597 784  $     63 465 337  $     37 491 188  $     26 710 663  $     35.533. 771

Businesstype ac rvities:

Investedin capitalassels. netofrelated debt   $     78, 578,999  $     80, 159,948  $     83, 796.943  $     86, 397,864  $     88,323,492 S 92. 187, 192  $     97,084, 561 E 105, 972,773  $    115,441, 238  $     115,355,022

Residcted 3 5 S S 1. 163. 329  $      1. 413,444  $      1148.415  $  

UnresMded 21. 659.418 23,829, 737 25. 922.244 31462,602 34.398. 515 39. 952,276 39.653748 41. 547, 705 39. 599.697 43. 135,677

To al 6usiness- type activities

net assets 100 238 417  $    103 989 685  $     109 719 187  $     117 860 466 5 122 722 007  $     132 139 468  $    137 901 638  $    148 933 922 E 156. 169,350  $     158 490. 699

Pnmary govemmenf
Invesledin capilalassets, netofrelated debt   $     112. 597, 645  $    174, 985. 989  $     120, 160, 081  $     123, 092, 743 3 123, 931. 425  $    140. 194. 539  $     147, 746,662  $     158, 109,448  $     167, 581, 305 S 173, 986J85

Restrided 3, 840.612 4, 377. 526 5. 611, 591 5672,057 6, 181, 074 5, 857,526 8, 124, 454 8266, 729 23, 069193 73. 146.423

Unresincted 22479,737 25,782, 629 30. 234, 375 37, 8D7, 873 44,681461 48. 685, 187 45,495,859 20,098, 933 0750.585 6, 891, 862

Total pnmary government
net assets 138 957 994  $    145 086 144  $    156 026 047  $    166 572 673  $    174 799 960  $     194 731252 S 201 366 975 S 186 425 110  $    182. 900.013  $    194. 024 470

GASB Slatemenl No. 34 ImplemeNed in Fiscal Year 2003
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Citv of New Bern, North Carolina

Chanqes In Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Accrual 8asis of Accounfinp)
Unaudited)

zoii zoiz zoi3 zoia zois zois zan zaia zois zozo

Expenses.

Govemmental acUvilies.

Generalgovemmem 1, 959,814  $  2, 737,701  $  2, 980, 543  $     3, 175, 305  $     3, 687, 719  $   2, 200,210  $   2, 370,566  $   2, 837, 204  $   2, 041, 271  $   2, 491, 368

Publicsafety 15, 232,805 15, 127, 179 15,660,542 15, 369, 029 14, 532, 403 15, 545.847 18, 360,960 16, 258, 916 20,998,605 21, 521, 131

PublicWorks 3, 970, 149 5, 223,903 2, 998,765 4, 295,470 4, 927, 792 5,694,763 6,969,663 10, 829, 385 14, 746, 304 9, 425, 062
Environmental protection 2,054, 485 2, 053,938 1, 663,347 1, 625, 829 1, 616, 542 2, 152, 766 2, 669, 329
Cultureandrecreation 2, 280,243 2, 549,680 2, 497, 152 2, 503, 892 2, 508, 718 3, 467,OB2 2, 944, 815 3, 414, 130 3, 519,992 4, 596,696
Economic and physical development 1, 405.498 1, 731, 687 2, 378,028 2, 077, 157 1, 954, 457 3, 278,649 2, 312, 188 1, 902, 842 2, 607,397 2, 392, 588
Interesl on lonq- term debl 518,903 509,077 365, 826 342 703 384 309 283 245 173 584 160 982 215138 171 112

Total govarnmental activities expenses 27,421, 897 29, 933, 165 28, 544, 203 29, 589,385 29,611, 940 32,622.582 35,801, 105 37,403, 459 44, 128707 40, 598, 557

Business- type aclivities.      
Electric 61, 298,449 60, 325,099 57, 137, 100 59, 713,453 57,874. 790 47,214, 077 48,964,225 46,482, 917 49,221, 183 48, 372,089
Wafer 6,699.559 9, 195.478 8, 677,687 8, 665, 646 8, 503. 552 7, 916.627 8, 395, 327 8, 338, 702 7, 752, 532 8. 112,404

Sewer 10, 233,465 1Q442,463 10, 830,003 9, 727, 442 9, 945, 031 9, 406,883 9, 564628 10, 384, 998 10,429,678 10, 438, 399
Stormwater 74, 153 671, 691 633. D72 551. 635 610.819 661. 680 628260 639,676

Solid Waste 2 966 921 3 223 072

Total business•type activities expenses 78231, 473 80, 037, 193 17, 916,481 78, 739 613 76 875 008 65 148 406 67, 585 660 65 834 877 71 009 990 70 145 964
Total primary govemment expenses 105. 653. 370 109, 970. 358 106, 460 684 108 328 998 106 486. 948 97, 770.988 103. 386. 965 103238. 336 115 138 697 110 744 521

Program revenue:

Govemmental aclivities

Charges for services:
Generalgovemment 3, 158, 508 1, 945,596 1, 554, 015 1. 591, 361 1, 282, 636 642,598 269, 579 297, 137 128, 798 376, 563
Public safeN 355,296 185, 272 519, 536 337, 912 270, 426 225,570 250,973 299, 447 301, 999 461, 020
PublicWorks 247, 586 130, 132 987 11, 000 2, 878437 141, 675 85, 765 2, 991. 246 41, 031 51, 223

Environmental pmlection 1, 861, 267 2, 149, 340 2, 280, 468 2, 817, 704 2,837409 2, 998,906
Cultureandrecreation 133, 623 167,033 152, 022 227, 068 133, 290 139,581 29,096 152, 624 191, 078 143, 108
Economic and physical development 1, 600 565,279 962, 406 550. 112 519, 918 674. 188 479,897 692, 032 603,685 129,223

Operaling grants and contnbulions:
General govemmenf 174, 765 353, 805 50,000 479, 267 283, 414 51, 491 864, 608

Publicsafety 125, 120 601, 199 1, 526, 387 676. 810 417, 906 410.522 420,677 357, 923 356, 214 1, 343,908
Public Works 7, 32Q993 812, 542 871, 986 49, 700 9, 164 865, 707 8, 142, 475

Enviionmental protection 145, 054 161, 299

Culture and recreation 12, 383 143, 168 2, 256 609,405

Economic and physical development 52, 762 293,530 1, 290, 569 110, 661 714, 850 911, 759 238, 346 405, 005 403,958 564,284

CapiWl grants and contnbutions

General government 929, 785

PublicSafety 542, 146 397, 053 26,845
PublicWorks 754, 012 834, 142 323, 176 187,745 11, 005,D03 3, 503, 246 2, 234. 401 687,000
Environmental protection
Culture and recreation 460. 082 1, 650, 000
Economic and physical develoD nt 758, 500 68,424 80. 260 835 465 1430 049

Total govemmental activkies program revenue 8 607 939 8 750 86B 9 422 708 1437 803 7 988 771 17 876 026 8 764 316 9 363 229 3 630 961 14 715 866
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Changes In Net Position
Last Ten fiscal Years
Accrual8asis oiAccountinp)  
Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Business- type activities:

Charges for services:

Eleclnc 65,916,870 5 60, 576, 535  $  61, 909,426  $    63, 763, 783  $    62,405, 986  $   52, 734,945  $   52, 680, 023  $   53,878, 097  $   51, 974,494  $   50, 836, 833

Water 11, 130, 551 10, 890,900 10, 431, 265 10, 423, 585 10, 582, 049 10, 147, 159 10, 025, 195 10, 157, 044 9,843,507 10, 055, 832

Sewer 12.298,288 12,091, t 62 11. 945.804 11, 669211 10, 869, 545 11. 946,470 11. 355, 551 11, 633,639 11. 038,541 11, 244,254

Stormwater 87, 917 712, 500 675. 590 673, 773 681, 209 716, 117 693, 316 671, 788

Solid Waste 3, 348, 190 3, 425, 276

CaDilal Grants and contnbutions:

Eledric 44. 523 33, 208 422,447

Water 341, 531 152,400 1, 825, 005 262, 390

Sewer 303,631 233, 027 76. 311 746, 660

Stormwater 1. 074, 571 5285

Solid Waste

Operating granis and contnbutions:     
Electnc 1, 411,005 539,058 177, 545 24, 883

Water 273,795 177,669 245,689 295, 774

Sewer 382,268 358, 422 422. 744 978,027

Slortnwater 452 240

Solid Waste

Total businessrype aclivities program revenues 90, 035, 394 85, 659, 582 86, 074, 596 88, 772, 145 85, 945, 061 75, 509, 783 74, 776, 886 76,362,096 79, 123, 972 76, 571, 245

Total primary govemment program revenues 98, 643, 333 94, 410,450 95, 497, 304 96, 209, 948 93, 933, 852 93, 385,809 83. 541, 202 85, 725,325 82, 754, 933 91, 287, 111

Nel( expense) revenue:

Govemmentalactivities 18, 813,958)    ( 21, 182,297)    ( 19, 121, 495)      ( 22, 151, 582)      ( 21, 623. 169)     ( 14. 746, 556)     ( 27,036, 789)     128. 040,230)     ( 40, 491,746)     ( 25,882. 691)

Business- rypeactivities 11803,921 5622389 8. 158. 115 70, 032, 532 9, D70, 073 10, 361, 377 7, 197, 026 10,527,219 8, 713, 982 6, 425,281

Total primary govemment net exDense p 010 037)    ( 15 559 908)    ( 70 963 380)      ( 12 N9 050)      ( 12, 553. 096)     ( 4,385, 1791     ( 19, 845, 7631     ( 17, 513,011)     ( 32, 383, 7641     ( 19.457, 410)

Continued)
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Changes In Net Position( Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Accrual Basis ofAccounting)
Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

General revenues and other changes in net assels:

Govemmental activities

Taxes:

Ad valorem taxes 12, 919,994  $   13,315, 629  $   13, 251, 107  $   13, 701, 543  $   13,696,904  $   13, 817, 232  $   14, 159, 750  $   14, 575,810  $   14, 921, 580  $   15,787, 943

Salestaxes 4, 892, 122 5, 331, 248 6,039, 107 6.231, 042 5, 881, 437 6, 352, 004 6, 589, 457 6, 837,929 7, 571, 708 7, 842, 360

Uliliry 6anchise tax 1, 520,306 1, 408, 725 1, 406, 786 1, 573,495 2, 013,029 2, 064, 744 2, 000, 811 2, 018,691 233,295 225, 426

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 860,496 863,337 901, 752 931, 965 1, 067, 816 1, 096, 711 1, 140,000 1, 161, 614

Othertaxes 1, 658,465 1, 702, 043 315, 351 278,850 1, 055,904 833,698 716, 339 699, 167 2, 543, 511 2, 447,499

Grants 8 contributions not resMcted to specfic pro9rams

Inveshnentearnings 16,880 16, 472 18,930 12,210 12,470 91, 606 186, 846 474,950 618, 976 271, 460

Miscellaneous 189, 166 154, 638 856, 701 260, 563 1, 015, 503 1, 953, 925

Gain on sale of capital assets 12, 344 24,656 7, 142) 24, 307)

Transfers 1, 954, 758 1. 885,062 2, 440, 119 1, 896,452 3, 244, 722 2, 766,416 2, 652,027 2, 874,231 1, 968, 600 2, 609,000

ToWI governmental attivities 22, 962, 525 23,659, 179 24, 331, 896 24, 556,929 26, 995, 384 27.024, 647 28.229,747 28, 862, 708 30.006, 031 32274, 920

Business- rype activities:

Investmenteamings 17, 566 13,941 11, 506 5, 199 6. 115 47, 609 142, 667 275, 167 598, 351 508, 868

Miscellaneous 156, 405 162, 777 392, 046

Gain on sale of capital assets 16,631 26,754 43, 184 60, 108 15,034

Transfers 1, 954, 758)       ( 1, 685, 062)       ( 2, 440, 119)       ( 1, 896,452)       ( 3, 244, 722)      ( 2. 766, 416)      ( 2, 652, 027)      ( 2, 874,231)      ( 1, 96$ 600)      ( 2, 609,000)

ToWlbusinesstypeactivities 1, 937, 192)       ( 1, 871, 121)       ( 2428,613)       ( 1, 891, 253)       ( 3, 238, 607)      ( 2, 702, 176)      ( 2, 326, 201)      ( 2, 555,880)      ( 1, 147, 364)      ( 1, 693, 052)

Total primary govemment 21, 025,333 21, 788, 058 21, 903,263 22,665,676 23, 756, 777 24,322,471 25,903, 546 26, 306,828 28,858,667 30,581, 868

Changes in net position

Govemmentalactivities 4, 148,567 2, 476, 882 5,210, 401 2,405, 347 5,372,215 12, 278,091 1, 192,958 822,478      ( 10, 491, 716)       6,392, 229

Business-type activities 9, 866, 729 3, 751, 268 5,729, 502 8, 141, 279 5,831, 466 7, 659, 201 4,864, 825 8, 283,682 6,966, 618 4,732, 229

Total primary government S 14. 015296  $    6.228. 15D  $   10. 939.903  $   10, 546.626  $   11. 203.681  $   19.937292 S 6.057.783 S 9, 106. 160 5 f3.525. 0981  $   11, 124,458
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Program Revenues by FunctionlProgram
last Ten Fiscal Years•

Accrual Basis of Accountinq)
Unaudited)

FunctionlProgram 2011 2012 2073 2014 2015 2 16 2077 2018 2019 2020

Govemmental activities:

Generaigovemment 1, 198. 694 5      ( 792, 105) $     ( 7. 426, 528) S     ( 1, 409, 179) $     ( 1, 121, 493) $     ( 1, 507,612) $     ( 1, 621, 720) b     ( 2. 256,653) $     ( 7, 860, 982) E     ( 1, 250, 197)

Public safery 14. 210, 243)       ( 13, 943,655)       ( 13.614, 619)       ( 14, 354.307)       ( 73, 817, 226)       ( 14. 909, 755)       ( 17, 689,310)       ( 17, 601, 546)       ( 20,340. 392)       ( 19) 16. 203)

Transporta ion

PublicWorks 2, 966, 557) 2, 938,636) 1, 861, 460) 3, 412,484) 1, 811, 910) 5, 451, 975 3, 372,088) 5, 603, 138)       ( 13, 152, 566) 1231, 364)

Environmentalproteclion 48, 164) 256, 701 617, 721 991, 875 1, 61Q542) 684,623 329,577

CulNreandrecreation 1, 674. 155) 2, 382, 647) 2, 345, 130 2, 276.824) 2, 232, 260) 3, 325, 245) 2, 915,719) 1, 61L.506) 3. 328, 914) 3, 844. 183)
Economicandphysicaldevelopment 592.636) 872, 878) 125, 053) 1, 347,960) 639429) 857237) 1. 593.945) 805, 805) 1, 599, 7541 330.968

Imereston bng-term debt St8, 903) 509, 077) 365,826) 342, 103) 384, 309) 283. 245) 173, 584) 160, 982) 215. 138) V1 712)

Total governmental activities     _   _ 8, 813, 958)       ( 21, 182, 296)       ( 19, 121, 495)       ( 22, 151, 562)       ( 21, 623, 169)       ( 14, 746 556)       ( 27, 036,789)       ( 28,040, 230)       ( 40,497,746)       ( 25, 882.691)

Business- ype actrvdies

ElecVic 4fi62,944 1, 608,441 4, 711, 384 4, 221, 875 a. 589, 287 5. 520,868 3, 715, 798 7, 395, 180 3, 175, 758 2464,744

Water 4772,523 1. 969, 217 1, 931, 247 2, 156, 028 2, 374, 271 2, 230,532 1, 629,868 1, 818, 342 3, 915,980 2, 205,818
Sewer i2,601919 12. 399277 71, 632,535 2, 597,540 1. 978. 852 2539.587 1790,923 1, 248,641 608,863 1, 552,515

Stormwater 87. 917 41261 1. 057. 089 127, 663 70. 390 54. 437 377, 399 32, 112

Solid Wasle 381, 269 202, 2D4

Totalbusinesstypeactiv@ies 22, 037.386 16, 064, 852 18, 316.427 1Q032.532 9. 070,073 10, 361. 377 7, 191, 026 1Q839,562 8, 113,982 6, 425, 281

Total government 3, 223,428  $     ( 5. 117, 4441 $       ( 805.0681 S     ( 12 119 050) $     ( 12 553 0961 $     ( 4 385 179) $     ( 19 845 7631 $     ( 17 200 668) $     ( 32 383 764) $     119 457 410)

GASB Statement No. 34 Implemented m fiscal year 2003

Source: Ctly records.

121



City of New Bern, North Carolina

Fund Balances, Govemmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Modiried Accrual Basis ofAccounting)
Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2011 2018 2019 2020

GeneralFund.

NonSDenCaWe 168, 263 5 141, 201 $ 140,908 $       148, 408 $       198,418 $       106, 353 4 125, 566 S 132, 738 $       103, 144 f 1, 860,476
ResinueE 2, 771, 830 3. 397,888 d, 261. 890 4, 731, 384 5373.068 5, 370, 614 6,978,767 5, 574, 926 21, 590. 110 12, I88,839
Committed 2. 000, 000

Unessgned 4664, 056 6786,387 7, 449, 776 9,496, 813 14J53694 12976430 13816378 13864240 1136741 7331940

TotalGenenlFurM 7, 544. 149 S 10.325.476 S 11. 852. 574 E 14. 376.605 S 20265180 3 20453397 4 20920711 S 19571904 S 22829395 S 21681255

WI Olher Govemmental FurMs:
Non Spendable in Peimanenl Pund S S 735.3d1 S 30d, 226 $       41B, 67fi S 34. 092 $   5 f
Resincled in CapUl Prqect 394, 325 326,614 324, 3) 2 455, 346 232, 315 2, 051, 189
Commitled in Capital Prqecl 391, 977 322,202 289, 988 181, 101 185,277
Assgned in CaD Pro ect 195, 745 161] 62 827. 873 1. 061. 562

Unassigned in Capital Prqeu 2. 308)  4.412)  33, 941)     
Restrided in Special Revenue Fund 1, 288, 530 733,213 389, 330 476. 420 S13, 575 453, 642 330, 768 657, 584
Assigned in Speaal Revenue FuM 5, 500 336, 702
UnasslgnetlinSpecialRevenueFunC 7gg,pbg) 73, 786)  368, 626) 460, 2731 539445)       ( 1, 0P4, 785) 39, 195)  6810)      ( 11490.799)       ( 5005193)

Totalalloth rgovemmmtlunda 1. 278.916  $     1. 303.831 3 947. 134 E 480. 400 S 453. 838 S f318. 5281 S 898.457 E 3. 662. 596 S 111. 160.03t1 5 13. 286. 0471
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Revenues:

Taxes 12, 882, 798 S 13, 364,849  $      13, 297,524  $   13, 804,623  $   13, 776,239  $   13,843, 554  $   14, 178, 823  $   14,600, 912  $   14, 928,512  $   15, 752, 998

Othertaxes 255,333 262, 984 264, 417 278, 850 264,759

Intergovemmental 10,477, 875 11, 706, 136 12,628,746 10, 570,520 12, 035,516 12,285, 133 13, 335,018 12,535, 666 12,443, 181 24, 709, 227

Permits and tees 573, 392 601, 753 584, 906 629,737 473,631 614, 305 461, 845 661, 904 558,380 675, 417

Charges( or services 4, 308, 027 4, 214,282 4. 154, 506 4,697,698 4, 610,076 4,046. 716 3. 651, 771 3,770. 582 670, 742 949, 770

Investment Eamings 17, 917 11, 353 11, 636 91, 606 186, 846 474,950 593,409 229, 326

Other 393,056 440,448 240, 121 186, 493 490,433 175, 875 393, 324 378, 629 413, 715 1, 953, 925

Total revenues 28.890,481 3Q590,452 31. 188, 137 30. 179274 31. 662.290 31, 057, 189 32, 207,627 32,422, 643 29,607, 939 44, 270,663

Expenditures:

Generalgovemment 703, 279 962, 957 4,490, 858 4, 503, 448 4, 127, 567 1, 941, 707 2, 160,235 2,257, 005 1, 010,449 2.076.009

Public safety 14, 838,939 18, 309,272 15,543, 189 15,596, 236 16,633, 524 16, 019,236 16, 564, 796 16,867,070 17, 158, 185 19, 118,873

Public works 3, 491, 813 4,801, 869 4,436,086 4, 947, 552 5, 462, 756 6, 160, 541 6. 567,295 10, 261, 544 4,811, 427 10, 670,395

Environmental protedion 1, 997,630 1, 952, 131 1, 792211 1, 772, 657 1, 805,268 2. 035.216 2. 615,028

Culture and recreaGon 3, 150,315 2, 123,400 2,956,433 2, 460,377 2, 519, 151 2, 849,572 2, 925,043 3,001, 879 3,014, 102 4, 214, 524

Economic and physical development 2, 249, 191 1, 872,267 3, 222, 067 2, 121. 975 2, 559,305 3, 461, 395 2. 345,856 2.057.081 1, 527, 204 2, 894,843

Miscellaneous

Interfund Reimbursements 2,891, 799)      ( 3,310, 269)      ( 3,412,228)    

Capitai outlay 130. 547 538, 108 1, 052, 794 1, 857,062

Debt service'

Pnncipal 2, 128,628 2, 153, 397 1, 997, 458 1, 461, 189 1, 750, 718 4, 975,998 1, 548,037 1, 988, 779 1, 943, 365 2, 077,220

Interest 518,901 445, 677 380, 588 349, 093 369,686 301, 704 183,672 164, 535 200, 966 171, 841

ToWI expendiWres 29,209,243 33, 159, 078 32, 979, 885 31759.320 31, 815, 747 37, 745,369 34, 909.962 36,597. 893 29,665, 698 41, 223, 705

Excess of revenues( under)

expenditures 318, 762) 2, 568. 626) 1, 791, 748)      ( 1, 580, 046) 153,457      ( 6, 688, 180)      ( 2, 702, 335)      ( 4, 175, 250) 57, 759)       3, 046, 958

Other financing sources( uses)
Transfersin 2,447,741 2,056, 879 2, 980, 737 2. 193, 282 3, 503, 154 3, 812,981 3, 430, 178 4J58, 767 1, 968,600 3, 812. 885

Transfersout 492,983)   664,812)  161, 701) 296,830) 258, 432) 764,257) 778, 151)      ( 1, 284, 536) 13, 923)      ( 1, 203,685)

Proceeds from slaes of capital assets 801, 075 74,540 74,607 138, 817 31. 970 4,735

Issuance o iong- term debt 199,817 4,052, 576 465, 315 1, 740, 891 1, 969,673 2, 980,767 1, 660,000 2,577, 534 1, 629,798

Tolal otherfinancing sources 2, 154, 575 5, 444, 643 3, 284, 351 3, 637, 343 6, 015,470 6, 104,031 4, 386,634 5,590, 582 3, 616,445 2, 613, 735

Net changes in fund balance    $       1 835813  $       2, 876, 017  $       1, 492,603  $    2, 057, 297  $    5, 862, 013  $     ( 584, 149)  5 1, 684, 299  $    1, 415, 332  $    3, 558, 686  $    5,660, 693

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital

expenditures 9.9%      9. 0%      7. 8%   6. 2%   7.7%  15.4%   5.4%   6. 3%   7. 9%   5. 8%
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City of New Bern, Nor

The Electric System

Electricity Purchased, Consumed& Unbilled
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited)

KWH KWH KWH KWH Purchased

Fiscal KWH Residential Commercial/ lndustnal Other Total KWH KWH ElecMc Rate
Daity Average UsageYear Purchased PaverCosiFY Usage UsaOe Usage Usaue Unbilled Unbil ed% 00IKWH)

2010-2011 498,840, 126 548, 546. 194 250,929, 048 221, 371, 906 272, 880 472,573, 834 26, 266,292 5%    0.0973 1, 366, 685

2D11d012 458, 824, 995 45, 84fi, 007 222,729, 647 219,827,592 101, 760 442,658, 999 16, 165,996 4%    50.0999 1, 257,055

2012- 2013 469, 665, 593 E46, 711, 774 233, 508, 677 218,582,492 14, 640 452, 105, 809 17, 559,784 4%    E0.0995 1, 286,755

2013-2014 480. 049, 085 41,455, 824 240, 283, 626 217, 521, 976 114, 000 457,919,602 22, 129,483 5%    E0.0989 1, 315,203

2014- 2015 479,022A50 46, 103, 643 237, 853, 174 212,831, 495 246, 240 450,930, 909 28. 091, 141 6%    a0.0962 1, 312,369

2015- 2016 456, 681, 167 35,673, 027 224,926, 698 212,697,288 341, 520 437.965, 496 18, 715,671 4%    E0.0781 1, 251, 161

2016- 2017 465, 041, 161 37, 529,489 237, 551, 981 212,751. 139 330,960 450,634, 080 14, 407,081 3%    0. 0807 1, 274,085

2017- 2018 477. 023, 603 37, 852, 370 248, 334, 829 272,080.854 371, 040 460,786, 723 16,236,880 3%    0.0668 1, 306, 914

2018-2019 469,845, 926 33, 216, 236 242, 646,003 197, 166, 999 91, 440 439,904,442 29,941, 484 6%    0.0707 1, 287,249

2019- 2020 444, 786, 550 31, 497, 336 234, 223, 019 200, 222,685 11, 040 434,456, 744 10, 329,806 2%    0.0708 1, 218.593

Source: City Records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Electric Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cents Per KWH Cents Per KWH

Electric

Rates 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Residential 0. 1439 0. 1373 0. 1307 0. 1439 0. 1214 0. 1165 0. 1010 0. 1133 0. 1014 0. 1135

Commercial 0. 1367 0. 1334 0. 1331 0. 1305 0. 1391 0. 1216 0. 1175 0. 1156 0. 1134 0. 1168

Larqe Commercialllndustrial 0. 0882 0. 0837 0. 0827 0. 0842 0. 0861 0. 0771 0. 0792 0. 0755 0. 0763 0. 0742

Other 0. 1238 0. 1358 0. 1738 0. 1275 0. 1284 0. 1110 0. 1062 0. 1046 0. 1142 0. 1679

Source: City Records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Electric System- Major Users

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

zo2o zoi i

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Annual Annual Electric Annual Annual Electric

Rank Customer KWH Revenues Sales Rank Customer KWH Revenues Sales

01 Carolina East Medical Center- P- 53206 20061600 $ 1, 127, 126.92 2. 29%    01 Carolina East Medical Center P- 53206 18794400 S 1, 439,911. 80 2. 37%

02 Craven Community P• 53209 9939600 $   635,906.60 1. 29%    02 Craven Community College P-53209 7486800 b 670,208. 21 1. 10%

03 Hatteras Yacht P- 53208 4826400 $   349,699.73 0. 71%    03 Hatteras Yacht P- 53208 6842400 b 869,859. 54 1. 43%

04 City of New Bern STP P- 22026 4530960 $   320,401. 45 0. 65%    04 Maola- 23749- 53205 5901600 E 488,486.54 0. 80%

05 Wal- Mart Stores- Havelock- 73875 4524300 $   336,628.90 0. 68%    OS city of New Bern 22711- 22026 STP 5518560 $   439,831. 83 0. 72%

06 Craven Terrace- 5-2 P- 15457 2565600 $   370,478.04 0. 75%    O6 Wal- Mart Stores-Havelock-73875 4759800 $   381, 386.93 0. 63%

07 NC Depart. Of Cultural p-26850 2064300 $   208,730.22 0. 42%    07 Craven Terrace P- 15457 3513360 a 422, 160. 64 0. 69%

08 Schlaadt Plastics-53211 2013100 $   210,956.56 0. 43%    08 Lowe's of New Bern P- 56517 2785200    237,832. 84 0. 39%

09 Carolina Telephone& Telegraph P- 15228 1964000 $   205,976.74 0. 42%    09 New Bern Housing Authority P- 15460 2373600 a 285,573.96 0. 47%

10 HT Carolina Colours-92584 1769700 $   139,599. 61 0. 28%    10 Carolina Telephone P- 15228 2104800 S 242, 104. 11 0. 40%

Revenue for All Revenue for All

Totals  $ 49,245,420 54,259, 560       $ 3, 905,505 Totals $ 60,845,870 60,080,520       $ 5, 477,356
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Water System- Major Users

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2a2o zo>>

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Annual Annual Water Annual Annual Water

Rank Customer Gallons Revenues Sales Rank Customer Gallons Revenues Sales

01 Carolina East Medical Center P- 53206 50696 $ 194,573.48 1. 96%    01 Carolina East Medical Center P- 53206 28404 $ 118,985.52 1. 10°/a

02 Craven Wood Energy P-96120 14710 $ 110,244.34 1. 11%    02 Town of Cove City P- 26039 12042 $  57, 805. 85 0. 53%

03 Moen Inc. P- 67797 7922 $  36, 131. 28 0. 36%    03 Moen P- 67797 11816 $  65, 486. 10 0. 60%

04 NB Housing Authority P- 15460 7630 $  35, 916.85 0. 36°/a 04 NB Housing Authority- P- 15554 10407 $  46,755.66 0. 43%

05 Craven Terrace P- 15457 T510 $  36,453. 34 0. 37%    05 City of New Bern Water Dept-12318 5098 S 19, 432. 62 0. 18%

06 Schlaadt Plastiacs P- 53211 5551 $  25,633. 51 0. 26°/a 06 BSH Home Appliances P- 23028 4962 $  38, 919. 72 0. 36%

07 BSH Home Appliance P- 23028 4962 $  18, 967.89 0. 19%    O7 UHS Pruitt Corp. P- 26813 4615 $  30, 676.42 0. 28%

08 UHS Pruitt Corp-26813 4615 $  14, 120.89 0. 14%    08 RPG Hospitality-14617 4298 S 23,881. 06 p, 22%

09 New Bern Housing Authority P• 15554 3909 $  22, 943.59 0. 23%    09 Constant Care Service 4051 $  16, 185. 60 0. 15%

10 FMC of Craven County P-76816 3094 5 14, 380.70 0. 14%    10 Norfolk Southern Railway Co. P- 13736 3853 $  26,264. 14 0. 24%

Revenue for All Revenue for All

Totals  $ 9, 938,357 110,599       $ 509,366 Totals $ 10. 838. 332 89, 546       $ 444, 393

Source: City Records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Sewer System- Major Users

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020 2011

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total
Annual Annual Sewer Annual Annual Sewer

Rank Customer Gallons Revenues Sales Rank Customer Gallons Revenues Sales

01 Carolina East Medical Center P- 53206 50696 $  259, 862.64 2. 49%    01 Carolina Regional Medical Center P- 53206 28408 $ 176, 292. 12 1. 63%
02 Craven County Wood Energy P-96120 28181 $  279, 979.81 2. 68%    02 Housing Authority P- 15554 10407 $  66, 114. 93 0. 61%
03 Coastal Regional Solid Waste P- 50002 10495 $    80, 776.08 0. 77%    03 Craven County Government-86820 4330 $  34, 272. 97 0. 32%
04 Moen Inc. P- 67797 7922 $    48,460. 83 0. 46%    04 Hatteras Yacht P-27077 4297 $  41, 319.36 0. 38%
05 Craven Terrace 5- 2P- 15457 7510 $    47, 302.08 0. 45%    OS trent Development-20623 4062 $  25, 134. 43 0. 23°/a
06 Craven County Government P-86820 7224 $    56, 361. 05 0. 54°/a O6 Coastal Region Solid Waste P- 50002 3928 $  62, 901. 60 0. 58%
07 NB Housing Authority P- 15554 3909 $    24, 761. 82 0. 24%    07 Sonoco Product Co. P- 53211 1790 $  17, 126. 40 0. 16%
08 Schlaadt Plastic P- 53211 2623 $    23,562.49 0. 23%    08 Craven Co. Board of Education P-69333 841 $  13, 129. 70 0. 12%
09 Lexmi Hospitality- 84225 1922 $    24, 438.60 0. 23%    09 Craven County Wood- 67804 324 $   3, 043. 17 0. 03%
10 Craven Terrave LP 5-4 P- 15458 1244 $    13, 905.46 0. 13%    10 food lion- 69111 258 $   2, 763.90 0. 03%

Revenue for All Revenue for All

Totals  10, 445, 653 121, 726 859 411 Totals $ 10, 844, 213 58, 645       $ 442 099

Source: City Records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Totai Estimated Assessed

Year Real Property Personal Property Less Total Taxable Direct Actual Value as a

Ended Residential Commercial Motor Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of

June 30,    Property Property Vehicles Other Real Property Value Rate Value( 1)     Actual Value( 4)

2010 1, 175, 109,254 698, 743, 698 215, 576,429 263. 121. 567 8, 048,686 2, 344, 502, 262 0. 505 2, 346,849, 111 99. 90%

2011 ( 3)  1, 654,793, 516 983,704, 603 217, 961, 102 268,536. 167 11, 783, 558 3, 113,211, 830 0. 41 3, 075,384, 599 101. 23%

2012 1, 691, 989,475 1. 004, 138,358 227, 578, 581 221, 190, 195 14, 850,508 3, 130,046, 101 0. 41 2, 931, 029, 217 106.79%

2013 1, 699,293, 395 1. 007,925, 555 233, 561, 483 269.508. 198 15, 828,950 3, 194, 459, 681 0. 41 2, 826,455, 212 113. 02%

2014 1, 721, 521, 337 1, 007.745, 243 133, 550, 747 251. 038, 877 16,273,696 3, 097, 582, 508 0. 41 2, 737, 831, 455 113J4%

2015 1, 740, 351, 357 1. 012, 722, 260 236, 218, 399 305.526. 099 17,492, 541 3, 277, 325, 574 0. 41 2, 742,616, 664 119. 50%

2016 1756, 129, 303 1, 022, 041, 633 235, 673, 549 286.274A25 17, 569,333 3, 046,875, 628 0. 41 3, 035,643, 746 100. 37%

2017 1, 539, 695, 349 1, 062, 464,443 260, 779,493 184,576, 735 17, 036,205 2, 769,700, 322 0. 46 2, 797,677, 093 99. 00%

2018 1, 550, 950,898 998,754,218 267, 717, 313 317, 086, 179 18, 079,727 2, 848, 711, 568 0. 46 2, 922,954, 615 97. 46%

2019 1. 564. 190,598 1, 025,949, 748 268, 448, 089 328, 764, 151 19, 224,468 2, 899,680, 029 0. 46 3, 051, 331, 189 95. 03%

2020 1, 580, 474, 281 1. 030,293, 928 287, 343, 822 344,345, 009 19, 190, 589 2, 934, 241, 459 0. 4822 3, 280,360,479 89.45%

Source: Craven County Tax Office

Notes:

1) Per 5100 of value

2) The estimated market value is calculated by dividing the assessed value by an assessment- to-sales ratio determined by the State Department of

Revenue. The ratio is based on actual property sales within Craven County which took place in the calendar year ending during the fiscal year.

3) Property tax is reassessed every eight years by Craven County. The last reassessment was on January 1, 2010 and was the basis for fiscal 2011 taxes.
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the

Fiscal Year Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Lery Collections Total Collections to Date

Ended Levyfor Percentage in Subsequent Percentage

June 30,  Fiscal Year Amount of Lery Years Amount of Levy

2011 12, 150, 856 11, 833,088 97. 38%    295,659 12, 128,747 99. 82%

2012 13, 034,415 12, 694,505 97. 39%    313,541 13,008,046 99. 80%

2013 13, 113, 654 12, 801, 046 97. 62%    273,980 13,075,026 99. 71%

2014 12, 713, 597 12, 533,988 98. 59%    151, 477 12, 685,465 99. 78%

2015 12, 411, 797 11, 974,859 96.48%    424, 999 12,399,858 99. 90%

2016 12, 502, 513 12, 403,793 99.21%     85, 625 12, 489,418 99. 90%

2017 12, 728, 310 12, 633,582 99.26%     74, 066 12, 707, 648 99. 84%

2018 13, 113, 149 13, 025,627 99.33%     63, 006 13,088, 633 99.81%

2019 13, 334,950 13, 238,731 99.28%     42, 637 13, 281, 368 99.60%

2020 14, 167, 776 14, 024,087 98. 99%   14, 024, 517 98.99%

Source: City property tax records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Principal Taxpayers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

202o zo i

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Nature of Assessed Assessed Nature o(   Assessed Assessed

Name of Taxpayer Property Value Rank Value Name of Taxpayer Property Value Rank Value

BSH Home Appliances Household Appliances  $   105,689,462 1 3.64%a BSH Home Appliances Household Appliances 87, 294, 653 1 3. 72%

New Bern Apartments LLC Residential Rental 24,638,902 2 0.85%    New Bern Riverfront Developer 38, 235, 778 2 1. 63%

New Bern Riverfront Development LLC Developer( Condos) 17, 031, 231 3 0.59%    Hatteras Yachts, Inc.      Boat Manufacturing 24, 397, 495 3 1. 04%

Wal Mart Real Estate Business Trust Retail Sales 15, 775, 740 4 0. 54%    Carolina Creek Developer 23, 007, 361 4 0. 98%

NC New Bern LLC Retail Sales 14, 408, 190 5 0.50%    Carolina Telephone Telephone Services 20, 433,698 5 0. 87%

NIC 4 Courtyards of New Bern Residential Rental 14, 366, 000 6 0. 50%    DDR Xenia& New Bern LLC Retail Sales 19, 641, 251 6 0. 84%

Strata Woodcross LLC Residential Rental 14, 147, 298 7 0. 49%    Trent Neuse Hotel LLC Hotel 15, 206, 429 7 0. 65°/a

Duke Energy Power Service 14, 054,617 8 0. 48%    Thomas F& Karen Webb Developer 14, 635, 500 8 0. 62%

Atta Holding Company LLC Medical Offices 13,974,680 9 0. 48°/a Target Retail Shopping 10, 323, 012 9 0. 44%

Navis HCY Real Estate LLC Real Estate 12, 067,300 10 0. 42°/a Atta Holdings Medical Offices 10, 203, 048 10 0. 44%

Total Assessed Valuation of Top Ten Taxpayer S 246, 153, 420 8. 49°/a Total Assessed Valuation of Top Ten Taxpayer S 263, 378, 225 1123%

Balance of Assessed Valuation. 2, 653, 526, 609 91. 51%    Balance of Assessed Valuation.    S 2, 081, 124, 037 88. 77%

Total Assessed Valuation 2, 899,680, 029 100. 00%    Total Assessed Valuation 2, 344, 502, 262 100. 00%

Source: City property tax records
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Overlapping
Year Direct Rate

Ending Rate Craven

June 30 City County
2011 0. 4100 0.4728

2012 0. 4100 0. 4728

2013 0.4100 0.4728

2014 0. 4100 0.4675

2015 0. 4100 0.4675

2016 0. 4100 0.4675

2017 0. 4600 0. 5394

2018 0. 4600 0. 5394

2019 0. 4822 0. 5494

2020 0. 4822 0. 5494

NOtes:       https:// www.cravencountync.gov/ 220/ Tax- Administratio

1) Source of County tax rates from Craven County Tax Office.

2) City of New Bern tax rate excludes Municipal Service District tax rates.
This rate covers a small area and is nominal in amount.

3) Real property was revaluetl on January 1, 2016.
Changes will be reflected in next year's report.
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited)

Governmental Business- Type

Activities Activities

enera enera o a ota e Total Debt as

Fiscal Obligation Capitalized Installment Capitalized Notes Installment Obligation Revenue Primary Per Percentage of

Year Bonds Leases Notes Payable Leases Payable Notes Payable Bonds Bonds Government Capita Personal income

2011 12, 731, 877 47, 724, 116 23,617, 057 84, 073, 050 2, 812 2. 345%

2012 14, 610,371 44, 801, 300 21, 270,822 80, 682,493 2, 699 2. 199%

2013 12, 449,882 41, 847, 545 3, 868, 205 17, 180, 000 75, 345, 632 2,485 1. 964%

2014 12, 729, 584 38, 862, 038 4, 209, 693 15, 576, 277 71, 377, 592 2, 360 1. 743%

2015 12, 948, 539 35,843, 939 3, 648,020 17, 608, 515 70, 049,013 2, 316 1. 305%

2016 7, 926. 663 32, 792, 386 6, 166,443 21, 207,039 68, 092, 531 2, 918 1. 361%

2017 8, 038, 626 29, 447, 558 5, 107,437 18,662, 107 61, 255, 728 2, 605 1. 224°/a

2018 8, 627, 381 26, 585, 374 3, 859, 046 16,070, 782 55, 142, 583 2,292 1. 314%

2019 10, 571, 478 23, 694, 553 3,423,227 13,434, 534 51, 123, 791 1, 878 1. 177%

2020 8, 494,257 20, 774, 358 2, 564, 381 10, 752,567 42, 585, 563 1, 420 0.421%

Notes:

1) Details regarding the City' s outstanding debt may be
found in the notes to the basic financial statements

2) The City has no outstanding general obligation bond;
3) Population can be found on the Demographic and Economic

Statistics Table
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Unaudited)

Estimated

Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt

Craven County Debt 48,031, 231 28. 98% 51, 227,866

Subtotal, overlapping debt 48, 031, 231 51, 227,866

City Direct Debt 7, 926,663 100%      7, 926,663

Total direct and overlapping debt 55,957,894 59, 154, 529

Sources:

Notes:

1) Includes general obligation bonds for Enterprise Fund and General Long- Term Debt Account Group.

2) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in Craven County$ 9. 904, 145. 988
3) Amount in debt outstanding column multiplied by percentage applicable.
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

dollars in thousands)

Unaudited)

2071 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Debtlimit 249,056,946 S 251, 997, 678 $     255, 556, 774 $      247, 806, 601 $     242, 008,494 $     243.750, 050 S 227, 576,026 5 249,314,310 $     231, 602, 117 $     234, 739, 317

Total net debt applicaWe to limit 12, 731, 817 14, 610, 371 12, 449. 682 12, 729,584 12, 948, 539 7, 926,663 8, 038,626 8, 627,381 10,249,000 8, 494, 257

Legal debt margin 236, 325, 069 S 237,381, 307 5 243, 706,892  $      235, 077 017 $     229 059 955 $     235 823 3B7 E 213 537 400 $     240 686 929 $     221 353 117 $     226 245 O60

Total net debt applicable to the limit

asapercenWgeofdebtlimit 5. 39%    6. 15%    5. 12%    SA2%    5. 65%   3. 36%   376%   3. 58%   4. 63%   3. 75%

Noles.

Debl includes Installment proceeds and Noles payable

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2020

Assessed Valuation 2, 934, 241, 459

8%   234. 739, 317

Less applicable debt 8,494, 257)

Debt margin 226, 245, 060
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year Per Capita Public

Ended Personal Personal School Unemployment

June 30 Population( 1)  Income( 2) Income( 3)       Enrollment( 4) Rate( 5)

2011 29,899 22, 762 3, 816, 083 14,817 9.5%

2012 30,316 22, 762 3, 910, 918 14, 749 9.2%

2013 30,242 23, 235 4,094, 203 14, 606 9.9%

2014 30,291 22, 555 4, 100, 424 14, 472 7. 1°/ a

2015 30,070 23, 335 4, 121, 440 14,297 6. 3°/ a

2016 30, 101 23, 511 4, 195, 496 14, 120 4. 9%

2017 29,590 24,062 4, 340, 800 14,002 4. 3%

2018 29942 25, 878 4,529, 336 13,778 3. 1%

2019 30113 27224 4,743, 930 14, 171 4. 0°/ a

2020 29, 994 27224 6) 13,895 4. 8°/a

Notes:

1) Population provided US Census Bureau.( 2017 is estimate)

https:/Iwww.census. Qovlquickfacts/ facUtable/ newberncitvnorthcarolina/PST045218

2) Provided by U. S Census
https:llwww.census.qovlpuickfacts/facVtablelnewbemcitvnorthcarolina/ INC910217

3) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U. S. Department of Commerce. Figures are as of the end of the

calendar year

4) Craven County Public Schools
https:/ lwww.publicschoolreview. com/ north- carolina/craven- counry- schools/ 3703310- school-district

5) Provided by U. S Bureau of Labor Statistics https://www.cravencountvnc.qov12108/ Workforce-Data

6) Information is not presently available
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Unaudited)

2ozo 20>>

Percentage Percentage

of Total Counry of Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Empbyment
Department of Defense 5498 1 13. 82%     Department of Defense 5, 408 1 1420%

CarolinaEast Health Systems 2303 2 579%      CarolinaEast Heatth Systems 2, 100 2 5.51%

Craven Counry Schools 1646 3 4. 14%      Craven County Schools 1, 917 3 5.03%

BSH Home Appliances 1200 4 3. 02%      State of North Carolina 938 4 2.46%

Mcen Incorporated 820 5 2. 05%      BSH Home Appliances 800 5 2J0°/

State of NoAh Carolina 797 6 2. 00%      Moen Incorporated 630 6 1. 65%

Craven County 650 7 1. 63%      Craven County 626 7 1. 64%

Wal• Mart 622 8 1. 56%      HatterasYachts( BrunswickCorp)   540 8 tA2%

Craven Community College 531 9 1. 34%      City of New Bem 509 9 1. 34%

City o New Bem 451 10 1. 13°/,      Craven Community College 460 10 1. 21°/,

Source: Craven Cowty. NC Department of Commerce LEAD Division
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees By FunctionslPrograms
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Functions/ Proqram

General Government:

Goveming Board 1 1 1 1 1 1

Administration 3 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 4

Informaiion Technology 7 7 8 8 8 7 7 7 7 7

Finance:

Accounting 11 10 10 10 10 9 9 9 9 9

Warehouse 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 4 4

Tax Collection 3 3 3 1

Human Res urces: 6 5 5 6 6 5 5 5 5 5

Police: 127. 5 114 112 112 116 109. 5 113 115 117 117

Animal Control

E911 Support 2 2 2 2

Communications

Fire:    66 66 67 67 67 67 66 73 73 73

Parks and Recreation:

Administration 2 2 2 2 2 3 5 7 7 8

Facilities 11 9 9 8

West New Bern Recreation Center 5 5 5 5 5 4       -

Stanley White Recreation Center 4 4 4 4 4 4       -

Parks 14. 6 13 14 14 14 13 13 13 13 13

Aquatics 0. 4 0. 4      -

Special Programs

Athletics 3 3. 6 3. 0 3. 0 3. 0 3       -

Planning& Inspections:  
Planning& Inspections 17 17 16 17 17 15 16 16 16 16

GIS 1 1 1

Public Works:

Administration 3. 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4

Garage 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5

Public Buildings 6 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

Streets 26 25 25 25 25 21 21 21 20 18

Cemeteries 1 1

Leaf 8 Limb 9 8 7 7 7 7 7 7 8

Sanitation

Engineenng 9

Solid Waste 8

Water:

Water Resources Administration 7 7 7 7 7 6 6 6 6

Water Treatment 7 12 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12

Water Distribution System Maintenance 20 25 30 30 30 27 25 25 19 19

Hydrant Maintenance 4       -

Sewer:

Sewer Treatment 19 21 21 21 20 19 19 19 20 20

Sewer Collection System Maintenance 27 21 16 14 14 12 16 16 20 21

PreTreatment 2       -
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City of New Bern, North Carolina

Full•Time Equivalent City Government Employees By FunctionslPrograms
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Electnc:

Electric Administration 7 7 7 7 7 6 6 6 6 7

Utility Billing 5 5 5 5       -

Utility Service 16 15 15 10       -
Distribution 0&M 30 32 32 36 36 34 34 34 34 34
Power Supply 4 4 4 4 4 3 4 4 5 5
Communications Control 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7

Utility Business Office 16 16 16 16 30 29 27 27 27 27
Stormwater:

Stormwater 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6
Other:

Emergency Telephone System( E911) 2 2 2 2 2 1. 5       _
Metropolitan Planning Organization 2 2 2 2 2
Municipal Service District 2       -

Total 500 478 481 477 479 453 460 469 472 473

Source: Prior years budget records

Note:

Information is not readily available
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City of New Bem, North Carolina

Operating Indicators By FunctionlProgram
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited)

Function/ Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Police:

Calls for sernce 38, 397 36,818 48,532 42,819 43, 113 42,525 45, 002 46. 160 45,403 46,020

Conduct DUI/ Traffic Check Poinls 70 118 157 48 34 54 42 22

Answer 90% of 911 Gass in 10 seconds 99..6%    97.50%    98. 05%     98.02%    98. 21%     98.06%     97. 61%       98. 18%

Dispatch Emergency rall in 90 seconds 85.30%    91. 15%    72. 35%     89.80%    70. 15%     78.50%     80.00%       46.40%

Dispatch Non- Emergent rall in 15 minutes 97.80%    75.00%    74. 40%     76. 10%    99J9%     99.91%     99.80%       93.80%

Maintain 100% state certificafion for swom and non-swom 100.00%    98.78q 98. 78%     98.78%    100. 00%    100. 00%    100.00% 0. 00%

Conduct directed traKc enforcement 362 196 370 1, 361 1888

Conduct directed radar enforcement campaigns 1 4 21 12 230 580 712

Artests 1, 944 1, 750 1, 595 1, 545 1, 497 1, 774 1, 478 1, 290

Fire.

Calls for service 1, 124 1, 090 992 1, 115 1, 223 1, 251 1, 485 1, 683 1, 982 1, 770

Value of Endangered Propeny 50, 260, 192 13,718, 938 122,605,907 11, 477, 095 40,955, 210 180,755, 380 282268,870

Value o Property Loss 5 1, 658, 581  $ 6, 131, 061 b 1, 389, 713 $ 2,811, 003 $ 656,825 $ 1, 201, 657 S 1, 691, 425 510,326, 546 $ 1, 765,436 $   1, 616, 775

Fire Inspections 1, 860 1, 787 1, 519 1, 568 1, 420 1, 606 1, 743 1, 978 1, 946

Fire Investigations 43 32 36 33 31 27 30 27 44

People Educated by Fire Education Programs 7, 033 7, 298 8, 657 9,929 11, 065 13,697 9, 360 6, 453 2, 179

Child Passenger Safety Seat Inspections 299 295 268 227 236 220 173 189 42

Permitslssued 140 82 126 91 113 131 101 58 75

Firefighter Training Hours 19, 176 19, 522 18,503 18, 568 19,803 29,051 19, 502

Recreation progrem anendance-

Athletics 95,750 98,500 98, 500 99, 000 99, 500 100, 000 0 0 0 40,000

Centers 8 Parks 278.501 285, 500 286, 000 286, 500 306,000 310, 000 0 0 0 344,000

Other Programs 90,550 96,775 97. 000 97, 225 100,000 105, 000 0 D 0 55,000

Planning& Development
Total building permits 573 652 605 529 511 317 290 517 774 258

Total value of all permits 38,992,626 $ 47,994, 419 $ 37. 189, 233 $ 4Q634,053 $ 32. 604,601  $ 65, 763,473 $ 33, 242,973 $ 12Q929,561 $ 102,353, 540 $ 102,527. 556.00

Public service:

Garbage collected( lon)       7, 640 7, 719 7, 626 7, 854 8, 135 8, 521 8, 303 8, 561 8, 814 3,087

Recycle collecled( ton)"'      1, 791 2,403 1, 795 2, 191 2, 222 2, 185 2, 188 2, 102 1, 625 576. 92 July 2019- June 2020

Stormwater

Calls for service 450 178 264 355 248 216 209 n/a

Yearly rainfall 43. 99'     37. 14"      54. 91 67. 15 63. 14 55.81 39. 08 nla

Stormwater fee 2. 10/ ERU $ 2. 10/ ERU $ 2. 10/ ERU  $ 2. 10/ ERU $ 2. 10/ ERU  $ 2. 10/ ERU  $ 2. 10/ ERU n/ a

ResidentialERU' s 12. 516 12.756 12, 906 12, 966 13, 182 12, 753 nla

CommercialERU' s 20452 20.006 19. 923 19420 22, 972 14290 nla

Source: Various Cky records
Note: ' Includes Humcane Irene Loss

Dala nol available

Numbers are derived from Craven County Recyding tonnages.

Only totals were availade, however based on ihe percentage of households in lhe ciry to county,
33.53% was used from lhe total collected to generate an approximate City value.

Trecking Changes Amendned, stats unavailaWe
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A.

P. O Kox 39A

1626 S. Madison Street

R' hiteville, NC 28472

Telephone( 9101 642- 2109

r.,.

Fax( 9l0) 642- 5958

Alan R'. Thompson. CP:

R. Brvon Scott.(' P:

CpNS

ULTANTsa
iao ri.x, oIHOR6 Gregun S. Adams. CP:

Report on Internal Control O er Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance ti ith Gnvernment Auditin Stanrlards

To the Honorable Mayor and

Board of Aldermen

City of New Bern, North Carolina

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller Gcneral
of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- type activities,
each ntajor f md, and the aggregate remaining fund inforn ation of the City of New Bern, North Carolina, as of and for
the year endcd June 30, 2020, and the related notes to tl e financial statements, which collectively comprises the City of
New Bern' s basic financia] statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January K, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements. e considered ihe City of New Bern' s internal control
over financial reporting( internal control) to detern ine tlie audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for

tl e purpose of expressing our opinions on tl e financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectivcness of the City of New Bern's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on
a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deticiencies, in internal control such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial statemcnts will not be preventcd. or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe tl an a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by diose charged
witli governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and

was not designed to identify all deficicncies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and d erefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies nay exist that werc not identified. We did
identify certain deficiencics in internal conCrol, describcd in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
2020- 001 J that« e considcr to be material weaknesses.

Members
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of New Bern's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliancc with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grant agreements, noncompliance with vhich could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial

statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our

audit, and accordingly, wc do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of New Bern's Response to Findings

The City of New Bern' s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control or on compliance. Tl is
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the

entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a. 0..,. • G,?. A.

f'hiteville, NC

January 8, 2021
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Thonipson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A.

P. O Box 398

1626 S. Madison Street

Whiteville, NC 28472

Tclephone( 910) 642- 2109

Fax( 910) 642- 5958

Alan W. Thumpsun. CP:

R. Bn on Scott, CPA

Gregory S. Adams, CPA
CERTIFIE PU6LIC ACCOUNTANT5
CONSULTANTS AN TAX ADVIBORS

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major Federal

Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB

Unifonn Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Aldermen

City of New Bern
New Bern, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of New Bern, North Carolina' s, compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplemcnt and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,

issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of New
Bern' s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The City of New Bern's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management' s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable

to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of New Bern' s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in

accordance with auditing standards gcnerally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to

financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by Comptroller Gencral of the United States; and
die audit reqtiirements of Title 2 U. S. Code of Federal Regttlations Part 200, Uniform Adniinistrative Requirements,

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ( Uniform Guidance), and the State Single Audit

Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniforni Guidance, and the State Single Audit [ mplementation Act require

that we plan and perforni the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wliether noncompliance with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program

occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence abotit the City of New Bern' s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.

However, our audit does not provide a legal detern ination of the City of New Bern' s compliance.

Opinion on F.ach Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of New Bern complied. in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended

June 30, 2020.  Members
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Report on Intcrnal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Ncw Bern is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with tl e types of compliance requirements referred to abovc. In planning and perfonning our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of New Bern internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have direct and material effect on major fedcral program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over coulpliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than material weakness in

internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be

signiticant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider ro be material weakncsses or significant deficiencies.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Unifonn Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

y, o"`'` Poo^ . Al..e.'--, t. C:ldt.Lr..? ' fa., P. A-

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams& Co., P. A.

Whiteville. NC

January 8, 2021
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A.

P. O Box 398

1626 S. Madison Street

Whiteville, NC 28472

Telephone( 910) 642- 2109

Fax( 9l0) 642- 5958

11an. Thompson. CP:

R. Bryon Scott, CPA
CERTIFIEO PIJBLIC ACCO{.INTANTS
CONSIJLTANTS ANp TAX A VISppS

Gre on S. Adams. CPA

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major State Program and Internal
Control Over Compliance In Accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit

mplementation Act

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Mayor and

Board of Aldennen

City of New Bern, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the City of New Bern, North Carolina' s, compliance with the types of compliance

requirements described in thc Audit Manual for Govcrnmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the
Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of New
Bern's major state programs for the ycar cnded June 30, 2020. City of New Bern's major state programs are
identified in the su nmary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management' s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for cach of the City of New Bern's major state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our

audit of compliancc in accordance with auditing standards gcnerally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to t7nancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of Title 2 US Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards ( Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in

North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.  Those standards, Uniform Guidance, and

the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requircments referred to above that

could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence abot t the City of New Bern's compliancc witl tl ose requircments and performing
such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Members

American Institute of CPAs- N.C. Association of CPAs- AICPA Division of Finns 146



We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of New Bern' s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, City of New Bern complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
require nents referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State

programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report ou Intenial Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of New Bern is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and

performing our audit of compliance,  we considered the City of New Bern' s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state

program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of

expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City' s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state

program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deticiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpase described in the first

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be signiticant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Unifonn

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

i"'d'^^ , 4 1," Gt. t.C d.+. + C., P. A

Whiteville, NC

January 8, 2021
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City of NeH Bern, north Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section I.Summary of Auditor' s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report thc auditor issued on whcthcr thc financial statcments

audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP:   Unmodified

Intcrnal control ovcr financial rcporting:

Material weakness( es) identified'?      Yes No

Significant deficiency( ies) identified Yes No

Noncompliance material to financial

statements no[ ed Yes No

Fedcral Awards

Internal control over major Federal programs:

Material Weakness( es1 ide tified?      Yes No

Sigmificant Dcficicncy( s)       Yes No

Type of auditor' s report issued on compliance for major Federal Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516( a)?  Yes No

Identification of major Federal programs:

CFDA#      Pro ram Namc

97. 036 Disaster Grants- Public Assistance

Dollor threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Program 750,000

Auditee yualified as low-risk auditee?    Yes No

Sta[ e Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

Material Weakness( es identified?       Yes Q No

Significant Deficiency( sl Yes Q No

Type of auditoi s report issued on compliance for major State

programs:   Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Single Audi[

Implementation Act Yes No

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name

Disaster Grants- Public Assistance
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City of New Bern, l orth Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For thc Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30, 2020

Section II—Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2020- 001 Deficit Fund Balance

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Criteria: The City should maintain a positive fund balance in each of its funds.

Condition: The City had a deficit fund balance in several project funds.

Effect: When a fund has a negative fund balance another fund has to advance the money to cover the
expenditures.

Cause: Projects are waiting reimbursement from grants and other revenue sources.

Identification of a repeat finding: This is a repeat finding from the inunediate previous audit, 2019- 003

Recommendation: The City should ensure that all efforts are made to collect the revenue.

Views of responsible officials: The City agrees with this finding.

Section I11— Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None Reported.

Section IV—State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None Reported.
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Aldermen Uana E. Oudaw

NEW BERN
Mayor

Sabrina Bengel Mark A. Stephens

ameesha Hattis C I T Y O F N E W B E R N
ry Manager

Robert V. Aster Brenda E. Blanco

Johnnie Ray Kinsey 300 Pollock Street, P. O. Box 1129 Ciry Clerk

Barbara J. Best New Bern, NC 28563- 1129 Mary Hogan

Jeffrey T. Odham 252) 636-4000 Director of Finxnce

City of New Bern, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section II—Financial Statement Findings

Finding: 2020-00 l

Name of contact person: Mary Hogan, Finance Director

Corrective Action: All efforts will be made to ensure revenues are collected or transfers are made to cover

expenditures.

Proposed Completion Date: June 30, 2021

Section I[ I— Federal. 4ward Findings and Questioned Costs

None Reported.

Section IV—State AH ard Findings and Questioned Costs

None Reported.
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City of New Bern, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Year' s Findings

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Finding:  2019- 001

Status:    Corrected

Finding:  2019-002

Status:    Corrected

Finding:  2019- 003

Status:    Repeat as Finding 2020- 001
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Cih of VeN Bern, Vorth Carolina

Schedule of Expenditures of Fedcral and State Awards

For the 1' ear F.nded June 30. 2020

State'

Federal Pass- through Fed.( Direct&

Gran[or/Pass- through CFDA Grantor's Pass- through)      State Provided to Local

iran[or/ Prol:ram TiUe Number Vumber Exnenditures Expenditures Subrecipien[s Expenditures

1( a)  I( a)( bl Ilc) I( c), 2 1( d)   1( e)   1( d)

Federai Grants:

Cash Programs:

U. S. Dcpt. of HousinQ and[: rban Devclopment

Passed- through N. C. Depanment of Commerce

CDBG Entitlement Cities 14. 21 R B- 14- MC- 37- 0024       $   168, 747  $  

U. S. De artment of Justice

Passed- duough N.0 Department of Public Safety
Bulletproof Vest Program 16. 607 4, 693 4, 694

Edward Byme! lemorial Justice Assistance

Grant UAG) Program 16. 738 13, 778

Equitablc Sharing Program 16. 922 8, 895

U. S. DepaRment of Commerce

Investments for Public Works and Economic

Development Facilities L 1300 04- 01- 07L67 609, 372

li.S. Department of Trans ortation

Passed- through N.0 Uepartment of'

Transporta[ ion

Mctropolitan Transportation Plannine and

State and Non-Metropolitan Planning and DOT- 11

Research 20. 505 36230. 42. 5. 6 16, 251 2, 032 2, 031

Highway Planning and Conswction 20. 205- 5 48476. L 16 l2?, 373 30, 593

li.S. Denartment of Homeland Secuntv

Passed- through N. C. Department of Public Safcty

Disaster Grants- Poblic Assistancc 97. 036 9, 409, 190 3, 136, 397

Disastcr Grants- Public Assistance 9Z036 224, 196 74, 732

otal Fcdcral. A eards S 10. 577, 495 S 3, 213J61 S q 37318

State Grants:

Cash: lssistance:

N. C. Department of Transponation:

DOT- 4

Powelt Bill 32570 5 543, 524  $   

N.0 Department of Commerce

Passed- through Golden LEAf Foundation

Golden LEAF' Disaster Recovery Grant-
Hurricane Florence FY? 020- 01 I 32J43

Golden I, F,AF Disasrer Recovery Grant-
Hurricane Florence FY'_ 019- 363 208, 608

Total Fcderal and State Awards S 10, 577. 495 S 3. 997.436 5 Q 37318

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Stare Financial Awards:

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The aceompanying schedule of zxpenditures of federal and State awards( SEFSA) includes the £ ederal and State grant activity of the City of New Bem under the
programs of the federal government and the State of North(' arolina for the year ended June 30, 202Q The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with

the requirements of Title 2 CS Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifomi Administrative Reyuirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requiremenu for Federal

Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. I3ecause the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of New Bern, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash Flows of the City of New Bern.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the SF.FSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in Uniform Guidance. uherein cenain types of expendihires are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate

The City of New Bern has elected not to usc the] 0-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowcd under the Uniform Guidanca 52



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Agenda Item Title:
Presentation by CPL on the Stanley White Recreation Center project

Date of Meeting: 2/ 9/ 2021 Ward # if applicable: Ward 2

Department: Parks & Recreation Person Submitting Item:
Foster Hughes, CPRE

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing:

Explanation of Item' CPL will present an update on the Public Involvement, Environmental

Assessment, and Design process of the Stanley White Recreation
Center project.

Actions Needed by
Board:

Backup Attached:     Memo - Presentation

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/ opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds

available and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:



NEW BERN

PARKS 8 RECREATION

Aldermen Famifr, fimzss arul fun come coge he. here

Dana E. Outlaw

Sabrina Bengel Foster Hughes, CPRE Mayor

Jameesha Harris Director of Parks& Recreation
Robert V. Asrer Mark A. Stephens

Johnnie Ray Kinsey o
fOf'

c

a
Ciry Manager

Barbara]. Best F
r'o,,.

Jeffrey T. Odhatn
vo

A
C

d Recres'
Oc

r

Memo To:     Mayor and Board of Aldermen

From:    Foster Hughes, CPRE    '

Director of Parks and Recrea ion

Re:       Stanley White Recreation Center Update

Date:    January 29, 2021

Backctround Information:

CPL will present an update on the Public Involvement, Environmental Assessment and

Design process of the Stanley White Recreation Center project.

Recommendation:

Receive the Information

1307 Counrry Club Rd
New Bern, NC 28562

Office 252 639-2901

Faac 252 636-4138
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AGENDA

REVIEW OF SWRC RECONSTRUCTION PROCESS TO DATE AND
DISCUSSION OF NEXT STEPS
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Project Budget

FEMA Reimbursement 5, 629,986. 75

Insurance Reimbursement 500, 000. 00

State (NC) Funds 1, 876,662. 30

TOTAL BUDGET 8, 006,649.05

C

3

Who's Been Involved

a)   Advisory Committee
a_  , r,

t b)   CPL

c)    FEMA
a:'

a"'. F.:ii9;b1l: Y' 1a:

4
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Advisory Committee

1. The City of New Bern Department of Parks and Recreation is managing the project.

2. New Bern Parks and Recreation has contracted with the Architecture/ Engineering Firm CPL
to lead Public Involvement and Design of the new facility.

3. The Board of Alderman has appointed the Stanley White Recreation Center Advisory
Committee to advise the design Team during project development.

r

5

SWRC ADVISORY COMMITTEE ROLE

SecHon 2.     The Stanley White Recreation Center Advisory Committee shall serve the Boazd
of Aldermen in an advisory capacity, and is charged with the following
responsibilities:

Facilitate community engagetnent in the design and development of the new
Stanley White Recreation Center and its integration with D.E. Henderson Park

Recommend recreation center services and programming for the new Stanley
White Recreation Center and D.E. Henderson Park

Serve as a liason between the city and the citizens of the community regarding
the design and development of the new Stanley White Recreation Center and
its integration with D.E. Henderson Park

Recommend and promote alternative funding sources for enhancements to the
Stanley White Recreation Center campus and D. B. Henderson Park

6
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CPL's Stanley White Recreation Center
Engagement Leadership Team

ouCA71oN
EDUCATION

CH., Rensselaei

techniclnsUtute,      
B. S.. Community and

olofarchrcecru,       Regional Planning,

rsnyorwashma, o     Appalachian5tace

me_ ir,,   r,•,.       University

ciSTRnTION
T

AFFILIATIONS

nicecc Nc ui3tot American Counal of

j   Engineering Compa , e

American Plann nq

Rachel F. Nilson A55° at°,

A' A. " c Rg Reginald T. Scales

FEMA

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT UPDATE

Environmental Assessment Update

What is an EA

Summary of Engagement
Schedule

8
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What is our Primary Focus and How a Decision will be Made?

1.   Community Desires/ Needs

2.   Cost

3.   Benefit

9

THE PROCESS

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

SITE DESIGN AND MASTER PLANNING

n
PROGRAMMING AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

COST CONTROL/ FINANCIAL MODELING

l0

5



PROJECT SCHEDULE

We are currently here in
the project development

process

AUt:.     -' lehiQFF'    t.,     L.' f H C ECEMF7FR N,. GIl

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
PROGRAMMING   '  CONCEPTUAL DESIGN    

OPINION OF     ,

PROBABLECO5T5

A_,.-,.            

t; Y.

We anticipate

completingthe project

planning and cost

estimates in February
2021

11

PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

12
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

AUGUST SEP7Eh15t;J 7E3Ei1 N II';^ -. IAMIIARV

OII Q01!

COMMUNITV ENGAGEMENT
PROGRAMMING   ,  CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

I
OVINION OF
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it
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

l,.  '   ,.:.. if. f. 9: fR r.    NnVF:r, if:,

DROG MING
I OPINIONOF BOJIF6_-

COMMUNITV ENGAGEMENT
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN   

pROBABLE C0575

r'

a,.      

a s Po o..    s Po<.,      
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

PHASE ONE

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT j PROGF

I
r,

E, E. t`.,°;' E

g,/31 MIO SEP7EMBER LATE SEPTEMBER

PUBLfC ENGAGEMENT FOCUS GROUP tt: FOCUS GROUP# 4

DROP- IN SESSION

MID SEPTEMBER LATE SEPTEMBER EARLV OCTOBER

FONS GROUP z' FOCUS GROUP Jt3 PUBUC ENGAGEMEN7

DROP- M SESSION

15

PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

COMMUNITV ENGAGEMENT
PRaRAMMING CONCEPTUAL DESIGN     

ON OF     ' BOARD OF      
PRO& iBI.E C0575 PRESENTATION'.'-'._:..

n.'
ru,,.,     .,,_...,, e.     

y';.`

r.,. p,.,,.,    ,,.,,,. o, o.,

O

e$ n
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 1

EMBER DECEMBER

PHASE TWO

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN
OPINI

PROBAL

DATE TBD

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

SESSION

17

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS

L
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ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - FOCUS GROUPS

Spaces/ needs within the building:
Room for education space

Great for families

Very excited about education component

Test kitchen— very important for demonstrations
Non- profits to come together to feed community
Enterprise/ Business space to work with non- profits

Facility could be an emergency shelter( only if located at alternate location)
Food insecurity is a big issue currently. What was there in the 70s as opposed to the needs of today
State of the art, comprehensive recreation facility for the next 50 years.

Integration of technology is important

Potential of access to parts of building at later hours for rentals/ community events

L

19

ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - FOCUS GROUPS

Outdoor spaces/ needs:

Kids garden/ community garden at Henderson Park currently
Craven Terrace is walkable to community center current and proposed location

People in community want a water feature
Small amphitheater at Henderson Park

Stormwater as an education tool

20

10



YOUTH FOCUS GROUP

What would you like to see?

Art stations

Quiet study space
Art room

SPACE FOR EVERYONE TO COME TOGETHER AND
Updated kitchen( bigger and more counter)

EVERYONE DOES SOMETHING THEY ENJOY Afterschool activity space
Work with friends

EVERYONE CAN PLAY AND PARTICIPATE Space to hang out
What does your ideal afterschool space look like?

EVERYONE TO GET ALONG WITH EACH OTHER
Things to do with your hands

Team building
Tables and chairs

Private area for homework

Hands on activities( makerspace, legos, robotics, pool, board

games)

Henderson Park Area

All of the activities noted

Public pool

Bike park

Me Skate park

21

ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - SURVEY

Q6 What activities did you participate in/what spaces did you use while at the recreation

center when it was still in use?( check all that apply)

Court Space

ta Poui

ath< rin`

Activity Rooms

m__ Game Room

i. n      

q..

ei.. . t i

22
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ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - SURVEY

Q10 Which of the following elements aze important to you in the design of the Stanley
White Recreation Center?( Choose all that apply)

Well Lit Outdoor Areas

Safety/ Security

Activities and Programs Offered

23

ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - SURVEY

QS VJha spaces woultl you hke ro see in a nesv recreation center"7! Choose your top S
opnons)

Community Meeting Spaces

Catering/ Teaching Kitchen
Media Room

Walking Track

Other( all items checked)

24
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ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS - SURVEY

9 What programs antl acUVRies would you partiapale in at a nee; iecreaUon

cemeR( Choose your rop 5 optwns)

Computer Classes

Cooking/ Nutrition Classes

Senior Activity Spaces

Fitness/ Dance Classes

u+

Other( all items checked)

25

PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 2

SITE DESIGN AND MASTER PLANNING

PROGRAMMING AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

COST CONTROL/ FINANCIAL MODELING

a ':
w

26
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 2
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PROJECT SCHEDULE — Phase 2
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OPINION OF BOARD OF ALDERMEN

PROBABLE COSTS PRESENTATION

ATE iB0 Q h
UBLIC ENGAGEMGNT

SEStION
t

f'.y  • f
y.  

i?E u 1=_

EMFN       O• f
SION tiI.L

20

14



PROGRAMMING
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FLOOR PLAN
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F100A PLAN LVL 1
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FLOOR PLAN

i

i

I

FLOOR PLAN LVL 2
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CONCEPTUAL DESIGN
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CONCEPTUAL DESIGN
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CONCEPTUAL DESIGN
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3RD AVENUE SITE DESIGN CONCEPT
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PROJECT SCHEDULE/ NEXT STEPS

We are currently here
in the project

development process

1

PROGRAMMING CONCEPTUAL DESIGN'     
OPINION OF      BOARD OF ALDERMEN

COMMUNITV ENGAGEMENT
pROBABLE C0575 PRESENTATION

N

r.'

We anticipate

completing the projed

planning and cost

A 
estimates in February
2021
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET j KN

CITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Amend Sections 15- 472, 15-
474 and 15- 486 of the City of New Bern Land Use Ordinance.

Date of Meeting:  02/09/2021 Ward # if applicable: Ward 1

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development

Services

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing: 2/ 9/ 2021

Explanation of Item' Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance
to Amend Sections 15- 472, 15- 474 and 15- 486 of the City of
New Bern Land Use Ordinance.

Actions Needed by Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt Ordinance

Board:

Backup Attached'     Memo, Redline Version of Ordinance, Ordinance

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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303 First Street, P. O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 639- 7587

MEMORANDUM

TO:       Mayor Dana Outlaw, City of New Bern Board of Aldermen

FROM: Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development Services

DATE:  January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:   Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Amend
Sections 15- 472,  15- 474 and 15- 486 of the City of New Bern Land Use
Ordinance.

Background

At their October 13, 2020 meeting, The City of New Bern Board of Aldermen requested
that the Planning and Zoning Board review the Land Use Ordinance regarding height
limitations in the following areas:

1)  The Residential Waterfront Overlay District;
2)  The Commercial Waterfront Overlay District; and
3)  The Riverstation Mixed Use Overlay District.

The Planning and Zoning Board discussed the request at their November 3,  2020,

December 1, 2020 and January 5, 2020 meetings and voted unanimously to make the
following changes:

1)  Amend Section 15- 472 " Residential waterfront overlay district established";
2)  Amend Section 15- 474 "Required conformity to dimensional regulations"; and

3)  Amend Section 15- 486 " Establishment of Riverstation mixed use overlay district;
promulgation of use and design standards"

Recommendation

Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Amend Sections 15-
472, 15- 474 and 15- 486 of the City of New Bern Land Use Ordinance. If the meeting is
conducted virtually, the public will have 24 hours to submit comments.

Please contact Jeff Ruggieri at 639- 7587 should you have any questions or need
additional information.



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A  " LAND USE"  OF THE CODE OF

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN

THAT WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of New Bern unanimously

recommends that certain amendments be made to Appendix A " Land Use" of the Code of

Ordinances of the City of New Bern; and

WHEREAS, the City' s development services staff further recommends approval of said

proposed amendments; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderman of the City of New Bern deems it advisable and in the

public interest to effect said revisions to Appendix A '`Land Use" of the Code of Ordinances of

the City of New Bern.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE

CITY OF NEW BERN:

SECTION 1.  That Section 15- 472. " Residential waterfront overlay district established.'

of Article XXIII. " New Bern Waterfront Overlay Districts" of Appendix A '` Land Use'' of the

Code of Ordinance of the City ofNew Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting section

15- 472 in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 472.  Residential waterfront overlay district established.

The New Bern residential waterfront overlay district is hereby established as a district
which overlays existing zoning districts, the extent and boundaries of which are as indicated on
the official zoning map for the City of New Bern. The boundaries of the New Bern residential
waterfront overlay district are as shown on the official zoning map, which are the same as shown
on the plat entitled " Proposed Residential Waterfront Overlay District Boundary,"" prepared by
the planning department of the City of New Bern, bearing date January 1, 2021, a copy of which
is on file in the office of the director of development services of the City of New Bern."

SECTION 2.  That Section 15- 474. " Required conformity to dimensional regulations." of

Article XXIII. "New Bern Waterfront Overlay Districts" of Appendix A " Land Use'' of the Code

of Ordinance of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting Section 15-

474 in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 474.  Required conformity to dimensional regulations.

a)     Height shall be defined as the vertical distance between inean sea level and the

highest point of a building.

Page 1 of 4



b)     Structures within the residential waterfront overlay district shall observe the
dimensional and other regulations of the land use ordinance of the City of New Bern, except as
follows:

1)      No new building or structure shall exceed a height of 45 feet.

2)      Except as provided in sub- section( d), no existing building or structure may
be increased in height beyond the limitation hereby imposed, but the fact that an existing structure
exceeds this height limitation shall not be construed to make said structure " nonconforming" as
the term is used in this ordinance.

c)     Structures within the commercial waterfront overlay district shall observe the
dimensional and other regulations of the land use ordinance of the City of New Bern, except as
follows:

1)    No new building or structure shall exceed a height of 60 feet. In no event
shall the top of any roof of a building or structure, excluding rooftop appurtenances not intended
as places of occupancy or storage such as spires, cupolas, and towers, exceed a height of 66 feet
above mean sea level. Rooftop appurtenances as described herein shall not exceed a height of 75
feet above mean sea level, and shall not exceed five percent of the horizontal roof area measured

at the cornice line or finished roof surface.

2)    Except as provided in sub- section ( d), no existing building or structure may
be increased in height beyond the limitation hereby imposed, but the fact that an existing structure
exceeds this height limitation shall not be construed to make said structure " nonconforming' as
the term is used in this ordinance.

d)      Existing buildings or structures may exceed the height limitations established
herein if elevated to meet the regulatory flood protection elevation requirements of Article XVI,
provided:

1)      There is no increase of the building envelope, bulk or mass of the original
building or structure; and

2)      The building or structure is not elevated beyond the minimum standards
established by the regulatory flood protection elevation as defined in section 15- 270.

e)    All new buildings or structures, located in the commercial and residential waterfront

overlay districts shall comply with the requirements of Article XXI.

fl All residential or nonresidential buildings hereafter constructed on property in the
city which adjoins the Neuse River, Trent River, or Lawson Creek, and is in the city commercial
or residential waterfront overlay districts, shall be set back a minimum distance of 35 feet from
the edge of the river or creek on which it fronts, measured at a time when the water is at its nonnal

level. " Normal level'' is considered " mean water level,'' as the same is defined in section . 0700,

Technical Appendix 1, " Definition for Public Trust Areas in the North Carolina Administrative

Code," which states:

1)     In bodies of water having less than six inches lunar tidal influence, and
excluding tropical storm and hurricane conditions, mean water level is the average height of all
water levels.

Page 2 of 4



2)     In the absence of more precise data, relatively close approximation of the
mean water level may be assumed to be the physical water level on the site, provided:

i)    The body of water is within its normally established banks or shoreline
which may be determined by inspection of vegetative and soil character indicators.

ii)    No precipitation of one- inch or more has occurred upstream of the

project site in the seven- day period preceding the determination.

iii)    No sustained winds in excess of 12 knots has occurred within a 50

mile radius of the project site in the three-day period preceding the determination.

SECTION 3.   That sub- section ( c) '` Standards." Of Section 15- 486. " Establishment of

Riverstation mixed use overlay district; promulgation of use and design standards.'' of Article

XXIV-A. " Riverstation Mixed Use Overly District'' of Appendix A " Land Use'' of the Code of

Ordinance of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting sub- section

15- 486( c) in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 486.     Establishment of Riverstation mixed use overlay district;
promulgation of use and design standards.

c)    Standards. The following use and design standards and dimensional requirements
are intended to guide new development in a manner that is consistent with the city Urban Design
Plan 2000:

1)    Building types.

i)    Storefront building. Storefront building may accommodate a variety of
uses. A group of storefront buildings can be combined to fonn a mixed-use neighborhood center.
Individual storefront buildings can provide a commercial service close to homes with residential

use on the upper floors. Building height for storefront building shall not exceed 50 feet. Examples
of this building type can be found on Middle Street in the Central Business District.

ii)     Civic building.  Civic buildings are used for public purposes. These
buildings must be designed appropriately to fit within neighborhoods as integral parts of the
community. Their uses include churches, libraries, post offices, schools or government buildings.
Building height varies and is dependent on site, spatial relationships, and impact to adjoining
properties.

iii)    Live/work units. Live/work units combine commercial and residential

uses within a single dwelling unit. Building height for live/work units shall not exceed 50 feet.
Live/work units are similar in design to storefront buildings, however, the emphasis is more on the

residential use, with commercial uses being secondary. Live/work units create minimal or no foot
traffic, with minimal signage.

iv)    Attached housing. Townhouses, duplexes or multi- family. Building
height not to exceed 50 feet.

v)     Detached housing.  Suitable for single- family occupancy.  Building
height not to exceed 50 feet.
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vi)    Other. Other buildings may be considered through a special use permit
process if they are found to be in harmony, scale and character with the general guiding principles
of this section.

SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its adoption.

ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK
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RED- LINED VERSION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A  " LAND USE"  OF THE CODE OF

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN

THAT WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of New Bern recommends

that certain amendments be made to Appendix A '`Land Use" of the Code of Ordinances of the

City of New Bern; and

WHEREAS, the City' s development services staff further recommends approval of said

proposed amendments; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Alderman of the City of New Bern deems it advisable and in the

public interest to effect said revisions to Appendix A '`Land Use" of the Code of Ordinances of

the City of New Bern.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE

CITY OF NEW BERN:

SECTION 1.  That Section 15- 472. " Residential waterfront overlay district established."

of Article XXIII. '`New Bern Waterfront Overlay Districts" of Appendix A '`Land Use" of the

Code of Ordinance of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting section

15- 472 in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 472. Residential waterfront overlay district established.

The New Bern residential waterfront overlay district is hereby established as a district
which overlays existing zoning districts, the extent and boundaries of which are as indicated on
the official zoning map for the City of New Bern. The boundaries of the New Bern residential
waterfront overlay district are as shown on the official zoning inap, which are the saine as shown
on the plat entitled '`Proposed Residential Waterfront Overlay District Boundary." prepared by
the planning department of the City of New Bern, bearing date January l,

0? l, a copy of which is on file in the office of the director of
r';• a ; *:

dcvelopment services of the City of New Bern."

SECTION 2.  That Section 15- 474. '` Required conformity to dimensional regulations." of

Article XXIII. ' Ǹew Bern Waterfront Overlay Districts" of Appendix A " Land Use" of the Code

of Ordinance of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting Section 15-

474 in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 474. Required conformitv to dimensional regulations.

a)     Height shall be defined as the vertical distance between mean sea level and the

highest point of a building.

Page 1 of 4



b)     Structures within the residential waterfront overlay district shall observe the
dimensional and other regulations of the land use ordinance of the City of New Bern, except as
follows:

1)  1)      No ne building or structure shall exceed a height of- 4 feet.

2)      Except as E r cicd in suh- scct<>>Z ( d). no existing building or structure may
be increased in height beyond the limitation hereby imposed, but the fact that an existing structure
exceeds this height limitation shall not be construed to make said structure " nonconforming" as

the term is used in this ordinance.

c)     Structures within the commercial waterfront overlay district shall observe the
dimensional and other regulations of the land use ordinance of the City of New Bern, except as
follows:

1)    No ne building or structure shall exceed a hei ht of 60 feet. In no event
shall the top of any roof of a building or structure, excluding rooftop appurtenances not intended
as places of occupancy or storage such as spires, cupolas, and towers, exceed a height of 66 feet
above mean sea level. Rooftop appurtenances as described herein shall not exceed a height of 75
feet above mean sea level, and shall not exceed five percent of the horizontal roof area measured
at the cornice line or finished roof surface.

2)    I tcept as prc v cleci m , ub-, cet n d. no existing building ar structure may
be increased in height beyond the limitation hereby imposed, but the fact that an existing structure
exceeds this height limitation shall not be construed to make said structure ``nonconforming" as
the term is used in this ordinance.

td)      Eristiil b nlcli lb ur tructures ma  c; ccci th  h i l t limitat uil  cstahlishccl

herein if elevated to meet the regulatory tlood rotection elevation requirements of Article XVI,

provided:

1)      There is no increase of the buildin; envelope, bulk or mass of the ori inal

buildin or structure; and

2)      The buildin or structure is not elevated beyond the minimum standards

established bv the re; ulatorv flood protection elevation as defined in section 15- 270.

ee)    All new buildings or structures, located in the commercial and residential waterfront

overlay districts shall comply with the requirements of Article XXI.
efl All residential or nonresidential buildings hereafter constructed on property in the

city which adjoins the Neuse River, Trent River, or Lawson Creek, and is in the city commercial
or residential waterfront overlay districts, shall be set back a minimum distance of 35 feet from
the edge of the river or creek on which it fronts, measured at a time when the water is at its nonnal
level. " Normal level" is considered ``mean water level,'" as the same is defined in section . 0700,

Technical Appendix 1, " Definition for Public Trust Areas in the North Carolina Administrative

Code," which states:

1)     In bodies of water having less than six inches lunar tidal influence, and
excluding tropical storm and hurricane conditions, mean water level is the average height of all
water levels.
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2)    In the absence of mare precise data, relatively close approximation of the
mean water level may be assumed to be the physical water level on the site, provided:

i)    The body of water is within its normally established banks or shoreline
which may be determined by inspection of vegetative and soil character indicators.

ii)    No precipitation of one- inch or more has occurred upstream of the

project site in the seven- day period preceding the determination.

iii)    No sustained winds in excess of 12 knots has occurred within a 50

mile radius of the project site in the three- day period preceding the determination.

SECTION 3.   That sub- section ( c) " Standards." Of Section 15- 486. " Establishment of

Riverstation mixed use overlay district; prornulgation of use and design standards." of Article

XXIV-A. " Riverstation Mixed Use Overly District" of Appendix A " Land Use" of the Code of

Ordinance of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby amended by deleting sub- section

15- 486( c) in its entirety and inserting in its stead the following:

Section 15- 486.     Establishment of Riverstation mixed use overlay district;
promulgation of use and design standards.

c)    Standards. The following use and design standards and dimensional requirements
are intended to guide new development in a manner that is consistent with the city Urban Design
Plan 2000:

1)    Building types.

i)    Storefront building. Storefront building may accommodate a variety of
uses. A group of storefront buildings can be combined to form a mixed-use neighborhood center.
Individual storefront buildings can provide a commercial service close to homes with residential

use on the upper floors. Buildingheight for storefront building  ',   r '-° - 
shall

not cxcccci  teet. Examples of this building type can be found on Middle Street in the Central
Business District.

ii)     Civic building. Civic buildings are used far public purposes. These
buildings must be designed appropriately to fit within neighborhoods as integral parts of the
community. Their uses include churches, libraries, post offices, schools or government buildings.
Building height varies and is dependent on site, spatial relationships, and impact to adjoining
properties.

iii)    Live/work units. Live/work units combine commercial and residential

uses within a single dwelling unit. Building height for live/work units ; "
T. ^ ,. ,, r'„-"°>

r>hall n t cscecci ( fcet. Live/work units are similar in design to storefront buildings,

however, the emphasis is more on the residential use, with commercial uses being secondary.
Live/work units create minimal or no foot traffic, with minimal signage.

iv)    Attached housing. Townhouses, duplexes or multi- family. Building
height not to exceed *-> O fcct.
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v)     Detached housing.  Suitable for single- family occupancy.  Building
height not to exceed      ',"°*"~"°  feet.

vi)    Other. Other buildings may be considered through a special use permit
process if they are found to be in harmony, scale and character with the general guiding principles
of this section.

SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its adoption.

ADOPTED THIS DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK
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Item 3D:  Consideration of a request to

review height regulations in the R- 6

Zoning District,  Residential & Commercial

Waterfront Overlay Districts and
Riverstation mixed use overlay district

from the Board of Aldermen.

1

Proposed Residential Waterfront Overlay
District
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Section 15- 474 Required conformity to
dimensional regulations

b)  Structures within the residential waterfront

overlay district shall observe the dimensional
and other regulations of the land use ordinance

of the City of New Bern, except as follows:
1)  No building or structure shall exceed a height of

44-€ee 45 feet.

3

Elevation Exemption

Existing structures may exceed the height limitations
established in the Residential and Commercial Waterfront

Overlays ( section 15- 474) if elevated to meet the

regulatory flood protection elevation ( section 15- 270),
provided;

A) There is no increase of the building envelope, bulk
or mass of the original structure.

B) The structure is not elevated beyond the minimum

standards established by the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation

4
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Example: Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation
RFPE):

8' base flood elevation + 2' freeboard =  10' RFPE

s.     
M„ o,.,, o
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r_ M.     

5

Riverstation Mixed Use Overlay District
Design Standards — Proposed Changes.

Change the Riverstation Mixed Use Overlay
District design standards to reflect R- 6 Height

Standards ( 50 feet).

6
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Example:  Section 15- 486.  - Establishment of

Riverstation mixed use overlay district;
promulgation of use and design standards.

c) Standards. The following use and design standards and
dimensional requirements are intended to guide new development
in a manner that is consistent with the city Urban Design Plan 2000:

1)  Building types.
i) Storefront building. Storefront building may accommodate a variety of

uses. A group of storefront buildings can be combined to form a mixed- use
neighborhood center. Individual storefront buildings can provide a
commercial service close to homes with residential use on the upper floors.
Building height for storefront building`••`'-~-' shall

not exceed 50 feet. Examples of this building type can be found on Middle
Street in the Central Business District.

ii) Civic building. Civic buildings are used for public purposes. These
buildings must be designed appropriately to fit within nei9hborhoods as
integral parts of the community. Their uses include churches, libraries, post
offices, schools or government buildings. Building height varies and is
dependent on site, spatial relationships, and impact to adjoining properties.

7

Example  (continued)

iii)  Live/ work units. Live/ work units combine commercial and

residential uses within a single dwelling unit. Building height for
live/ work units  "~.. '., ` `  shall not exceed

50 feet. Live/ work units are similar in design to storefront
buildings, however, the emphasis is more on the residential use,

with commercial uses being secondary. Live/ work units create
minimal or no foot traffic, with minimal signage.

iv Attached housing. Townhouses, duplexes or multi- family.
uilding height not to exceed three s er es 50 feet.

v)  Detached housing. Suitable for single- family occupancy.
Building height not to exceed ^^ "'

F`^ 50 feet.

vi)  Other. Other buildings may be considered through a special
use permit process if they are found to be in harmony, scale and
character with the general guiding principles of this section.

8
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET L1 iti
GITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Conduct a Public hearing to Receive Public Comment on the Community Development Block
Grant ( CDBG) Amended 2020 Annual Action Plan.

Date of Meeting:  02/ 09/2021 Ward # if applicable: N/ A

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Amanda Ohlensehlen, Cominunity and
Economic Develo ment Mana er

Call for Public Hearing:  OYes No Date of Public Hearing: 02/ 9/ 2021

Explanation of Item•       The U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
HUD) requires Entitlement Cities to submit an Annual Action

Plan detailing the intended use of CDBG funding for the 2020
year. Due to the current pandemic, the City is receiving an
additional CDBG-CV allocation. The previously approved plan
will be updated to detail how these special funds will be used.

This agenda item calls for a public hearing to receive public
comment on the plan.

Actions Needed by Conduct a Public Hearing

Board:

Backup Attached'    Memo, Amended CDBG Annual Action Plan, PowerPoint

Presentation

Is item time sensitive?  Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting?  Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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303 First Street, P. O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 639- 7587

MEMORANDUM

TO:      Mayor Outlaw and Board of Aldermen

FROM: Amanda Ohlensehlen, Community and Economic Development Manager

DATE:  January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:   Conduct a Public hearing to Receive Public Comment on the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Amended 2020 Annual Action Plan.

Backqround Information:

The U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ( HUD) requires Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Cities submit their Annual Action Plan as
an application for funding under the program.  The plan provides a summary of the
actions, activities, and the specific federal and non-federal resources that will be used to

address the priority needs and specific goals identified in the Strategic Plan section of
the Consolidated Plan for the 2020 year.  The 2020- 2021 Annual Action Plan was
approved by the Board of Aldermen on September 22,  2020.  Due to the ongoing
coronavirus pandemic, Entitlement Cities received an additional allocation of CDBG- CV

funds that were released after HUD approved the City' s plan.

CDBG staff is amending the plan to include HUD' s third round of CDBG- CV allocations,
of which an additional $ 194,483 has been awarded to the City of New Bern. To- date,
the City has received a cumulative amount of $ 346, 735 in CDBG- CV funds.  HUD

requires that these special funds be used to prevent,  prepare for,  or respond to the
COVID- 19 pandemic.   Funds will be granted to local nonprofits to provide emergency

rent and utility assistance to low-moderate income families who have delinquent bills
due to impacts of the pandemic.

This public hearing will provide an opportunity for citizens to provide any comments or
concerns related to the proposed amendment. Any comments from the public hearing
will be summarized and added to the plan which will be submitted to HUD for review
and approval.



Recommendation:

Conduct a Public hearing to Receive Public Comment on the Community Development
Block Grant ( CDBG) Amended 2020 Annual Action Plan.  If the meeting is conducted
virtually, the public will have 24 hours to submit written comments.

If you have any questions or need additional information,  please contact Amanda

Ohlensehlen at 252- 639- 7580.
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Development Services

2020 CDBG Annual Action Plan Substantial

Amendment

February 9, 2021

1

Definition/ Purpose

Annual Action Plan (AAP): concise summary of the actions,
activities, and the specific federal and non- federal resources that

will be used each year to address the priority needs and specific
goals identified by the Consolidated Plan.

Purpose: Each year, the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ( HUD) requires Entitlement Cities submit their

Annual Action Plan as an application for funding under the
program.

2

1



Substantial Amendment

A substantial amendment is constituted by any addition of a
new activity or new priority not previously described, any
cancellation of an activity category, or deletion of a priority, or
change in allocation, or distribution of funding, when that
charge is equal to or greater than 20% of the City' s current
fiscal year budget.

3

Update to Allocation

2020 CDBG Entitlement Allocation

Decreased from $ 258,814 to $258,775 as of November 9, 2020.

Deducted $ 39.00 from the General Administration Fund

Small deduction required no citizen participation

Additional CDBG- CV Allocation

Received $ 194,483 from HUD' s third round of CDBG- CV allocations

CDBG- CV cumulative amount is $ 346, 735

4
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CDBG- CV:  Rent,  Mortgage,  Utility Assistance

CDBG-CV: $346,735 (Total Allocation)

Will fund two nonprofit organizations

Religious Community Services: $ 185, 785

Catholic Charities: $ 126,277

Program Administration: $ 34,673

Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance to low-moderate
households with delinquent bills due to COVID- 19

Homeless prevention

5

CDBG 2020 Annual Action Plan Summary

Entitlement Fund : $ 258,775

1 .   General Administration - $ 51, 723

2.   Housing Rehabilitation - $ 107,052

3.   Duffyfield Stormwater Project - $ 100, 000

CDBG- CV Fund: $ 346,735.00

1 .   General Administration - $ 34,673

2.   Rent, Mortgage, Utility Assistance - $ 312, 062

6
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Questions?
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1 i'`

CITY OF NEW BERN

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:

The City of New Bern has prepared a substantial amendment to its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan.  The

purpose substantial amendment will enable the City to access the CARES Act funds. The City received two

2J allocations of the Community Development Block Grant - Coronavirus ( CDBG- CVJ funds. The first
allocation received by the City was $ 152,252 and in the third round of funding, the City received an

allocation of$ 194,483 for a total allocation of$346,735 CDBG-CVfunds. The City of New Bern is amending
its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan by amending and adding the following projects/ activities for the CARES Act
funds: CDBG- CV-20-01 CV-CDBG- CV Administration— increase this project/ acfivity budqet by$ 19,448 for
a new project/ activity budget of$ 34,673; and CDBG- CV-20-02 CV-Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance

increase this project/ activity budget by $ 175 035 for a new project/ activity budget of$ 312,062. In
addition,  the City has added mortgage as.s ance to pay for back mortgage payments to this
project/ activity description.

x;       

Executive Summary

AP- 05 Executive S nmary   ` CFR 91. 200(c), 91. 220(b)

1.       Introduction W

The City of New Bern, North Carolina is a Federal entitlement community under the U. S.
Department of Housing & Urban Development' s ( HUD) Community Development Block Grant

CDBG) Program. In compliance with the HUD regulations, the City of New Bern has prepared this

FY 2020 Annual Action Plan for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. This Annual

Action Plan is a strategic plan for the implementation of the City' s Federal Programs for housing,

community, and economic development within the City of New Bern. This is the second Annual

Action Plan under the City' s FY 2019- 2023 Five- Year Consolidated Plan.

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan is a collaborative effort of the City of New Bern, the community

at large, social service agencies, housing providers, community development agencies, and

economic development groups. The planning process was accomplished through public meetings,

statistical data, review of the City' s Comprehensive Plan, and other community plans.

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021)  1
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Revised Available Funds:

During the FY 2020 Program Year, the City of New Bern will receive the following Federal funds:

CDBG: $ 258, 775.00

CDBG- CV Funds-$ 346,735. 00

Total: $ 605, 510.00

FY 2020 CDBG Programs Budget:

The City of New Bern proposes to undertake the following activities with the FY 2020 CDBG Funds:

CD- 20-01 General Administration-$ 51, 723. 00

CD- 20-02 Housing Rehabilitation in the Five Points Area-   07,052. 00

CD- 20-03 Duffyfield Stormwater Project-$ 100,000.0

Revised FY 2020 CDBG- CV Programs Budget:       

s

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act { CARES Act), Public Law 116- 136, was

signed into law on Friday, March 27, 2020. HUD received$ 3. 064 billion in funds through the CARES

Act for the Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG- CV), Emergency Solutions Grant ( ESG-

CV), and Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS ( HOPWA- CV) programs. The City of New

Bern anticipates receiving CARES Act funds and allocating them using the FY 2020 Annual Action
Plan.

The City of New Bern proposes to undertake the following activities with the FY 2020 CDBG- CV
Grant funds:

CV- 20-01 CV-CDBG- CV Administration-$ 34,673. 00

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance-$ 312,062. 00

Maps

The following maps which illustrate the demographic characteristics of the City of New Bern:

Percent White Population by Block Group

Percent Minority Population by Block Group

Number of People Aged 65+ by Block Group

Percent Population Age 65+ by Block Group

Population Density by Block Group

Housing Density by Block Group

Percent Owner-Occupied Housing Units by Block Group

Percent Renter-Occupied Housing Units by Block Group

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021)  2
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Percent Vacant Housing Units by Block Group

Low/ Moderate Income Percentage by Block Group

Low/ Moderate Income and High Minority Concentration by Block Group

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021)  3
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Population Density by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC
POPULATION DENSITY BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent White Population by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

PERCENTAGE OF WHITE POPULATION BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent Minority Population by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC
MINORITY POPULATION PERCENTAGE BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent Population Age 65+ by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC
PERCENTAGE AGED 65 AND OVER BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Population Age 65+ by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

NUMBER OF RESIDENTS AGED 65+ BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Housing Density by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC
HOUSING UNIT DENSITY BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent Owner-Occupied Housing Units by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC
OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent Renter-Occupied Housing Units by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

RENTER-OCCUPIED HOUSING BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Percent Vacant Housing Units by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

VACANT HOUSING UNIT PERCENT BY BLOCK GROUPS
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Low/ Moderate Income Percentage by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

2020 CENSUS TRACTS/ BLOCK GROUPS MAP
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Low/ Moderate Income Percentage w/ Minority Overlay by Block Group

CITY OF NEW BERN, CRAVEN COUNTY, NC

LOW/MOD INCOME AND MINORITY POPULATION MAP
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2.       Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan

This could be a restaiement of items or a rable listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to

another location. It may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs
assessment, the housing market analysis or the strategic plan.

The " Vision" of this Five-Year Consolidated Plan is to serve as a consolidated planning document,

an application, and a strategic plan for the City of New Bern. The following goals and objectives
have been identified for the five-year period of FY 2019 through FY 2023.

This is the City of New Bern' s second Five Year Consolidated Plan as an entitlement community.

The " Vision" of this Five Year Consolidated Plan is to serve as a consolidated planning document,

an application, and a strategic plan for the City of New Bern. As part of the Five Year Consolidated

Plan, the community must develop goals and objectives. The following strategies with subsequent

goals and priorities have been identified for the City of new Bern for the period of FY 2019 through

FY 2023 for the use of Community Development Block Grant( CDBG) funds:

HOUSING STRATEGY- HSS

Goal:  

Improve, preserve, and expand the supply of affordable housing for low- and moderate- income

persons and families living in the City of New Bern.

Objectives:    

HSS- 1 Flomeownership- Promote and assist in developing homeownership opportunities
for low- and moderate- income persons& families.

HSS- 2 Housing Construction - Promote and assist in the development of affordable

housing, both rental and sales housing.
HSS- 3 Housing Rehabilitation - Promote and assist in the preservation of existing owner

and renter occupied housing stock in the City.

HSS- 4 Fair Housing - Affirmatively further fair housing by promoting fair housing choice

throughout the City of New Bern.

HOMELESS STRATEGY- HOM

Goal:

Improve the living conditions and services for homeless persons and families in the City of New

Bern and eliminate unfair housing practices that may lead to homelessness.

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021) 15
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Objectives:

HOM- 1 Housing - Promote and assist in developing housing opportunities for homeless

persons and families, and those who are at- risk of becoming homeless.

HOM- 2 Operations/ Support - Promote and assist in program support services for the

homeless.

HOM- 3 Homeless Prevention - Promote and assist in anti- eviction and prevention of

unfair housing practices which may contribute to homelessness.

HOM-4 Rapid Rehousing- Promote and assist in providing housing options for residents

of the City of New Bern displaced by natural disasters or evictions.

SPECIAL NEEDS STRATEGY- SNS

GoaL•

Improve, preserve, and expand facilities for persons with special needs and the disabled in the

City of New Bern.

Objectives

SNS- 1 Housing - Promote and assist to increase the supply of affordable, decent, safe,

sound, and accessible housing for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with

other special needs through rehabilitation of existing housing arid new construction of

accessible housing.

SNS- 2 Social Services - Promote and assist in supporting social service programs and

facilities for the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons with other special needs.

SNS- 3 Accessibility- Promote and assist in making accessibility improvements to owner

occupied housing through rehabilitation and improve renter occupied housing by

promoting reasonable accommodations for the physically disabled.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY- CDS

Goal:

Improve, preserve, and create new public and community facilities, infrastructure, and public

services to ensure the quality of life for all residents of the City of New Bern.

Objectives:

CDS- 1 Infrastructure- Improve the City' s infrastructure through reconstruction and new

construction of streets, walks, curbs, ADA ramps, retaining walls, sewer, water, storm

water management, bridges, bike trails, green infrastructure, etc.

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021) 16
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CDS- 2 Community Facilities- Improve the City' s parks, recreational centers, community
centers, and public community facilities through rehabilitation and new construction.

CDS- 3 Public Services - Improve and increase public safety programs for the youth, the

elderly,  disabled,  and target income population,  including food programs and

social/ welfare programs throughout the City.
CDS- 4 Public Transit - Promote the development of additional bus routes, bus shelters,

and improve public transportation for low- and moderate- income persons.

CDS- 5 Clearance  -  Remove and eliminate slum and blighting conditions through

demolition of vacant and abandoned structures throughout the City.
CDS- 6 Architectural Barriers - Remove architectural barriers and make public and

community facilities accessible to the physically disabled.
CDS- 7 Public Safety - Improve public safety through upgrades to facilities, purchase of

new equipment, fire fighting and prevention, crime p['evention, community policing, and
ability to respond to emergency situations.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY- EDS       

Goal:   

Increase and promote job creation, job retention, self-sufficiency, education, job training,
technical assistance, and economic empowerment of iow- and moderate- income residents of the

City of New Bern. p=:

Objectives:     

EDS- 1 Employment  -  Support and encourage new job creation,  job retention,

employment, and job training services.

EDS- 2 Financial Assistance- Support business and commercial growth through expansion

and new development with technical assistance and low interest loan programs.

EDS- 3 Redevelopment Program- Plan and promote the development and redevelopment

of vacant commercial and industrial sites, and facilities, and the revitalization efforts in

the Greater Five Points Redevelopment Area and other residential neighborhoods.

ADMINISTRATION, PLANNING, AND MANAGEMENT STRATEGY- APM

Goal:

Provide sound and professional planning, administration, oversight and management of Federal,
state, and local funded programs.

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021) 17
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Objectives:

APM- 1 Overall Coordination - Provide program management and oversight for the

successful administration of Federal, state, and local funded programs, including planning

services for special studies,  environmental clearance,  fair housing,  performance

evaluation, monitoring; and compliance with all Federal, state, and local laws and

regulations.

3.       Evaluation of past performance

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or

projects.

Each year, the City of New Bern prepares and submits its CAPER to HUD within ninety (90) days
after the start of the new program year. The FY 2018 CAPER is the most recent CAPER to be

completed by the City of New Bern. The CAPER was approved by HUD on October 30, 2019. The

City obligated 100% of its CDBG funds for the benefit of low- and moderate- income persons. The

City expended $ 0.00 for public service activities, which was below the 15% public services cap.

The City obligated $ 48, 500.00, which met the 20% administrative cap at 19. 03%. The City' s

drawdown ratio was 2. 38, which is above the 1. 5 HUD requirement. The City of New Bern has

substantially amended its FY 2016, 2017, and 2018 Annual Action Plans to reallocate funding to

the Duffyfield Stormwater project. The City intends to expend all of its funds on the project in a

timely manner before the FY 2019 CAPER period, though the COVID- 19 pandemic has caused
delays in project construction.

4.       Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process

Summary from citizen participation section of plan.

The Annual Action Plan has many components to gather citizen participation which includes:

citizen participation plan; requests for proposals for funding( RFP' s) from agencies/ organizations;

citizen participation process; Consultation Process; and the development of the annual action

plan. Each component of this plan principally serves the needs of the low- and moderate- income

population in the City.  The City emailed out CDBG funding applications to its list of

agencies/ organizations. This list is updated regularly.

The City developed the plan based on citizen input,  the information obtained from

agencies/ organizations, and meetings with other City staff and departments. A " draft plan" and

budget are annually prepared and placed on public display for a 30- day review and comment

period. This is advertised in a local newspaper of general circulation in the City, with the times,

dates, and locations where the plan may be examined. A public hearing on the plan was also

advertised and conducted. Citizen, agency, and organization comments were either incorporated
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into the plan or if not included, the reason why the comments were not accepted are included in
the plan.

The City of New Bern held a virtual public needs hearing on August 17, 2020. This hearing provided
residents, agencies, and organizations with the opportunity to discuss the City' s CDBG Program

and to provide suggestions for future priorities and activities. The City of New Bern advertised the

public needs hearing in the " Sun Journal" on Monday, August 6, 2020.

The Second Public Hearing Notice was published on Friday, August 28, 2020 in the " Sun Journal"

and the Second Public Hearing was held on Tuesday, September 8, 2020. During the Second Public
Hearing, the residents were given the opportunity to comment on the draft version of the FY 2020
Annual Action Plan.

The" FY 2020 Annual Action Plan" was on display for a 30- day period beginning Friday, August 28,
2020 and ending Monday, September 28, 2020. The availability for review of the" draft plan" was

advertised in the local newspapers and the plan was on display at the City of New Bern' s website
htt s:  www. newbernnc. ov de artments develo ent servicesLndex.php.

Schedule:

The following schedule was used in the preparation of the FY 2020 Action Plan:

Publish Notice of Needs Hearing— Monday, August 6, 2020

First Public Hearing—Thursday, August 17, 2020 at 5: 00 PM in the Development Services

Office and virtually
Publish Notice of Display of Draft and Public Hearing in the Newspaper— Friday, August
28, 2020

Annual Action Plan on Display— Friday, August 28, 2020

Second Public Hearing— Friday, August 28, 2020 at 6: 00 PM in the City Hall Courtroom
before the Board of Aldermen

End of Annual Action Plan on Display— Monday, September 28, 2020

Board of Aldermen Adopts FY 2020 Annual Action Plan— Tuesday, September 22, 2020

Submission of Annual Action Plan to HUD on or before— October 2, 2020

A more detailed analysis and description of the citizen participation process is contained in Section

PR- 15 Citizen Participation.

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:

The City of New Bern placed the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan- Substantial Amendment on its website

for public display from Monday, February 1, 2021 through Wednesday, February 17, 2021. The City
held a Public Hearing on the Substantial Amendment on Tuesday, February 9, 2021 at 6: 00 PM. The
public hearing was held in the City Hall Courtroom, 300 Pollock Street, New Bern, NC 28560. The
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purpose of the Public Hearing was to present the Substantial Amendment to the residents for the
FY 2020 CDBG- CV funds.

5.       Summary of public comments

This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen

Participation section of the Con Plan.

A public hearing was held to seek input from interested residents and community organizations

for the FY 2020 funds on Thursday, August 17, 2020 at 5: 00 PM at the Development Services Office

and virtually. The City of New Bern advertised in the " Sun Journal" on Monday, August 6, 2020.

There was a total of two (2) persons in attendance including the City staff.

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan was placed on public display on Friday, August 28, 2020 and a

Second Public Hearing was held in the City Hall Courtroom before the Board of Aldermen on

Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 6: 00 PM. A newspaper notice announcing that these documents

were placed on public display was published on Friday, August 28, 2020 in the " Sun Journal," a

newspaper of general circulation in the area. Comments that were received at the Second Public

Hearing are included in the Citizen Participation Section of the Annual Action Plan, which also

includes the newspaper ads, sign- in sheets, agendas, and summaries of the meeting minutes.

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:

Comments received at the Public Hearing and during the display period are included in the Citizen
Participation section at the end of this plan.

6.       Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them

All comments and suggestions that were received have been accepted and incorporated into the

planning documents.

7.       Summary

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan for the City of New Bern includes the City' s CDBG Program and

outlines which activities the City will undertake during the program year beginning July 1, 2020

and ending June 30, 2021. This is the City' s second year of the FY 2019-2023 Five- Year

Consolidated Plan.

During the FY 2020 Program Year, the City of New Bern, North Carolina anticipates the following
Federal financial resources:
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CDBG:$ 258,775. 00

CDBG- CV Funds-$ 152, 252.00

Total:$ 411, 027.00

During the FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV Program Year, the City of New Bern proposes to address

the following strategies from its Five- Year Consolidated Plan:

Housing Strategy;

Community Development Strategy; and

Administration, Planning, and Management Strategy

A" draft" of the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan was placed on public display on the City' s website at
https:// www.newbernnc.gov/ departments/ development services/ index.php. The display period

started on Friday, August 28, 2020 through Monday, September 28, 2020 for a 30-day display

period.     In addition,    the City put the draft Plan on its website

htt s:  www.newbernnc. ov de artments develo ment servi index.  h  ). The Final Public

Hearing was held on Thursday, August 17, 2020 at 5: 00 PM in the~      all Courtroom before the

Board of Alderman to discuss the proposed attivities and solicit resident comments. Upon

completion of the 30- day comment period, the City of New Bern submitted the FY 2020 Annual

Action Plan to the U. S. Department of Nousing and Urban Development Greensboro Office on or

before October 2, 2020.

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:  

The City of New Bern is amending its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan to access the CARES Act funds.

The City will receive two ( 2) allocations of the Community Development Block Grant- Coronavirus

CDBG- CV) funds. The first allocation received by the City was$ 152, 252 and in the third round of

funding, the City received an allocation of$ 194,483 for a total allocation of$ 346, 735 CDBG- CV

funds. The City of New Bern amended its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan by adding the following

projects/ activities for the CARES Act funds:

FY 2020 CDBG- CV Budget-

CV- 20- OS CV- CDBG- CV Administration-$ 34, 673. 00

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance-$ 312, 062.00

Total CDBG- CV:$ 346,735. 00

To expedite the disbursement of the City' s FY 2020 CDBG- CV funds, via 24 CFR 5. 110, the CARES

Act authorizes HUD to grant waivers to the public notice,  public comment,  and citizen

participation plan requirements found in 24 CFR 91. 1051( 2) and ( k), 24 CFR 91. 1151( 2) and ( i) and

24 CFR 91. 401. In accordance with the City of New Bern' s Citizen Participation Plan and HUD' s
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regulatory requirement waivers (which reduce the minimum 30- day public comment period to a

5- day period).

The City of New Bern amended its Citizen Participation Plan by adding a section on Emergency

Disasters to address the City' s inability to hold open public hearings in person. The City amended
the language to allow virtuat public hearings through conference calls or an online video

conference call platform as long as the public is able to provide public comments during the virtual

public hearing. The City is not able to place its documents on public display because of the

coronavirus distancing order by the Governor of North Carolina. The City attached the plan to the

City' s website at http:// www.newbern- nc. or and at the following location during normal

operational hours: Office of the Department of Development Services, 303 First Street, New Bern,

NC 28560.

A copy of the Substantial Amendment was on public display for viewing on the City' s website and

at the Office of the Department of Development Services for a period of at least 5 days beginning

on Monday, February 1, 2021 and ending on Wednesday, February 17, 2021.

The Substantial Amendment was reviewed and adopted at the City' s Board of Alderman meeting

on Tuesday, February 23, 2021.  The FY 2020 Action Plan — Substantial Amendment was re-

submitted in IDIS to HUD after it was approved by City' s Board of Alderman.
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PR- 05 Lead & Responsible Agencies — 91. 200( b)

1.       Agency/ entity responsible for preparing/ administering the Consolidated Plan

Describe the agency/ entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible

for administration of each grant program and funding source.

New f3ern Uevelopment Services Department

New Bern Development Services Department

Table 1- Responsible Agencies

Narrative( optional)

The City' s Development Services Department is the Lead Agencythat maintains and administers

the City' s CDBG funds and responsibilities. The City prepares the Five- Year Consolidated Plans,
Annual Action Plans,  Environmental Review Records  ( ERR' s),  the Consolidated Annual

Performance and Evaluation Reports ( CAPER), monitoring, pay requests, contracting, IDIS, and

oversight of the programs on a day to day basis. In addition, the City of New Bern has retained

the services of a private planning consulting firm to assist the City on an as needed basis.

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information

Ms. D' Aja Fulmore

Community Development Coordinator

City of New Bern' s Development Services Department

Economic and Community Development Office

303 First Street, PO Box 1129, New Bern, NC 28563

Phone: ( 252) 639- 7586

Fax: ( 252) 636- 2146

Email: fulmored@newbernnc.gov

Website: http:// www.newbernnc. ov
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AP- 10 Consultation —91. 100, 91. 200( b), 91. 215( I)

1.       Introduction

While preparing the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan, the City of New Bern consulted with the Housing

Authority of the City of New Bern, Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc., social services and housing
agencies, and member organizations of Region 13 of the North Carolina Balance of State

Continuum of Care.

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction' s activities to enhance coordination between

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health and
service agencies( 91. 215( I))

The City of New Bern works with the following agencies to enhance coordination:

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern — Improvements to public housing

communities.

Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc.— Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.

Social Services Agencies—funds to improve services to low and moderate income persons.

Housing Providers — funds to rehabilitate and develop affordable housing and provide

housing options for low- and moderate- income households.

Community and Economic Development Agencies — funds to improve services to low and

moderate income persons.

As part of the CDBG application planning process, local agencies/ organizations are invited to

submit proposals for CDBG funds for eligible activities. These groups participate in the planning

process by attending the public heaYngs, consultation via phone and/ or email, and submission of

funding applications.

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of

homeless persons ( particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families

with children,  veterans,  and unaccompanied youth)  and persons at risk of

homelessness.

The leadership of Region 13 is responsible for acting as a member of the Balance of State CoC

Steering Committee, the Coordinated Entry lead for the Region, the Point- in- Time and Housing

Inventory Count lead for the region, and reviewing projects and processing state ESG grants for

the regional geography.

Currently, Religious Community Services conducts its own referrals for services, and receives
information from other agencies, shelters, police departments, hospitals, and churches. Once

referred, Religious Community Services places Veterans first in their Emergency Shelters, and
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follows up by filling beds with other families or individuals. All referrals to Religious Community
Services through other entities are required to check with the local police department first.

Religious Community Services has recently opened a Veterans transitional shelter in the area to

complement its family emergency and transitional housing shelters.

The Point in Time Counts for Sheltered and Unsheltered homeless persons are completed on a

designated date twice a year in the months of lanuary and July. The results of the counts are
available to the public on the North Carolina Balance of State CoC website.

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction' s area

in determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and

evaluate outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop

funding, policies and procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS

ESG — Coastal Women' s Shelter and Religious Community Services receives ESG funds from the

state. ESG funds for member counties and cities in the North Carolina Balance of State CoC are

administered through the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services Division of

Aging and Adult Services. The CoC is consulted by NCDHHS regarding past program performance
and involvement of ESG applicants. The CoC provides input on ESG applications and rates, ranks

and reviews projects. This includes homeless service providers, Community Action Partnerships
CAPs), local/ county/ state governments, Housing & Redevelopment Authorities, and domestic

violence, aging, mental health, and faith- based organizations.

Develop Performance Standards and Evaluate Outcomes— The North Carolina Balance of State

CoC' s written standards focus on a Housing First Model and follow the best practices of that

model. The written standards utilize several strategies to increase the number of people who exit

Emergency Shelter,  Transitional Housing,  and Rapid Re- housing to Permanent Housing

destinations. Evaluations of these standards will be based on the length- of-time homeless

measure of an individual orfamily who resides in emergency shelter, transitional housing, or rapid

re- housing. The CoC seeks to make progress on the turnover rate of individuals and families, the

targeting of individuals and families based on risk, and the number of positive exits into

Permanent Housing.

HMIS — Throughout different times of the year, the CoC and the HMIS Lead work together to

assess data quality throughout the CoC.  This includes working on the Annual Homeless

Assessment Report (AHAR), the Point In Time ( PIT) count, project reviews/ ranking, and working

with individuals programs while completing their Annual Performance Reports( APRs). The system

ensures data quality by requiring many of the universal data elements upon enrolling a participant

into a program. Additionally, the system has an alert system with exit date reminders. The work

flow of data entry has been updated to improve data quality. The HMIS Lead supports users

through the staffing of a Help Desk and ongoing training opportunities. Agency users are able to

run self- reports to assess their program' s data quality. CoC- funded organizations are motivated
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to provide good data quality, because the CoC has moved toward a data- driven project review

and ranking system. Projects with poor data quality are more likely to show poor outcomes, which

can impact their funding.

2.       Describe Agencies, groups, organizations, and others who participated in the process

and describe the jurisdiction' s consultations with housing, social service agencies and

other entities

City of New Bern

I   Other government- Local

i
Grantee Department

I i Housing Need Assessment

I Homeless Needs- Chronically homeless

I      I Homeless Needs- Families with children

i Homelessness Needs- Veterans

I
Hometessness Needs- Unaccompanied youth

I Homelessness Strategy

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Market Analysis

I Economic Development

Anti- poverty Strategy

Lead- based Paint Strategy

Community Development Strategy

I',       
i::..

The City of New Bern was the lead entity on the

Five Year Consolidated Plan. The City reviewed its

program and funded activities that met the goals

and objectives as outlined in the City' s Five Year

Consolidated Plan.

New Bern Housing Authority

N

Housing

PHA

Housing Need Assessment

Public Housing Needs

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Anti- poverty Strategy

Lead- based Paint Strategy

Community Development Strategy
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The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern was

contacted to determine the housing needs of its

very low- income clients. The City reviewed its
M   "     - ' -     -     -•   -     program and funded activities that met the goals

and objectives as outlined in the City' s Five Year

Consolidated Plan to address these housing needs.

Habitat for Humanity of Craven County
I

I Housing

Services- Housing

Services- homeless

Housing Need Assessment
I Homeless Needs- Chronically homeless

Homeless Needs- Families with children

Homelessness Needs- Veterans

Homelessness Needs- Unaccompanied youth

Homelessness Strategy

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Market Analysis

Economic Development

Anti- poverty Strategy

Community Development Strategy

g=    Habitat for Humanity participated in the First

Public Hearing to discuss the needs of City
residents.

M    ' •   1   f   . 

TWIN RIVERS OPPORTUNITIES, INC

Y Housing
PHA

Services- Housing
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Housing Need Assessment

Public Housing Needs

I Homelessness Strategy

Homeless Needs- Chronically homeless

Homeless Needs- Families with children

Homelessness Needs- Veterans

Homelessness Needs- Unaccompanied youth

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Economic Development

Market Analysis

Anti- poverty Strategy

Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. was contacted to
I

determine the housing needs of its very low-
income dients.

Re'    us Co munity 5 ices

II Services- Housing
Services- Children

Services- Elderly Persons

Services- Persons with Disabilities

Services- Persons with HIV/ AIDS

Services- Victims of Domestic Violence

i Services- homeless
Services- Victims

i Publicly Funded Institution/ System of Care

Housing Need Assessment

Public Housing Needs

Homelessness Strategy

Homeless Needs- Chronically homeless
Homeless Needs- Families with children

Homelessness Needs- Veterans

Homelessness Needs- Unaccompanied youth

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Economic Development

I      Market Analysis

Anti- poverty Strategy
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Religious Community Services was contacted to

determine the needs of the community as a result

of the COVID- 19 pandemic. Religious Community

Services will be the subrecipient for CDBG- CV

funds.

City of New Bern Redevelopment Commission

Services- Housing

Redevelopment Authority

Economic Development

Anti- poverty StrategY

Community Development Strategy

The City of New Bern Redevelopment Commission
Y=      :-   ` "  

submitted a request for funding to rehabilitate
F    rental housing. The City of New Bern will allocate

FY 2020 CDBG funds to the project.
s

CR NTY

a a     .  , Housing

Services- Housing

Services- Children

Services- Elderly Persons

Services- Persons with Disabilities

Services- Persons with HIV/ AIDS

Services- Victims of Domestic Violence

Services- homeless

Services- Health
f

Services- Education

Services- Employment

Service- Fair Housing

Services- Victims
i

Other government- County

Regional organization

Planning organization
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Housing Need Assessment
s .- .,.. _,_ ... ,,.__ ._ - -, —=-- .._..

Homeless Needs- Chronically homeless

I Homeless Needs- Families with children

Homelessness Needs- Veterans

Homelessness Needs- Unaccompanied youth

Homelessness Strategy

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Market Analysis

Economic Development

Anti- poverty Strategy

Lead- based Paint Strategy

Group meeting held, phone calis; housing and

community development priorities; social service

and economic development needs.

F No Carol'    Depart t of Health and Human

Se

iServices-Children

Services- Elderly Persons

Services- Persons with Disabilities

Services- Persons with HIV/ AIDS

Se- vices- homeless

Services- Health

Services- Education

Publicly Funded Institution/ System of Care

Other government- State

Regional organization
Planning organization

Lead- based Paint Strategy

Non- Homeless Special Needs

Anti- poverty Strategy

Community Development Strategy

NCDHHS was contacted for health and lead- based

paint statistics and information.
i

x... .

Centurylink

Services - Broadband Internet Service Providers

Services - Narrowing the Digital Divide
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Broadband Strategy

CenturyLink was contacted to determine the

broadband access needs of the community.

Spectrum

Services- Broadband Internet Service Providers

Services- Narrowing the Digital Divide
r

4  - <      Broadband Strategy
r  

k Spectrum was contacted to determine the

broadband access needs of the community.

Y    '      

Table 2— Agencies, groups, organizations who participated

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting

All agency types were consulted and contacted during the planning process.

Other local/ regional/ state/ federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan

The City of New Bern is located in Region 13 of the
North Carolina

Continuum of Care Balance of State
North Carolina Balance of State Continuum of Care.

The goals of the City and the Consortium of Care are
Continuum of Care

complementary.

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern is the
Annual and Five

The Housing Authority
lead a enc rovidin

of the City of New
g y p g public housing assistance in the

Year Capital Plans City of New Bern. The goals of the City and the
Bern

Housing Authority are complementary.

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan adopts the goals of

FY 2019- 2023 Five the FY 2019- 2023 Five Year Consolidated Plan. The

Year Consolidated City of New Bern, NC activities undertaken during this program year will fall
Plan under one of the goals outlined in the Five Year

Consolidated Plan.
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f

Greater Five Points City of New Bern 1 hey are incorporated in the Five Year Consolidated

Transformation Redevelopment Plan and the Annual Action Plans.

Plan Commission

The New Bern City of New Bern They are incorporated in the Five Year Consolidated

Gateway Redevelopment Plan and the Annual Action Plans.

Renaissance Plan Commission

Emergency Craven County They are incorporated in the Five Year Consolidated

Management Plan Emergency Manager Plan and the Annual Action Plans.

North Carolina They are incorporated in the Five Year Consolidated

State Broadband Department of Plan and the Annual Action Plans.

Plan Information

Technology

Table 3— Other local/ regional/ federal planning efforts

Narrative( optional)  

The City of New Bern' s Department of Development Services'  Economic and Community

Development Office is the administrating agency for the CDBG and CDBG- CV programs. Close

coordination is maintained with other City departments such as the Public Works, Parks &

Recreation, Public Utilities, Administration, Police and Fire Departments, the City of New Bern

Housing Authority, Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc., and the City of New Bern Redevelopment

Commission, as well as County departments such as the Eastern Carolina Council, Craven County

Economic Development, Craven County Schools, and the North Carolina Balance of State

Continuum of Care. Coordination with various non- profit organizations, such as the Coastal

Women' s Shelter, Religious Community Services of New Bern, Interfaith Refugee Ministries, and

NCWorks helped aid the planning process and develop priorities. The City works closely with the

Craven County Commissioners and County staff to address projects and activities that extend

beyond the City limits. The City and the County agencies have a good working relationship.
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AP- 12 Participation — 91. 105, 91. 200( c)

1.       Summary of citizen participation process/ Efforts made to broaden citizen participation

Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal- setting

This Annual Action Plan was developed in accordance with the City' s Citizen Participation Plan. The Citizen Participation Plan was revised

to account for virtual display drafts and public hearing as a result of COVID- 19. The City of New Bern advertised for a needs hearing in" The

Sun Journal" on August 6, 2020. On Thursday, August 17, 2020, the City of New Bern held a virtual public needs hearing.

A   " draft"   of the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan was placed on public display on the City' s website at

https:// www. newbernnc. ov/ departments/ development servic/_ i, dex. p). The display period started on Friday, August 28, 2020 and

ended on Monday, September 28, 2020 for a 30-day display period. A second public hearing was held on Tuesday, September 8, 2020 to

discuss the proposed activities and solicit resident comments. Upon completion of the public comment period, the City of New Bern

submitted the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan to the U. S. Dep ent of Housing and Urban Development Greensboro Office on or before

October 2, 2020.    

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:    

The City put the  " draft"  FY 2020 Annual ACtion Plan — Substantial Amendment on public display on the City' s website:  at

http:// www. newbern- nc. or and at the following location during normal operational hours: Office of the Department of Development
Services, 303 First Street, New Bern, NC 28560.

The display period started on Monday, February 1, 2021 through Wednesday, February 17, 2021 for at least a 5- day display period. A

public hearing was held on Tuesday, February 9, 2021 at 6: 00 P. M. to discuss the proposed CARES Act activities and solicit resident

comments on the substantial amendment. Upon completion of the public comment period, the City of New Bern submitted the FY 2020
Annual Action Plan— Substantial Amendment to the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Greensboro Office on or before

Friday, February 26, 2021.
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Citizen Participation Outreach

s
4      -       .

Minorities

Persons with disabilities

Non- targeted/ broad

Newspaper community
None.       N None.       Not Applicable.

Ad# 1
Residents of Public and

Assisted Housing

Agencies/

Organizations

The City held a public needs
Minorities hearing on Monday, August See the Public

Persons with disabilities 17 at 6: 00 PM. There was a Hearing

Non- targeted/ broad total of two (2) attendees in comments in

Public community addition to City staff. 9ee the Exhibit All comments were
Not Applicable.

Meeting# 1
Residents of Public and meeting summary section of the accepted.

Assisted Housing comments, the sign- in FY 2020

Agencies/    
sheets, and agendas for the Annual Action

Organizations           Public Hearings in the Plan.

Exhibit Section.

Minorities https:// www.ne

Internet
Persons with disabilities wbernnc. ov/ de

Outreach Non- targeted/ broad None.    None.   None.      partments/ devel

community opment service

Residents of Public and s/ index. php

Assisted Housing
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k,C
a e

Agencies/

I Organizations

Minorities
8.

Persons with disabilities

Non- targeted/ broad

Newspaper community
None.     None.   None.       Not Applicable.

Ad# 2
Residents of Public and

Assisted Housing

Agencies/

µ

Organizations See

the Minorities a`  Second

Public Persons with disabilities The City held its Second Hearing https://www.

ne Non-targeted/
broad public Hearing on comments in wbernnc. ov/

de Public Hearing
community September 8, 2020 to the Appendix None.      partments/

devel 2Residents of Public a[
td disc t9 the Draft FY 2020 section of the opment

service Assisted

Housing Social Services
and A 1 ual Action Plan.      FY 2020 s/index.

php I Housing Agencies Annual

Action

Plan.CARES Act Minorities On Friday,January
29, Substantial 2021, the City of New
Bern

Amendment-     Persons with
disabilities published the CARES

Act None. None.       Not

Applicable Newspaper
Ad Non-targeted/

broad Substantial
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co r m a iity Public Hearing Notice in the

newspaper.

Residents of Public and

Assisted Housing

Agencies/ Organizations

The CARES Act Substantial Meeting
Minorities

Amendment Public Meeting minutes can

CARES Act Persons with disabilities
Was held on Tuesday,   be found in

February 9, 2021 at 6: 00 the appendix
Substantial No comments were

Non-targeted/ broad PM to discuss the CARES section of this Not Applicable
Amendment-   received.

community Act Substantial Amendment Annual Action
Public Meeting

for the City.       Plan-
Residents of Public and

Substantial
Assisted Housing

Amendment.

Minorities

CARES Act
persons with disabilities

Substantial
http:// www.ne

Amendment-      Non- targeted/ broad None.       None. None.

Internet community
wbern- nc.or

Outreach

Residents of Public and

Assisted Housing
Table 4- Citizen Participation Outreach
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Expected Resources

AP- 15 Expected Resources — 91. 220(c)( 1, 2)

Introduction

The following financial resources are identified for the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan to address the priority needs and goals/ strategies identified in

the City of New Bern' s FY 2019- 2023 Five- Year Consolidated Plan.

The City of New Bern is receiving$ 258, 775 in CDBG funds and $ 152, 252 in CDBG- CV funds for the FY 2020 program year. The program year goes

from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. These funds will be used to address the following strategies:

Housing Strategy;

Community Development Strategy; and

Administration, Planning, and Management Strategy

The accomplishments of these projects/ activities will be reported in the FY 2020 Gonsolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report( CAPER).

CARES Act Substantial Amendment:

The following financial resources are identified for the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan — Substantial Amendment to address the priority needs and

goals/ strategies identified in the City of New Bern' s Five Year Consolidated Plan using the CARES Act funds.

The City will receive two (2) allocations of the Community Development Block Grant- Coronavirus ( CDBG- CV) funds. The first allocation received

by the City was$ 152, 252 and in the third round of funding, the City received an allocation of$ 194,483 for a total allocation of$ 346,735 CDBG- CV
funds.
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Anticipated Resources

t

Acquisition

Admin and Planning Three( 3)

public-   Economic Development
projects/ activities

258,775.00       $ 0. 00 0. 00           8, 775.00      $ 803, 524.00 were funded based
federal Housing

on the FY 2020 CDBG
Public Improvements

allocation.

Public Services

Admin and Planning

Housing Two( 2)

projects/ activities
public-   Other To prevent,

346, 735. 00       $ 0. 00£.< 0.00 346, 735.00 0. 00 were funded based
federal prepare for and

on the FY 2020
respond to the

CDBG- CV allocation.

coronavirus.
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Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources ( private, state and local

funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied

In addition to the entitlement funds, the City of New Bern anticipates the following Federal resources may

be available to local non- profit organizations to undertake the housing strategies identified in the Five
Year Consolidated Plan.

Supportive Housing Program

Low- Income Housing Tax Credit Program ( LIHTC)

Section 8 Rental Assistance Program

Public Housing Capital Fund Program

Rental Assistance Demonstration ( RAD)

Private and non- Federal resources that may be available to the City of New Bern in FY 2020 to address
needs identified in the FY 2015- 2019 Five Year Consolidated Plan are listed below.

EDA Workforce Development Grant—The United States Economic Development Administration

fields a competitive application for workforce development funding.
Golden LEAF Funding—This North Carolina grant supports workforce development in rural areas

of the state of North Carolina that were once dependent on agriculture and tobacco farming.
Tobacco Trust Fund Grant — The North Carolina Tobacco Trust Fund ( NCTTFC) was created to

assist current and former tobacco farmers, former quota holders, persons engaged in tobacco-

related business, and individuals displaced from tobacco- related employment that were affected

by the major tobacco settlement in 1998. These funds are used for projects that support

employment for these groups.

Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program ( AHP)— Congress has mandated that ten

10%) of the Federal Home Loan Bank' s profits be allocated to provide affordable housing. The

FHLB encourages its members to work with public agencies and non- profit housing development

organizations in creating highly leveraged affordable housing initiatives. Both sales and rental

housing are eligible.

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that

may be used to address the needs identified in the plan

The City of New Bern owns 118 vacant lots in the Greater Five Points Area. The City intends to build

affordable housing on these lots. The lots are scattered throughout the Area. Some are buildable and

meet the zoning requirements, others are not and will be transferred by sale or donation to adjacent

property owners.

Discussion

Not Applicable.
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Annual Goals and Objectives

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives

Goals Summary Information

1---
HSS- 3 Housing Z019 2023 Affordable Housing Greater Five Housing CDBG:   Rental Housing

Rehabilitation Points 107,052 Rehabilitated:

Low- and 1 Household

Moderate- Incom Housing Unit
Areas

HOM- 3 Homeless 2019 2023 Homeless Low- and Homeless CDBG- CV:   Homelessness

Prevention Moderate-Income 312, 062 Prevention:

Areas 76 Persons

Assisted

CDS- 1 2019 2023 Non- Housing Greater Five Community CDBG:   Other: 1 Other

Infrastructure Community Points Development 100,000

Development          Low- and

Moderate- Income

Areas

APM- 1 Overall 2019 2023 Administration Greater Five Administration,      CDBG:   Other:

Coordination Points Planning, and 51, 763 2 Other

Low- and Management

Moderate- Income CDBG- CV:

Areas 34,673

Table 5— Goals Summary
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Goal Descriptions

Promote and assist in the preservation of existing owner and renter occupied housing stock in the City.

I Promote and assist in anti-eviction and prevention of unfair housing practices which may contribute to homelessness.

y

i I improve the City' s infrastructure through reconstruction and new construct'ion of streets, walks, curbs, ADA ramps,

retaining walls, sewer, water, storm water management, bridges, bike trails, green infrastructure, etc.

Provide program management and oversight for the successful administration of Federal, state, and local funded

programs, including planning services for special studies, environmental clearance, fair housing, performance evaluation,

monitoring; and compliance with all Federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

Estimate the number of extremely low-intome, low-income, and moderate- income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide

affordable housing as defined by HOME 91. 215( b):

The City of New Bern will utilize its FY 2020 CDBG and FY 2020 CDBG- CV funds to assist the following households:

Median Income— 19 households

Low Income— 20 households

Extremely Low Income— 38 households

OMB Control No: 2506-0117( exp. 06/ 30/ 2021)   41



FY 2020 Annual Action Plan— Substantial Amendment CARES Act City of New Bern, NC

Projects

AP- 35 Projects—91. 220(d)

Introduction

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan outlines the needs, resources, priorities and proposed activities of the

City of New Bern to be undertaken with the FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG) and
the FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant - Coronavirus ( CDBG- CV). The City of New Bern has

participated in CDBG as an Entitlement recipient since 2014.

The City' s Development Services Department is the Lead Agency that maintains and administers New Bern

CDBG funds and responsibilities, including completion of the Annual Action Plan. The planning process

actively encouraged participation of City housing and community service organizations, including the

Housing Authority of the City of New Bern, Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc., affordable housing providers,

service agencies that assist the low- and moderate- income and principally low- and moderate- income

clientele, advocates, and others.

The City of New Bern encourages citizens to provide input and participate in planning, implementation

and assessment of the CDBG program. The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan was developed through public

hearings, the use of existing data from previously approved plans and studies, consultation with local non-

profit agencies, and discussions with other City of New Bern departments. For- profit,  non- profit,

community and faith- based organizations were engaged throughout the prior year to assess City needs
and priorities.

The City of New Bern proposes to undertake fhe' Sllowing activities with FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV

funds:

Projects

Administration

Housing Rehabilitation in the Five Points Area

Duffyfield Stormwater Project

CV-CDBG- CV Administration

CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance

Table 6- Project Information
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Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved
needs

The City of New Bern has allocated its CDBG and CDBG- CV funds based on principally benefiting Low/ Mod

income persons; or an activity in which predominantly low- and moderate- income areas or which has a

presumed benefit; or an activity with an income requirement of low- and moderate- income persons. All

allocated funding has been utilized in a timely manner and within budget.

Many of the obstacles to addressing underserved needs are outside of the City' s control. The largest

obstacle is the lack of local, state, and federal resources available to the City of New Bern to adequately

address these needs. This reduction in funds, combined with increasing numbers of individuals in need of

housing, social service, homeless, or infrastructure support, unfortunately means that the City of New

Bern is at a disadvantage in addressing underserved needs in the community. However, the City of New

Bern maintains close cooperation with the County, the Housing Authority, housing providers, economic

development agencies, and social service providers, to address any underserved needs in the City.

The proposed activities and projects for FY 2020 are located in areas of the City with the highest
percentages of low- and moderate- income persons, and those biock groups with a higher than average

percentage of minority persons. The following census tracts and block groups have at least 51% of the

households with low- and moderate- incomes:

C. T. 9605, B. G. 2

C. T. 9606, B. G. 4

C. T. 9608, B. G. 1

C. T. 9608, B. G. 2

C. T. 9608, B. G. 3

C. T. 9608, B. G. 4

C. T. 9609, B. G. 2
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AP-38 Project Summary

Introduction

The City of New Bern proposes to undertake the following activities with the FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV
funds:

Project Summary Information

Administration

a"      Low- and Moderate- Income Areas; Greater Five Points

APM- 1 Overall Coordination

Administration, Planning, and Management Priority

CDBG: $ 51, 723

Overall program administration of the CDBG Programs, including: staff
salaries, wages, and benefits; related costs to administer the programs

including supplies, materials, mailings, duplications, etc.; monitoring

and oversight; advertising and public hearing costs; market studies;

planning activities and the preparation of the Annual Action Plan,

j Environmental Review Record, Consolidated Annual Performance and

Evaluation Report, Fair Housing, etc.

6/ 30/ 2021

l Organization

Citywide

The Matrix Code is 21A General Program Administration.

Housing Rehabilitation in the Five Points Area

Greater Five Points

HSS- 3 Housing Rehabilitation

Housing Priority

CDBG: $ 107, 052

Funds will be given to the Redevelopment Commission to begin the

rehabilitation work a rental property located in the Greater Five Points

area. This will begin a 2- phase renovation process that will span two

program years. ( Multi-year activity)
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i/ 30/ 2021

l Household Housing Unit I

vreater Five Points Neighborhood

he National Objective is Low/ Mod Housing Benefit ( LMH).

The HUD Matrix Code is 146 Rehabilitation: Multi- Unit Residential.

Duffyfield Stormwater Project

Greater Five Points

CDS- 1 Infrastructure

Community Development Priority

CDBG: $ 100,000

Funds will be used for the Phase II study of the Duffyfield Stormwater

Project. This is for engineering, permitting and possible acquisition
services of properties within the project area. The project scope is

TBD. ( Multi-yearActivity)

6/ 30/ 2021

10ther.       

j p .   .

Duff eld Neighborhood, City Block bounded by Biddle Street, East

Street, F Street, and Railroad; City Btock bounded by B Street, F Street,

and Railroad; City Block bounded by Biddle Street, F Street, Fowlers

Lane, and G Street; City Block bounded by Fowlers Lane, F Street, K

Street, and G Street; City Block bounded by F Street, Murry Street,
Sampson Street, Bloomfield Street, and K Street.

The Nationa) Objective is Low/ Mod Area Benefit (LMA).

The HUD Matrix Code is 031 Flood Drainage Improvements.

u=.''   CV- CDBG- CVAdministration

Low/ Mod Areas

APM- 1 Overall Coordination

Administration, Planning, and Management Priority
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CDBG- CV: $ 34,673

Funds for the administration of the CDBG- CV grant.

6/ 30/ 2021

10ther

Citywide

The Matrix Code is 21A General Program Administration.

CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assist ce

Low/ Mod Areas

HOM- 3 Homeless Prevention

Homeless Priority

CDBG- CV: $ 312, 062

CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two( 2) non- profit organizations,

Religious Community Services ( RCS) and Catholic Charities. These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance

program to help stabilize low- income households who are behind in
their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic. This assistance will

only cover 3 months of back payments. RCS will receive$ 185, 785 in

I CDBGCV funds from the 15t and 3`d rounds of CDBG- CV funds. Catholic
Charities will receive$ 126,277 in CDBG- CV funds from the 3rd round of

I' 

CDBGCV funds.

6/ 3 j`/2021

175 Households

r'      Citywide

The National Objective is Low/ Mod Income Housing( LMH).

The HUD Matrix Code is 05Q Subsistence Payments.

Table 7— Project Summary
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AP-50 Geographic Distribution — 91. 220(f)

Description of the gengraphic areas of the entitlement ( including areas of low- income and minority
concentration) where assistance will be directed

The following information provides a profile of the population, age, and racial/ ethnic composition of the

City of New Bern. This information was obtained from the U. S. Census Bureau American Factfinder
website, http:// data. census. ov. The 2014- 2018 American Community Survey 5- Year Estimates were used

to analyze the social, economic, housing, and general demographic characteristics of the City of New Bern.
The 5- year estimates are the most recent data available for the City. The 2010 U. S. Census data is included
when necessary.

Population

Key points are:

Between 1990 and 2010, the population increased by approximately 43. 6%
The City population was 23, 367 in the 2000 Census

The City' s population was 30, 113 in 2018 according to th 2014- 2018 ACS( a 28. 9% increase)

Population changes due to Hurricane Florence have not yet been recorded in the Census

Key points are:
s  •

Median age in New Bern i   • 5 ye of age .
rd_.. 

Youth under age 18 accou r 2' Eotal population

Race/ Ethnicitv
h

Composition from the       - 2018 Am ican Community Survey:

57. 1% of population is White

32. 3% of population is Black or African American

5. 9% of population is Asian

1. 8% of population is Two or More Races

6. 8% is Hispanic or Latino

Income Profile

The current Median Income for a family of four ( 4) in the City of Craven County, North Carolina
Metropolitan Statistical Area ( MSA) is $ 66, 200 according to HUD' s FY 2020 Income Limits. The following
is a summary of income statistics for the City of New Bern:

At the time of the 2014- 2018 American Community Survey, the median household income in the
City of New Bern was$ 42,222 which was lower than the State of North Carolina ($ 52, 413).
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37. 9% of households have earnings received from Social Security income.

24. 8% of households have earnings, received from retirement income.

7. 3% of households have earnings received from public assistance.

41. 6% of female- headed households with children were living in poverty.

33. 0% of all youth under 18 years of age were living in poverty.

Low/ Mod Income Profile

The low- and moderate- income profile for City of New Bern is a measurement of the area' s needs. The

City of New Bern has an overall low- and moderate- income percentage of 40.66%.

Economic Profile

The following illustrates the economic profile for the City of New B  _  as of the 2014- 2018 American

Community Survey:   

34. 2%  of the employed civilian population had occupations classified as management,

professional, or related.

19. 7% of the employed civilian population had otcupations classified as sales and office.

23. 0% were in the service sector.

The educational, health, and social service industries represented 24.0% of those employed.

20. 3% of workers were considered in the government class of employment.

According to the U. S. Labor Department, the preliminary unemployment rate for the City of New Bern in

May of 2020 was 12. 4%. New Bern' s unemployment rate was lower than the May of 2020 rates of the

State of North Carolina ( 12. 7%) and the national.pe centage of 13. 3%.

Geographic Distribution

Low- and Moderate- Incorr: Area,    20%

Greater Five Points 80%

Table 8- Geographic Distribution

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically

The proposed activities and projects for FY 2020 are located in areas of the City with the highest

percentages of low- and moderate- income persons, and those block groups with a higher than average

percentage of minority persons.  The following census tracts and block groups have at least 51% of the

households with low- and moderate- incomes:

C. T. 9605, B. G. 2

C. T. 9606, B. G. 4
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C. T. 9608, B. G. 1

C. T. 9608, B. G. 2

C. T. 9608, B. G. 3

C. T. 9608, B. G. 4

C. T. 9609, B. G. 2

The total amount of FY 2020 CDBG funds available is $ 258, 775 of which 20. 0% ($ 51, 723) is for

administration and 80. 0% ($ 207, 052) is allocated for project activities. Of the $ 258,775 allocated for

project activities, all of it is allocated to projects that will benefit low- and moderate- income persons giving
the City a 100% low- and moderate- income benefit percentage for FY 2020.

Discussion

The geographic locations and the public benefit for the FY 2020 CDBG Activities are as follows:

Administration—303 First Street, New Bern, NC 28560

Housing Rehabilitation in the Five Points Area —Greater Five Poin eighborhood, New Bern,

NC 28562— Low/ Mod Income Housing Benefit ( LMH)
Duffyfield Stormwater Project— Duffyfield Neighborhood, City Block bounded by Biddle Street,

East Street, F Street, and Railroad; City Block bounded by B Street, F Street, and Railroad; City
Block bounded by Biddle Street, F Street, Fowlers Lane, and G Street; City Block bounded by
Fowlers Lane, F Street, K Street, and G S'Ereet; City Block bounded by F Street, Murry Street,
Sampson Street, Bloomfield Street, and K Street, New Bern, NC 28560— Low/ Mod Income Area

Benefit( LMA)

The geographic locations a bli benefit for the FY 2020 CDBG- CV Activities are as follows:

CV- 20-01 CV- CDBG- CV Administration—303 First Street, New Bern, NC 28560

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance— 919 George Street, New Bern, NC 28560

and 502 Middle St, New Bern, NC 28560; Low/ Mod Income Cliente Benefit( LMC)
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Affordable Housing

AP- 55 Affordable Housing— 91.220(g)

Introduction

The City of New Bern is utilizing its CDBG and CDBG- CV funds to support the following housing activities

during this program year:

Homeless 0

Non- Homeless 176

Special- Needs 0

Table 9- One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement

Rental Assistance 175

The Production of New Units 0

Rehab of Existing Units 1

Acquisition of Existing Units

Table 10- One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type

Discussion H

The City of New Bern will fund the following projects with FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV funds:

CD- 20-02 Housing Rehabilitation in the Five Points Area  -  Funds will be given to the

Redevelopment Commission to begin the rehabilitation work a rental property located in the

Greater Five Points area. This will begin a 2- phase renovation process that will span two program

years. ( Multi-year activity) ( 1 Household Housing Unit)

CV- 20- 02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance- CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two( 2)

non- profit organizations, Religious Community Services ( RCS) and Catholic Charities. These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance program to help stabilize low-

income households who are behind in their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic.  This

assistance will only cover 3 months of back payments. ( 175 Households)
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AP- 60 Public Housing— 91. 220( h)

Introduction

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern' s mission is:

Providing affordable housing opportunities in a safe environment

Revitalizing and maintaining neighborhoods

Providing opportunities for low and moderate- income homeownership

Forming effective partnerships to maximize housing, social, and economic opportunities

Continuing its partnership with the City of New Bern for the revitalization of communities

Pursuing funding for the development of affordable housing for the residents of New Bern

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern is not rated as a " troubled" agency by HUD.

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern owns and professionally manages family communities and
elderly/ disabled rental apartments. NBHA had one ( 1) public housing development: Trent Court. NBHA

had also previously owned a second property: Craven Terrace. This property was sold. Before Hurricane
Florence hit the City, NBHA had a total of 218 public housing units, with 11 accessible units. After

Hurricane Florence caused flooding in many of the units in Trent Court, the Housing Authority was left
with 110 units, of which 4 are accessible. NBHA also owns and manages Section 8 Housing for elderly
residents in New Bern Towers. There are 106 units in New Bern Towers. There are currently 54 people on
the public housing waiting list, which was opened on August 1st and will remain open until the 31st,
although NBHA is considering extendir'(' eclosing date.

Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. assists families who wish to live in privately owned housing and receive
rental subsidy through the Housing Choice Voucher Program instead of NBHA. Twin Rivers Opportunities,

Inc. administers 998 as of July 30, 2020, 39 of which are for residents that were displaced from Trent

Court. There are currently 800 households on the waiting list for Housing Choice Vouchers.

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing

The work items for the Housing Authority' s properties are as follows:

Trent Court:

The housing will be demolished in two phases. The first phase will include the 108 flood-damaged

units. The rest of the Trent Court units will be demolished in the second phase.

Greenspace will be developed along the Riverwalk.

The Trent Court site will be developed with a mix of lofts, condominiums, market rate rentals,

retail, and affordable housing.

New Bern Towers:

Upgrade Lighting for the Parking Lot
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Security Cameras

Add Ceiling Fans

Building Pressure Wash

The Housing Authority will expend its FY 2020 Capital Fund on the following projects:

Roof Repairs

The Housing Authority was awarded a LIHTC to construct new affordable housing which will have units
dedicated to persons displaced from Trent Court on Carolina Avenue. The project will entail the

construction of 84 new units, and the Housing Authority is in the process of purchasing the land.

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and

participate in homeownership

According to the Annual Plan for 2020, NBHA' s progress in meeting their mission and goals states that

NBHA set the goal of cooperating with the City of New Bern and other neighborhood partners to promote

neighborhood revitalization and economic development in designated areas of the City, as evidenced by

the resident input in the development of the Gateway Renaissance Plan and Greater Five Points

Transformation Plan. New Bern Towers has an active resident council that expresses needs for both the

New Bern Towers community and the public housing under the Housing Authority of the City of New Bern

as a whole. Trent Court formerly had an active resident council, but Hurricane Florence caused the council

to disband, and the residents of Trent Court have stcuggled to restore it. The Housing Authority of the City

of New Bern was awarded LIHTC funds to provide housing for those displaced by Trent Court on Carolina

Avenue, which will be an improvement over the living conditions in those apartments once completed.

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern does not support any homeownership initiatives. NBHA

previously held homeownership classes in Trent Court and Craven Terrace, and these classes had active
participation. However, these classes have ceased since Craven Terrace was sold.

Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. runs the Family Self- Sufficiency( FSS) Program. The program gives Section

8 voucher holders the opportunity to set and reach goals that they set for themselves and their families,

as well as save a significant amount of money. Section 8 voucher holders may also use their vouchers to

realize the American dream of becoming a homeowner. Both of these opportunities are available to

Section 8 holders who choose to become participants in Section 8' s Family Self-Sufficiency Program. There

are two parts to the program. The first part of the program is the Self-Sufficiency program where

participants have the opportunity to work towards and meet goals that they set for their families as well

as save money that will become theirs when they have completed their goals. The second part of the

program is the Homeownership Program. In this part of the program, a Section 8 participant can choose

to use his or her Section 8 voucher to assist with the purchase and payment of a home.
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If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be

provided or other assistance

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern is not designated as a troubled housing authority.

Discussion

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern is continuing to meet its goals by securing funding through
RAD and CNI for the revitalization of the Greater Five Points area. The Housing Authority will also continue

to apply for funding for additional affordable housing.

Trent Court, one the Housing Authority' s public housing communities, was severely affected by Hurricane
Florence. The residents displaced by the Hurricane have been given Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.
Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc., will ensure the placement of these residents.
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AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities—91. 220( i)

Introduction

The North Carolina Coalition to End Homelessness is collaborative applicant for the North Carolina Balance

of State Continuum of Care. The 79 counties covered by the Continuum of Care are divided into 13 regions.

The City of New Bern falls under the purview of Region 13 of the CoC, which is known as the Housing
Alliance of Coastal Carolina ( HACC) and includes Carteret, Craven, Jones, Onslow, and Pamlico Counties.

The leadership of Region 13 is responsible for acting as a member of the Balance of State CoC Steering

Committee, the Coordinated Entry lead for the Region, the Point- in- Time and Housing Inventory Count

lead for the region, and reviewing projects and processing state ESG grants for the regional geography.

The City of New Bern works closely with the homeless service providers within the City to identify and

resolve issues of homelessness within the community. The Department of Development Services partners

with statewide entities, as well as the local service providers including Religious Community Services,

Coastal Women' s Shelter, and Reviving Lives Ministries.

The 2020 Point- In- Time count revealed that 21 homeless individuals resided in Craven County. There was

no data available for the City of New Bern specifically. All 21 of the homeless persons counted were

recorded in Emergency Shelter.    

r, r:.

The following shelters were open in the City of New Bern during FY 2019.

Religious Community Services- Emergency Crisis Shelter

Religious Community Services- Families in Transition

Religious Community Services - Veterans Transition Shelter

Women' s Coastal Shelter- Domestic Violence Shelter

Reviving Lives Ministries - Addiction Recover Shelter

The FY 2020 CoC awards have r yet been announced.

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness

including: Reaching out to homeless persons ( especially unsheltered persons) and assessing
their individual needs

The Point In Time Count for Craven County in 2020 counted a total of 21 homeless persons and 18

homeless households. Of these, only 0 persons were unsheltered. There were no persons in transitional

housing, and 21 persons that were housed in emergency shelter. There was one( 1) homeless family with

children, and no chronically homeless families with children. There was one( 1) unaccompanied youth that

were homeless in 2020. Of the 21 homeless people counted, nine ( 42. 9%) were considered chronically

homeless. There were two (2) homeless Veterans, and two (2) of the homeless Veterans was considered
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chronically homeless. This indicates a need for greater outreach and shelter/ housing options for these
special needs groups.

Families with children— The Point In Time count for 2017 counted 4 homeless households with children

in Craven County, for a total of 15 persons. Numbers were lower in 2018 at 4 homeless households and 9

persons. County breakdowns were unavailable for 2019. In 2020, there was 1 homeless household with 3
persons.

Veterans and their families—There are large numbers of Veterans and support systems because of the

nearby military base in Havelock. The NCWorks Career Center works both employment and housing issues
for homeless Veterans. Homeless Veterans often require additional services, with mental health services

being the most commonly cited need. The number of homeless Veterans in Craven County has decreased
from 4 in 2017, to 4 in 2018, and 2 in 2020. County breakdowns were unavailable for 2019.

Unaccompanied youth —Teens aging out of foster care, and young adults in the 18- 24 transition stage

can be hard to locate. Many of them are staying with friends and family temporarily and are technically
homeless.  Unaccompanied youth may also move between different shelters.  There were 2

unaccompanied youth counted in the 2017 Point In Time count, 5 unaccompanied youth counted in 2018,

and 1 unaccompanied youth counted in 2020 for Craven County. County breakdowns were unavailable
for 2019.

According to the NC Balance of State CoC Application for 2019, the CoC restructured its board to greater

represent the diverse groups that make up the homeless population. The CoC utilizes Coordinated Entry
to track the various subpopulations and divides thern up into 13 local referral zones across the 79 counties

that the CoC serves. Much of the area served by the CoC is rural, and the CoC creates advertisements and

hotlines to target these subpopulations and allow them to access the Coordinated Entry process.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

The 2020 Point In Time Count saw a return to typical levels for homelessness in Craven County following
Hurricane Florence. Though many of the barriers to emergency housing in the City of New Bern and Craven
County had been removed in response to Hurricane Florence, it remains a challenge to rapidly re- house
families. The Point In Time count for 2016 counted 3 homeless households with children in Craven County,
for a total of 8 persons. There were 4 homeless households with children in Craven County, for a total of
15 persons. Numbers were lower in 2018 at 4 homeless households and 9 persons. County breakdowns
were unavailable for 2o19. In 2020, there was 1 homeless household with 3 persons. There were 21

homeless persons counted overall, and all 21 homeless persons counted were in emergency shelters.

Religious Community Services provides much of the shelter space for individuals and families in the County
while also partnering with Craven Community College for job training and Craven- Pamlico Re- Entry to

assist ex- offenders with housing, transportation, and vocational skills. NCWorks provides job training and
assists in housing homeless veterans. Coastal Women' s Shelter partners with local landlords to provide

stable housing and keep children of fami ies experiencing domestic violence in the same schools to assist
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these children in maintaining stability. Crossroads is the major mental health provider in the area, but the

need for mental health care far surpasses the amount of assistance that Crossroads can provide. Religious

Community Services has the following emergency shelter beds for homeless populations:

Homeless Families— 4 beds

Homeless Women— 6 beds

Homeless Veterans— 5 beds

The Coastal Women' s Shelter prioritizes providing safe, affordable housing for victims of domestic

violence. The shelter has 19 total beds, 3 of which are infant cribs. The Coastal Women' s Shelter will work

with trusted landlords to place people in housing, but there is a shortage of trusted landlords.

Helping homeless persons ( especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were

recently homeless from becoming homeless again

The North Carolina Balance of State CoC' s written standards focus on a Housing First model and follow

the best practices of that model. The written standards utilize several strategies to increase the number

of people who exist Emergency Shelter, Transitional Housing, and Rapid Re- housing to Permanent Housing

destinations. Evaluations of these standards will be based on the length-of-time homeless of an individual

or family in Emergency Shelter, Transitional Housing, or Rapid Re- Housing. The CoC will seek to make

progress on the turnover rate of individuals and families, the targeting of individuals and families based

on risk, and the number of positive exits into Permanent Housing

The CoC Steering Committee has approved written standards that conform to best practices for Street
Outreach,  Emergency Shelter, Transitional Housing,  Prevention and Rapid Rehousing,  Permanent

Supportive Housing, and Coordinated Entry Programs on September 6, 2016. There are additional policies

for follow-ups to those that have exited Rapid Re- Housing, Anti- Discrimination, and Emergency Transfers

based on the Violence Against Women Act( VAWA). The Balance of State CoC provides additional guidance

to rural Continuums of Care

The number of homeless Veterans in Craven County has decreased from 11 in 2016, to 4 in 2017, and 2 in

2020. In addition to housing, there is a need for wrap around services for veterans. These services largely

include mental health care and recovery systems for those with addictions. There are a number of

instances of PTSD in the area due to the presence of the military base. Crossroads provides addiction

counseling for Veterans, but they are limited to three ( 3) day emergency shelter stays. Volunteers will
transport Veterans with addictions to Crossroads for these services. Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc.

recently received 10 VASH vouchers for Veterans. Of these, 2 are being utilized to house families, and 8
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are committed to families but available units have not yet been found.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely
low- income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly funded
institutions and systems of care ( such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster
care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services,
employment, education, or youth needs.

Discharge policies at local hospitals are designed to prevent those leaving the hospitals from being
referred to Religious Community Services. Religious Community Services supports homeless in the

community through operating emergency shelters and food and clothing services for those in need. By

providing other supportive services, Religious Community Services intends to assist people who may be

extremely low income and help feed and clothe them so that other family income may go to rent.

Local services such as Craven- Pamlico Re- Entry Council, Children' s Developmental Services Agency, and
Carolina East Health work with various populations that are at- risk of becoming homeless. Wraparound
services are necessary to prevent homelessness and encourage self-sufficiency. Discharge policies are also

put in place to direct low- income individuals who are at risk of homelessness to services that may assist
them. There is a need for additional caseworkers to expand these services.

Discussion

The City of New Bern will provide funding for the following activity in FY 2020 using CDBG- CV funds to
address the needs of individuals and families with children who are homeless or imminent at risk of

becoming homeless:

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance— CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two

2) non- profit organizations, Religious Community Services ( RCS) and Catholic Charities. These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance program to help stabilize low-
income households who are behind in their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic.  This

assistance will only cover 3 months of back payments.
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AP- 75 Barriers to affordable housing— 91. 220(j)

Introduction:

Eastern North Carolina lags behind the urban centers of the state economically. As a result, low- and

moderate- income people have less income, and housing affordability is a greater issue in the area for all

residents. Residents in protected classes can face even more housing affordability challenges, particularly

when they cannot prove discrimination.

The most common fair housing complaint in the City of New Bern, as is the case nationally, is on the basis
of disability.  In Eastern North Carolina, there have been multiple instances of residents that faced

evictions because landlords were unwilling to provide reasonable accommodations.

Transportation is a common barrier to affordable housing in the area. The local public transit system is

unreliable. To access services and employment, residents must live near service providers and employers.

One of the major barriers to affordable housing in the City of New Bern is that cases go largely unreported.

Though there are likely more instances of discrimination in the area, very few complaints are filed and
little data is available on the types of complaints.

Hurricane Florence has also affected access to fair housing in the region. Many affordable housing units
were destroyed in the Hurricane. This has resulted in the relocation of low- and moderate- income

people. Following these relocations, people often find themselves farther away from the services.

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as

barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the
return on residential investment

The City of New Bern intends to address housing affordability issues with the construction of new

affordable housing. New construction will increase the supply for housing for low- and moderate- income

persons. Additional units will also be targeted to housing those displaced by Hurricane Florence.

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern provides reasonable accommodations for its residents

upon request. There is a need for additional accessibility improvements, which the City will undertake

over the course of the Five Year Consolidated Plan.

The City of New Bern intends to partner with CARTS, the local transit agency, to improve services and

transit- related infrastructure. CARTS has adopted a strategic transit plan to increase ridership, which the

City will support with supplemental infrastructure projects.

To address the issue of unreported complaints, the City will conduct education and outreach on fair

housing so that residents can know their rights and be aware of the instances when those rights are
violated.
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Discussion:

The City of New Bern proposes to undertake the following activities during the FY 2020 Program Year to
affirmatively further fair housing:

CD- 20-02 Housing Rehabilitation - Funds will be given to the Redevelopment Commission to begin

the rehabilitation work for the property located in the Greater Five Points Neighborhood. This will

begin a 2- phase renovation process that will span two program years. ( Multi- year activity).
CV-20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance— CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two (2)

non- profit organizations,  Religious Community Services  ( RCS)  and Catholic Charities.  These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance program to help stabilize low-
income households who are behind in their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic. This assistance

will only cover 3 months of back payments.

The City of New Bern will continue to work with the New Bern Housing Authority and Twin River

Opportunities, Inc. to address issues of accessible housing.

The City continues to work with Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. to mitigate the concentration of

minority households and Section 8 Voucher holders.

The City of New Bern continues to collaborate with Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. to implement

strategies to provide consistent communication about the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
program.

The City of New Bern will partner with local agencies and groups to raise Fair Housing awareness and
conduct fair housing trainings. Past groups that have conducted trainings include Legal Aid of North

Carolina and the North Carolina Housing Coalitian.
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AP- 85 Other Actions— 91. 220( k)

Introduction:

The City of New Bern has developed the following actions which address the obstacles to meeting

underserved needs, fosters affordable housing, reduces lead- based paint hazards, reduces the number of

families living in poverty, develops institutional structures, and enhances coordination between public

and private housing and social service agencies.

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs

The City of New Bern allocated FY 2020 CDBG- CV funds to principally benefit low- and moderate- income

persons through:

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance— CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two

2) non- profit organizations, Religious Community Services ( RCS) and Catholic Charities. These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance program to help stabilize low-

income households who are behind in their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic.  This

assistance will only cover 3 months of back payments.

Despite efforts made by the City of New Bern and social service providers, a number of significant

obstacles remain to meeting underserved needs. With funding resources being scarce, funding becomes

the greatest obstacle for the City of New Bern to meet its underserved needs. Insufficient funding lessens

the ability to fund many worthwhile public service programs, activities, and agencies. Through its planning

efforts, the City will use its limited resources to address the City of New Bern' s greatest needs and improve

the quality of life for its residents. The following obstacles need to be overcome in order to meet
underserved needs:

Lack of decent, safe, sound, and affEYrdable owner and renter housing.

High cost of construction and rehabilitation work, exacerbated by Hurricane Florence.

Aging in place population who need accessibility improvements.

Need major rehabilitation of the City' s aging housing stock.

The increasing number of vacant and abandoned properties, exacerbated by Hurricane Florence.

Low wages in the service and retail sector job market.

Displaced residents from Hurricane Florence.

Continued social pressures due to the recovery from Hurricane Florence.

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing

To foster and maintain affordable housing, the City proposes the following Five- Year Goals and Strategies:

H55- 1 Homeownership- Promote and assist in developing homeownership opportunities for low-

and moderate- income persons & families.
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HSS- 2 Housing Construction- Promote and assist in the development of affordable housing, both
rental and sales housing.

HSS- 3 Housing Rehabilitation - Promote and assist in the preservation of existing owner and
renter occupied housing stock in the City.
HSS- 4 Fair Housing - Affirmatively further fair housing by promoting fair housing choice
throughout the City of New Bern.

The City will partner with the Housing Authority of the City of New Bern, Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc.

and other fair housing agencies to promote fair housing in the city, through fair housing trainings,
education, and promotions.

The City of New Bern will continue to work with the City' s Human Rights Commission during this program
year to again provide education and outreach.

Actions planned to reduce lead- based paint hazards

According to the 2014-2018 American Community Survey, 54. 2%' of the housing units in the City of New

Bern were built before 1980 and are therefore at risk for containing lead- based paint. According to the
North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services' 2017 Lead Surveillance Report, 1, 962 children

were tested in Craven County for elevated blood lead levels. Of those tested, sixteen( 16) had a blood lead
level of 5- 9 µg/ dL or greater. With 0. 8% of children tested having blood lead levels greater than 5 µg/ dL,
Craven County compares favorably to the rest of North Carolina, which averages 1. 3% of children tested

having blood lead levels greater than 5 µg/ dL.

The revised Federal Lead- Based Paint Regulations published on September 15, 1999( 24 CFR Part 35) have

had a significant impacton many activities— rehabilitation, tenant based rental assistance, and property
acquisition —supported by the CDBG program. The City of New Bern will comply with Title 24, Part 35:
Lead- Based Paint Poisoning Prevention in Certain Residential Structures( Current Rule).

The City of New Bern reviewed the Blood Lead Level Screening Plan provided through the North Carolina
Department of Health and Human Services — North Carolina Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention

Program ( CLPPP). Additionally, the City reviewed the Blood Lead Level testing data provided through the
Center for Disease Control and Prevention— Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program.

If the City of New Bern will ensure that the following will be done in conjunction with its Housing
Rehabilitation activities:

Applicants for rehabilitation funding receive the required lead- based paint information and
understand their responsibilities.

Staff properly determines whether proposed projects are exempt from some or all lead- based

paint requirements.
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The level of federal rehabilitation assistance is properly calculated and the applicable lead- based

paint requirements determined.

Properly qualified personnel perform risk management, paint testing, lead hazard reduction, and
clearance services when required.

Required lead hazard reduction work and protective measures are incorporated into project

rehabilitation specifications.

Risk assessment, paint testing, lead hazard reduction, and clearance work are performed in

accordance with the applicable standards established in 24 CFR Part 35.

Required notices regarding lead- based paint evaluation, presumption, and hazard reduction are

provided to occupants and documented.

Program documents establish the rental property owner' s responsibility to perform and

document ongoing lead- based paint maintenance activities, when applicable.

Program staff monitors owner compliance with ongoing lead- based paint maintenance activities,

when applicable.

In addition, in conjunction with its Housing Rehabilitation activities, the City will to ensure that:

Applicants for rehabilitation funding receive the required lead- based paint information and

understand their responsibilities.

Staff properly determines whether proposed projects are exempt from some or all lead- based

paint safety requirements.

The level of federal rehabilitation assistance is properly calculated and the applicable lead- based
paint requirements determined.

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families

According to the 2014-2018 American Community Survey, 15.4% of all people in the City of New Bern
have incomes below the poverty level. Additionally, 40.3% of female headed households with no husband

present live in poverty. Individuals living on the threshold of poverty were faced with a collection of

obstacles that prevent them from escaping their situation. Some may need adequate affordable housing,

job skills training, day care for children, treatment for medical or substance abuse issues or they may be
children and adults with educational needs.

The City allocates its Community Development Block Grant program to improve the living environments

of low to moderate- income persons, specifically improving the lives of low- to moderate- income youth in

order to break the cycle of poverty.

During this program year, the City of New Bern will fund the following activities to address the needs of

individuals and households who live in poverty:

CD- 20-02 Housing Rehabilitation - Funds will be given to the Redevelopment Commission to

begin the rehabilitation work for the property located in the Greater Five Points Neighborhood.
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This will begin a 2- phase renovation process that will span two program years. ( Multi-year

activity).

CV- 20-02 CV- Rent, Mortgage, and Utility Assistance— CDBG- CV funds will be used to fund two

2) non- profit organizations, Religious Community Services ( RCS) and Catholic Charities. These

organizations both will run a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance program to help stabilize low-
income households who are behind in their payments because of Covid- 19 pandemic.  This

assistance will only cover 3 months of back payments.

Actions planned to develop institutional structure

The City of New Bern works with the following agencies to enhance coordination:

City of New Bern— Development Services- oversees the CDBG and HOME programs.

Housing Authority of the City of New Bern - oversees the improvements to public housing
communities.

Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc. - oversees the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program and

the development of scattered site affordable housing.
Social Services Agencies - the City provides funds to address the needs of low- and moderate-
income persons.

Housing Providers - the City provides funds to rehabilitate and develop affordable housing for
low- and moderate- income families and individuals.

North Carolina Balance of State CoC - oversees the Continuum of Care Network for 79 counties

including Craven County. For planning purposes, the CoC is divided into thirteen ( 13) regions.

Craven County is located in Region 13.

As part of the CDBG application planning process, local agencies, and organization are invited to submit
proposals for CDBG funds for eligible activities.

The Development Services Department continues to look for gaps in the institutional structure.

Maintaining and enhancing communication amongst all community and economic development

stakeholders,  is essential in addressing the needs identified in the City of New Bern' s Five- Year
Consolidated Plan.

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social
service agencies

Public Institutions: The City will act as a clearinghouse and facilitator for many of the activities described

in the annual action plan. As the local unit of government, the City is empowered to apply for and

administer certain types of grants. Support from the City, expressed as a certification of consistency or

some other instrument, may be all that is required for some activities. Other activities will involve the

more direct participation of the City for funding, acquisition of land or buildings, or in convening meetings
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of various agencies to iron out differences or strategies on how to seize opportunities. The City will

continue to administer the CDBG program.

The Housing Authority of the City of New Bern administers public housing. Twin Rivers Opportunities, Inc.

administers Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs in the City. This Authority is responsible for the

management and maintenance of public housing units. The Housing Authority will continue in its efforts

to modernize these public housing units in order to provide decent, affordable housing in the City.

Non- Profit Organizations: Non- profit housing agencies play a role in the implementation of this plan.

Through the construction of new housing, and the rehabilitation of existing units, these agencies access

financing sources such as the Low Income Housing Tax Credit, Greenleaf Funding, and charitable

contributions that increase the supply of affordable housing.  While some groups focus on the

rehabilitation of single units for resale to first time homebuyers, others have attempted to create assisted

rental developments. In the future, the union of such groups with social service agencies that serve

specific special needs populations will address the Five Year Consolidated Plan strategy for creation of

supportive housing and affordable housing opportunities.

Non- profit educational institutions provide an important partnership for the City. Craven Community

College is currently partnering with the City of New Bern on the construction of the VOLT Center. Craven

Community College will provide job and vocatio al training at the center, which is located in the Greater
Five Points Redevelopment Area.  

Social service agencies are a link between the provision of hotising and the population it is intended to

serve. The agencies work directly with providers of services to persons with special needs including:

mental health, mental retardation, elderly, drug and alcohol addiction and families that are at- risk of

becoming homeless. Although these agencies cannot provide housing, they can direct housing efforts

where needed and are integral in the planning of housing and services for target populations. Emergency

shelters, including the Religious Community Services and Coastal Women' s Shelter, will continue to

provide shelter for the homeless.

Private Industry: Several lending institutions cooperate with the City to provide funding for downtown

improvements. Those lending institutions play an important role by providing financing that would not

otherwise be available. Additionally, the private businesses located in the area contributed to the

Hurricane cleanup in Downtown New Bern.

Discussion:

Monitoring:

The Monitoring Plan represents the City of New Bern' s strategy for overseeing the activities of entities

that carry out CDBG assisted activities. The Monitoring Plan identifies the following:

The organizations to be monitored
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The issues to be explored and the methodology to be utilized in conducting the monitoring

Identification of the specific Development Services staff inembers that will assume responsibility

for monitoring

The follow- up measures to be followed in communicating the results of the monitoring to affected

organizations and the methods that will be utilized to obtain feedback from affected organizations

The CDBG monitoring will be carried out at two (2) separate levels. First, the City will conduct an internal

monitoring to review the homeowner rehab program and to ensure that the CDBG Program is being

administered in accordance with CDBG and other federal regulatory and statutory requirements. Second,

the City will conduct an external monitoring to review the activities of its sub- recipients.

The purpose of the City' s monitoring efforts is:

to identify and correct issues that prevent the City from achieving full compliance with the

regulatory requirements of the CDBG Program and other Federal requirements before

deficiencies lead to HUD monitoring findings, and

to learn more about the strengths and weaknesses of the various organizations that plays a role

in the City' s CDBG program and to use this knowledge as the basis for structuring future CDBG
activities.
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Program Specific Requirements

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements—91. 220( I)( 1, 2, 4)

Introduction:

The City of New Bern receives an annual allocation of CDBG funds. Since the City receives this federal

allocation, the questions below have been completed, as they are applicable.

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)
Reference 24 CFR 91. 220( I)( 1)

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects
Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be
carried out.

1.  The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start

of the next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed
0. 00

2.  The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used

during the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in 0. 00

the grantee' s strategic plan.

3.  The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0. 00

4.  The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned
use has not been included in a prior statement or plan

0.00

5.  The amount of income from float-funded activities 0. 00

Total Program Income
0. 00

Other CDBG Requirements

1.  The amount of urgent need activities

2.  The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit

persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit- A consecutive period of one,

two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 100.00%

70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify
the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan.

CDBG Percenta es:

Administrative Percentage: 20. 0%

Public Service Percentage: 0.0%

Low and Moderate- Income Percentage: 100.0%

No Slum and Blight Activities.
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CDBGCV Percenta es:

Administrative Percentage: 10. 0%

Public Service Percentage: 100.0%

Low and Moderate- Income Percentage: 100.0%
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OMe Number: 404o-Uoo4

Expiration Date:' I2/31/ 2019

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 j

1. Type of Submission:       2. Type of Application:     ' If Revisbn, select appropdeta letter(s):   

Preapplication New

Applicalion Continualion Other( Speciry):

ChangedlCorrected Application   Revision

3. Date Received:   4. Applicant IdenUfier: i

5a. Federal Entlty Identifier: 5b. Federai Award Idendfler:

B- 20- MC- 37- OD25

State Use Only:  

8. Date Received by State:    7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:    I

a. Legal Name:  City of New Bern

b. Empfoyerlfa ayer ldentifica6on Number( EIN/ TIN):       c, Organizatbnal Dl1NS;

56- 6000235 0755472080000

d. Address:

Streeti:   303 First Street

Streel2:

Clty:     New Hern

County/Padsh:     
Craven County

StelB:    NC; North Carolina

Province:

COUfltry: USA: UNITED STATES

Zip! Postal Code:  28560- 5505

e. Organizational Unit:

Deparlment Name:       Division Name:

Dept. of Development Services Community 6 Economic Dev.

f. Name and contacf informatfon of person to be contacted on matters invoiving this applicatfon:

Prefix: MS. First Name:    D' Aj a i

Midd{e Name:

LastName:   gulmore

SutflX:

TiUe: Community Development Coozdinator

Organizational Afflliation:

I

TelephoneNumber.  p52- 639- 7586 FaxNumber.

Emall:  fulmozed@newbernnc. gov

i

i

I



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type;

C: City or Township Goveinme t

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Appiicarri 3: Select Appliwnt Type:

Other( speGfy):

10. Name of Federal Agency:

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

11. Catalog af Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

19. 218

CFDA TiUa:      

Community Development Block Grant  ( CDBG)/ Entitlement Grant

i

12. Funding Opportunity Number:

N/ A

71UB:

N/ A

I

13. Competition Identification Number:      

TiGe:

r i

i

14. Areas Affected by Project( Cltles, Countfes, States, etc.}: i

Add Altachment      elete Attachment Vjew Atlachment

95. Descriptive TiUe of Applicant's Project:

FY 2020 Annual Actio Plan for the Community Development Block Grant Program

Attach supporting documenls as specifled in agency instructions

f Add Attac yne ts, i Delete Atiachments   ` ew Attachments

f

i



i

Appilcatfon for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:     

a. Applicani NC-- 03 b, PfogramlProje  NC- 03

Attach an addilional list of ProgramlPrqect Congressional Districls if needed.

Add Attachment Qel te l g menl;    VletvAttachmenl

I
97. Proposed Project:

a. Start Date:  0 7/ 01/ 2 02 0 b. End Date:  0 6/ 3 0/ 2 0 21

j
18. Estimated Fu dtng{$): 

a. Fedetal 258, 775. 00

b, Appiicant 0. 00

c, State 0. 00

d. Local 0. 00

e. Other 0. 0 0

f. Program Income o. o o

g. TOTAI 258, 775. 00

79. Is Applicatton Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

a. This application was made avaiEable to the State under ihe Execuiive Order 12372 Process for review on   •

b. Program is subject( o E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the Stale for reWew.

e. Program is not covered by E. O. 12372.

20. Is the Applicant Delinquent bn Any Federal Debt? ( If" Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

Yes No

If" Yes", provide explanatlon and affach

A. d;Attachrrient f3elete Attaehment Viewqttachment.

21.• By signing this application, I cerftfy{ 9) to the statements contalned in the list of certtfications•' and( 2) that the statements
herei are true, complete and accurate fo the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances'" and agree to
comply with any resulting terms it! accept an award. 1 am aware that any false, ficfitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may
subJect me to criminal, civil, or administrative penaltles.{ U. S, Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

I AGREE

The iist of certifications and assurances, w an intemet site where you may obtain this list, is contalned in the announcemenl or agency
specific insWctions.

Authorized Representat[ve:

Prefnc: Mr.  First Name:  Mark

Mlddie Name:

Last Name:  Stephens

Su ix:

Tifle;      
City Manager

TelephoneNumber. Z52- 639- 7 5& e- , GS(    FaxNumber.

Ef lall: stephensm@newbernnc. gov

Signature of Authorized Representative: Date Signed:   11/ 09/ 2020

G

i



i
I
I

ASSURANCES- CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS OMB Number.4040- 0009
Expiratlon Date: 01I3112019

Public reporting burden for this collection of inforrnation is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and compleang and reviewing the collection of
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, incfuding suggestions Eor
reducing this burcien, to the OFfice of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project( 0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE:  Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have ques6ons, please contact the
Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional
assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.   

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant:, I certily that the applicant:

Has the legal authority to appfy for Federal assistance,  8-   Will comply with the Intargovemmental Personnel Act
and the institutionaf, managerial and financial capability of 1970( 42 U. S. C. §§ 4728-4763) relating to prescribed
including funds sufficient to pay the non- Federal share standards of inerit systems for programs funded

of project costs} to ensure proper planning,   unde one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in

management and completion of project described in Appendix A of OPM' s Standards for a Merit System of
this application.       Personnel Administration( 5 C,F. R. 900, Subpart F}.  

2•   Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 9•   Will comply with# he Lead- Based Paint Poisoning
of the United States and, if appropriake, the State,    Prevention Act( 42 U. S. C.§§ 4801 et seq.) which
the right to examine ail records, books, papers, or prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or

documents related to the assistance; and will establish rehabilitation of residence structures.

a proper accounting system in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards or agency Will compty with all Federal statutes relating to non-
directives.     discrimination. These include but are not limited to:( a)       

litle VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964( P. L. 88- 352)
3•  Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the which prohibits dlscrimination on the basis of race,

terms of the real property title or other interest in the        color or national origin;( b) TiUe IX of the Education
site and facilities without permission and instructions s   Amendments of 1972, as amended( 20 U. S, C.§§ 1681

from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal 1683, and 1685- 1686), which prohibits discrimination

awarding agency direc ives and will incfude a covenant on the basis of sex;{ c) Section 504 of the
in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended( 29) U. S. C.
with Federal assistance funds to assure non- 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
discrimination during the useful liFe of the project.     handicaps;( d) the Age Discriminat'ton Act of 1975, as

4•  Will comply with fhe requirements of the assistance
amended( 42 U. S. C.§§ 6101- 6107), which prohibits

awarding agency with regard to the dratting, review and discrimination on the basis of age;{ e) the Drug Abuse
approval of construction plans and speGfications.     Office and Treatmenf Act of 1972{ P. L. 92-255), as

amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
Will provide and maintain competent and adequate drug abuse;( fl the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and

engineering supervision aE the construction site to Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation

ensure that the complete work conforms with the Act of 1970( P. L. 91- 616), as amended, relating to
approved plans and specifications and will furnish nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or

progressive reports and such other information as may be alcoholism;( g)§§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health

required by the assistance awarding agency or State. Service Act of 1912( 42 U. S. C.§§ 290 dd- 3 and 290 ee

3), as amended, refafsng to confidentiaEi#y of alcohol
6•  Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable and dn.ig abuse patient records;( h} Title VIII of the

time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.  Civil Rights Act of 1968( 42 U. S. C. §§ 3601 et seq.}, as

Will establish safeguarcls to prohihit employees from
amended, relating to nondiscriminafion in the sale,
rental or financing of housing; ( i) any other

using their posftions for a purpose that constitutes or nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s)
presents the appearance of personal or organizational

under which applica6on for Federal assistance is beingconflict of interest, or personal gain.
made; and( j) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statue(s) which may appfy to the
application,

Previous Edition Usable Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard form 424D( Rev. 7-97)

Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102
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11.  Will comply, or has already complied, with the Federal actions to State( Clean Air) implementa8on
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of
Assistance arid Reai Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1955, as amended( 42 U. S. C. §§ 7401 et seq.);( g}
9970( P. L. 91- 646) which provide for fair and equitable protec6on of underground sources of dnnking water
treatrnent of persons displaced or whose property is under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as
acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted amended( P. L. 93-523); and, ( h) protection of
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real endangered species under the Endangered Species Act
property aCquired for project purposes regarclless of of 1973, as amended( P. L. 93- 205).
Federal participation in purchases.

2•  Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Acf( 5 U. S. C. §    
s'  Will comply with the Wifd and Scenic Rivers Act of

1501- 1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political
968( 16 U. S. C.§§ 1271 et seq.) related to protecting

components or potential components of the national
activities of employees whose principal employmenf wild and scenic rivers system,
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

13.    
7•  Wifl assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance

1NII comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis- 
wifh Section ' f06 of the National Histotic Preservation

Bacon Act( 40 U. S. C.§§ 276a to 276a- 7), the Copeland Act
qct of 1966, as amended( 16 U. S. C.§ 470), EO 11593

40 U. S. C.§ 276c and 1 B U. S. C. § 874), and the Confract identification and protection of historic properties), and
Work Hours and Safety Standards Ac#(40 U. S. C.§§ 327-    

the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 197 4( 16 U. S.C. §§ 469a- 1 et seq}.    j
construction subagreements.

14.    
18•  Will cause to be perfortned the required financial and

Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit i

Section 102( a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973
qCt Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133,      

P. L. 9 234) which requires recipients in a special flood Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non- Profit
hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase Organizations."
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction
and acquisition is$ 10,000 or more.     19•  Il i) comply with all applicable requirements of all other

15.  1/ il( com I with environmenta{ standards which ma be
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies

P Y Y governing this program.
prescribed pursuant to the following:( a) institution of
environmental quality control measures under the National 2Q.  WII oomply with the requirements of Section 106( g) of
Environmental Policy Act of 1969( P. L. 91-   the Trafficfcing Victims Protection Act( NPA} of 2000, as
190) and Executive Order( EO) 11514;( b} notification amended( 22 U. S. C. 7104) which prohibits grant award
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; { c)       recipients or a sub- recipient from( 1} Engaging in severe
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990;( d)    forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time
evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance that the award is in effect( 2) Procuring a commercial sex
with EO 11988;( e) assurance of project consistency ect during the period of time that the award is in effect or
with the approved State rnanagemeni program 3) Using forced fabor in the perFormance of the award or
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of subawards under the award.

1972( 16 U. S. C.§§ 1451 et seq.);( conformity of

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE
J

City Manager

APPLICANT GANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED
i

City of New Bern 09/ 23/ 2020

SF-424O( Rev. 7- 97) Back
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OM8 Number. 4040.0004

Expiration Date: 12/ 3112019

Application for Federal Asslstance SF- 424

I. Type of Submission:       2. Type of Applicati0n:    ' It Revision, select appropriate letterys):

Preapplication New

Application Continuation omer{ Speciry):

Changed/Corrected ApplicaGon   Revision

3. Date Received    4. Applicant Identifier.

09/ 28/ 2020

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: 5b. Federal Award IdenUfier:

s- zo- r ur-- oozs

st u on y:

8. Date Received by State:    7. State Application Identifier: _ ._

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

a. LegalName:  City of New sern

b. EmployedTaxpayer ldentitication Number( EINlTIN): c. Orgarnzatlpnal DUN;

56- 6000235 0' 1554 Z080''

d. Address:

SVeet1:   303 First Stzeet

SVeet2:

C Y     New Bern

County/Parish:     Cxaven County

State:    RC: North Carolina

Province:

Country:  USA: UNITED STRTES

Zlp i Postal Code:  2 8 5 6 0- 5:.

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Diviaio Name:

Dept. of Developmer.t Sezvices Com.•¢unity & Economic Dev.

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involvfng thfs application:

Prefix: MS First Name:    n aj a

Middle Name:

Last Name:   Fu: more

Su x:

Title: Community Development Coordinator

Organizational Affiliation:

Telephone Numbec 252- 635- 7586 Fax Number:

Email:  fulmored@newbernnc. gov



i

i

i
i

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

9. Type oF Applicant 1: Select Appllcant Type:      

C: City or Township Government

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Select Appfiqnt Type:

i

Other( specify):    j

E

10. Name of Federal Agency:      

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development j
i

11. Catalog of Federaf bomestic Assistance Number:

19. 218

i
CFDA Titie: 

I
Community Development Block Grant  ( CdBG)/ Entitlement Grant

12. Funding Opportunity Number:

N/ A

Title:

N/ A

L

13. Competition Identification Num6er:

7itle:      

i i

i

14. Areas Affected by Project( Citfes, Counties, States, etc.):

Add Atfachment  , ( Delete F ttachment  f Uew Attachmenf 

15. Descrfptive Title of ApplfcanYs Project: f

FY 2020 Annual Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant ( CDSG) CARES Act FUnding.     
i

Attach supportlng documents as specified In agency instrucUons.   

i' AddAttachments',;    DeTete Attaehments;  _ ' eW"AttaCJnlrlents.

i

I
I
i

I

I
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Application for Federal Assistance SF- 424

16. Congressional Distrlcts Of;

a. Applicant NC- 03 b. ProgramlProjed NC- 03

Attach an addiUonal list of Program/ ProJect Congressional Districts if needed. 

Add Attachment     t te ltta hFnent vle+!9iiachmeitt:    

17. Proposed Project:

a. Start Date:  07/ O1/ 2020 b. End Date:  6/ 30/ 2021

18. Estimated Funding($:  

a Federai 152, 252. 00

b. Applicant 0. 00

a Slate 0. 0 0

d. Locai 0. 0 0

e. Ofhet 0. 0 0

f. Programincome 0. 00

g. TOTAL 152, 252. 00

19. ls Application SubJect to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process9

a. This application was made availabfe to the State under the Executive rder 12372 Pracess for review on Q       
b. Program is subject to E_O. 12372 but has not been selected by the SEate for review.

XQ c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

20.( s the Applicant DeUnquent On Any Federaf Debt? ( if" Yes," provide explanation in ariachment.)

Yes XQ No

If" Yese, provide explanation and attach
1

Attach nerlt De{ele,Aftachment Uiew Aitachinent :

24.' By signing this application, I certify( 1) to the statements contafned in the list of certifications** and( 2) that the statements
herein ars true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. i also provide the requlred assurances** and agree to
comply with any resulting terms if I accept an award. 1 am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or clalms may
subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.( U. S. Code, Tftle 218, Section 1001)    

X '* E AGREE

The Ifst of certiflcafrons and assurances, w an infernet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency specific i
inslructions.

Authorized Representative:

Preflx: Mr.  First Name:  Mazk

Middle Name;

Lasl Name:   Stephens

suffix:

Tltle:      City Managei

Telephone Number. 252- 639- 7500 Fau Number:

Email: stephensra@newbeznnc. gov

Signature of Authorized Representative: Pate Signed:   0 9/ z 3/ 2 0 2 0



II

ASSURANCES- CONSTRUCTIOfV PROGRAMS OMB Number: 4Q40-d009
Expiration Date: 01l31/ 2019

i
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including Gme for reviewing
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering end maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the coflection of
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project( 0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED F'ORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

i

IOTE:  in of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the
Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agenaes may require applicants to certify to additional
assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.   i

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant:, I certify that the applicant:

Has the le al authori to a I for Federal assisfance,  e.   9 tY PP Y Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act
and the insMutional, managerial and financial capability of 1970( 42 U. S. C. §§ 4728-4763) rela8ng to prescribed
including funds sufficient to pay the non- Federal share standards of inerit systems for programs funded

of project costs} to ensure proper planning,   under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in
management and complefion of project described in P,ppendix A of OPM' s Standards for a Merit System of
this application.       Personnel Administrafion( 5 C. F. R. 900, Subpart F).

2•  Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 9•   Will comply with the Lead- Based Paint Poisoning
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State,    Prevention Act( 42 U. S. C.§§ 4801 et seq.) which
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or prohibits the use of lead- based paint in construction or
documents related to the assistance; and will establish rehabilitation of residence structures.

a proper accounting system in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standarcls or agency V lill comply with all Federaf statutes relating to non-
directives.      discrimination. These include but are not limited to:{ a)

Title VI af the Civil Rights Act of 1964( P. L. 88- 352)   
3  Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the which prohibits discriminafion on the basis of race,   

terms of the real property title or other interest in the color or na6onal origin;( b) Title IX of the Education
site and facilities without permission and instructions        Amendments of 1972, as amended( 20 U. S. C.§§ 1681
from the awarding agency. Will record the Federa{     1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination
awarding agency directives and will include a covenant on the basis of sex;( c) Section 504 of the
in the tiNe of real property acquired in whole or in part Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended( 29) U. S. C.
with Federal assis#ance funds to assure non- 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
discrimination dunng the useful life of the project

handicaps;( d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as

4-  Will comply with the requirements of the assistance
amended( 42 U. S. C. §§ 6101- 6107), which prohibits

awarding agency with regard to the`drafting, review and discrimination on the basis of age;( e) the Drug Abuse
approval of construction plans and speci5cations.     Office and Treatment Act of 1972( P. L. 92- 255), as

amended relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
Will provide and maintain competent and adequate drug abuse;( the Comprehensive Afcohol Abuse and

engineering supervision at the construction site to Alcoholism Preventfon, Treatrnent and Rehabilitation

ensure that the complete work conforms with the Act of 1970( P. L. 91- 616), as amended, relating to
approved plans and specifications and will fumish nondiscriminafion on the basis of alcohol abuse or

progressive reports and such other information as may be alcoholism;( g)§§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health
required by the assistance awarding agency or State. Service Act of 1912( 42 U. S. C. §§ 290 dd- 3 and 290 ee

6 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol
Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable and drug abuse patient records;( h) Title VII! of thefime frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.  Civil Rights Act of 1968( 42 U. S, C.§§ 3601 et seq.), as

amended, relatln to nondiscnmination in the sale,   7•  Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from
rental or finanang of housing;( i) any other

using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s)

presents the appearance of personal or organizational
under which application for Federal assistance is beingconflict oF interest, or personal gain.   

made; and( j) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply to the
application.

Previous Edition Usable Authorized for Local ReproducEion Standard Form 424D( Rev. 7- 97)

Prescribed by OMB Clrcular A-102
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11.  Will comply, or has already complied, with the Federal actions to State( Clean Air} implementation

requirements of Tittes II and III of the UnifoRn Relocation Plans under Secfion 176(c) of the Ciean Air Act af
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1955, as amended( 42 U. S.C.§§ 7401 et seq.);{ g)
1970{ P. L. 91- 846) which provide for fair and equitable protection of underground sources of drinking water
treatment of persons displaced or whose praperiy is under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as
acquired as a resuEt of Federal and federally-assisted amended( P. L. 93-523); and, ( h) protection of
programs. These requirements appfy to all interests in reaf endangered species under the Endangered Species Act

property acquired for project purpases regardless of af 1973, as amended( P. L. 93- 205).

Federal par cipation in purchases.   
6•  Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of i

12•  Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act( 5 U. S. C.§  1968( 16 U. S. C.§§ 1271 et seq.) related to protecting
1501- 1506 and 73247328) which limit the poli6cal

components or potential camponents ofthe national
acUvities of employees whose principal employment wild and scenic rivers system.
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

7•  Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance
3•  Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-  

with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Bacon Act( 40 U. S. C.§§ 276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act Act of 1966, as amended( 16 U. S. C.§ 470), EO 11593
40 U. S. C.§ 276c and 18 U. S. C.§ 874), and the Contract identification and protection of historic properties), and

Wbtk Hours and Safety Standards Act( 40 U. S. C.§§ 327-    the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
333) regarding labor standards for federally, assisted 1974( 16 U. S.C.§§ 469a- 1 et seq}.
construction subagreements.

18.  I cause to be performed the required financial and
14.  Wfl comply with flaod insurance purchase requirements of

mp tanoe audits in accordance with the Single Audit
Section 102( a) of the Flood Disaster ProEectian Act of 1973 Act Amendments af 1996 and OMB Circular No. A- 133,      
P. L. 93- 234) which requires recipients in a special flood Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Prafit

hazard area to participate in the pragram and to purchase Organizations."

flood insurance if the total cost of insurable constructian
and acquisition is$ 10, 000 or more.     18•  Wi11 comply with all applicable requirements of a! I other

15.  Will cam I with environmental standards which ma be
Federal laws, executive arders, regulations, and policies

PY Y governing this program.
prescribed pursuant to the following:( a) institution of
environmenta! quality control measures under the National 20.  Witl comply with the requirements oP Section 106(g) of
Environmentaf Palicy Act of 1969( P. l.. 91-   ttte Trafficking Victims Protection Act( NPA) af 2000, as
190) and Executi e Order{ EO) 11514;( b} notificatior ,      amended{ 22 U. S. C. 7104) which prohibits grant award
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; ( c)       recipienEs or a sub- recipient from{ 1) Engaging in severe
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990;( d)    forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time
evaluation of Flood hazards in floodplains in accordance that the award is in effect( 2) Procuring a commercial sex
with EO 11988;( e) assurance of project consistency act during the period of time that the award is in effect or
with the apptoved State management program 3) Using forced labor in Ehe performance of the award or
developed under the Coastal Zona Management Act f subawards under the award.

1972( 16 U. S.C.§§ 1451 et seq.);( f conformity of

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE

City Manager

APPLICANT RGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED

CiCy of New Bern 09/ 23/ 2020

SF-424D( Rev. 7- 97) Back
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CERTIFICATIONS

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations gove ning the consolidated plan regulations,
the jurisdiction certifies that:

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing-- The jutisdiction will affi•matively fuither fair housing. i

Uniform Relocation Act and Anti-disptacement and RelocaHon Plan-- It will comply with the

acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended,{ 42 U.S. C. 460I- 4655) and implementing regulations at 49
CFR Pa t 24. It has in effect and is following a residential anti- displacement and relocation assistance
plan required under 24 CFR Patt 42 in connection with any activity assisted with funding under the
Community Development Block Grant or HOME programs.

Anti-Lobbying-- To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief:

l. No Federal app npriated funds have heen paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an offlcer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
of#icer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Con ress in connection with the

awarding of any Federal contc•act, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the
entering into of any coopet tive agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contcact, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

2. If any fitnds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Cong-ess, an
ofFicer o• etnployee of Congress, or an employee of a Memher of Congess in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it wilI complete and submit Standaz•d Fornn- LLL,

Disclosure Foizn to Report Lobbying," in aecordance with its insttvctions; and

3. It will require that the language of paz•agraph 1 and 2 of this anti- lobbying certification be included in
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers( inc uding subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
gants, loans, and cooperative ageements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

Authority of Jurisdiction-- The consolidated plan is autharized under State and local law{ as applicable)
and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to ca•ry out tha progt•ams for which it is seeking funding,       
in accordance with applicable HUD regulations,  

Consistency with plan-- The housing activities to be undertaken with Community Development Block
Grant, HOME, Emergency Solutions Grant, and Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS funds are
consistent with the strategic plan in the jurisdiction' s consolidated pla.       

Section 3 -- It will comply with section 3 of the Iousing and Urban Development Act of 1968{ 12 U.S. C.       i
1701 u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135,       j

GC 9/ 23/ 2020

Signat re of Au i7zed Official Date

City Manager
T'itle

i



Specific Commuuity Development Blocic Grant Certifications

The Entitlement Comrnunity certifies that:

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that
satisfies the requiremenfs of 24 CFR 91. 105.

Community Development Plan-- Its consolidated plan identifies community development and housing
needs and specifies both short- tet7n and long-term community development objectives that that have been
developed in accordance with the primary objective ofthe CDBG program ( i. e., the development of
viable urban communities, by providing decent housing and expanding economic opportunities, piimarily
for persons of low and moderate income) and requu ements of 24 CFR Parts 91 and 570.

Following a Plan-- It is following a current consolidated plan that has been approved by HUD,   

Use of Funds-- It has complied with the following criteria:

1. Maximum Feasible Prioritv. With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG

funds, it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximuru feasible priority to activities which
beneft low- and moderate- incoane families or aid in the prevention or eliinination of slums or
blight. The Action Plan may also include CDR(?-assisted activities which the grantee ceitifies are

designed to meet other community development needs having particula uigency because e cisting
conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the i eatth o• welfare of the community, and
other financial esources are not available ( see Optional CDBG Ceitification).      

2. Overall Benefit. The aggregate use of CDBG funds, inctuding Section l08 guaranteed loans, 
during program year( s) FY 2020, FY 2021,& FY 2Q22 ( a pet iod specified by the grantee of one,
two, or three specific consecutive ptngram years], shall principally benefit peisons of low and
moderate income in a manner that ensures that at least 70 pe• cent of the amount is expended for
activities that benefit such persons during the designated period.

3. Special Assessm,ents. It wil] not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements
assisted with CDBG funds, inciuding Section 108 loan guaranteed funds, by assessing any amount
against prope;    owned and occupied by persons of low and ruoderate income, including any fee
charged or ass ent made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements.

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that i elates to the
capital costs of public improvements( assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from other

revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made agai st the propet ty with respect to the
public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds.

In addition, in the case of properties owned and occupied by moderate- income( not low-incotne) 
families, an assessment or charge may be made against the property for public improveruents
financed by a source other than CDBG fiuids if the jurisdiction ceitifies that it lacks CDBG funds
to cover the assessment.

Ezcessive Force-- It has adopted and is enforcing:

1. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its
jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non- violent civil rights demonstrations; and

2. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically bacz ing entrance to or
exit fi•om a facility or location which is the subject of such non- violent civil rights demonstrations
within its jurisdiction.



Comptiance witl Anti-discrimination laws-- The grant will be conducted and administered in

confonnity with title VI of the Civil Rigl ts Act of 1964( 42 U.S. C. 2000d) and the Fair Housing Act( 42
U.S. C. 3601- 3619) and implementing i•egulations.

Lead- Based Paint-- Its activities concerning lead- based paivt will comply with the requirements of 24
CFR Part 35, Subpa ts A, B, J, K and R.

CompIiance with Laws-- It will comply with applicable laws.

9/ 23/ 2020
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APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING CERTIFICATION:

Lobbying Certiricafion
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction

was made or enta ed into. Submission of this ce tification is a prerequisite for malciug or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
ce tification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than$ 10,004 and not more than$ 100, 000 for
each such failure.
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CERTIFICATIONS

i

In accordance with tha appiicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated plan regulations,
the jurisdiction cei tifies that:

rmatively Further Fair Housing-- The jurisdiction will affv-matively further fair housing.

Uniform Relocati n Act and Anti-displacement and Relocation Pl n -- It will comply with the
acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended,( 42 U.S. C. 4601- 4655) and implementing regulations at 49
CFR Part 24. It has in effect and is following a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance
plan required under 24 CFR Part 42 in connection with any activity assisted with fuuding under the
Community Development Block Grant or HOME progi'ams.

Anti-Lobbying-- To the best of the jurisdiction' s knowledge and belief:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an offieer or employee of a iy agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cong, ess in coiu ection with the
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the mafcing of any Federal loan, the
entering into of any cooperative a eement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, gant, loan, or cooperative agreement;  

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officec• or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Cong•ess, or an employee of a Member of Con• ess in connection with this
Federal contract, gant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and suhmit Standard Form-LLL,

Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accoi•dance with its instructions; and

3. It will require that the language of par•agraph 1 and 2 of this anti- lobbying certification be included in
the award dociunents for all subawards at all tieis( including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
gants, loans, and cooperativ.• eements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

Authority of Jurisdiction-- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law( as applicable)
and the jtu isdiction possesses the legal authority to ca• iy out the pibg•ams for which it is seeking funding,
in accordance with applicable HUD regulations.

Consisteucy with plan-- The housing activities to be undertaken with Community Deveiopment Block
Grant, HOME, Emergency Solutions Grant, and Housing Opportunifies for Persons With AIDS funds a• e
consistent with the sn•ategic plan in the jurisdiction' s consolidated pla i.

Section 3-- Tt will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968( 12 U.S. C.       
1701 u) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135.       

9/ 23/ 2020
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Specific Community Development Blocic Gi•ant Certificallons

The Entitlement Community certiftes that:

Citizen Participation -- It is in fulI compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that
satisfies the requirements of 24 CFR 91. 105.

I

Commuoity Development Plan -- Its consolidated plan identifies community development and housing
needs and specifies both short-term and long-teim community development objectives that that have been
developed in accordance with the primaiy objective of the CDBG program( i.e., the development of
viable urhan communities, by providing decent housing and expanding economic opportunities, primarily
for persons of low and moderate income) ar d requ'vements of 24 CFR Pa ts 91 and 570.

l ollowing a Pian-- It is following a current consolidated plan that has been approved by HUD.

Use of Funds-- It has cotnplied with the following criteria:

1. M imum Feasible Priotitv. With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG

funds, it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to activities which
beneftt low- and moderate- income families or aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or

blight. The Action Plan may also include CDBG-assisted activities which tl e grantee ceitifies are
designed to meet otl er community development necds having particular urgency because existing
conditions pose a se• ious and immediate t}u cat to the health or welfare of the community, and
other ftnancial resources are not available ( see Optional CDBG Certification).

2. Overalt Benefit. The aggregate use of CDBG funds, inciuding Section 108 guaranteed loans, 

I

during program year(s) FY 2020 [ a period specified by the grantee of one, two, or ttmee speci c
consecutive program years], shall principally benefit persons of low and moderate income in a
manner that ensures that at least 70 percent ofthe a nount is expended for activities that benefit

such persons during the designated period.

3. Special Assessments. li will not attempt to recover any capital costs of pubfic improvements
assisted with CDBG funds, including Section 108 loan gua anteed funds, by assessing any amount
against properties owned and_occupied by persons of low and tnoderate income, including any fee
charged or assessment made s a conditio of obtaining access to such public improvements.     

However, if CDBG funds a•e used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to the
capital costs of public improvements( assisted in part wiih CDBG funds) financed from other

cevenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the
public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds.

In addition, in the case of properties owned and occupied by moderate- income( not low-income) 
faznilies, an assesstnent or charge may be made against the property for pubtic improvements
financed by a source other tl an CDBG funds if the j urisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds
to cover the assessment.

F.gcessive Force-- It has adopted and is enforcing:

1. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its
jurisdiction agau st any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and

2. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or
exit fi•om a facility or loeation which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations
within its jurisdiction.



Compliance with Anti-discrimination Iaws-- The grant will be conducted and administered in

conformity with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964( 42 U. S. C. 2000d) and the Fair Housing Act( 42
U.S. C. 3601- 3619) and implementing regulations.

Lead-Based Paint-- Its activit[es concerning lead- based paint will comply with the requirements of 24
CFR Pa t 35, Subpaits A, B, J, K and R.

Compliance with Laws-- It will comply with applicable laws.

9/ 23/ 2020

Signa e of Aui o ' icial Date
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APP NDIX TO CERTIFICATIO1 iS

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING CERTIFICATION:

Lobbying Certification
This certificatioi is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction

was made or entered into. Submission of this cectification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than$ 10, 000 and not more than$ 100,000 for
each such failu e.

1
3

I

i

i
I

I

i
I

i
I

I

i

i

i
tf

i

i

i

i

I



1 i , , L

CITY OF RN

E L TI NR U



20- 1 23

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE CITY OF NEW

BERN:

WHEREAS, under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974,
as amended, the Secretary of the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
is authorized to extend financial assistance to communities in the prevention or

elimination of slums or urban blignt, or activities which will benefit low- and moderate-

income persons, or other urgent community development needs; and

WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has advised
the City of New Bern that under Fiscal Year 2020. the City is eligible to apply for an
entitlement grant under the Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG) Program in
the amount of$ 258,814, a CDBG-CV Program in the amount of 152,252; and

WHEREAS, the City of New Bem' s Department of Development Services has
prepared an Annual Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2 20, which proposes how the entitlement

grant funds will be expended to addressthe hous ng ancl community development needs
identified in the City's Five Year Consolidsted Plan, and

WHEREAS, a draft of the FY 2020 Artnual Action Plan was on public display from
August 28, 2020 through September 21 ,  120 and the City held a series of public
meetings and hearings on the said P1an an#' the comments of various agencies, groups,

and citizens were tak onsiderat on in the preparation of the final document

NOW THE RE, BE T RESOLVED:

SECTION 1. That the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan for the Fiscal Year 2020 CDBG

and C BG- CV Programs is hereby in all respects APPR VED and the City Clerk is
hereby directed to file a copy of said Annual Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2020 with the
official minutes of this meeting of this Board; and

SECTION 2. That the City is COGNIZANT of the conditions that are imposed in
the undertaking and carrying out of the Community Development Block Grant Program
with Federal financial assistance, including those relating to ( a) the relocation of site
occupants; ( b) the prohibition of discrimination because of race, color, age, religion, sex,

disability, familial status, or national o igin, and other assurances as set forth under the
certifications; and

SECTION 3. That the Mayor, on behalf of the City of New Bern, North Carolina, is
AUTHORIZED to file an application for financial assistance with the U. S. Department of

Housing and Urban Development which has indicated its willingness to make available
funds to carry out the CDBG Program in the amount of$ 258,814 and CDBG- CV Program



in the amount of $ 152,252;  and its further AUTHORIZED to act as the authorized
representative of the City of New Bem to sign any and all documents in regard to these
programs; and

SECTION 4. That the Mayor, on behalf the City of New Bern, North Carolina, is
AUTHORIZED to pravide assurances and/or certifications as required by the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; and any other supplemental or

revised data which the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development may request
in review of the City's Application.

ADOPTED THIS 22" d DAY OR SEPTEMBER 2020.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

r-    

C U_ _: > ine-

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK
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CITY OF NEW BERN

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN
AMENDED SEPTEMBER 22, 2020

1.  Introduction

The Citizen Participation Plan provides for and encourages citizens,  organizations,

businesses and other stakeholders to participate in the development of the Consolidated

Plan, any substantial amendments to the consolidated plan, and the annual perfoRnance
report.  This plan describes how the City of New Bem encourages and promotes
pa ticipation through the establishment of policies and procedures for participation in the

implementation of the Community Development Block Grant( CDBG).

The City of New Bern is required to adopt a Citizen Pgrticipation Plan that meets HUD' s
minimum requirements as set forth in the regulat ons for " Consolidated Submission for

Community Planning and Development Prograrns'  ( 24 CFR 9 Subpart B). fn carrying
out these requirements the City of New Bern understands that part cipation on the part of
its citizens, organizations, businesses and other stakeholders is vital to the effectiveness

of all Consolidated Plan activities.

The Citizen Participation Plan outlines proc dUi s b which each of the requirements set

forth in 91: 105 of the Federal Regulations are carried out. This Plan is effective as of May
12, 2020 and remains in effect until such time as all activities assisted are completed, or

until superseded by a new Pfan.

2. Goals of the Citi en Participation Plan

A.  To provide for ''l olv ent of citizens,  organizations,  businesses and other

stakeholders in the    ntification of community development needs and housing;
review of proposed activities and assessment of program performance in

accordance with the schedule that is adopted each year

B.  To enable the City to respond to the needs of its citizens through community
development and housing programs, policies and plans.

C.  To encourage citizens, particularly very low, low and moderate income persons,
residents of blighted neighborhoods,  members of minority groups,  nonprofit

agencies, public housing residents, the business and civic community, and special
populations, to submit their comments, questions and proposals regarding the City
of New Bem' s Community Development Program

1



3. Developme t of the Consolidated Plan

The Citizen Partic pation Plan requires that before adoption of the Consolidated Plan the
City will provide the following information:

A.  The amount of assistance the City expects ta receive from any grant funds and
program income.

B.  The range of activities that may be undertaken including the estimated amount that
will benefit very low, low-and- moderate income persons.

C.  The City' s plans to minimize displacement.

D. The City's specific action steps to end chronic homelessness.

E.  The City's long- term and short-term object ves for ne ghborhood revitalization
strategies.

F.  The percentage of funds dedicated to tatyet are s.  

G. The City's public hearing calendar nd pro: ess for developing and submitting the
Consolidated Plan.

H.  Provisions for receiving pubiic com on t e proposed Plan.

4. The Participation Process       '

The participation pcocess wl   e t nducted both at a community wide- level and in
neighborhoods whe+ redevelo ent activity is p oposed or undervvay. The community
wide process involves oonsulta bns with businesses, developers, community and faith-
based organizations.   and other interested citizens conceming housing and

redevelopment issues.

A. Agency Consultatio Process: Agency consultations will be a part of the ongoing
process that includes service providers, advocacy groups and coordinating bodies
responsible for providing services, especially to populations with special housing
needs. City staff will meet throughout the year with a number of local housing,
social service, homeless, and economic development agencies to determine the

housing needs of specific populations and groups. The City also will consult with
local health agencies to examine lead- based paint hazards within the Iocal

community.

B.  Public Housing Residents: The City will consult with the New Bern Housing
Authority ( NBHA) staff, Board, and residents of public and assisted housing
developments to provide information about consolidated plan activities related to

z



its developments and surrounding communities so that the housing authority can
make this information available at their annual public hearing required under the
Comprehensive Grant program.

The City also will consult with NBHA to define and address the housing needs of
its residents. The NBHA resident councils will also be informed of the Community
and Economic Development Division's planned activities and bene ts.  This

consultation also helps to ensure that activities with regard to local illegal drug
activity elimination, neighborhood improvement programs, resident programs and
services funded under the public housing program are coordinated to achieve
comprehensive community development goals.

C.  Neighbo hood Based Citizen Committees:  The City will meet with citizen's
groups such as neighborhood associations and res dents' councils, primarily in
redevelopment areas.  The City may also maet with other neighborhood

associations and citizen groups as needed.

D. Community Development Advisory  mittee  ( GDAC):   The Board of

Aldermen will appoint a committee to a e the 8taff and to assure that the citizen

participation plan encourages the panicipat on of all its citizens,  including
minorities and non-English speaking persons, as well as persons with disabilities.
The CDAC will consist of private citize s appoi 4t d for three ( 3) year terms.

This process and schedule will k  the blished operating procedure for citizen
participation and may be affected fro one iscal year to the next in regard to the date of

the public hearings, which s at the d scretion of Board of Aldermen, as well as the

timetable for the City of New Bern budget development.

5. Consolidated Plar Public Meetings

Each year the City will scheci e at least two ( 2) public meetings for the development of
an annual Action Plan for the City`s housing and community development programs. The
first of these will be held in the community as a " listening session" and the last as a public
hearing at a Board of Aldermen meeting. The State of North Carolina' s Open Meeting
Law will be followed.

A.  First Public Meeting:  The first meeting or (" listening session will occur at the
beginning of the planning process to review past program performance, to
obtain views on community development and housing needs and to identify
general strategic priorities for projected funding. The purpose of this meeting is
to let very low, low- and moderate- income persons and residents of blighted
neighborhoods offer their perceptions of problems within their neighbarhoods

and in the community at large and present proposals aimed at solving the
problems. This meeting will take place at a community facility located within the
areas where housing and community development activities are underway or

3



planned. Other meetings may be scheduled for the purpose of receiving input
on housing needs and program priorities and funding.

B. Public Hearing: The public hearing is held after staff has drafted the proposed
annual budget and Consolidated Plan (or annual Action Plan) but prior to Board
of Aldermen approval of the Plan. This public heanng will be held in the City
Hall Courtroom.

C. Public Notice: Notices of all public meetings will be advertised in the Sun

Journal, no later than 10 days prior to the hearing. Public notices will indicate
the date, time and location of the hearing, and the topics to be covered. The
City will also post informational flyers about the public meeting at the New Bern-
Craven County Public Library and recreation and community centers. Mailings
electronic where app opriate) will be sent to ntenested persons and entities

and the public meeting notices will be posted un the City of New Bern' s website
at htt s:// www. newbemnc.qov.

D. Accessibility:  All public meetings wlll be held locations providing
accessibility for persons with physical disak ies and ake place in locations
convenient to residents.

fi. Public Comment Period

The Consolidated Plan and each an I Action Plan will be made available in draft form
to receive public comments at least     , r ( 3} days before final approval by the Board of
Aldermen,

The draft Consolid Plan wi11 b- vailable at the New Bem-Craven County Public
library. The library i   _{ en weeke d and evening hours and is accessible to the physically
challenged. Copies of e draft plan wiU also be available at the Development Services
Department, the City HaN, and the Stanley White Recreation Center. The draft plan will
also be posted the City s webs te at https://www.newbernnc.qov.

The proposed plan will include public comments made either orally or in writing. A
summary of these comments ar views and a summary of any comments or views not
accepted and the rationale for not accepting the comments will be attached to the final
Consolidated Plan. Written responses will be provided to all written comments including
complaints and grievances and/or proposals submitted during the Citizen Participation
Planning process.  The City will make every reasonable effort to provide a written
response to all wntten comments within fifteen days of receipt of the comment. A concise
summary of citizen participation and consultation process, including efforts to broaden
public participation, will be included in the Consolidated or annual Action Plan.
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7. Adequate and Timely Information

All aspects of citizen participation in the City of New Bem govemment are conducted in
an open manner, with freedom of access for all interested persons or groups. Information
pertinent to the activities of the Community and Economic Development Division will be
circulated to the public and made available for rev ew in the Development Services

Department dunng normal business hours of the City. This information will be made public
subject to all applicable laws regarding confidentiality and person pnvacy in the
Communiry Development o ce. Access to all documents is open except where prohibited
by aw. There may be a reproduction cost charged to persons requesting personal copies
of Community Development documents. Every attempt is made to respond to written
requests for information within 15 days of receipt.

8. Non-English Speaking Persons

Where a significant number of very low, low and rate 'income residents of blighted
neighborhoods speak and read a primary lang e other thar: nqlish, public heanng
notices and basic information summaries will- e prc ced and made available in the

appropriate language(s).

Also,  bilingual opportunities when appropriate wilf be made available at the public

hearings. Informational material will be sent as appfp aate to non-profit and social service

organizations that senre non- English speaking residents.

9. Persons with Disabilities  

The Community and Econornic De elopment Division will take steps to ensure that
individuals with disabilities are able to participate in the public hearing and the
consolidated plann ng process.

For public hearings in the ' fty Hall Courtroom, persons with disabilities should contact
252) 639-7586. It is the responsibility of the Community and Economic Development

Department to request this service when required.

10. Annual Performance Assessment and Reports

The Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) is a summary of
Community Development Block Grant accomplishments for the past fiscal year. The
CAPER will be sent to HUD ninety days after the completion of the program year. Prior
to its submission, the Community and Economic Develapment Division will inform the
public of the CAPER' s availability for comment through the Sun Journal, the City' s website
https://www.newbernnc.qov), and electronic notices.
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Citizens will have 15 days to examine the report and provide comments prior to its
submission to HUD. A summary of all comments or views will be attached to the CAPER
submitted to HUD.

11. Program Amendments

From time to time,  the Consolidated Plan may be substantially amended to reflect
changes in program activities and priorities. The following are considered substantial
changes:

A.  Addition of a new activity or new priority( see D. below for threshold) not previously
described,

B.  Cancellation of an activity category or deletion of a pr ority,

C.  A change in the purpose, scope, location, or benefic artes of an activity, and

D.  A substantial change in the allocation ar distrit kion of funds is defined as when
the dollar amount of that change is equal to or greater than 20% of the City' s
current fiscal year federal budget by source  ( e. g.,  CDBG is undergoing a
substantial change when 20% or more of that year' s CDBG allocation plus CDBG
program income is affected)

Pnor to amending the Consol dated Plan ritizens will be given reasonable notice of, and
opportunity to comment on. such proposed cf anges and the e- use of funds_ The process
to substantially amend the an wi11 n lude a minimum 10-day public notice prior to a
public hearing ( held n oordance w th seci on 5c above) and a thirty-day (30) comment
period to eceive citi n comments an the proposed amendment prior to implementation.

Citizens' comments, araUy or n writing, will be considered. A summary of the comments
and the rationale for not accepting any comments will be attached to the substantial
amendment of the Consolidated Plan.

12. Technical Assistance

Technical assistance will be provided to citizen organizations and very low, low- and
moderate- income persons upon request.

Examples of assistance include information on the CDBG law, neighborhood planning,
review of accomplishments,  briefings on community development requirements and
oppartunities,  development of neighborhood goals and objectives,  and design of
neighborhood proposals.
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13. Complaint Procedure

Written or oral complaints or grievances concerning the Consolidated Planning process
or the CDBG program should first be directed to the City' s Community and Econamic
Development Division.  It is the policy of the City to provide a procedure for the
acknowledgement,   presentation,   consideration,   investigation,   and disposition of

complaints received conceming Community Development programs.

The Community and Economic Development Division will make every effort to respond
to all complaints within fifteen ( 15) days of receipt by sending a written response. Should
the complainant not be satisfied,  the complainant may arrange a meeting with the
Development Services Director to discuss the complaint. If the complaint can still not be

satisfied, a written complaint may be submitted in writing to the City Manager. Any citizen
may make an o al or written petition to the Board of Alder n to discuss problems not

resolved at the staff level.

14. Relocation Plan and Anti-Displacement Pot1 y

Displacement will be minimized but when it is unavoidable, any person(s) displaced due
to the activities of the Consolidated Plan pr c rams will rece ve relocation assistance and

relocation payments in accordance with tfie Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real

Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 ( Unif4rm Act). The Community Development
staff will provide information ssist ee one-on-one to prospective displaced

persons.

15. Declaration of an Etrrergency

When a Declaration of an Eme gency has been o dered by the President of the United
States, or the Governor of North Garolina, and regulatory flexibility is permitted by HUD,
the City of New Bern will fallow the following process concerning public heanngs and
public display of plans when necessary for public health reasons.   These Emergency
procedures will apply to the Five Year Consolidated Plan/Annual Action Plan

amendments and initial Plan submissions,  as permitted through regulatory waiver

authority or programmatic flexibility:

A.  If the City is unable to hold open public hearings in person, the City will be allowed
to instead hold virtual public hearings through conference calls or an online video

conference call platforms as long as the public is able to provide public comments
dunng the virtual public hearing.

B.  If the City is not able to publicly ptace the plans on p blic display at the locations
referenced in the Citizen Pa ticipation Plan, the City will put the plans on the City' s
website (https://www.newbernnc.qov} and will also email copies of the plans to any
person who will request a copy of the plans via email upon request.



C.  If the City Council is unable to conduct an open public forum type meeting, the City
then can approve the plans at a City Council meeting through an on- line vi tual
City Council meeting, if an in- person Council meetings are not happening because
of the Emergency.

D.  The public comment period for substantial amendments to the Five Year
Consolidated Plan/Annual Action Plan will be five ( 5) days.

E.  The public comment penod for the FY 2020 Five Year Consolidated Plan/Annual
Action Plan submission will be five (5) days.

F.  All other requirements relative to the City' s Citizen Participation Plan for
Consolidated Plans remain in effect, including the sultation requirements, as

required by 24 CFR 91. 105.

ADOPTED THIS 22" d DAY OF SEPTEMBER 20    .

I ANA E OUTLAW, MAYOR

s



COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION ACTIVITIES

JANUARY 1St THROUGH JUNE 30tn

Monthly Community Development Advisory Committee Meeting

February - March Public Meetings and Listening Sessionsto receive
comments for development of Citizen Participation Plan,
Consolidated Plan and Annual ion Plan.

Conduct Needs Assessment to develop priorities for Annual
Action Plan

End of February Public Hearing to rec ive i t from cilfzens on proposed
Citi2en Participation l n  

April National Comrr urnty Develppment Week- Proclamation to be
adopted by Boerd or Aldarmen to raise awareness of
commur ity and' economic development programs.

P lic Comment riod and Public Hearir g on Consolidated
Pl n and Annual Action Plan.

Middle of May Ifiormalion booth at DUFFEST.

July Public information meeting - Community and Economic
x

Development Programs.

October Information booth at MUMFEST.

January - February Public Meetings and Listening Sessions to receive
comments for development of Annual Action Plan.

March - April National Community Development Week- Proclamation to be
adopted by Board or Aldermen to raise awareness of
community and economic development programs.

Apri) - May Public comment penod and Public Hearing on Consolidated
Plan amendment ( if needed) and Annual Action Plan.

May Information Booth at DUFFEST.
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PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

CITY OF NEW BERN, NC

FY 2020 CDBG PROGRAM

Notice is hereby given that the City of New Bern, Craven County, NC will hold a public hearing
on Monday, August 17, 2020 at 6:00 PM, prevailing time, in the Offices of the Development
Services Department, 303 First Street, New Bern, North Carolina 28563. The Public Hearing will
be virtual through Microsoft Teams.  The conference call- in number is 1 - 302 - 202- 1110 and

the conference code is 352428.   The New Bern Development Services Offices are accessible

to persons with physical disabilities. If special arrangements need to be made to accommodate

residents in order for them to participate in the public hearing, please call Ms. D' Aja Fulmore at
252) 639- 7586, or by email address at FulmoreD(c newbernnc.qov or 711 for the hearing

impaired, to make those arrangements.

The purpose of this public hearing is to discuss the City' s Community Development Block Grant
CDBG) Program needs and the CDBG Covid Virus funds under the CARES Act.  In particular,

the housing, community development, public services and economic development needs of the
City of New Bern. This information will be utilized by the City in its preparation of the FY 2020
Annual Action Plan including the use of FY CDBG- CV funds. The U. S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development ( HUD) has allocated $ 258,814. 00 in CDBG entitlement funds for FY
2020 and FY 2020 rDBG-CV funds in the amount of $ 152, 252. 00. In order to receive those

funds, the City of New Bern must prepare a One Year Annual Action Plan for the use of Federal
funds. At least 70% of the CDBG funds must benefit low- and moderate- income persons living
in the City of New Bern. The City will be preparing its CDBG application and it intends to afford
residents,  local agencies, and interested parties the opportunity to become involved in the
planning process.

The following types of activities may be eligible for funding under the CDBG program:
acquisition of property; disposition costs; improvements to public facilities, including the removal
of architectural barriers; demolition and environmental clean-up; public services that are a new
or a quantifiable increase in the level of service; interim assistance; relocation payments for

persons displaced as a result of a CDBG activity; rehabilitation of houses; code enforcement;
special economic development activities; special activities undertaken by a community based
development organization; home ownership assistance for purchase; planning; environmental;
program administration; audit; and other miscellaneous activities.

If the City would undertake an activity that would result in the displacement of families or
individuals, then the City would utilize its policy for minimizing such displacement. Furthermore,
the City is responsible for replacing all low- and moderate- income housing units that may be
demolished or converted as a result of CDBG funds.

All interested residents are encouraged to attend this public hearing and they will be given the
opportunity to present oral or written testimony concerning the needs of the City of New Bern
and the use of CDBG funds to address those needs over the next fiscal year. Written comments

may be addressed to Ms.  Amanda Ohlensehlen,  Economic and Community Development
Manager,  City of New Bern,  303 First Street,  New Bern,  NC 28563,  or emailed to

ohlensehlena(a newbernnc.qov.

Hon. Dana E. Outlaw

Mayor, City of New Bern
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2020 Annual Action Plan Public Hearing

Needs Assessment- Public Comments

August, 17, 2020- Virtual Meeting, Dev Services, Microsoft Teams, Conference Call

Mike Williams, Habitat for Humanity

I would like to know the timeline on the Annual Action Plan process."

This community needs shelter. Homeownership is still needed for those who are still recovering from Hurricane Florence. Also, we need
low- income housing options. We also need assistance to be given to those who are low- income who need home repairs. Home maintenance
continues to be an issue."

F    

Antoinette Boskey, Habitat for Humanity

This community needs repairs for low- income homeowners. I notice there is a lot of deferred maintenance, some of which is
storm- related. The problem is that people simply cannot afford it. Also, in the Duffyfield community, I feel like we should be working to find
ways to bend the water a bit so that we don' t see so much catastrophic flooding."

Additional concerns include lack of housing due to Hurricane Florence and a lack of housing due to COVID- 19."

Housing is our number 1 priority."
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND DISPLAY

OF THE FY 2020 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN AND

THE AMENDED CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN

CITY OF NEW BERN, NORTH CAROLINA

To expedite the tlisbursement of the City' s FY 2020 CDBG and FY 2020
CDBG- CV funtls, via 24 CFR 5. 110, the CARES Act authorizes HUD to
grant waivers to the public notice, public comment, and citizen participa-       ''

tion plan requirements found in 24 CFR 91. 1051( 2) and ( k), 24 CFR

91. 1151( 2) and( i) and 24 CFR 91. 401. The City of New Bern' s Citizen Par-
ticipation Plan is being revised to conform to HUD' s nevd regulatory re-
quirements, including waivers which were granted to reduce the mini-
mum 30- day public comment period to a 5- day period. and a virtual pub-
lic hearing may be heid insteatl of an in- person hearing. City buildings re-
main partially closed to the public to protect public health during the
COVI- 19 pandemic and personal attendance at public meetings and pub-

lic hearings normally conductetl in City Hall is not currently permitted.

Notice is hereby given that the City of New Bem, Craven County. NC will
holtl a public hearing on Tuestlay, September 8, 2020 at 6: 00 PM, in the:

City Hall Caurtroom
300 Pollock Street

New Bern, NC 28560

If special arrangements need to be made to accommodate residents with

tlisabilities in order for them to participate in the public hearing, including
a Spanish or Karen interpreter, please call Ms. D' Aja Fulmore, Community
Development Coortlinator, City of New Bern, at ( 252) 639- 7586, or by
email at fulmoretl@newbernnc. gov. To make arrangements for the hear-

ing impaired, call 7- 1- 1 for Relay North Carolina TDD.

The purpose of the public hearing is to present the City of New Bern' s FY
2020 Annual Action Plan for the use of Community Development Block
Grant ( CDBG) funtls and CDBG Covid Virus funds untler the CARES Act

CDBG- CV). The City intends to submit its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan in
the amount of 258, 814 for FY 2020 CDBG funds antl FY 2020 CDBG- CV

funds in the amount of$ 152, 252. The FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV Plans
will be submittetl to HUD on or before September 30, 2020.

In order to obtain the views of residents, public agencies, and other inter-

ested parties, the City of New Bern will place its FY 2020 Annual Action
Plan on display from August 28, 2020 through September 28, 2020, at
the following locations during normal operational hours:

Office of the Department of Develapment Services

303 First Street

New Bern. NC 28560
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New Bern- Craven County Public Library
400 Johnson Street

New Bern, NC 28560

The Community Development Block Grant( CDBG) and CDBG Covid Virus r}

funds under the CARES Act ( CDBG- CV) budget for FY 2020 can be ac-      

cessetl at the City of New Bern website: http:// www. newbern- nc.org.

These plans will be available for examination during normal business
hours of operation for a period of thirty( 30) days until August 28. 2020.
The FY 2020 CDBG and FY 2020 CDBG- CV Annual Action Plan antl the

Amentled Citizen Participation Plan will be submitted to the Board of AI-

dermen on September 28, 2020 at which time these documents will be

presented to the City of New Bern Board of Aldermen for approval at its
regular Board Meeting.  c,

The Proposed FY 2020 Annual Action Plan and FY 2020 CDBG- CV Plan

were prepared after conducting a public heanng on housing and commu-
nity tlevelopment needs, meetings with housing provider agencles. meet-
ings with the City' s staff antl officials and in accordance^ dith City' s Five
Year Consolidated Plan.

If the City would undertake an activity that would result in the displace-
ment of families or individuals, then the City would utilize its policy for
minimizing such displacement. Furthermore, the City is responsible for
replacing all low- antl motlerate- income housing units that may be tle-
molishetl or converted as a result of CDBG Funds.

All interested persons, groups, and organizations are encouraged to at-

tend this public hearing and will be given the opportunity to present oral
or written testimony concerning the proposed plans and uses of Federal
funds under the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan antl FY 2020 CDBG- CV Plan.

Written comments may be addressed to Ms. D' Aja Fulmore, Community
Development Coordinator, City of New Bern, 303 First Street, New Bern,
NC 28560, ( 252) 639- 7586. Persons with learning and/ or speech impedi-
ments may contact the City via 7- 1- 1.

Hon. Dana E. Outlaw, Mayor, City ot New Bern, NC

August 28, 2020( adv)
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CORRECTION NOTICE

THIS NOTICE IS A CORRECTION TO THE PREVIOUS
PUBLISHED NOTICE OF AUGUST 28, 2020.     

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND DISPLAY OF THE
FY 2020 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN AND THE AMENDED CITIZEN

PARTICIPATION PLAN CITY OF NEW BERN, NORTH CAROLINA

To expetlite the tlisbursement of the City' s FY 2020 CDBG and FY 2020     <; t

CDBG- CV funds, via 24 CFR 5. 110, the CARES Act authorizes HUD to      "'
grant waivers to the public notice, public comment, and citizen participa-
tion plan requirements found in 24 CFR 91. 1051 2) and ( k), 24 CFR

91. 1151( 2) and( i) and 24 CFR 91. 401. The City of New Bem' s Citizen Par-
ticipation Plan is being revised to conform to HUD' s new regulatory re-
quirements, inclutling waivers which were granted to reduce the mini-

mum 30- day public comment period to a 5- day period, and a virtual pub-
lic hearing may be held instead of an in- person hearing.

Notice is hereby given that the City ot New Bern. Craven County, NC will
holtl a public hearing on Tuesday, September 8. 2020 at 6: 00 PM, in the:

City Hall Courlroom
300 Pollock Street

New Bern, NC 28560

If special arrangements need to be matle to accommodate residents with
disabilities in ortler for them to participate in the public hearing, including
a Spanish or Karen interpreter, please call Ms. D' Aja Fulmore, Community
Development Coordinator, City of New Bern, at ( 252) 639- 7586. or by
email at fulmored@newbernnc.gov. To make arrangements for the hear-

ing impaired. call 7- 1- 1 for Relay North Carolina TDD.

The purpose of the public hearing is to present the City of New Bern' s FY
2020 Annual Action Plan for the use of Community Development Block
Grant ( CDBG) funds and CDBG Covid Virus funds under the CARES Act
CDBG- CV). The City intends to submit its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan in

the amount of 258, 814 for FY 2020 CDBG funds and FY 2020 CDBG- CV
funds in the amount of$ 152, 252. The FY 2020 CDBG and CDBG- CV Plans
will be submittetl to HUD on or before September 30, 2020.

In order to obtain the views of residents, public agencies, and other inter-
ested parties, the City of New Bern will place its FY 2020 Annual Action

Plan and Amended Citizen Participation Plan on display from August 28.
2020 through September 21, 202Q at the following locations during nor-
mal operational hours:

Ofiice of the Department of Developmeni Services
303 First Street
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New Bem, NC 28560

New Bern- Craven County Public Library
400 Johnson Street

New Bern, NC 28560

The Community Development Block Grant( CDBG) and CDBG Covid Virus
funds under the CARES Act ( CDBG- CV) budget for FY 2020 can be ac-

cessetl at the City of New Bern website: http:// www. newbern- nc. org.

These plans will be available for examination during normal busmess
hours of operation until September 21. 2020. The FY 2020 CDBG and FY      ``

2020 CDBG- CV Annual Action Plan and the Amended Citizen Participation

Plan will be submitted to the Board of Aldermen on Sep er 22. 2020

at which time these tlocuments will be presented to the f New Bern

Board of Aldermen tor approval at its regular Board Meeting.

The Proposed FY 2020 Annual Action Plan and FY 2020 CDBG- CV Plan

were prepared after conducting a publ c hearing on housing antl commu-
nity development needs, meetings with housing provider agencies. meet-
ings with the City' s staff antl officials and in accordance with City' s Five
Year Consolidated Pian.

If the City would undertake an activiry that woultl resldp in the displace-
ment of families or intlividuals, then the City would utilize its policy for
minimizing such displacement. Furthermore, the City is responsible for
replacing all low- and moderate- income housing units that may be de-
molished or converted as a result of CDBG Funds.

Allinterested persons, groups. and organizations are encouraged to at-

tend this public hearing and will be given the opportunity to present oral
or written testimony concerning the proposed plans and uses of Federal
funds under the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan, FY 2020 CDBG- CV Plan, and

Amended Citizen Participation Plan. Written comments may be addressed
to Ms. D' Aja Fulmore, Community Development Coordinator, City of New
Bern, 303 First Street, New Bem, NC 28560, ( 252) 639- 7586. Persons

with learning antl/ or speech impetliments may contact the City via 7- 1- 1.

Hon. Dana E. Outlaw, Mayor, City of New Bern, NC

September 3. 2020( adv)
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

CITY OF NEW BERN, NORTH CAROLINA

CARES ACT FUNDING AND THE

FY 2020 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN - SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT

As a Federal Entitlement, the City of New Bern, North Carolina (" City") receives funding
from the U. S.  Department of Housing and Urban Development  (HUD)  through the

Community Development Block Grant Program ( CDBG). On March 27, 2020 the U. S.

Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act),
Public Law 116- 136.  According to the allocation of funds under that Act, the City of New
Bern is a recipient of CDBG- CV funds.   The City received two ( 2) allocations of the
Community Development Block Grant  -  Coronavirus  ( CDBG- CV)  funds.  The first

allocation received by the City was $ 152, 252 and in the third round of funding, the City
received an allocation of$ 194,483 for a total allocation of $346, 735 CDBG- CV funds.

The purpose of this public hearing is to present a substantial a endment to the City of
New Bern' s FY 2020 Annual Action Plan for the use of CDBG-CV funds.

To expedite the disbursement of the City's FY 2020 CDBG- CV funds, via 24 CFR 5. 110,
the CARES Act authorized HUD to grant waivers to the public notice, public comment,

and citizen participation plan requirements found in 24 CFR 91. 1051( 2) and ( k), 24 CFR

91. 1151( 2) and ( i) and 24 CFR 91. 401. In accordance with the City of New Bern' s Citizen
Participation Plan and HUD' s regulatory requirement,  waivers were granted which

reduces the required 30- day public comment period to a minimum 5-day period, a public
hearing will be held at 6:00 P. M. prevailing time on Tuesday, February 9, 2021 in the
City Hall Courtroom, 300 Pollock Street, New Bern, NC 28560. City Hall Courtroom is
accessible to persons with physical disabilities.  If special arrangements need to be made

to accommodate residents in order for them to participate in the public hearing, including
translation services,   please call Ms.   D' Aja Fulmore,   Community Development

Coordinator,    City of New Bern,    at    ( 252)    639-7586,    or by email at

fulmored(a newbernnc.qov,  to make those arrangements by February 8,  2021.  For

persons with hearing impairments, please call 7- 1- 1 for TDD.

The City of New Bern adopted its FY 2020 Annual Action Plan and Budget for the use of
CDBG funds on September 22, 2020. In accordance with CDBG program regulations, the

City is allowed to make substantial amendments to its Annual Action Plan and Budget in
accordance with the City' s Citizen Participation Plan.

The City has determined that it is necessary to amend the approved FY 2020 CDBG
program budget.  The funds are proposed for new projects/activities, and/ or an increase

in funding for previously approved projects/activities.



This is considered a substantial amendment in accordance with the City's Citizen
Participation Plan as the following applies: new activities are proposed for funding and
some previously approved activities have an increase in the budget amount and scope of
the activity.

The substantial amendment to the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan is proposed as follows:

FY 2020 CDBG- CV Activities:

CDBG- CV-20- 01 CV-CDBG-CV Administration — increase this project/activity
budget by $ 19,448 for a new project/activity budget of $34, 673.
CDBG- CV-20- 02 CV-Rent,  Mortgage, and Utility Assistance — increase this
project/activity budget by $ 175, 035 for a new project/activity budget of $ 312,062.

In addition, the City has added mortgage assistance to pay for back mortgage
payments to this projecUactivity description.

The FY 2020 Annual Action Plan - Substantial Amendment is on public display for viewing
by the public for a period of at least 5 days beginning on Monday, February 1, 2021 and
ending on Wednesday,  February 17,  2021.  Residents may view the substantial
amendment at the City of New Bern' s website (` t  newbern- nc.orq) and at the

following location during normal operational hours:

Office of the Department of Development Services
303 First Street

New Bern, NC 28560

All interested residents are encouraged to participate in this public hearing and they will
be given the opportunity to present oral or written testimony concerning the proposed
amendment to the use of CDBG- CV funds under the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan.  All

comments received by February 17, 2021 will be considered by the City of New Bern prior
to submittal of the substantial amendment to the City of New Bern Board of Aldermen at
their Tuesday, February 23, 2021 meeting. Once approved, the City intends to submit the
substantial amendment to HUD on or before February 26, 2021.

Written comments or oral comments may be addressed to Ms. D' Aja Fulmore, Community
Development Coordinator, City of New Bern, 303 First Street, New Bern, NC 28560, (252)

639- 7586 or via email to fulmored(a newbernnc.qov. Persons with hearing and/ or speech
impediments may contact the City via 711.

Hon. Dana E. Outlaw, Mayor, City of New Bern, NC



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET vEV' IiLKN

CITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Conduct a Public Hearing on Rezoning 3205, 3207, and 3209 Country Club Road; and a)
Consider Adopting a Statement of Zoning Consistency or Inconsistency; and b) Consider
Adopting an Ordinance to Rezone 3205, 3207, and 3209 Country Club Road from R- 15
Residential District to R- 10 Residential District.

Date of Meeting:  02/ 09/ 2021 Ward # if applicable: ward 3

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development

Services

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing: 02/ 9/ 2021

Explanation of Item: Property owners Samantha and Wendell Wright, and Brian
McCracken have requested consideration to rezone three

parcels, totaling 1. 38 +/- acres from R- 15 Residential District to

R- 10 Residential District.

Actions Needed by Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt an Ordinance

Board:

Backup Attached:     Memo, Ordinance, Consistency or Inconsistency Statement,
Map

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item: N/A

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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NEW BERN

NORTH CAROLINA

303 First Street, P. O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 639-7587

MEMORANDUM

TO:      Mayor Dana Outlaw, City of New Bern Board of Aldermen

FROM: Jeff Ruggieri, Director Development Services

DATE:  January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:   Conduct a Public Hearing on Rezoning 3205,  3207,  and 3209 Country
Club Road; and

a)    Consider Adopting a Statement of Zoning Consistency or

Inconsistency; and
b)  Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Rezone 3205,  3207,  and 3209

Country Club Road from R- 15 Residential District to R- 10 Residential
district.

Property owners Samantha and Wendell Wright, and Brian McCracken have requested
consideration of an application to rezone 1. 38 +/- acres from R- 15 Residential district to

R- 10 Residential district. The parcels are located at 3205, 3207, and 3209 Country Club
Road. and are further identified as Craven County Parcel ID # s 8- 056-001, 8- 046-035,

and 8- 046- 036 ( Ward 3).

The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously approved this application at their January
5, 2021 meeting and recommend approval of the request.

If the meeting is conducted virtually, the public will have 24 hours to submit comments.
Please contact Jeff Ruggieri at 639- 7587 should you have questions or need additional

information.



Craven County Parcel ID #' s 8- 056-001, 8- 046-035, and 8- 046-036

STATEMENT OF ZONING CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED PLANS

The Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern finds the action to rezone Craven
County Parcel ID #' s 8- 056- 001, 8- 046-035, and 8- 046- 036 to R- 10 Residential District

is reasonable and in the public interest, and consistent with the City Land Use Plans
and nearby land uses. In that:

1.  The R- 10 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with the " Developed"

designation indicated in the Future Land Use Map found in the 2010 CAMA
Regional Land Use Plan.

2.  The proposed R- 10 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with adjacent

zoning classifications.

3.  The proposed R- 10 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with existing
uses.

This certifies the above statement of zoning consistency was adopted by the Board of
Aldermen on February 9, 2021.

Brenda E. Blanco, City Clerk



Craven County Parcel ID #' s 8- 056- 001, 8- 046- 035, and 8- 046- 036

STATEMENT OF ZONING INCONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED PLANS

The Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern finds the action to rezone Craven
County Parcel ID #' s 8- 056-001, 8- 046- 035, and 8- 046-036 to R- 10 Residential District

is not reasonable and is not in the public interest and finds it to be inconsistent with the

Regional Land Use Plan and nearby land uses in the proposed R- 10 Residential District
is incompatible with the uses permitted on nearby properties, and other properties in the
vicinity. And that:

The proposed R- 10 Residential District would be incompatible with

adjacent use and the Future Land Use Map found in the 2010 CAMA
Regional Land Use Plan.

This certifies the above statement of zoning consistency was adopted by the Board of
Aldermen on February 9, 2021.

Brenda E. Blanco, City Clerk



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN SO
AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY
WENDELL A. WRIGHT, LOCATED AT 3205 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD, AND BRIAN N.
MCCRACKEN WHO OWNS PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3207 AND 3209 COUNTRY

CLUB ROAD CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1. 379+/- ACRES IN THE CITY OF

NEW BERN EXISTING ZONE R- 15 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO PROPOSED ZONE
R-10 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

THAT WHEREAS, Wendell A. Wright owns the real property located at 3205 Country

Club Road, and Brian N. McCracken owns the real property located at 3207 and 3209 Country

Club Road, with the combined parcels consisting of approximately 1. 379 acres, mare or less, in

the City of New Bern ( collectively, the " Subject Property"), and an application has been made to

change the zoning classification of the Subject Property from R- 15 Residential District to R- 10

Residential District consistent with the attached plat entitled " REZONING CASE: 3205, 3207,

3209 Country Club Road— Approx. 1. 379 +/- Acres: PID: 8- 056 - 001, 046, 035 & 036" prepared

by the Development Services Department of the City of New Bern; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended that said request

be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern conducted a duly advertised

public hearing with respect to the proposed amendment on February 9, 2021, at which time all

interested parties were given an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern deems it advisable and in the

public interest to effect said change, as the requested R- 10 Residential District classification is

consistent with the City Land Use Plans and nearby land uses.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF

THE CITY OF NEW BERN:

Section 1.      That the zoning map of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby

amended by changing the zoning classification of the Subject Property consisting of approximately

1. 379 acres, more or less, located in the City of New Bern, from R- 15 Residential District to R- 10

Residential District as more specifically shown on the plat entitled " REZONING CASE: 3205,

3207, 3209 Country Club Road — Approx. 1. 379 Acres: PID: 8- 056 - 001, 046, 035 & 036"

prepared by the Development Services Department of the City of New Bern, a copy of which is

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Page 1 of 2



Section 2.      That the Board deems it in the public interest to rezone the Subject Property

consistent with the attached plat as the requested Zone R- 10 Residential District classification is

consistent with the City Land Use Plans and nearby land uses.

Section 3.      That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its

adoption and publication as required by law.

ADOPTED THIS 9`" DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK

Page 2 of 2
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REZONING CASE: 3205, 3207, 3209 Country Club Rd.
Approx. 1. 379+-- Acres: PID: 8- 056   - 001, 8- 046- 035 & 036

LOCATION: East side of Country Club Rd, between Farrior Cir and Trent Shores Dr.

Existing Zone:     R- 15 N C ITY of N EW B E RN
Proposed Zone:  R- 10
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Item 3C:   Consideration of a

request to rezone 3205,  3207

3209 Country Club Rd .,
from R- 15 to R- 10
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Item 3C:  Rezoning Request Analysis

Applicant: Brian McCracken

Location: 3205, 3207, & 3209 Country Club Rd.

Existing Zoning: R- 15 Residential District
Proposed Zoning: R- 10 Residential District

Size: 1. 38 +/- acres

Present Land Use: Vacant
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Existing Zoning
R- 15: The R- 15 residential

district is designed to
r    --,.

accommodate low-density
single- family dwellings with

r 
r  ,       . s       15, 000 square feet

minimum lots.
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Development

Sernces
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Proposed Zoning
R- 10: The R- 10 residentialr r

1 ,:'... i.   

district is designed to
r    '   

r  ; '   `- d • 
r ,  accommodate single- and
f      

two-family homes with4 _:

51     '        ;.   

10, 000 square feet lots

required for one- family
dwellings and an additional

5, 000 square feet required
r _'"      

for each additional unit.

N GTY of NEW BERN
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General Survey of Allowed Uses in R- 10

Single Family Detached Residential

Single Family Attached Residential
Duplex

Surrounding Zoning

North: Residential ( R- 15 Residential District)

South:  Residential ( R- 15 Residential District)

East:  Residential ( R- 15 Residential Districts)

West: N/ A ( Trent Woods)

s
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2010 CAMA Regional Land Use Plan

The area is classified as " Developed', a mix of land

uses are included in this designation. Residential
densities range from a maximum of one to five
dwelling units per acre. Higher densities are
permitted within multi- family residential and planned
unit developments and within some zoning overlay
districts within commercial areas of New Bern. The
intensity permitted varies depending on the zoning
district and overlay standards specified in the Land
Use Ordinance. Generally the area is characterized
by urban and higher intensity uses that require
urban municipal or public services.

9

Uti I ities

All city provided utilities and services are
available to the general area.

lo
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Environment

According to the Regional Land Use Plan, the
subject property has medium suitability for
development.

According to the North Carolina Floodplain
Mapping Program the property is located within
the 100 year floodplain, and is considered zone

AE" on the Flood Risk Information System.

i

Recommendation

The proposal to rezone the subject parcels to R- 10
Residential District is consistent with the character

of the adjacent land uses and zoning
classifications. Staff has found the proposed

rezoning to be in the public interest and consistent
with City Land Use and Transportation Plans. Staff
recommends approval of the requested rezoning.

12
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 1 N
CITY OF N N

Agenda Item Title:
Conduct a Public Hearing on Rezoning Tax Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005; and a) Consider Adopting a

Statement of Zoning Consistency or Inconsistency; and b) Consider Adopting an Ordinance to
Rezone Tax Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005 from R- 10 Residential District to R- 6 Residential District.

Date of Meeting:  02/ 09/ 2021 Ward # if applicable: ET1

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development

Services

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing: 2/ 9/ 2021

Explanation of Item: Property owner Michael Raines has requested consideration to
rezone a portion of one parcel, totaling 42 +/- acres, from R- 10

Residential district to R- 6 Residential district.

Actions Needed by Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt an Ordinance

Board:

Backup Attached•     Memo, Ordinance, Consistency or Inconsistency Statement,
Map

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item: N/ A

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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NORTH CAROLINA

303 First Street, P. O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 639- 7587

MEMORANDUM

TO:      Mayor Dana Outlaw, City of New Bern Board of Aldermen

FROM: Jeff Ruggieri, Director Development Services

DATE:  January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:   Conduct a Public Hearing on Rezoning Tax Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005; and

a)    Consider Adopting a Statement of Zoning Consistency or

Inconsistency; and
b) Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Rezone Tax Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005

from R- 10 Residential District to R- 6 Residential District.

Property owner Michael Raines has requested consideration to rezone a portion of one
parcel, totaling 42 +/- acres, from R- 10 Residential district to R-6 Residential district.

The parcel is located north of M L King Jr Blvd., adjacent to Trent Creek and Arcadia

Village Subdivisions, and is further identified as Craven County Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005

ETJ).

The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously approved this application at their January
5, 2021 meeting and recommend approval of the request.

If the meeting is conducted virtually, the public will have 24 hours to submit comments.
Please contact Jeff Ruggieri at 639- 7587 should you have questions or need additional
information.



Craven County Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005

STATEMENT OF ZONING CONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED PLANS

The Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern finds the action to rezone Craven
County Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005 to R- 6 Residential District is reasonable and in the public

interest, and consistent with the City Land Use Plans and nearby land uses. In that:

1.  The R-6 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with the " Developed"

designation indicated in the Future Land Use Map found in the 2010 CAMA
Regional Land Use Plan.

2.  The proposed R-6 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with adjacent

zoning classifications.

3.  The proposed R- 6 Residential District is deemed to be compatible with existing
uses.

This certifies the above statement of zoning consistency was adopted by the Board of
Aldermen on February 9, 2021.

Brenda E. Blanco, City Clerk



Craven County Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005

STATEMENT OF ZONING INCONSISTENCY WITH ADOPTED PLANS

The Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern finds the action to rezone Craven
County Parcel ID # 8- 211- 005 to R- 6 Residential District is not reasonable and is not in
the public interest and finds it to be inconsistent with the Regional Land Use Plan and

nearby land uses in the proposed R-6 Residential District is incompatible with the uses
permitted on nearby properties, and other properties in the vicinity. And that:

The proposed R- 6 Residential District would be incompatible with adjacent

use and the Future Land Use Map found in the 2010 CAMA Regional
Land Use Plan.

This certifies the above statement of zoning consistency was adopted by the Board of
Aldermen on February 9, 2021.

Brenda E. Blanco, City Clerk



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONINC MAP OF THE CITY OF NEW BERN SO

AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY

MARVIN L. RAINES, JR., TRUSTEE, OR THE SUCCESSORS IN TRUST, UNDER THE

IRREVOCABLE TRUST FOR MATTHEW MCCOTTER RAINES AND MICHAEL

GRAHAM RAINES DATED DECEMBER 5, 2006 CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY

42. 0 +/- ACRES LOCATED NORTH OF MARTIN LUTHER KING JR, BLVD., AND

ADJACENT TO TRENT CREEK AND ACADIA VILLAGE SUBDIVISIONS, AND IS

FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS A PORTION OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF R-6

RESIDENTIAL CRAVEN COUNTY PARCEL ID # 8- 2ll-005, FROM THE EX[ STING R-

10 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-6 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

THAT WHEREAS, Marvin L. Raines, Jr., Trustee, or the successors in trust, under the

Irrevocable Trust for Matthew McCotter Raines and Michael Graham Raines dated December 5,

2006 owns approximately 42. 00 acres, more or less, located north of Martin Luther King Jr,

Blvd., and adjacent to Trent Creek and Acadia Village subdivisions, and is further identified as a

portion of the zoning classification of R- 6 Residential Craven County Parcel Id # 8- 221- 005, in

the City of New Bern, and an application has been made to change the zoning classification of

the subject property from Zone R- 10 Residential District to Zone R- 6 Residential District

consistent with the attached plat entitled " REZONING CASE: West New Bern Area—Approx.

42. 0 +/- Acres: PID: 8- 211- 005" part prepared by the Development Services Department of the

City of New Bern; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended that said request

be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern conducted a duly advertised

public hearing with respect to the proposed amendment on February 9, 2021, at which time all

interested parties were given an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern deems it advisable and in the

public interest to effect said change, as the requested Zone R- 6 Residential District consistent

classification is consistent with the City Land Use Plans and nearby land uses.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF

THE CITY OF NEW BERN:

Section 1.      That the zoning map of the City of New Bern be and the same is hereby

amended by changing the zoning classification of the subject property owned by Marvin L. Raines,

Jr., Trustee, or the successors in trust, under the Irrevocable Trust for Matthew McCotter Raines

and Michael Graham Raines dated December 5, 2006 consisting of approximately 42. 00 acres,

Page 1 of 2



more or less, located north of Martin Luther King Jr, Blvd., and adjacent to Trent Creek and Acadia

Village subdivisions, and is further identified as a portion of the zoning classification of R- 6

Residential District in the City of New Bern, from R- 10 Residential District to R- 6 Residential

District, all as more specifically shown on the plat entitled " REZONING CASE: West New Bern

Area — Approx.  42. 0 Acres:  PID:  8- 211- 005"  part prepared by the Development Services

Department of the City of New Bern, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein

by reference.

Section 2.      That the Board deems it in the public interest to rezone the subject property

consistent with the attached plat as the requested Zone R- 6 Residential District classification is

consistent with the City Land Use Plans and nearby land uses.

Section 3.      That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its

adoption and publication as required by law.

ADOPTED THIS 9`" DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK

Page 2 of 2
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City of New Bern Planning and Zoning
Board

January 5th 2021

Item 36:   Consideration of a

request to rezone a portion of

Parcel ID# 8- 211- 005 from R-

i0 to R- 6.
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Item 3B:  Rezoning Request Analysis

Applicant: Michael Raines

Location: PID# 8- 211- 005 north of M L King Jr
Blvd., adjacent to Trent Creek and Arcadia Village

Subdivision

Existing Zoning: R- 10 Industrial District

Proposed Zoning: R- 6 Industrial District

Size: 42+/- acres

Present Land Use: Undeveloped
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Existing Zoning
R- 10: The R- 10 residential

district is designed to

accommodate single- and

two-family homes withs,;,:

10, 000 square feet lots

r=-       _     =    required for one- family
dwellings and an additional

5, 000 square feet required

for each additional unit.

f  w hp*  N GTY ofNEW BERN
E-•--      evelopment

v,,,,,,.„    
Services

X Y: 1• 50p II

fw

5

Proposed Zoning
R-6: The R- 6 residential

m district is designed to

accommodate single-, two-,

and multifamily dwellings withS TE.

6, 000 square feet minimum

lots for one dwelling unit and
r

2, 000 square feet required for
u r

r  ,     each additional unit. Mobi e

homes and mobile home
I parks are also permitted and

N cirvorNEw eERN
Shd be SUb)eCt t0 the

r
Development standards described in
Services

X.»,.'°°"     sections 15- 164 and 15- 165.j  __

6
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General Survey of Allowed Uses in R- 6

Single-, two-, and multifamily dwellings with
6, 000 square feet minimum lots.

Mobile homes and mobile home parks are

permitted ( subject to the standards described in

sections 15- 164 and 15- 165  .

Short-term rentals ( whole and partial house).

Nursing homes.
Child- care homes.

Surrounding Zoning

North: Agricultural ( A-5F Agriculture forestry
district)

South: Residential ( R-6 Residential district)

East: Residential ( R-6 Residential district)

West:  Residential ( R-6 Residential district)

8
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Uti I ities

All city provided utilities and services are
available to the general area.

9

2010 CAMA Regional Land Use Plan

The area is classified as ' Vacant/ Undeveloped" -

land in an idle state and not used for any open-
space function.

so

5



Environment

According to the Regional Land Use Plan, the
subject property has high suitability for
development.

According to the North Carolina Floodplain
Mapping Program the property is not located
within the 100 year floodplain, and is considered

zone " X" on the Flood Risk Information System.

11

Recommendation

The proposal to rezone the subject property to R- 6
Residential District is consistent with the character

of the adjacent land uses and zoning
classifications. Staff has found the proposed

rezoning to be in the public interest and consistent
with City Land Use and Transportation Plans. Staff
recommends approval of the requested rezoning.

lz
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AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET j' IJN'

CITY OF NEW BERN

Agenda Item Title:
Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Annex 431 Riverside Drive.

Date of Meeting: 02/ 09/ 2021 Ward # if applicable: Ward 1

Department: Development Services Person Submitting Item:
Jeff Ruggieri, Director of Development

Services

Call for Public Hearing:  Yes No Date of Public Hearing: 2/ 9/ 2021

Explanation of Item• Property owners Mark and Susan Passaro have requested
consideration to annex their property located at 431 Riverside
Drive, consisting of 0. 575 +/- acres to the City of New Bern.

Actions Needed by Conduct a Public Hearing and Adopt an Ordinance

Board:

Backup Attached:     Memo, Ordinance, Annexation Map

Is item time sensitive? Yes No

Will there be advocates/ opponents at the meeting? Yes  No

Cost of A enda Item:

If this requires an expenditure, has it been budgeted and are funds available

and certified by the Finance Director? Yes  No

Additional Notes:
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NEW BERN

NORTH CAROLINA

Development Services

303 First Street, P.O. Box 1129

New Bern, NC 28563

252) 639- 7581

MEMORANDUM

TO:      Mayor Dana Outlaw, City of New Bern Board of Aldermen

FROM: Jeff Ruggieri, Director Development Services

DATE:  January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:    Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Annex
431 Riverside Drive.

Backqround

The Board of Alderman is requested to conduct a public hearing, to consider a request

by property owners; Mark and Susan Passaro, seeking annexation to the City of New
Bern Tax Parcel ID 2- 037-076 consisting of 0. 58 +/- acres, which said parcel is located

at 431 Riverside Drive.

Recommendation

Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Annex 431 Riverside
Drive.  If the meeting is conducted virtually,  the public will have 24 hours to submit
comments.

Please contact Jeff Ruggieri at 639- 7587 should you have any questions or need
additional information.



Ordinance No.

Prepared by and return to:

Michael Scott Davis

DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PLLC

209 Pollock Street

New Bern, NC 28560

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF NEW BERN PROPERTY OF MARK
AND SUSAN PASSARO, CONSISTING OF 0.58 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED
AT 431 RIVERSIDE DRIVE IN NUMBER 2 TOWNSHIP

THAT WHEREAS, Mark and Susan Passaro tiled a petition requesting the annexation to

the City of New Bern of property they own, which is more particularly described on Exhibit A

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, consisting of 0.58 acres, more or less, which

said parcel is located at 431 Riverside Drive in Number 2 Township, Craven County, North

Carolina, the boundaries of which are illustrated on the annexation inap prepared by the City of

New Bern Development Services staff, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated

herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, said petition was referred to the City Clerk for an investigation as to the

sufficiency thereof; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk certified the sufficiency of the petition in writing to the Board

of Aldermen; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen called for a public hearing on the question of

annexation of said territory; and

WHEREAS, pursuant thereto, notice of a public hearing to be held at 6: 00 p.m. on February

9, 2021, in the City Hall Courtroom was duly caused to be published as required by law in the Sun

Journal, a newspaper having general circulation in the City; and

WHEREAS, on February 9, 2021, at 6: 00 p.m., a public hearing on the question of

annexation of the subject area was held by the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Bern, at

which time all interested parties were given an opportunity to be heard; and



WHEREAS, it was then determined by the Board of Aldermen that the petition filed met

the requirements of the General Statutes of North Carolina, and that the area described in the

petition should be annexed; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE

CITY OF NEW BERN:

Section 1.       That the subject petition meets the requirements of§160A- 31 of the General

Statutes of North Carolina.

Section 2.       That the property owned by Mark and Susan Passaro, the boundaries of

which are more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by

reference, consisting of 0.58 acres, more or less, which said parcel is located at 431 Riverside

Drive in Number 2 Township, Craven County, North Carolina, be and the same is hereby annexed

to the City of New Bern.  A survey of the property being annexed appears of record in Book B,

Page 146 of the Craven County Registry.

Section 3.       That the effective date of annexation shall be midnight on February 23,

2021.

Section 4.       That the area to be annexed be and the same is hereby made a part of Ward

1 of the City of New Bern.

Section 5.       That this ordinance shall be recorded forthwith in the Office of the Register

of Deeds of Craven County.

ADOPTED THIS 23` d DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021.

DANA E. OUTLAW, MAYOR

BRENDA E. BLANCO, CITY CLERK



EXHIBIT A

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Two( 2) Township, Craven
County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows:

Being all of the Lots Nos. 28 and 29 as same are shown and delineated on a map entitled " Survey
for Cape Fear Corporation— Sandy Point Property— Lots 18 thru 31, Block K, Riverview Park

Revised", said map being recorded in Plat Cabinet B, Slide 146 in the Office of the Register of
Deed of Craven County, reference to said map being hereby made for a more perfect description
of said Lots Nos. 28 and 29.

This conveyance is made subject to those certain restrictive and protective covenants records in
Book 98, Page 570 and to any other restrictive covenants of record, if any.
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Aldermen

NEW BERN
Dana E. Outlaw

Mayor

Sabrina Bengel Mark A. Stephens
Jameesha Harris City Manager
Robert V. Aster C I T Y O F N E W B E R N Brenda E. Blanco

Johnnie Ray Kinsey 300 Pollock Street, P. O. Box 1129 City Clerk
Barbara J. Best New Bern, NC 28563- 1129 Mary M. Hogan

Jeffrey T. Odham 252) 636-4000 Director of Finance

Memorandum

TO:       Mayor Dana Outlaw

FROM:  Brenda Blanco, City Clerk %

DATE:  October 22, 2020

SUBJECT:    Appointment to Appearance Commission

On June 11, 2019, you appointed Martha " Molly" Ingram to the Appearance Commission.
Ms. Ingram recently resigned from her seat, as she will be relocating to another state in
November.  You are asked to make a new appointment to serve the remainder of Ms.
Ingram' s term.

When possible, appointees to this Commission should have special training or experience
in a design field, such as architecture, landscape design, horticulture, city planning, or a
closely- related field.

beb

Everylhmg cnmes togeNer here.
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